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(Statewide Session)

TUESDAY, MARCH 28, 2000


Indicates Matter Stricken

Indicates New Matter

The House assembled at 12:00 noon.

Deliberations were opened with prayer by the Chaplain of the House of Representatives, the Rev. Dr. Alton C. Clark, as follows:

We thank You, Lord, for the beauty of springtime; for the awe inspiring days of earth's reawakening. We thank You for the green grass, for every budding flower as we behold in wonder the petals held high by bushes aflame with evidence of God's power. In the changing display of forms and colors that thrill the beholder, may we see that as but the handiwork of God. And may it all teach us that You, our Father God, are the Caretaker of both nature and of human nature. In thanksgiving, we explain: "The earth is the Lord's and the fullness thereof." Amen.

Pursuant to Rule 6.3, the House of Representatives was led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America by the SPEAKER.

After corrections to the Journal of the proceedings of Thursday, the SPEAKER ordered it confirmed.

MOTION ADOPTED

Rep. J. BROWN moved that when the House adjourns, it adjourn in memory of George Chiles, which was agreed to.

REPORT RECEIVED

The following was received:

COMMITTEE TO SCREEN CANDIDATES

FOR BOARDS OF TRUSTEES

OF STATE COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

MEMORANDUM TO:         

Clerk of the House














Clerk of the Senate

RE:



            




Transcript of Hearings


In compliance with the provisions of Act 119 of 1975, it is respectfully requested that the following information be printed in the Journals of the Senate and the House.

Respectfully submitted,

Olin Phillips

Chairman


Pursuant to Act 119 of 1975, the Committee to Screen Candidates for Boards of Trustees of State Colleges and Universities was convened to consider the qualifications of candidates seeking to fill certain positions on boards of trustees of the state’s colleges and universities.  The committee conducts such investigation of each candidate as it deems appropriate and reports its findings to the General Assembly prior to the election.  It is not the function of the Committee to recommend one candidate over another or to suggest to the individual legislator for whom to vote.  The purpose of the committee is instead to determine whether a candidate is qualified and under the statute, the committee’s determination in that regard is not binding upon the General Assembly.  The candidates are:

The Citadel


At-large



two seats







Arthur H. Baiden III (Greenville)














William C. Coffey, Jr. (Manning)














W. Henry Johnson, Jr. (Lake City)














MAJ Richard D. Leonard (Columbia)














William F. Sachs (Columbia)














Allison Dean Wright (Columbia)

Clemson University


At-large



three seats






Walter Mack Burriss(Columbia)














Louis B. Lynn(Columbia)*














Charles E. Moore(Woodruff)














William C. Smith, Jr.(Columbia)*














Allen P. Wood(Florence)*

College of Charleston


Six congressional districts, one at-large




1st District, Seat 2


L. Cherry Daniel(Charleston)*




2nd District, Seat 4


Joel H. Smith(Columbia)*




3rd District, Seat 6


J. Philip Bell(Greenwood)*




4th District, Seat 8


Merl F. Code (Greenville)*














Emil E. Spieth (Spartanburg)




5th District, Seat 10


J. Vincent Price, Jr. (Gaffney)*




6th District, Seat 12


Marie M. Land (Manning)*




At-Large, Seat 14


Timothy N. Dangerfield (Aiken)*














Zeno Montgomery (Columbia)

Coastal Carolina University


At-large, Seat 15





Timothy R. Meacham (Florence)














Daniel W. R. Moore, Sr.














(N. Myrtle Beach)














Ronald R. Norton (Murrells Inlet)

Francis Marion University


Seven congressional districts, one at-large



1st District, Seat 2



Melissa Johnson Emery














(Myrtle Beach)*



2nd District, Seat 4



Gail Ness Richardson (Barnwell)*



3rd District, Seat 6



Patricia C. Edmonds (Greenwood)*



4th District, Seat 8



Alex Kiriakides III (Greenville)*



5th District, Seat 10



Lorraine H. Knight (Hartsville)*



6th District, Seat 11



James A. Brown, Jr. (Florence)**



6th District, Seat 12



William W. Coleman, Jr. (Florence)*



At-large, Seat 14




Robert W. Williams, Jr. (Effingham)**

Lander University


Seven congressional districts, one at-large



1st District, Seat 2



Robin R. Agnew (Myrtle Beach)*














Anthony Noury (Mt. Pleasant)



2nd District, Seat 4



George R. Starnes (Columbia)*














Peter Buttress (Lexington)



3rd District, Seat 5



Mamie W. Nicholson (Greenwood)**



3rd District, Seat 6



Finis Horne (Greenwood)



4th District, Seat 8



C. Tyrone Gilmore (Spartanburg)*



5th District, Seat 10



S. Anne Walker (Columbia)*



6th District, Seat 12



Walter D. Smith (Florence)*



At-large, Seat 14




Ann B. Bowen (Greenwood)*

Medical University of South Carolina


Six congressional districts (three each from medical and non-medical professions)



1st District, non-medical

Melvyn Berlinsky (Charleston)*



2nd District, non-medical
Donald McElveen (Columbia)*














William F. Hoffman (Blythewood)














Donald V. Richardson III (Columbia)



3rd District, non-medical

Fred T. Moore (Honea Path)*














Charles W. Schulz (Greenwood)



4th District, medical


Dr. Charles B. Thomas, Jr.














(Greenville)*














Harold E. Fleming (Spartanburg)



5th District, medical


Dr. Cotesworth P. Fishburne, Jr.














(Rock Hill)*



6th District, medical


Dr. E. Conyers O’Bryan, Jr.














(Florence)*


South Carolina State



At-large



Two Seats



At-large, Seat 11




John Williams, Jr. (Orangeburg)*



At-large, Seat 12




George C. Bradley (Summerville)














Grace H. Salters (Orangeburg)














Alfonso J. Evans, Sr. (Charleston)














Brantley E. Evans, Jr. (Columbia)

University of South Carolina



Eight Judicial circuits



 2nd Circuit






Miles Loadholt (Barnwell)*



 4th Circuit






J. DuPre Miller (Bennettsville)*



 6th Circuit






James Bradley (Lancaster)*



 8th Circuit






Herbert C. Adams (Laurens)*



10thCircuit






Robert N. McLellan (Seneca)*



14thCircuit






Helen C. Harvey (Beaufort)*



15thCircuit






M. Wayne Staton (Conway)*



16thCircuit






Sam R. Foster II (Rock Hill)*

Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School



At-large



Four seats










Bryan England (Murrells Inlet)














Samuel Goodwater, Jr. (Beaufort)














Charles E. Jackson (Lexington)














Wilhelmina McBride (Columbia)*














Mary F. Newman (Cayce)*














Carlisle Roddeym (Chester)














Diana Taylor (Columbia)














Suzanne Turner (Gaffney)*

Winthrop University



At-large



Two Seats






Hugh Hadsock, Jr. (W. Columbia)














Sandra Nelson (Lancaster)














Glenda P. Owens (Charleston)














Kay Wright Rush (Lexington)














Harold P. Tuttle, Jr. (Rock Hill)*

*  Incumbent

**Appointed by Governor to fill unexpired term

TRUSTEE CANDIDATE SCREENING

Monday, February 21, 2000

9:35 a.m. ‑ 2:50 p.m.

The candidate screening process for State of South Carolina College and University Board of Trustee Seats, chaired by Representative Olin Phillips, held at 433 Blatt Building, Columbia, South Carolina, on the 21st day of February, 2000 before Christine A. Howell, Court Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of South Carolina.

APPEARANCES:

COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Representative Olin Phillips, Chairman

Representative Curtis Inabinett

Senator Addison G. "Joe" Wilson

Senator Warren Giese

Representative Margaret Gamble

Representative Lanny Littlejohn

ALSO PRESENT: 

Sophia Floyd ‑ Assistant to the Committee

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: I'd like to call the screening committee to order. But first I'd like to introduce the screening committee. On my right is Senator Warren Giese from Richland and to my left, the far left is Dr. Margaret Gamble from Lexington and Lanny Littlejohn ...Representative Lanny Littlejohn from Spartanburg and Sophia Floyd, our assistant here, and I also would like to recognize the Creel Court Office reporting and we have Christine Howell. Christine, thank you for performing this service for us. I'm Olin Phillips and I'm from Cherokee. One little thing on housekeeping before we get started, and the first will be Clemson, but I'd like to tell you that nobody can after you are screened here today and you're qualified ... you're deemed qualified, you can't ask for support until we release the screening report to the members of the General Assembly. And we'll do that as quick as we can get it transcribed and ready to go back to the House. After that the ... after the screening report is issued and published in the journals of the House and the Senate, the next day at 11:00 you will be eligible to secure votes at that time. Now, mind you, we're going to release this screening report to the General Assembly, every House member and Senator as quick as possible. Then after that date ... after the screening date, the very next day, whatever day that be, I can't tell you because I don't know how fast we'll get this back. But at 11:00 the day following the screening report is issued to the members of General Assembly through the Journal you're eligible at 11:00 that day to secure votes for your seat. Does anybody have any question on that? So, we've got that cleared up. Thank you. Our first order of business is Clemson University. We have at‑large three seats and we have one, two, three, four, five candidates offering for those three seats and for the first candidate, we'll hear from Dr. Walter Mack Burriss of Columbia. Dr. Burriss. 

DR. BURRISS: I had the opportunity ...

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Dr. Burriss, just one moment ... 

DR. BURRISS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: ... I have to swear you. 

DR. WALTER MACK BURRISS, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: A couple of questions I'd like to ask you before you start. Do you have any health related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

DR. BURRISS: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend all the Board meetings on a regular basis?

DR. BURRISS: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or financially that would cause a conflict of interest on any of these Boards? 

DR. BURRISS: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any public office or position that if elected to the Board would cause you to violate the dual office holding?

DR. BURRISS: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, sir. You may proceed.

DR. BURRISS: I had the opportunity of being reared in a family that has a deep love and concern for the advancement of education of our colleges and universities in the State of South Carolina. We come from a long line of Clemson grads. My grandfather was a graduate, my father and his brothers all received their education from Clemson. My mother is a graduate of Winthrop. My wife and I and three of our four children are all Clemson grads. My oldest daughter is a graduate of Winthrop. And I know from experience in my own family that Clemson provides an excellent opportunity for a young man or young woman to receive an education. I believe that Clemson ... an education with Clemson prepares one in many ways. One not only receives the necessary knowledge but also gains valuable experience for the four years of development in the educational processes while attending Clemson.  I feel that a graduate of Clemson University receives an education far beyond average, that he or she is equipped with the necessary educational tools to make an important contribution to the society and the community wherever they may choose to live. I therefore feel that I'm indebted to Clemson University for what I have personally received and how it has affected my life over the past 40 years. I would like to have an opportunity to be of service to Clemson University and to do whatever I can to continue to keep the high standard of excellence in the field of education in order that the future graduates may be a blessing and of great service to the State of South Carolina and beyond.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions from any committee members of Dr. Burriss?

SENATOR GIESE: Chairman, Dr. Burriss, I've noticed you're 65 years of age.

DR. BURRISS: Yes, sir.

SENATOR GIESE: Quite an experienced person. What do you think you can specifically contribute to the Clemson Board of Trustees?

DR. BURRISS: Well, being a recently retired person in the Foreign Mission Board of the South Carolina Baptist Convention. I feel like due to my experiences of living overseas in countries in Southeast Asia such as Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, just recently finished nine years in Japan. Working with different races and cultures, different young people. I feel like this would have a great contribution to sitting on the Board of Trustees for Clemson University. I think once someone has lived overseas and worked with different cultures, your vision has definitely been enlarged. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other committee members? Representative Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Dr. Burriss, one, I think, continuing concern of many of us in the legislature is the graduation rate in our public colleges, the number of students who are graduating in four years, six years, et cetera.  What are your thoughts on that and do you have any ideas as to what Clemson or any other institution in this state might do to increase that level, that percentage of graduates that are graduating in four years? I mean, it just seems like now it's a lifelong process instead of a four year process and many of them not getting out in four years.

DR. BURRISS: Well, I guess, there are several ways you can look at this. In my own life, I graduated from Clemson in 1957 with a bachelor of science and then I got a masters degree in 1963 and then I received a doctorate degree in 1980. So, there's a continuing education on my own part. And if ... I don't want to say a professional student ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right, but you understand what I'm talking about. I'm talking about the students that are taking this long to finish a bachelors degree. They aren't getting out in six years. They aren't getting out ... I mean, I'm looking at the graduation rates in the latest report that we've got from the Commission on Higher Education. At Clemson in particular the percent graduating within four years is 36 percent. That's a low figure. 

DR. BURRISS: Well, we had three of our children to go through and I can only share from our own experience that I had one son that really enjoyed Clemson and he enjoyed the social life at Clemson and I got the point across that we would pay for the first four years of his college education and after that he would assume that responsibility of finance for himself. So, sometimes people have different reasons for delaying and staying on at Clemson University.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Thinking along those same lines, it's been thought among people in the legislature that possibly we should only pay for only so many credit hours. That the legislature should kick in only so much support for so many credit hours. For instance, maybe 140 hours because students are staying around five, six, seven years majoring in four, five, six different things. What are your thoughts along those lines? I mean, as a parent you've just said you would put limits on your own child and only pay for four years, so could you see the legislature doing something similar? 

DR. BURRISS: I think it's a great possibility because you've got so many other young people coming in that also should have the same privilege and opportunity of attending college.  And for those who want to be a professional student, sometimes pressure needs to be put on them.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Senator Giese?

SENATOR GIESE: May I make one addition to that line of thought that Representative Gamble was making. That is that the State contributes to Carolina some 7,000 or $7,500.00 per year subsidizes each student. At Clemson it's something $6,500.00 as I recall. So, if they stay beyond four years, $26,000.00 at Clemson that the State is subsidized that particular person increases $6,500.00 a year. So, six years is another $13,000.00 of cost to the taxpayers for that student. So, it's a very relevant question that she's asked.

DR. BURRISS: I think too, you may have to look at each individual case. Not only, I don't think just because of professional student or enjoying the stay at Clemson or can I say the party life at Clemson may be attractive to some, if not many, but also I think some students have a difficult time and they may not be able to go as much as others and ... 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right. And I'm talking very much about our traditional student who is a full, you know, full‑time student enrolled. 

DR. BURRISS: Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I'm not talking about say the returning adult learner who comes back and maybe can only enroll in six hours at a time.  But I'm talking about the traditional student that is enrolled sometimes for only as few as 12 hours but that's their choice to enroll only for 12 hours instead of 15, 17 and that kind of thing.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, Dr. Burriss.

DR. BURRISS: Thank you, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Next is Louis B. Lynn from Columbia.

LOUIS B. LYNN, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any other health related problems that have come up since you've been serving on the Board as an incumbent that we should be made aware of today?

MR. LYNN: No, sir. Just earned a few gray hairs. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: And considering you've been a present member of the Board, have you attained that would be a conflict of interest? 

MR. LYNN: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any professional interests or anything that would prevent you from serving on this Board?

MR. LYNN: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Continue your service?

MR. LYNN: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any other public offices we've not been made aware of since you assumed a member of the Board?

MR. LYNN: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, sir. Go ahead, sir. 

MR. LYNN: I'm offering for reelection. I also have a PhD in Horticulture from Clemson. I've served on the Board since 1988, which is three terms. And I consider the position a labor of love. I graduated in 1970 and I have looked at this position as an opportunity to give back to the school that's given me so much. I am the only African American on the Board and I help support the University's diversity agenda but I don't carry that alone. I am a PhD agriculture graduate and I also hold an adjunct professorship in horticulture. And I, as one of the aggies, I embrace and often champion the farm, food and forestry issues of our University. Like Dr. Gamble talked about, I have a daughter that recently graduated from Clemson, so I've engaged in all aspects of educating children of the working class. One of the most rewarding aspects of my Board service is commencement exercises. I enjoy seeing and sharing the excitement of proud and happy families. But more importantly after 12 years as a Trustee witnessing many of these youngsters becoming contributing citizens in this State and other places. I love Clemson University. As an incumbent Trustee, I give of my time and of whatever monies I can and as an incumbent you can also ... you will also be able to check my record and my performance and my dedication to the position. I love Clemson and I want to continue serving.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, sir. Are there any committee members that have any questions?  Representative Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Dr. Lynn, I have the same question that I had with the previous person who came before us, Dr. Burriss. What are your thoughts on the graduation rate? I mean, what ... and you're actually there at Clemson now. Can you tell me a little bit about what you all might be doing to increase that percentage of students who are graduating in four years?

MR. LYNN: Well, I live in Columbia.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But, I mean, you're actually on the Board right now ...

MR. LYNN: Yes, ma'am.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... that's what I mean. 

MR. LYNN: Yes, ma'am. One of the things that we ... with internships and with the global learning and globalization of economies, I think with internships and all we can expect kids to stay a little longer. If a kid has to do an internship and I encourage internships right now, we ... I'd like to see Clemson, in fact, encourage more international internships.  But because of economics, family economics, scholarships, available monies, I think it's reasonable to expect that those kind of things have set in and we do have a number of those at Clemson who do internships. That probably slides the graduation rate some. I agree with the previous person that at some point and it can be based on academic hours earned, but we do have to give some credence to internships that there should be a cut off point. Our ... 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But if the State ... 

MR. LYNN: ... rate ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right. But if the State were to do something like determine that 140 hours was all that the State should subsidize, that really wouldn't have any impact on internships because they typically don't earn credit, do they ...

MR. LYNN: Right. Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... during an internship? So, we're talking about time as opposed to number of hours. Would you as a Trustee support us doing that?

MR. LYNN: Yes, I think getting ... the time to get a B.S. degree, after five years I question what the student is doing.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, you could support us maybe using a threshold of 140 semester hours because that's really ...

MR. LYNN: You've got a lot of continuing majors ... 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... as long as any bachelors program is. Most of them are typically 120 to 128, somewhere along in there. But a few of them do go over that.

MR. LYNN: Correct. I would support that and I think that would make some kids make up their minds along with what mom and daddy do. I think that would be ... I could support that. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other members? Thank you, Mr. Lynn. The next candidate is Charles E. Moore from Woodruff.

CHARLES E. MOORE, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Moore, do you have any health related problems that the committee should be made aware of?

MR. MOORE: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend this Board in full‑time? 

MR. MOORE: Yes, I would.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or personally that would be a conflict of interest serving on the Clemson Board?

MR. MOORE: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any public office that would constitute a dual office holding by being elected by the Clemson Board? 

MR. MOORE: I have been elected to the School District Four Board but I don't feel there is any conflict there.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Member of School District Four? 

MR. MOORE: Yes, sir. Public school.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Go ahead with your statement, sir.

MR. MOORE: Thank you for the honor of being here today. I'm offering to serve on the Clemson University Board of Trustees. I'm a native of Spartanburg. I graduated from Clemson Agricultural College in 1962 in mechanical engineering. I was also commissioned as the officer via the Clemson ROTC program in the United States Air Force. This was a defining moment in my life in Korea. I was selected for flight training in the Air Force and eventually became an F4 fighter pilot and served in Vietnam in 1968. While in the Air Force, I also earned a masters degree in management from Troy State University. After 20 years of Air Force service, I now live in Woodruff where for the last 15 years I own and manage an insurance agency. My degree and commission from Clemson has served me well across the United States and from Vietnam to Turkey. Although I was the first in my family to attend Clemson, my two brothers, my two sisters, numerous nieces and nephews and two of my sons have since greatly benefitted from their Clemson experience. I have served as an ambassador for Clemson throughout the years. It was always with great pride when living or traveling outside of South Carolina to see or hear of news of Clemson and to tell others about the Clemson accomplishments whether it was research and development or classroom accomplishments, academics or athletics or its rating as one of the best universities in the South or the nation. Over the years my wife and I have contributed about 50,000 to the alumni association and IPTAY. I've been active in the Spartanburg County Clemson Club, served as president and been awarded the Super Tiger Award for my devotion to Clemson. In offering to serve on the Board of Trustees, I hope to use my experience in the military, world travel and business to continue the Clemson ideals and traditions.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any committee members have any questions? Representative Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Thank you. Mr. Moore, I have the same question that I have had with the others and that is my concern over the graduation rate. I'd like to get your views on the legislature maybe enacting a limit in the number of hours that we would subsidize. 

MR. MOORE: You know, I've always been concerned about that. When I went to Clemson in '62, as I recall, there were 1,000 freshmen. I believe about 310 or something like that graduated. You know, in education it's always been an attitude, we'll throw it out and you students can get it whether you want it or if you really want it, you'll get it. I don't know what the solution to that problem is but I think a business approach and a motivation program for the students, maybe to find out whether they're motivated prior to entry. I know the standards are high now on the SAT test and after being very high in your high school class, but I think some type of motivation factor where the student wants to succeed and whether the University is just taking in a whole bunch of students and only planning to graduate a few. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, you would support the legislature moving toward a limit on the number of hours that the ...

MR. MOORE: A limit on the hours or years I think would be appropriate.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Okay. Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN: You realize there may be a conflict?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any questions now? Mr. Moore, we opened filing for this seat in November. Were you elected to the school board in the November general election?

MR. MOORE: Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You were a candidate at the time you filed with us and a candidate that was elected in the November 20th or whenever the election was in November, the general election in Spartanburg County?

MR. MOORE: I don't recall which one came first there. I believe I got my signatures and applied for the Clemson Board.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Our filing date was ... the filing deadline was the 15th and it was issued the 20th. I don't know what day was the election. But you were elected in '99? 

MR. MOORE: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: The November general election of '99?

MR. MOORE: November. And I assumed ... the first Monday in December is when that term started. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Yes, sir. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Yes, Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Moore, I'm a little bit confused now. So, you were just elected this past November and now you want to seek another position. I mean, can you give us some assurance that this is the one you really want? 

MR. MOORE: Well, I don't plan on dropping the other one unless ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Oh, well, you would have to by law if you were elected ...

MR. MOORE: Is that right?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... to the Clemson Board to drop the other one. You cannot hold two positions that require an oath. And so I'm a little bit concerned, I mean you just ran for school board and immediately after being elected you're running for the Clemson Board? 

MR. MOORE: Yes, I am.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: What assurance can you give us that in three months you're not going to be running for something different?

MR. MOORE: For Governor or something? I don't think I would this is ... well, I have no plans to do that. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: So, if you were elected to this Board, you should stay on and be elected to this Board, you would resign the school district?

MR. MOORE: If that's a requirement, I would. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, you couldn't hold two. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You would have to if you were elected.

MR. MOORE: I would do that. I would certainly resign if it's required.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: From the district school board? 

MR. MOORE: Yes, I would.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, Mr. Moore.

MR. MOORE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: The next candidate is William C. Smith, Jr. of Columbia.

WILLIAM C. SMITH, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: I'll ask you a couple of questions here. Since you were elected to the Clemson Board, are there any reason for you where you couldn't serve on the Board in full capacity in the future?

MR. SMITH: No, sir. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and other activities, have you developed any kind of conflict of interest personally?

MR. SMITH: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other public office since you've been elected to Clemson Board of Trustees, to prevent you from dual office holding?

MR. SMITH: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may go ahead, sir.

MR. SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and committee members. It is with great pleasure that I seek re‑election to the Clemson University Board of Trustees. Serving on the Board these past four years has been a labor of love and an honor in which I take great pride. My decision to continue my service to Clemson University and the State of South Carolina is one based on my desire to dedicate my time and service to an institution that's been a big part of my life.  I attended Clemson University on a football scholarship and was the starting defensive end on the 1981 National Championship Football Team. I was graduated in 1982 with a bachelor's degree in administrative management. Since graduation I have remained very active at Clemson reaching the pinnacle of my service to Clemson four years ago by being elected to the sacred position of Trustee. Recently my fellow board members elected me to serve as Vice Chairman of the Board. In addition, I'm involved with the Alumni Association, IPTAY, past board member of the Board of Visitors, Second Century Society, past board member of Tiger Letterman Association and the Columbia Clemson Club. Something that I am most proud of is the establishment of the William C. Smith, Jr. Family Scholarship Endowment. This endowment provides scholarships for underprivileged South Carolina students to attend Clemson University. In closing, I know that I maintain the indispensable qualities to continue to be an effective Trustee for Clemson University. I possess enthusiasm, energy and tireless work ethic that will be beneficial as our State moves forward in establishing a vibrant higher education system. I look forward to the opportunity to continue contributing the strong foundation of values that have long been established at Clemson University.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do the committee members have any questions for Mr. Smith? Dr. Gamble. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Smith, I ask the same question of you as I've asked of the others and that is your thoughts on the graduation rates and your thoughts about the legislature doing something to enact legislation that basically would put a cap on the number of hours the State would be willing to subsidize?

MR. SMITH: I would certainly, Dr. Gamble, support any legislation that the General Assembly put forward limiting the number of credit hours or number of years. But I think we need to maybe regress a little bit from there and make sure that our students that go to our universities are better prepared. I think Clemson is recognized and is trying to make an effort to work with the various high schools around the State to make sure that our students are better prepared when they do go to college. I think, if you'll look at typically the first semester of the first year is really when our students struggle the most and typically get behind. And I think if we can better prepare our students to attend college and to take the courses and to study in college, hopefully that alone with some of the ideas that you brought up will remedy this situation.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: It is an area that I have a lot of concern about and I do think that we are doing more in our high schools than we've ever done before. We have the school to work programs in place where we're exposing children to different occupations. They're going out doing internships even in high school. 

MR. SMITH: That's right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, I am hoping that they are arriving at the college doors with a better idea of what they want to do. But I am concerned that somehow or another they just aren't getting it done in four years or 120 or 30 or 40 hours.

MR. SMITH: Yes, ma'am. I agree.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But you would support that.  Now, can you elaborate a little bit more when you say we should ... you would like to see more done to prepare them. I mean, Clemson has most probably and I've got the information here, if I could find it, your average SAT score on your students who enter Clemson is a lot higher than say it is at most probably our four year colleges in the State. So, you are most probably getting really really top students.

MR. SMITH: We are.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: You're not getting the student who was maybe the ...

MR. SMITH: And Clemson has either a year or two years ago, has raised the standards of applicants that we will accept at Clemson and we felt that it's our role if we're going to raise the bar, we need to go and do some work in the high schools and even before then to help better prepare these students to meet the challenges of college life. And we have some programs that we are trying to pull together now to do that with. But it's a concern. And I share it with the General Assembly the concern and the amount of dollars that are going in for students to attend universities five or six years before they graduate, get their undergraduate degree. So, I think there is a combination there. And I know Clemson University will certainly be willing to work with the General Assembly to make sure that we find a solution to a concern that we all have. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: What committees do you serve on within your Board structure?

MR. SMITH: Currently I am Chairman of Student Affairs Committee which is, I think, one of the most cherished committees because if it weren't for the students, we wouldn't have our colleges and universities. I just was elected to serve on that as Chairperson. I also serve on Institutional Advancement. I've also served as Vice Chairman of the Budget and Finance Committee, Educational Policy Committee and the Agricultural and Natural Resources Committee. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I'm assuming you all have a committee that addresses building needs? 

MR. SMITH: That's typically handled in budget and finance.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Budget and finance. 

MR. SMITH: Yes, ma'am.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Another concern that I had and I wish that I had asked Dr. Lynn, since he is an incumbent as well. Is the growing need of colleges and universities for deferred maintenance funds, and I'm very sympathetic to that, extremely sympathetic to that. But I want to know what your thoughts are on giving priority to deferred maintenance over new construction because I am seeing instances where colleges are growing with new buildings, but I'm concerned that the maintenance is being neglected. And I'm not so sure that's a wise move to add new buildings to your property when you… 

MR. SMITH: That's a ... that's a very very good question and it's something that we've over the last two years have addressed at Clemson.  You'll probably notice that it was in the newspapers several weeks ago that we had quite a substantial housing rate increase. And what had happened and the reason for that is that we've taken a lot of our housing improvement funds and we've taken care of a lot of deferred maintenance particularly life safety issues.  We felt that was extremely important to make sure that ... all of our buildings are not sprinklered but most of the ones, the highrises are sprinklered now at Clemson. And we wanted to make sure the safety of our students were dealt with first. And now we are taking care of a lot of the ongoing maintenance issues, deferred maintenance issues. And that was the reason for the increase because we had depleted our slush fund so to speak to take care of deferred maintenance items. And therefore, we had to raise the housing fee accordingly. But a very good concern and we are trying and, I think, we've got most all of the deferred maintenance items at least caught up to speed.  We still have a few things outstanding. But ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I'm looking at the list that you all submitted to the CHE and there's an item here, a municipal complex, and it got a very low rating from CHE and it's my understanding that your rating was determined by a variety of factors but among those was would say if it was an addition, was it actually going to replace space that had a deferred maintenance need. Can you even tell me what a municipal complex is at Clemson? 

MR. SMITH: I'm not ... I'm not sure what that actual facility is myself.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, I was just thrown aback that there would be a municipal complex on you all's campus.

MR. SMITH: Clemson ... Clemson University ... I'll try to answer that. Clemson University has its own fire department and has its own police department, runs as a municipality itself. And therefore, we may be a little bit different than say South Carolina or some of the other universities and colleges is that we are self‑ supporting from that standpoint. As a matter of fact, Clemson ... the City of Clemson uses a lot of the services that we have at Clemson University just because we're better able to keep up with the fire departments, the police departments and so forth than the actual City itself. So, that may be the reason for the complex.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE: Mr. Chairman, about three months ago or four months ago, I received a visit from one of your institutional officers to let me know that your Board of Trustees had decided to place up for sale some 300 acres here in Columbia. The 300 acres happened to be surrounded on two sides by residential areas ...

MR. SMITH: Yes, sir.

SENATOR GIESE: ... and it's aroused a tremendous amount of interest. It's quite coincidental that this evening I'm attending a meeting that there will be several hundred people and 27 homeowners associations, all very very upset, at least that's what I've been told to expect, about this so called development of 300 acres.  And you may already know this, but way back when Clemson purchased some 900 acres out there, bisected by Clemson Road, one of our mostly heavily traveled roads for $6,000.00.  Because my first question was how could Clemson be ... and as you recall the Board of Trustees set a $13,500,000.00 minimum bid on this particular property. I was also told that the winning bidder's responsibility would be contingent on the City or County changing the zoning from what it was to some C3 which would allow the building of a shopping center in the middle of this area. The use for the money, I said what are you going to use the money for, it was to build buildings which Representative Gamble just questioned you about the need for buildings and so on. Well, it's always been my impression that when Clemson or Carolina or the Medical University or other colleges and universities have a true need for building, we've been responsible. We've responded during one of the ... every two years a bond program.  And it just doesn't seem to really make a lot of sense that Clemson would sell something, 300 acres in there in the middle of this developing residential area. Do you have anything you would ... and it may be that ... because we had a difficult time finding out first ... found out two days ago after three months who the winning bidder was and at this moment I don't know what they actually bid on it. But what's going on?

MR. SMITH: What Clemson ... let me try to address this and we're trying to raise money and the money is going back into, you're correct, to a new facility at Sandhills. If you've been out at Sandhills recently, it's a pretty run down area. Clemson is real big into research. The dollars that could be raised from this land sale and again it is not complete because it is subject to a rezoning and if the rezoning does not take place the land sale will not go through. Part of the monies will go back into scholarships for the area. There is a plan that's been put together and I'd be glad to share that plan. It just got approved at the last Board meeting. The monies would go back into a new facility so that we wouldn't have to come to the State and ask for more monies from the State. And what Clemson has tried to do, we have vast landholdings throughout the State and anytime that we sell land we try to either put that back into scholarships or put that back into building improvements so that we don't have to burden the State and come to you all and say we need another building; we need to raise some more money through bonds. This would be funds that were raised from this sale would actually go back into this facility. And I believe we have the community support for the facility and for what we are trying to do with the scholarships. I think probably maybe the rub that has come a little bit is the neighborhood isn't necessarily wanting a shopping center or something to go next to the residential area. And that's where the sort of the rub is.

SENATOR GIESE: One of the real problems is that you didn't take into consideration, at least in the presentation, that we're just spending $8,000,000.00 to widen Clemson Road to take care of the traffic we have there now and put a huge shopping center in there is going to ... it only has one way to get out and that's on Clemson Road.

MR. SMITH: Sure.

SENATOR GIESE: You go across the railroad track and that torturous Rhame Road that goes next to it is not any place that you can spill traffic.  But I'm happy to hear that because tonight I will report to the group that you have an additional bit of information available. 

MR. SMITH: And sir, I'll be glad to get the full blown proposal to you so you can see it in detail. I didn't explain it very well. I don't have it in front of me. 

SENATOR GIESE: Can you get it today?

MR. SMITH: I'll do my very best to do that, yes, sir.

SENATOR GIESE: Good, thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, Mr. Smith.

MR. SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Next is Allen ... Allen Wood. Mr. Wood is from Florence and now is an incumbent.

ALLEN P. WOOD, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Wood, do you have any health related problems that's come up since your last election to the Clemson Board of Trustees, that would prevent you from continuing serving in a full capacity?

MR. WOOD: No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation, would it pose any kind of conflict of interest that would personally or business likely cause a conflict of interest?

MR. WOOD:     No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Have you accepted any kind of or been elected to any kind of position other than the Clemson Board of Trustees since your last election?

MR. WOOD: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, sir. You may issue your statement.

MR. WOOD: I sent the Committee a copy of my testimony when I signed to run for the Clemson Board again. I have served 12 years. I have been the Chairman of Agriculture Committee, the Student Affairs Committee. I have served a term as Vice Chairman of the Committee. And while I've been a Trustee I've established two scholarships. One in the College of Architecture and another scholarship that is exploratory for minorities who are interested in the field of architecture. I have contributed to all of the fund raising organizations at Clemson, the Alumni Association, IPTAY. I have been honored by being selected a distinguished alumni of Clemson University. I am the only architect on the committee. I am very interested in that area and I would very much enjoy continuing to serve another term. In the past couple of months we have elected a new president. He is also an architectural graduate. I am very excited about that. He is the first architect to be selected to be the president of a major university in the United States. He is a man of vision. I look forward to his service and serving on the Board while he is president. Also we're in a major fundraising campaign. It is very successful and we look like we are going to exceed our goal probably in the neighborhood of 50 to 60,000,000. We've already exceeded our goal and we're upping the limits. So, we at Clemson are very excited about the future and I would love to continue to serve another term. I consider my service on the Clemson Board of Trustees a sacred trust. And with that, I'll be glad to respond to any questions that you may have.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Dr. Margaret Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Mr. Wood, I have the same question of you that I've had of the others and that is your thoughts on the State at some point limiting the number of hours that we're willing to subsidize and I'm thinking something in the neighborhood of 140. But something maybe to serve as a bit of motivation for people to graduate.

MR. WOOD: The ... as they say, Representative Gamble, the devil is in the details. I would in concept, I could support that. I think it's an area that is very sensitive to other factors. One of the most difficult majors to get into at Clemson ... you cannot be accepted to Clemson until you're accepted into a major.  The most difficult major to get into at Clemson is architecture and that's because a lot of people ... young people, especially women, are very interested in architecture. They cannot get into architecture. So, what they do is they go into another major just to get accepted. They will accept anything, any major at all just to get into Clemson. Clemson is the only school of architecture in the State.  Hoping that once they get in that if they do good enough and demonstrate that they can handle college work, then they transfer into architecture. So, that takes a year. And if my memory serves me correct, about a year or so ago, in the State Paper, I think, Clemson had over a five year period had the second highest graduation rate of any university in South Carolina. I think that concept would have a greater impact on other universities than Clemson. It's very interesting to me, if you look at the data, that as you said and I think Bill Smith said Clemson University has some of the highest SAT's in the state. But if you look at our ... and compare Clemson to the other ACC schools, our SAT rate is the lowest in the ACC. Even though we can say with pride ours is one of the highest in the State. But compared to all the other schools in the ACC, we're on the bottom. Then you say how ... why?  You look at two thirds or 35 percent of our student body comes from South Carolina and everybody knows the level of public education in South Carolina as compared to the rest of the nation. So, I think we have to be very sensitive about when we set these that they have some flexibility. They have some lead time. I would support it if nothing else that it would raise the standards to a higher degree. But, I think it needs to be over a period of time where somebody in the eighth grade knows that this is what the situation is going to be when they graduate from high school. If it's too quick, I think it's going to be very difficult for a lot of the people that are taxpayers of South Carolina. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: How many credit hours are required to graduate with a degree in architecture?

MR. WOOD: In architecture?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Yes.

MR. WOOD: Now, I think, it's ... we ... the degree program has been changed somewhat in the last ten years. It used to be a five year program.  My degree is a five year degree. It's ... at that time and today it's considered a professional degree. To become a registered architect you have to have a registered ... I mean, a professional accredited degree in that field.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: How many of you all's incoming freshman do you accept in your architecture program? I know you're saying a lot of them are transferring in because they come in and maybe they don't have the grades or whatnot but I assume ...

MR. WOOD: I think that … 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... are some that you take in their freshman year.

MR. WOOD: I think they take in around 100 or 125 a year freshmen.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And then what's your attrition rate? How many of those fizzle out, don't even make it in architecture? Do you know that?

MR. WOOD: I do not know that. Clemson's architectural program is that ... that department now includes architecture, horticulture ... I mean, landscape design, city and regional planning, healthcare architecture and building science. So there's ... and they can transfer in those programs which all of them have ... because it's all in the same department still has that difficulty of getting in. But usually if they go into a degree program that say has a low student ratio to faculty, they're encouraged or that is a suggestion for them to do that so that that program will have enough students. And then once they get in they move into architecture.  A lot of the architectural students find after they are in architecture for a year they don't, you know, that's a field that they don't want to be, so they transfer into building science. I think that a college education, part of it is learning what you want to do with your life. And I think these students have to have an opportunity to make those decisions once they get there. No matter what we do as a preparatory, most of the programs have these preparatory high school, I mean, summer programs where you can go if you're interested in any ... and it's kind of like a summer camp, you can go for two or three weeks, to help them make a decision so that there will be less changing of majors. Some of the other majors ... the national average for students changing majors is about two and a half times or something in that range ... changing majors. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Are you on the budget committee?

MR. WOOD: I have been. I'm not currently. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, my question a little earlier about facilities' needs or requests that we get for new construction from the colleges when there is tremendous need out there for deferred maintenance, what are your thoughts on that? What do you think about ... and I say this because it's my understanding that in the State of Virginia that you cannot ask for dollars for new construction until you have evidence that you have been able to meet your deferred maintenance needs. What are your thoughts on that?

MR. WOOD: My thoughts are very similar to yours in that Clemson has recognized and has been a leader before the CHE for monies for

 maintenance. That is a critical need not only at Clemson but at all our universities is maintenance money. And that money does not receive the glamour or the push or the emphasis that say a new building does. A lot of ... some of the buildings that we're doing at Clemson now, a lot of the money is coming from out ... not from the legislature but from others that are giving ‑‑ alumni, others interested to build a building.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: If the legislature were to enact something that says when you make a request to CHE for new construction you should have evidence that you were able to meet your deferred maintenance needs, what would your thoughts be on that?

MR. WOOD: I think we have done a good job and that we have set aside money for maintenance. We have ... you don't change directions overnight. We have ... my colleague on the Board, Joe Swan, that has been an emphasis of his for the last seven or eight years to set aside and he brought that issue before the Board and we have in place a system to increase money for maintenance. And as Bill Smith said, to bring our buildings up to standards as far as life safety. That has been the first priority ‑‑ removing asbestos, sprinkler systems, accessibility. Those were the first priorities. Roofing. But there is a designated part of our budget for deferred maintenance. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And I assume you are saying when you're saying a designated part of your budget that you're designating a part of your tuition revenue as well as your appropriated money?

MR. WOOD: I think it mostly comes from appropriated money.

SENATOR GIESE: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Yes, sir, Senator Giese. 

SENATOR GIESE: Mr. Chairman, it's been quite obvious that one of the issues is, I think we're asking you about is the rate ... the graduation rate. I've had the opportunity of spending my entire working life from 1948 through 1984, that's 36 years, working at the college level in institutions of the University of Maryland, the University of South Carolina. Back in 1948 through 1960 the requirement for graduation almost all curricula was 120 hours, 15 hours, eight semesters and you graduated.  What's happened is that and certainly the very technical education that you people offer in architecture and engineering and so on also offered engineering and so on at the University, pre‑med et cetera, they've increased the number of credits so that we now have ... it's not unusual to have 136 hours or 140 hours is the number you're mentioning, just the bare minimum for graduation. And so if you miss a course and one of the things when it's as crowded as the universities are is that you can't schedule all the courses that you absolutely need to have the 15 or the 17 or the 18 hours a semester and consequently a student has a choice of either going to summer school which he can make up ... which increases the cost of his education. But a lot of that has been brought on by the faculty which approve these increased number of hours that various specialties like architecture or engineering insist on having in the undergraduate curriculum. So, part of that is brought on because of the increased demand for technology and information and also we have to recall how often people change their majors. Once you change your major you in effect lose some of the technical courses because you have to take other technical courses to replace them. So, it's really a big problem. And I think it lies at the basis of the financing of ... because every student that stays an extra year, it's costing the State subsidy of, depending on what school you're at, the longer you stay the more the taxpayers have to make up for your length of stay. I would think that that's a plausible explanation for one of the problems we have with more than four years.

MR. WOOD: Well, Senator, I think and there's for every case there's ... I mean, for every ... there's ... all these are individual situations of course and they all show up as a ... in data. But there's a lot of reasons just as we both spoke to. But in addition to that, when I went to Clemson I never wanted to leave because it was such a good environment, I think. And I think you see a lot of students today that realize that once they graduate, it's not going to be near as much fun as they're having then or having in college. The lifestyle, not just the being a party school or party animal or the social life, to go out in the world and do 9:00 to 5:00 is not near as much fun as being a college student. So, there is a reluctance to leave or to graduate quickly. A lot of these students take a year off to go to another country, to New Zealand, Australia, to Europe and to study in a foreign ... a foreign city that sometimes they get credit for that work that comes back.  Sometimes it ... they don't.  It just depends upon the situation. They want to take a year off and the ... I think I'm right in saying that the so called traditional student, that number or that percentage is dwindling. As we go on I think you will see that as part of a minority of the student body what is called the traditional student. Some students graduate from high school and wait a year and go out and work before they start school. So, it's ... the role of higher education as far as preparing people for society is always changing.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I'd just like to add one other comment. I mean, I understand what you're saying but if we would approach this from the number of credit hours that we're willing to subsidize, that really doesn't have any impact or the fact that somebody took a year after they graduated from high school and didn't come to college or the fact that they are attending college on a part‑time basis or that they took a year off and went to a foreign country. If the State were to say, you know, we will only subsidize with State appropriated money 140 hours or so, then all those other factors really don't have a part in it. Would you agree with that?

MR. WOOD: I agree with that. And I can support your concept. I don't think with all candor that it will have a tremendous impact of getting students in and out of college any quicker.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: It might not get in and out any quicker but they'll certainly get in and out with less cost to the State.

MR. WOOD: That's true. That's true.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: I'd like to welcome Senator Joe Wilson from Lexington to the committee.  Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON: Thank you. Mr. Wood, I really appreciate your positive attitude about a four year graduation rate. I think it's very important. I appreciate that I had a son who understood the importance of a four year graduation at Francis Marion University. I appreciate Gail Richardson, Alex Kiriakides, people like that serving on that board and they have done an excellent job and with their new leader Dr. Fred Carter I'm sure it will be even to a greater fulfillment. To urge people for a ... to create an environment for a four year graduation rate, I have a new interest in Clemson University in that I have a incoming freshman this year and I want him to graduate in four years because I think it's good for the student. I think it's good for the family. I think it's good for the taxpayers of South Carolina. And so I hope you all will keep an emphasis in a positive way to encourage students to achieve all they can in four years and then if they want to attend graduate school or whatever it takes.

MR. WOOD: If I'm re‑elected, Senator, my term will begin when he enters Clemson and so I will follow his four year experience.

SENATOR WILSON: Obviously, no pressure on this child, but I want him closely monitored. 

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN: Mr. Wood, correct me if I'm wrong please but you made a statement about the reason the SAT's at Clemson were down because of the students in South Carolina as not being as good as students in other states.  Is that what you said or meant?

MR. WOOD: I think nationally South Carolina's SAT's nationally are either the second lowest or the third lowest in the United States. I think that's correct.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN: I think the problem is higher ed is not attracting and keeping the good students of South Carolina. We have just as good students as anyone. We're not doing the job at keeping our students in South Carolina, at USC or Clemson. Would you agree to that?

MR. WOOD: I think ...

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN: Is that why our SAT's are down and not because we have poor students? 

MR. WOOD: The scholarships that are available at State supported universities in South Carolina is one of the lowest in the country. There are more scholarships and better scholarships at Duke University, the University of North Carolina, Georgia Tech and others that give not only a full scholarship and room and board, books and tuition but also spending money in larger quantities than the State supported institutions in South Carolina have money to give. We see that as a problem. We're addressing that. Most of our fundraising effort is directed towards scholarships. We have 30, this past weekend, we have the 30 ... it was an article in the State Paper. There were 30 of the highest SAT students in South Carolina on Clemson University's campus this past weekend. And we were doing our best, the president met with them, the deans met with them. We were recruiting them harder than we recruit football players or just as hard to keep those 30 best high school students from the State of South Carolina in South Carolina. So, we see that as an issue. We're doing what we can or we're trying to address that issue. We have seen that as an issue for a long time that there was somewhat of a so called brain drain from the State of South Carolina to keep the best students from South Carolina from leaving the State. I think if you look at what was happening at the Governor's School with their graduates, the majority of them were going to Princeton, Stanford, Yale, Georgia Tech. There is a ... I kind of enjoyed seeing it but there is a rivalry between the University of South Carolina and Clemson to see how many ... who can get the most graduates out of the Governor's School. So there is competition going on to attract and try to keep the best students in South Carolina at our public supported universities.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN: So, you do agree that our students are as good as anyone else? 

MR. WOOD: I agree that our students are just as good as anyone else's. But still our SAT's ... because in South Carolina everybody takes the SAT. In other states not everybody takes the SAT.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Wood, you've opened up a new can of worms. You talked about you think the State should do whatever it can to keep our best and brightest in our State. Do you really believe that we should do whatever?

MR. WOOD: I believe ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And I ask that because every year we are lobbied extensively to appropriate 82 percent of the Palmetto Fellows money to force our best and brightest to choose between a public college. And I have had complaints from parents who told me, "My child wants to go to Furman, my child wants to go to Wofford."  Those seem to be the two schools I get more comments about. Yet the public colleges insist every year that we give 82 percent of that money to public colleges. Would you not agree that if we let the student select which college in the State they wanted to ... we let our best and brightest select that we would keep more of our best and brightest in our State?

MR. WOOD: The students I was referring to, Ms. Gamble, is the students that can go anywhere. The students that we ... that I was talking about, the students that no matter what school they choose they will get a full scholarship.  No matter what school in the United States, those were the students when I said the best and brightest that I was referring to. The students that have 1,400 or 1,500 on the SAT that they will probably have a scholarship to almost any school that they want to go to. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But still along those same lines and I use the Life Scholarship data to tie this point in and that is with Life Scholarship money, that money is given to the student. That money does not have to meet any ratio formula as far as what school it goes to, public or a private school. And the data that was given to me most recently by CHE, 22 percent, a little over 22 percent of the students who have Life Scholarships are choosing a private institution. If we were using that same formula that we use on Palmetto Fellows we would be cutting out more percent of the people who are even eligible for Life Scholarship. I mean, I don't think it's any huge number. I mean, I don't think it's a number that would threaten any college in this State. But I do get complaints every year from at least a few parents who say, you know, my child scored such and such on the SAT and such and such on the ... had a ranking in the class of this and yet my child didn't make that first cut to choose to go to Furman or Wofford and now my child is going to Washington and Lee because they feel like if they have to pay for all of it out of their pocket they would just as soon let them go wherever they want to go.  So, what are your thoughts on that? These are our top students. They may not be the 1,400 and 1,500 SAT students. But they're still top students.

MR. WOOD: Well, I would ... I would have no problem with a person who is a recipient to choose any school that they want to go to as long as it was in the State. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, you would have no problem with us changing the Palmetto Fellows program such that a student could apply to be a Palmetto Fellow and if they chose to go to Wofford or Furman that they could go to Wofford or Furman that they would not be forced into one of the public colleges?

MR. WOOD: I'll have no problem with that.

SENATOR WILSON: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON: I'd like to thank Representative Gamble for bringing this issue up and fully explaining it and Senator Giese had referenced it too. But this is a real problem that I think should be addressed. The Life Scholarship is one that does encourage students to stay in South Carolina. I was just mentioning that to Senator Giese. That was not the intent necessarily of that scholarship program. But I know in my community it's had that effect. But the Palmetto Fellows scholarships were intended to try to keep our best and brightest in South Carolina. But by having this percentage where you have to preselect where you're going ... if you're going to go public or private we've had a number of students, hundreds of students who are the best and brightest get caught in the crack in that they missed ... they didn't put which category that they could get into and so they lost out. And so it really does bother me and I would hope that particularly the people who are here today, that the lobbyist on behalf of the state institutions would reconsider what they're doing and let's open up this process so that people can choose and it should be for the student and not for the institutions that the scholarships are being provided. And so again, the bottom line would you be working to open up, and I think you've already stated it, but to open up the Palmetto Fellows program to students choosing whichever in‑state institution they want to attend?

MR. WOOD: I would support that.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, Mr. Wood.

MR. WOOD: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: After hearing all the candidates, what is the pleasure of the committee? 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I make a motion that we find the candidates qualified.

SENATOR WILSON: Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: All in favor signal by saying aye. 

        (ALL IN FAVOR)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Therefore, all of the candidates that we've just screened are now qualified. Again, I want to urge you though, until we release the screening report to the members of the General Assembly you cannot solicit votes.  Please don't get caught in that trap. Do not solicit any votes until the screening report is completed, released to the General Assembly in the journal. The following day after that at 11:00 you may receive votes. Yes, sir, Mr. Smith.

MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, will you do one consolidated report based on this group and next Monday's group?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: That's right. One report will be in the journal.

MR. SMITH: One consolidated report.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Everybody's will be in the journal at the same time.

MR. SMITH: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you. Next we have the College of Charleston, six congressional seats and one at large. District number two ... the first district, seat two, L. Cherry Daniel from Charleston.

L. CHERRY DANIEL, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Ms. Daniel, do you have any health related problems that we should be made aware of?

MS. DANIEL: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and serving on the Board, is there anything that would keep you from serving on a regular basis in the future?

MS. DANIEL: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interest that has come up since you were elected last that would cause a conflict of interest?

MS. DANIEL: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you hold any other public office since being elected to the College of Charleston Board ...

MS. DANIEL: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: ... that would constitute dual office holding? You may proceed.

MS. DANIEL: Thank you, very much. This is my first term on the Board of the College of Charleston. I've really enjoyed it. I'm a graduate of the College of Charleston. It's a very exciting yet challenging time to be in education, particularly in higher education. The College of Charleston as you know is an outstanding institution of higher learning and as a professional educator I'll continue to guide it and direct it with the most recent challenge to improve teacher quality in South Carolina. As the only professional educator serving on the Board, I hope to assist with that challenge. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions from any of the members of the committee?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I have the same question of Dr. Daniel that I had of the others. I'd like your thoughts on the graduation rate and your thoughts on the State at some point putting a limit on the number of credit hours in which we're willing to subsidize, whether it be 140 or something in that neighborhood. What are your thoughts on that?

MS. DANIEL: I think it's a reasonable request, particularly as spiraling costs of education continues to escalate at an alarming trend. I think that we have to look at that. I was a five year student myself. I'm one of seven children. My situation was a little bit different because I worked my way through school. So, it did take me five years. But even the ... if you put a cap on a certain number of hours, I think that would be reasonable because it still wouldn't hurt people like myself that went and worked their way through school.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right, because we would be approaching it from the credit hours ... 

MS. DANIEL: Exactly.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... standpoint and not the number of years. So that those students ... 

MS. DANIEL: Exactly.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... who are part‑time students are not penalized by that.

MS. DANIEL: Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Another question that I asked those earlier who are incumbents and since you are an incumbent, your thoughts along the line of requesting money for new construction when you have deferred maintenance needs that are outstanding and looking at the list from CHE, you all have several requests that you have given them this year. One of them got a really low rating and that was the Stern Student Center and the others ... I'm not sure how high the scale went but the science building got the highest rating of all. So, obviously that's a tremendous need that you all have. What are your thoughts because I have a real concern as I see more and more requests come in for new construction from colleges yet there's deferred maintenance needs out there that have not been attended to and I'm concerned that, you know, they're growing the number of buildings yet, you know, neglecting some that have real needs.

MS. DANIEL: Good ... that's a good point and you're right, we are continuing ... we continue to have tremendous needs. I know at the College.  I can't speak for other places but I know at the College we continue to have. And I think we're conservative on our approach to it. I'm not on the facilities committee. I work with several of my colleagues who are on the committee and that is a tremendous challenge. We have to look at those first before we continue to ask for more monies for new construction. I agree. The science center, I just recently took a tour of that and I can understand why it ranked high. It really needs a lot of attention.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And it's my understanding that those facilities that got a high rating, the new facility will actually be replacing a building or a site that had tremendous deferred maintenance needs. So, basically you're putting in new construction but you're taking out of the system.

MS. DANIEL: No, ma'am. Not ... not with this particular building.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, but you're taking away the deferred maintenance need.

MS. DANIEL: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: In other words, you're building something new.

MS. DANIEL: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But you are eliminating the deferred maintenance need. So, you are also obviously renovating to the extent… 

MS. DANIEL: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... that you will have no deferred maintenance need. That's what my understanding is.

MS. DANIEL: Right. Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: The other question I want to ask and this is tied in since we brought this up with the last, with Mr. Wood, that was up here. That is your thoughts on the Palmetto Fellows program, about us allowing students and those are our best and brightest in the State, and as Senator Wilson alluded to a little earlier, the whole premise behind that program was that it was designed to keep our best and brightest students in South Carolina. The College of Charleston is an excellent school.  I think all of our colleges are excellent colleges so I don't say this as if I think they should be ...

MS. DANIEL: Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... choosing one college over the other, but Furman and Wofford just seem to be colleges that I get more comments about that, you know, my child wanted to go to Furman, they wanted to go to Wofford and they couldn't go because the 18 percent of private money was exhausted. What are your thoughts on that on allowing the money to follow the best and brightest students in the State and not necessarily be allocated to a public college? 

MS. DANIEL: You're correct. We have to be able to keep the best and brightest, I think, that is one strategy you could look at.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, you would support the State moving in that direction?

MS. DANIEL: Uh‑huh (affirmative response). 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Other committee members? Thank you, Ms. Daniel. Second district seat four, Joel H. Smith of Columbia.

JOEL H. SMITH, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Joel, since the election do you have any health related problems that the Committee may be made aware of at this time? 

MR. SMITH: No, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and further activities, will you be able to attend the Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. SMITH: I am, Your Honor. I'm a lawyer, excuse me.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interest professionally or personally that causes a conflict now by serving on this board? 

MR. SMITH: No conflict.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you hold any other elected office which may constitute dual office holder? 

MR. SMITH: I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may proceed with your statement.

MR. SMITH: I've served on the Board since it was formed in 1988 and as its Chairman for the last six years or I'm in the sixth year as its Chairman. We have been blessed at the College with wonderful leadership. Harry Lightsey and Alex Sanders have both been presidents since I have been on that Board. So, we've only had two presidents since I've been there. And I have been impressed with the way that they have been fiscally responsible not only with the dollars that we get from here but also the dollars that come out of parents pockets and students pockets and have also been impressed with the ability the College has had while growing to maintain a superior educational product. I'm very pleased to have had the opportunity to serve on the Board and look forward hopefully to a fourth term.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Committee members have any questions? Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Chairman, I have the same questions of Mr. Smith that I've had of the others. I want your thoughts on the State at some point in time limiting the numbers of hours that we'd be willing to subsidize and, I mean, you heard the other questions.

MR. SMITH: Sure.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: If you want to just expand and the issue of new construction versus deferred maintenance and then also the Palmetto Fellows program ...

MR. SMITH: Okay.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... as to what your thoughts might be on us allowing that money to follow the best and brightest student as opposed to arbitrarily allocating it to public versus private college.

MR. SMITH: Dr. Gamble, let me start first with the deferred maintenance issue because that's an important thing. Our facilities' financial priorities come in two categories. One is deferred maintenance category and the other is what we sort have been talking about here is competitiveness. We want ... we need to in order to attract a good student from South Carolina, the good student from anywhere, to have the ability to continue to improve and upgrade our buildings. For example the Stern Student Center which you mentioned which did not get a high rating in the current list of projects. The Stern Student Center went on‑ line in 1974 when I was a freshman at the College of Charleston, when we had about 5,000 students. It's half the size it needs to be now and it has tremendous deferred maintenance problems. So, there's a ... there's a project that in order to attract a new high school senior to the College of Charleston when he's there or she's there this week looking trying to make her choice. If I'm going to have a competitive college if I'm going to attract the students that we all want to attract, I've got to continue to improve my facility and I've got to continue to upgrade my science building and all of those things. At the same time I've got this tremendous deferred maintenance problem. So, would it be a good idea now after we as a State have not put the priority on higher education that Virginia has or that North Carolina has to say to the schools who have been balancing this set of priorities you don't get any more new building money until you have fixed up your old buildings. What that will do is destroy our competitiveness. What that will do is say it will tie a hand behind our back.  Virginia, North Carolina, Georgia, they've been putting enough money in higher education for many years to allow a school ... to allow a legislature to say to a school keep everything fixed or you don't get anything new. And we haven't done that frankly. I mean, everybody knows we ... our ... our legislative dollar has traditionally not gone to higher education the way legislative dollars have gone in other states. So, it would be, I think, not looking back and only looking forward, if we made a decision today that would say because you haven't had enough money to be both competitive and to keep your buildings in repair in the past that now you have to keep your buildings in repair or you lose your ... and you will lose some element of your competitiveness. It's a very difficult and ... a difficult problem that has occurred over time, not one that can be fixed with one decision to fix everything or get nothing new.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But would you not agree though, I mean, some of these things are just basic needs? If you don't maintain the buildings you have yet you're adding new buildings to your property, you know, in ten years you have even more deferred maintenance needs. And when you talk about students coming on campus, I mean, I can't agree with you more and I'll share a story that I probably shouldn't share with you. But I was talking to someone from our facilities office over at USC just recently about some deferred maintenance needs and he was talking about how important it was to have good facilities and everything needed to be pleasing to the eye to students who come on campus.

MR. SMITH: Certainly. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: He talked about there are four different types of bricks laid around the Horseshoe and that they all need to have the same types of brick. I mean, you know, that the walk needs to be made of the same type of brick. And my comment was I don't want to find any new bricks being laid over there until I see some of these deferred maintenance needs, you know, addressed. Because, I mean, that's wonderful to be able to go in and do some of those kinds of things. But I'm not so sure that our State can afford to do that at the expense of neglecting, you know, deferred maintenance. And, I mean, I hear what you're saying and I think there has to be some balance. But at the same time to grow your number of buildings when you maybe have heating and air conditioning problems in some, you have maybe a loss of energy, in terms of you have leaks around the windows and you're not as energy efficient as you can be, I mean, I think those things absolutely have to be addressed.  And I think, you know, do you really want to look good from the outside only to have students come in and then realize well, gosh, I really thought this place was better than this. But then I got in here and realized, you know, that there's insulation dropping down from the ceiling.

MR. SMITH: Well, and I agree and your comment can we afford to do that, can we afford to build a new building when we have the deferred maintenance problems. The question I've got is what is it that we can't afford not to do. Can we afford to allow our competitiveness to slip while we fix up old buildings or do we go ... try to do some of both? And I think that's what all the schools are trying to do. You correctly noted that both the science building project and the Stern Center project that we talked about are going to be replacement projects which will have the effect of eliminating a big chunk of deferred maintenance while we upgrade and improve our competitiveness. And hopefully, all the schools ... I'm sure all the schools are thinking in those same terms of being able to eliminate large deferred maintenance issues by the replacement approach. Your first question was about the number of credit hours. Again, I think these questions have a lot of different nuances. When Barney Giese and I graduated from Dreher High School together back in 1974, both Barney and I thought well, we'll go to school for four years. And Barney's dad and my dad both thought the same thing, that they would go to school for four years. And we did. Both of us went to school for four years. And both went out ... went into professional school. Got through professional school at the same time. So, the expectation of the student and the expectation of the parent were such that everybody thought four years was what you did. Because there have been a number of changes that have occurred in programs, as you are quite aware of and that have been discussed, unique situations, but more because there has been a change in society's expectation. I just put a child at Clemson last year, I mean, last fall. And, you know, I thought well four years this will be over and then I thought well, no, maybe not. Maybe he'll be in a five year program. He's in engineering. Maybe he'll be ... maybe he'll waste a semester. Maybe he'll change a major. And if that happens to me, if you choose to change the law so that the State subsidizes my child's education for four years but no more or ... not four years but for a number of credit hours but no more, then I'm okay. I can afford to pay for that. But if somebody who's got seven children who like my colleague on the Board who was one of seven children, or somebody who's making a tremendous personal financial sacrifice to put their child through school can't ... who can't afford that, who can't afford to pick up that subsidy in the fifth or the sixth year. And the reason that they have to do that is because their 19 year old couldn't decide the direction that they wanted to take when they were a 19 year old which I've got a 19 year old and he doesn't know what direction he's going to take. It's not an unfair thing to suggest that a 19 or 20 year old might change their mind and pick a different course. It's one thing to say that the State is not going to pay for that any more but the next step is well for that child to graduate from college, who is going to pay for it. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, but I think ... I think that all of us would agree, I think the State would never and when I say the State ... I mean, I say this because this idea has just been tossed around for a long time and, I mean, the costs are continuing to increase. I mean, I think all of us would agree that when a program is a five year program whether it's pharmacy or architecture or whatever that we would ... that the State would still be there for those students ...

MR. SMITH: Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... that are in a five year program, if it's a bachelors ... if it's still a bachelors program. But and I mean, I'm willing to give wiggle room whether it be an extra semester, you know, 15 hours above whatever that program would be. But I mean, I know of someone in my own family that stayed in with two hundred and something hours. 

MR. SMITH: Right. And I think that's an extreme case and probably something that can be worked around. My only ... my only point is, is that if we're going to make a hard and fast rule we've got to understand that the hard and fast rule is going to catch some people and that the hardship may fall on middle class South Carolina and the parents of middle class South Carolina or that middle class child whose parents can't afford to send him to school that sixth year with the additional subsidy or that fifth year. And I just think there are ... it seems to be ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But do you not agree though that if that information is given to students early on, I mean, the student at some point in time has to accept some responsibility for understanding there are consequences. 

MR. SMITH: I agree with that.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: These ...

MR. SMITH: Lord, I do agree with that. I've got a 19 year old.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: These are expensive consequences to the State and ...

MR. SMITH: And to the parents.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... it's not ... and I mean, I'm a strong advocate for education. I think that's one of the greatest things that our State can do for its people and should do for its people. But as our dollars are becoming stretched and more and more limited, I just think at some point in time we've got to take care of the responsible student. I mean, we've got to ... we've got to draw the line in the sand and I think that information needs to be shared early. I don't think that it's something that all of a sudden you give them a notice after they've been in school and say well, you've been here long enough. But I think if that information is shared with guidance counselors and high schools and students know, then, you know, if I really didn't know what I wanted to do, I don't think I'd start college right out of high school. I might, you know, want to work for a year or two and explore and see because I would understand.  You know, sort of like making any other major expenditure in your life. You realize when you get it home it's yours.

MR. SMITH: Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, I think, you do ... I think there would be more caution as people move into programs.

MR. SMITH: And I think that it's ... you're wise to try to change society's expectation back to a four year paradigm, that that is what we ought to expect. But the thing is, though, I think that a student can be responsible, can have gone through their whole high school wanting to be a doctor and go into biology and find out that the life sciences are not where that student's love is, and then responsibly make a decision to go into something else and be a responsible student who has all of a sudden because they have been a good student and been a responsible student thought about what their future is when they were 20 or 21, they could have made a choice that was a realistic choice and a good choice, but that will cost ... will make it either impossible for them to continue put a tremendous burden on someone who is going to have to pick up the State's share of that.  And I don't suggest, Dr. Gamble, that what you're talking about is not a great idea. I just think it has to have some ... it needs to be tempered with some understanding of some of the circumstances that could occur. That's my only point. And on your Life Scholarship ... 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, actually Palmetto Fellows.

MR. SMITH: Palmetto Fellows, I think that the four year private schools have some tremendous opportunities for competition with endowments that we don't have as a State school. And I think it is our responsibility as trustees of State schools to look for opportunities to attract the best and brightest students to our schools. Now, I'm all in favor of students having their choice of where they want to go.  But this is one of the things that gives us some competitive equilibrium with Furman, for example. And I think when you're comparing South Carolina and Furman or Clemson and Furman, it may be a little different but when you're looking at a four year liberal arts college in South Carolina and comparing us to Furman ... we have a lot of students who are trying to make that decision. And that decision to get that good student into a State school and to support the State school which I'm a trustee of, I'm not a trustee of Furman, is an important priority. And I don't want to take that advantage away from this school. And I don't want ... or from these other schools.  I'm all in favor of the student having a choice but there are lots of opportunities that Furman and other well endowed schools have to compete with me and with you in our State schools that we don't have and that's one we do. And I'd like to keep it.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But it's one that coerces students down a track. I mean, it's not like this is ... this is something that, you know, when you look at the academics that it gives you an academic edge or anything but it basically forces the students to ... the best and brightest and it may be a tool that you see that Furman and Wofford use but at the same time their tuitions are very very high. And so that $5,000.00 only offsets some of that tuition. It does not cover them going to school ...

MR. SMITH: That's correct.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... and really and truthfully, I mean, the $5,000.00 now will maybe pay the tuition alone at most of our public schools but it won't do anything beyond that. And in some ...

MR. SMITH: At the College of Charleston it will ... it will do more than that. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Five thousand will. What is you all's…

MR. SMITH: Are you talking about a semester or ... 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: What's your tuition per semester?

MR. SMITH: I think it ... I don't know what it is exactly. I don't have that number exactly. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Because I was thinking that 5,000 is about what the tuition is for two semesters at least at USC and Clemson. 

MR. SMITH: We're a much better deal.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, they can get books too. 

MR. SMITH: That's right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I mean, I think all of our State colleges are great colleges but that one just really baffles me that the purpose of that program is to keep the best and the brightest in the State and I don't think we're talking about any tremendous number of students. But every year we hear from parents who, you know, my child wanted to go to Wofford, my child wanted to go to Furman, and my child didn't have that choice. But they are top students.  I mean, they may not have 1,400 or 1,500 ... 

MR. SMITH: Right. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... but likely they have 1,300.

MR. SMITH: Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, I mean, I'm just real puzzled. So, you think the allocation should remain that we should force them into the public colleges?

MR. SMITH: I don't see it as forcing anybody into the public colleges. What I see it as is these schools are my ... our responsibility and your responsibility, as are the students of South Carolina. And to have an opportunity to have a recruiting advantage, which we seldom have over Furman or Wofford, to have that opportunity to attract those good students to our schools, to make those schools that much better is not something I want to give up. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Smith, you all have so many opportunities. When you say to have that recruiting opportunity, you have an excellent program.

MR. SMITH: We do.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: You know, it's not like that money is all that's going to draw students into your school. You have a ... I mean, I hear so many students in my area, oh, I'm going to the College of Charleston. They really like Charleston. They like it a lot. I mean, you all have Charleston as a recruiting tool. So, I mean ...

MR. SMITH: We do but that's not our only recruiting tool. We do have wonderful programs and we have managed to take the location that Charleston is and the attractiveness of it and provide a wonderful educational, a superior educational product down there. The thing that we are ... the place that we lose battles though is with a Furman because Furman is considered to have a higher academic reputation and when mom and dad are having to make that decision and the child is having to make that decision, that brings those good students to the College of Charleston where I am sure they will get a great education and they'll be so much happier than they would at Furman. They just don't really realize it.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: You say that. But put yourself in the position of the parent who has that child, who has always wanted to go to Furman. 

MR. SMITH: I understand.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Who has known for a long time that they want to go to Furman and Furman is a very expensive college ...

MR. SMITH: It is.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... and all of a sudden, you know, they get the letter from CHE that gives them the information about the Palmetto Fellows and they realize they don't have a choice.  They're down to choosing a public college. If you were the parent of that child and you paid taxes in this State, you've contributed to this State, would you not feel as a parent real disappointed in the State that the State was trying to track your child just to meet some arbitrary quota?

MR. SMITH: I am a parent of a child that just chose to go to a fine institution of public higher education, Clemson University, and recently had to make difficult decisions about whether to send my son to a private school or to a school which is supported by the State and I am so pleased that he chose to go to Clemson. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But he chose it. He was not forced into it. Is that what you're telling me?

MR. SMITH: Well, he had a little help in his decision and a lot of that had to do with how much it cost to go to those other schools. And I'm delighted that he chose Clemson. If he had chosen one of the other schools, I would have been happy as well. But he chose to go to Clemson and he ... and I'm happy that he went there because I believe Clemson can deliver a wonderful educational product to him as good as Furman could and that he will leave Clemson with a better education than he could at Furman. So, I would be happy speaking from a parent standpoint or from a trustee standpoint with the law being the way it is.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE: Mr. Chairman. We've listened to this with every speaker thus far being asked the same questions about 140 hours or whatever total. Education is changing. I can tell you right now the greatest shortage we have is pharmacists. And they've just gone to a pharmacy D which is a six year program, not a five year program. You come out with your doctorate in pharmacy. So, we're not going to have any real control over that. I like the idea of the flexibility. But also the large school/small school issue comes up with this 8218. Some youngsters want to go to a smaller school and they are shut out from going to a smaller school when we have Clemson and the University of South Carolina. I think you're going to be surprised to see the number of students that go with that very fine scholarship to Carolina and to Clemson. But it may not be their first choice. They may have wanted to go to a smaller school with an excellent educational reputation. But I would just say that, I think the devil is in the details. The idea of having some ... getting people to understand that four years ... I have four youngsters. They all went to college for four years and got out. They knew it was going to be four years and then we've had some grads and they got out the regular time. That's got to be the assumption that we have to go towards from the point of view that you're mentioning. But I look forward to hearing, I think, we've almost exhausted that one.

MR. SMITH: It's a good debate and they're difficult issues. And I think you're right, Dr. Giese, the devil is in the details and the details of individual student's stories have got to be considered.

SENATOR WILSON: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON: As a native of Charleston, I want to tell you how happy I am about the success of the College of Charleston. It's just amazing to me when I was at your sister institution the High School of Charleston, there were only 300 students at the College of Charleston. So, it's just amazing. So, I want to commend the president, of course, Alex Sanders, with what a credit he is to South Carolina, your leadership as chairman. I'm very familiar with the leadership of Ms. Land and Ms. Daniel and I appreciate Mr. Dangerfield's hard work. You've got a wonderful institution. I do want to bring up one other point though about the Palmetto Fellows and that is that ... and Representative Gamble has done a great job bringing this out about the unintended consequences of heartache within families and also the conflict within the schools and making the job of the guidance counselors virtually impossible. Because they've got to give advice on how to apply for the Palmetto Fellowship and there have been mistakes made, innocent mistakes, which has caused great ill will between guidance counselors and parents and I think we need to get back to the original point. It was supposed to be for the students. 

MR. SMITH: Right.

SENATOR WILSON: And then I'm confident the excellent public institutions we have in South Carolina can compete. But it's just been a nightmare for people at the high schools that I represent and I hope that will be addressed. It's just Russian roulette as to who gets it and who doesn't and it shouldn't be that way. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other committee members? Thank you, Mr. Smith.

MR. SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Next is the third district seat six, Philip Bell ... J. Philip Bell from Greenwood.

J. PHILIP BELL, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Bell, do you have any health related problems that might keep you from serving on this Board ...

MR. BELL: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: ... in its full capacity? Considering your present occupation and activities, would you be able to attend all of the Board meetings as you have in the past? 

MR. BELL: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interest personally or professionally that would cause a conflict of interest?

MR. BELL: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other public office since being elected to this which would constitute dual office holding?

MR. BELL: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, sir. Go ahead. Any questions.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I thought he was going to give an opening statement. Is he going to give an opening statement first?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Yes, I'm sorry. Go ahead. I'm getting ahead of myself. Sir, go ahead with your statement.

MR. BELL: Thank you. I've been a Trustee at the College of Charleston for the past four years. I re‑offered for the purpose of continuing that service. I feel like it is an obligation to return something to the State. I was born in Greenwood and raised in Greenwood and educated in Greenwood and attended South Carolina colleges and have benefited from the opportunities afforded me by my family and the State so I look forward to re‑offering for the ... for the Board of Trustees at the College of Charleston. I appreciate the opportunity to be before you today. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Chairman, and I really ... we've stayed on this awhile but I would just like briefly your comments on those issues that I've raised in terms of the State at some point in time limiting the number of hours that we subsidize, the Palmetto Fellows, the allocation of the money there and also give us thoughts with new construction requests as opposed to deferred maintenance needs. 

MR. BELL: Thank you. Well, I agree, I think ... I think discipline is something that we all need to address in our personal lives as well as in our fiscal responsibilities. I would ... I would likely support any attempt to limit the amount of support that the State gives to students because I do think that discipline is an area that we need to address. I would not have any problem with entertaining a proposal to limit the number of hours that are supported by the State for students. In addition to that, I think discipline is also a responsibility of the Trustees of an institution to be fiscally responsible for the maintenance of facilities, like we do in our own homes and in our churches to maintain what we have. In addition to looking ahead to build for the future, especially when you have the wonderful problem of growth that the College of Charleston has experienced. So, I think we need to balance out our needs but we also need to constantly be reminded of the responsibilities that we have, to maintain what we have, as well as look ahead to build for the future. So, I have no problem with that concept as well. The Palmetto Scholarship question, I could support the opening up of the limitations to make those monies available for private institutions. I had the good fortune to attend Wofford College and graduated from Wofford College. I had the good fortune to attend the University of South Carolina business school. So, I think that if we broaden the opportunities of students, then we have a better chance of maintaining those students in the State so that we don't experience the brain drain that we seem to have been experiencing in the past.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, Mr. Bell.

MR. BELL: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: The fourth district seat eight, Merl F. Code, of Greenville.

MERL F. CODE, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any related health problems that's come up since you were elected to the Board that we should be made aware of? 

MR. CODE: None, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation, are you able to attend all the Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. CODE: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interest personally or professionally that would be a conflict of interest if you continued to serve on this Board?

MR. CODE: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Have you been elected to any position that could constitute a dual office holding since election to the Board?

MR. CODE: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may go ahead with your public statement. Would you be as brief as possible?

MR. CODE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have served on the College of Charleston Board of Trustees since 1988. It has been a tremendous honor and pleasure to serve with the men and women who have comprised that Board. Starting under Harold Lightsey, helped select Alex Sanders and have been involved with that Board since that time. I currently serve as Chairman of the Student Affairs Committee for the Board. I've been on the Long Range Planning Committee. This is a labor of tremendous affection for me because my parents were educators. My father was a principal of a school and my mother was a home economics instructor in the same school that I attended. They wanted me to be in education. That was not my life's dream. But I thought this was a way of serving and a way of giving back by being involved in higher education and especially the College of Charleston. It has been my privilege and if this Legislature so desires, I would like to continue to serve.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions? Senator Giese. 

SENATOR GIESE: Mr. Chairman, you mentioned you served on the Long Range Planning Committee? 

MR. CODE: It is currently going on now. Yes, sir. I just started on that.

SENATOR GIESE: Well, then it may not be relevant. I may have to wait until later but you people ... the Board sets the agenda for buildings, doesn't it?

MR. CODE: Yes, sir.

SENATOR GIESE: Well, one of the buildings that you've set up as apparently your top priority is a new coliseum that seats ... it's going to cost $33,000,000.00 and because you don't ... the closest big coliseum you have is in North Charleston where if you're going to attract a crowd of 15,000 people ... you do have a good basketball team, which I imagine might play ten or 12 games a year. But what ... how did we get into the position where that is one of your top priorities?

MR. CODE: That came from ...

SENATOR GIESE: Excuse me, with the deferred maintenance problem that you also presented to us.

MR. CODE: The Facilities Committee along with our Board examines the needs of our university. We have determined that in fact there is a need not only for our student body but for our university to have a place in which we may be able to compete. The current facility, the F. Mitchell Johnson, does not hold enough people for our student body to attend. We cannot get in. The other facilities out in North Charleston it is tremendously difficult again for our students. We were attempting to find some locale that would be able to serve not only the needs of the College of Charleston but the surrounding City of Charleston. It would have to be a collaborative effort. There would be no way that we could support a coliseum by ourselves. The idea is to do something jointly so that we can service the needs of the Low Country. And that is our idea. In terms of prioritizing, certainly that is one of our needs. We have a number of needs. As we've talked about the old versus the new being able to bring in new buildings and the deferred maintenance, as you are quite aware in 1770 when the College of Charleston was formed a lot of our buildings are in need of repair. We must make sure that we keep our buildings and our facilities at par excellence. It is also important to realize that we are trying to provide the greatest learning environment for our students. The greatest educational environment for our students. When you look at all of that, not only the facility but our instruction is also quite important, so we have to look at all of that. And that is one of our priorities. I did not submit that list, Senator Giese, so I'm not sure how it ranks as high. But it is very high in our things of need.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR GIESE: Could I mention to you that the University of South Carolina has 21 or 22,000 students. It's coliseum seats about 12,000. Do you know how many seats are reserved for students?

MR. CODE: No, sir.

SENATOR GIESE: Three thousand. So the point is that the University provides one seventh of the student body with seats for a basketball game. So, it's not at all unusual for schools to have facilities like that that don't remotely provide a seat for all these students. 

MR. CODE: Yes, sir. I think, if my memory can serve, the University of South Carolina is trying to get a new facility now to house more citizens of the area, if I'm not mistaken. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Ms. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: You say this would be a facility that you envision being used by the City of Charleston or for other functions. Is there a local support match? I mean is the City willing to match as far as the

expenditures that are necessary to build this facility or is this something that you all are looking for the State to fund completely 

MR. CODE: No, ma'am. Dr. Gamble, it's my understanding that there is negotiations going with the City of Charleston as we speak. And that's been going on for quite some time trying to find the proper location such that we don't upset the neighborhoods of Charleston. Charleston is kind of enclosed. You've got to make certain we do all of this correctly. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But Charleston would also be paying some of the costs?

MR. CODE: That is my understanding, yes.

SENATOR WILSON: They would match.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I would just like for you to very quickly and briefly summarize your views on what I've addressed so far today. Basically the State at some point in time limiting the number of credit hours that we subsidize. We've already talked a little bit, I think, about deferred maintenance so I think you can skip over that one but also the Palmetto Fellows and what your thoughts are on having that program opened up so that our best and brightest in the State can truly choose where they want to attend college.

MR. CODE: Let me take the Palmetto Fellows first. As a parent, I certainly would like to have the options of where my child could go. But as a member of the Board of Trustees of the College of Charleston, I want to make certain that any decision that I would make would impact that university and the higher education system fairly. I don't have enough information. I don't know all of the pros and cons of this debate. Certainly it's been going on for quite some time. But before I would get involved in that debate, I would like to know more. I would not like to pledge to you my support without knowing more. I don't want this to hurt the College of Charleston. While I am in favor of anyone who can educate their child at a private institution, if it hurts my institution, the College of Charleston, I'd like to be able to give you that information with data and I do not have that data to talk to you about it at this time. As to the issue of whether or not you can limit and should the number of either credit hours someone may go to school, that seems to be appropriate and reasonable. And I would suggest that as this committee of the legislature does its due diligence to determine what would be fair on a four year major, a five year major and a six major and the other intangibles that would always reflect upon how someone is educated and the amount of monies available to educate them and the time it takes for that educational process. I'm sure that there will be serious dialog and debate as to those issues so that we don't have a time frame for 140 credit hours. It might be if you're talking about a four year major. But that scale may slide to 150 if you're talking about a five year major. I'm sure that that will be debated and I'm sure that we will come up with something that is reasonable and fair as it relates. In theory, I can support that but again I would like to see all of the available data before I give you my pledge.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other committee members? Thank you, Mr. Code.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Emil E. Spieth of Greenville Spartanburg has asked to defer until the next meeting on the 28th and we granted him that request that he will be screened on the 28th. So, we go to the fifth district seat ten, J. Vincent Price, Jr. from Gaffney.

MR. PRICE: Members of the committee ...

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Price let me swear you. 

VINCENT PRICE, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Price, do you have any health related problems that have occurred since you've been elected to the Board that the committee should be made known about at this time?

MR. PRICE: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation which is retired, are you able to make all the Board meetings on a regular basis? 

MR. PRICE: Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or personally that constitutes a conflict of interest at the College of Charleston?

MR. PRICE: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other public office that constitutes dual office holding? 

MR. PRICE: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may go ahead with your public statement. 

MR. PRICE: All right. I am an incumbent and have been on the Board down there since 1988. Presently I'm a life member of the College of Charleston Alumni Association and I've been so since my graduation there in 1950. After graduation in 1950, I helped coach the college basketball team for several years. And Southern Bell transferred me to Gaffney, since that was my job that's where the family and I went. I have a deep sense of loyalty to the College and I was honored several years ago by being elected into the College of Charleston Athletic Hall of Fame. I retired in November the 1st 1987 from BellSouth and I continue to make my home in Gaffney. I'll be glad to answer any questions any of you may have. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Committee members, do you have any questions of Mr. Price? Dr. Gamble. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Dr. Price, I'd just like for you to briefly give me your views on things that we've talked about, basically the legislature putting some cap at some point in time on the number of hours that we subsidize in State appropriated money, address the deferred maintenance versus new construction very briefly and also give us your views on the Palmetto Fellows, giving the students, the best and the brightest in our State, the opportunity to choose the college they attend.

MR. PRICE: I'll go in reverse. I'm not real familiar with the Palmetto Scholars thing. What is it, we give the student the right to go anywhere he wants to ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Students who meet certain criteria. They have to have a certain GPA, a certain SAT and a certain class ranking. I think those are the three criteria they must meet. They can apply to the State for a $5,000.00 scholarship and it's renewed annually assuming, I think, that they maintain a 3.0 GPA. Right now current law provides that 82 percent of those scholarship funds be designated for students who want to attend a public college. Eighteen percent of those funds are designated for students who want to attend a private college. Every year that we've had that scholarship program in place or that we've had the expanded version of the scholarship program in place we have had parents come forward and they're very upset they're ... quite frankly they're just more than just 18 percent of the students that are the best and brightest in the State who want to go to Wofford and Furman. I mean, that's what it boils down to. It's not a substantial number, you know. I'd dare say it's no more than 30 or 40 students. But you make 30 or 40 families very unhappy in this State by telling them they cannot go to a private college in the State and we're losing some of them out of State. I mean, I know one personally that went to Washington and Lee. But, what are your thoughts on the legislature removing that provision and allowing those best and brightest students to choose where they attend college in this State, whether it be a public college or a private college?

MR. PRICE: Well, let me get into that this way. My wife and I decided early on that if our children were going to go to school we were going to have to pay their way and we started putting money up at the outset for that. The result was they both went to the University of South Carolina and graduated with honors and then they both went to law school and graduated and are now supporting themselves. My daughter went on and took tax law, got a masters in tax law at Georgetown University and she is still personally paying back the student loan that she had to have to do that. I think that the parents should be responsible for educating their children. For having said that, since we do have these programs, I think they're fine. If 18 percent want to go to schools outside the State, that suits me fine too. I ... 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: No, we're not talking about schools outside the State. I'm talking about private colleges within our State versus public colleges within our State. It doesn't have anything to do with outside the, you know, the scholarship money in this particular pot is not going outside the State.

MR. PRICE: It's staying in the State.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But basically the problem has been that the students are applying for the program and they're not getting in the first 18 percent cut. I mean, the first cut gets to basically choose theirs. But we're talking about really really bright students in the State and so, like I said, I'm not talking about a substantial number of students. I think there are 600 plus Palmetto Fellows each year and 18 percent of those are given the opportunity to go to a private college but the others are not given a choice to go to the private college. They must choose a public college in our State, if they want the scholarship money. And I'm wondering, I mean, and like I said, I mean, a lot of parents have been unhappy about this. They think the State has ...

MR. PRICE: Well, I think Wofford and Furman and Erskine are all great educational institutions. If the parent wants their child to go there and they qualify and meet all of your criteria and there's $5,000.00 left, I have no qualms with giving it to them. But I don't ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, you think qualifications of the student should be the driving force and not an arbitrary formula of 82 percent versus 18 percent?

MR. PRICE: True.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And then if you'll tell me a little bit about your thoughts on limiting the number of credit hours that the State subsidizes.

MR. PRICE: The ... I understand the number of hours required to graduate now has gone up in some courses to 140. I think if they were in those students ... in those classes and courses keeping up their grade and doing the work, they should be entitled to stay in as long as they're in it and doing successful at it until such time as they've used up their 140 level. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, you would support the State too at some point in time whatever threshold that might be appropriate to the program ...

MR. PRICE: Correct.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... saying this is our level. Thank you, Mr. Price.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions. I've got to tell this on my friend Vincent. He's a retired ACC Official and I liked it when he refereed Carolina games and we'd fumble, he said our ball. So, I liked that. He didn't say Carolina, he said our ball.

SENATOR WILSON: I commend him on keeping a Low Country accent despite the fact that he's lived so long in the Upstate. 

MR. PRICE: Well, I've told all of my friends up there I didn't go up there to lose it, I went up there to spread it.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, Vincent.

MR. PRICE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Okay. The sixth district seat 12, Marie M. Land from Manning.

MARIE M. LAND, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that would prevent you from serving on the Board as a full‑time member?

MS. LAND: No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation would you be able to continue to serve on a regular basis?

MS. LAND: Yes, I would.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interest professionally or personally that constitutes a personal conflict?

MS. LAND: No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Okay. Do you hold any other public office that would constitute dual office holding?

MS. LAND: No, I do not. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Ms. Land, go ahead with your public statement.

MS. LAND: My name is Marie M. Land and I'm privileged to serve on the College of Charleston Board of Trustees for three terms. I'm offering my services for a fourth term. I feel that my previous experience on the Board will serve as an asset to the College as it continues to grow and provide an excellent opportunity for education in South Carolina. I'm proud to have served on the Board and look forward to future service. I might add that I have two children that graduated from the College of Charleston so I have been the parent and the tuition payer as well as I chair the Facilities Committee, Dr. Gamble. So, thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: We'll see how she treats you. 

MS. LAND: I'm going to invite her to a meeting. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: She's home folks.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions from the committee?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, I would like for you just to briefly and very briefly share your views on these three items that I've brought up today. I mean, the State at some point in time limiting the number of credit hours that we subsidize, the deferred maintenance needs versus new construction requests and also the Palmetto Fellows allocation.

MS. LAND: Well, I'd like to deal with deferred maintenance first because I have chaired the Facilities Committee and it is a big responsibility. I think we're very proud of the College of Charleston because we have many very old buildings dating back to the 1700s and we take a lot of pride in our campus and we do the best we can to take care of things. There have been some buildings such as the Stern Building that has ... they have not been maintained along and along but there were some very serious problems there that required architects, study and money. And so we have taken care of that. The science building I recently had a tour of with the Facilities Committee and the Finance Committee to really see the problems there. We're in a new age of high technology. It's not only maintenance, it's new things that you have to have. We really had to look hard at that. Maintenance is very important. You need to have a balance but you need to be maintaining as well as building new facilities. And we have to really look hard at that. I will tell you on our agenda there are probably more maintenance issues than there are new issues each time. We have dealt with upgrading our air conditioning and heating system for five years. You know, this is a constant thing that you need to be doing. So, we're very aware of that and it takes a lot of money to maintain but it's something that needs to be done. We take a lot of pride in what we have at the College. And I am very sincere, I would love for you to come for a tour of the campus and to come to the Facilities Committee meeting and to see what we do deal with. The issue of hours for students, you know, I picked up on someone was saying expectations. We have three children who did complete college in four years and went on to continue their educations. It was just an expectation in our family that that's just what would happen. At the same time we have students who do work and I know you're talking about actual hours and I guess I would ask, Dr. Gamble, lets look at other states. Have they done this and what has it done to education. I've always felt very strongly as a Board of Trustee member that something that I want to see is to help provide as much education for as many South Carolinians as I possibly could. I feel that we are in many ways an undereducated state and that we need to make education easier for people. Now, that may not have anything to do with how many hours you can take. But let's not make it difficult. Let's make it something ... let's try to offer as much education ... continuing education, be it technology or whatever, that we can for students. So, I would really like to see what other states have done about this and let's be, you know, realistic. The cost of education is going to continue going up. So, we need to look at that.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right. I think one of my concerns along that line is, I mean, I do think all of it directly ties back to the expectations whether we're talking about expectation of parents, the expectations of the colleges, the State, what have you, but as the cost of education continues to rise and our needs in education continue to expand, I can't help but think that at some point in time we are going to have to address that issue so that we can free resources to address things like deferred maintenance.

MS. LAND: I can see that.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I mean, I mean, I just, you know, we've got tremendous deferred maintenance needs. We've got tremendous building needs still in higher ed and I have a ... I mean, I very very strongly support education in this State and us offering people as many opportunities as we can. And I think that's pretty evident about by the number of colleges that we have in this State that we are committed to providing people opportunities to attend college. I mean, I don't think ... I think wherever you live in this State you're no more than 30 miles from some institution of higher education. I mean, we're everywhere. And I never opposed that for that very reason because I do want people to have access to education. But at the same time, as our funds are being pinched, I just think that we're going to have to ... we're going to have to reach a point that we say these are our expectations and you need to think carefully before you go in and enroll in this particular program because we'll give you, you know, one semester of wiggle room beyond what that program's expectations are and then, you know, the State will not be there to subsidize your education because we do have so many, whether it's deferred maintenance, whether it's library needs, we just have a lot of needs in South Carolina for our educational system.

MS. LAND: As far as the Palmetto Scholars, I suppose I would have to say that as a member of the College of Charleston Board of Trustees, I would have to say at this point I would be opposed to that. But I would really like to look into that. Now, if I were on the Wofford Board or Furman, I would think it's a wonderful idea. But as a College of Charleston Board of Trustee, I would want to see what is that going to do to the College, you know, how does that affect us. That's just coming from my point as a Trustee on that Board.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But you also could yourself in the place of that mother who has limited resources and the child really wants to go to Furman and you want ... the child has worked really hard in school ...

MS. LAND: Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... and they had to work hard in school ...

MS. LAND: Exactly.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... to qualify for a Palmetto Fellows Scholarship.

MS. LAND: I do see that point. I did have a child who had a choice between the College of Charleston and Wofford and was truly offered many many scholarships to Wofford. But I offered him a weekend in Charleston to see what Charleston was like and he chose Charleston. So, I can't say ... I just find that Wofford has a lot more resources for scholarships. They offered him lots more than the College of Charleston was able to offer. You know, I look at it that way too. They do have wonderful scholarships at Furman and Wofford that they usually can offer these students that we don't have, we don't have access to.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And I think the only way we're ever going to know how many people, I mean, because we can pull the data from CHE every year and see how many students wanted the private institution and did not get it. I mean, we can pull that but that's still no indication that that's going to be what the number is this year. So, I mean, I don't know that we'll ever know what that impact will be as far as how we spread around all of these best and brightest students in the State. Unless we actually experiment with it one year and see exactly what's going to happen if we remove that cap.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions?

SENATOR WILSON: I'd like to thank Ms. Land ... 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON: ... in addition to your service on the College of Charleston Board, your service with the Alston Wilkes Society and we appreciate what you do for the citizens of South Carolina.

MS. LAND: I appreciate it. Thank you. Thank you, very much.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, very much. We'll go to at‑large seat 14, Timothy Dangerfield from Aiken. Mr. Dangerfield.

TIMOTHY N. DANGERFIELD, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Dangerfield, do you have any health related problems that the Committee should be made aware of?

MR. DANGERFIELD: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation, would you be able to attend all the Board meetings as you have in the past, continue to attend?

MR. DANGERFIELD: Absolutely.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interest personally or professionally that would constitute a conflict of interest?

MR. DANGERFIELD: No, I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other public office by virtue of election that constitutes dual office holding?

MR. DANGERFIELD: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Would you please go ahead with your public statement.

MR. DANGERFIELD: I'll make it short since I probably have a parking ticket downstairs. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: They're not working today. 

MR. DANGERFIELD: They're not? But you have a copy of a statement. I'll continue with saying that I'm currently Vice Chairman of the College. Been on the Board since 1988. I'm a past member of the CHE for two years. I think my knowledge and my experience has helped the College get to where they are today and want to help to continue. So, I will look forward to serving another four year term.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions from the committee members?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Chairman, I'd like for Mr. Dangerfield to just briefly address those issues that I've been talking about.

MR. DANGERFIELD: Well, like I say, as a past member of CHE, I don't agree with the 18 percent. I think it ought to be a 100 percent for State supported schools. I think that a kid who would like to go to Wofford or a private school, that's something that's a choice that they have to make. I found out as serving on the Board now at the College that three out of four people going to college in this State have some type of financial aide. So, I think there's opportunities for the kids to get some 22 type of financial aid. But to help the private schools is not what, I think, we set up the State funding. They should not be able to use the 18 percent. It should be strictly for State supported schools.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, you believe this is helping the colleges and not helping the families in the State that's paying the taxes? 

MR. DANGERFIELD: Well, I think that the kid has to make a decision. I learned a long time ago ... I went to a seminar, a guy told me one time he said life's not fair. And I would simply say to that kid if you want to go, you're going to have to make a decision by going to work, go for a scholarship because there's opportunities out there. And those private schools have that opportunity. And I just ... I don't think it's fair to say that it's hurting the family. It's hurting the kid if he's not willing to put the effort to it.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Are you also opposed to our tuition grants program, our State tuition grants program for students who attend private colleges?

MR. DANGERFIELD: You're talking about the 140 hours you're talking about?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: No, no, no, no, no. 

MR. DANGERFIELD: No, you're talking about the ... 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: The tuition grants program that's in place to assist students who choose private colleges.

MR. DANGERFIELD: I don't particularly think it's right but it's there.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Do you realize ...

MR. DANGERFIELD: I think it should be ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... that saves this State a tremendous amount of money and in saving the State money we have more money to give to public colleges?

MR. DANGERFIELD: I guess you'd have to explain a little more to me so I understand.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Because if we put all of those students who are in private colleges ... 

MR. DANGERFIELD: Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... if we put them in public colleges...

MR. DANGERFIELD: Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... the State's got to cough up the State's share to subsidize ... 

MR. DANGERFIELD: Right. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... those students in private colleges. And that was one of the primary reasons that that program was put in place was as a, I mean, as a means to assist State colleges. I mean, it might not appear on the surface to do that. But it very much so does that because the thousands who are in private colleges who are benefiting from that money really and truthfully, I mean, many of those students would not be able to stay in those private colleges and so they would all be in public system and you would have many more students. You would have many more construction needs, many more deferred maintenance needs and you would have many more students out there wanting their share of the State's ...

MR. DANGERFIELD: Okay.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... funds for public colleges. So, you know, and the same argument quite frankly can even be made for Palmetto Fellows. I mean, we keep them in the State but at the same time, you know, that $5,000.00 we're giving them as Palmetto Fellowship is not nearly as much as we would have to be paying on them if they went into a public college in the State. So, there again, it does free some resources that we're able to give to the public colleges.

MR. DANGERFIELD: Well, you know, I understand. I'm a business person and as a business person I could not receive money from the State to help me to expand and it's the same principle, I think. I don't agree with State supported money being used for private school. Private schools should be able to do what they want to do and offer whatever opportunities they want to but I understand what you're saying. I would have to look at it a little bit farther. But, I guess, from a business standpoint I don't think it's the right thing to do. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But you realize that the public college ... the private colleges in this State have to meet no criteria for being eligible other than being an accredited college, whereas this money is allocated based on the qualifications and the criteria that a student must meet. This is an award to a student ...

MR. DANGERFIELD: Right. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... in recognition of their academic success. So, you know, it's not like we're giving the money ... in some way we're rewarding the college. But we are in essence rewarding the student.

MR. DANGERFIELD: I understand what you're saying. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: What are your thoughts on the 140 hour limit since you are a business person?

MR. DANGERFIELD: I think ... I think that's a good point. I think we ought to limit it to ... based on the program itself. If it takes five years because that's the program, that's what it should be. I told my kids, I had one at the College of Charleston and I had one at Aiken Tech, four years is all I'm going to pay for unless you decide right up front that you're going for some particular such as a pharmacist. And that's the program if they want to jump, skip and go back and forth, that's their problem and I think the State should limit it based on the program itself.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And deferred maintenance versus new construction, what are your thoughts? 

MR. DANGERFIELD: That's a balancing act we all have to deal with. I think that for years we've put off maintenance, you know, the fault or the fact that we didn't have enough money. But I think we have to look at it real hard because it costs more money to build a new building than it is to repair what we have. And I think we have to look at it real carefully. But it's a tough decision because you have to deal with so much money to give us and we have to look at it and see.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Okay.    (OFF THE RECORD)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE: Yes. The scholarship program that Representative Gamble was talking about is $23,000,000.00 that the State furnishes to private colleges and universities around the State and they give scholarships to their students that might potentially come to a public school. The $5,000.00 scholarships that we're talking about here being limited to 83 to 18, when that student comes to the University of South Carolina, that student gets the $5,000.00 scholarship but then the taxpayers pay $7,500.00 for that $5,000.00 person that came to the University. The State is then subsidizing that person $12,500.00 to come to this public school. What she is saying if that student went to Presbyterian, that $5,000.00 would go to Presbyterian and the State would not have to subsidize the student's $7,500.00. So, it's in the best interest of the State and the ...

MR. DANGERFIELD: I understand now.

SENATOR GIESE: ... and the student ... and the student to give that student the opportunity to choose either a private school or a public school. The more that choose the private schools, the less the State taxpayers have to subsidize those students. What you're suggesting is or what you're saying is that by limiting the 82 percent have to go to public schools that 82 percent of those students have to again be subsidized by the taxpayers. That's what you're saying.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any more questions. Thank you, Mr. Dangerfield. Next is Mr. Zeno Montgomery of Columbia.

ZENO MONTGOMERY, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

SENATOR WILSON: Better known as Z.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that this Committee should know about? 

MR. MONTGOMERY: No, I don't, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and other activities, you would be able to attend the Board on a regular basis? 

MR. MONTGOMERY: I would.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or personally that would cause a conflict of interest?

MR. MONTGOMERY: No, I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you hold any other public elected office that would constitute dual office holding?

MR. MONTGOMERY: No, I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You many proceed.

MR. MONTGOMERY: Thank you. I'd like to thank the Committee for hearing me. My interest is primarily in higher education in South Carolina. I'm a native South Carolinian. I'm not an alumnus of the College of Charleston. I thought I was going to be extremely unique in that. But I gather that I'm not the only one of Charleston comes from several ... as a result of several things. I'm a CPA and I have had the privilege of auditing the College of Charleston for about four years. During that time I became very impressed with its mission and with the way the mission is being carried out and as a result became very interested in it. I also feel that it is in a very unique position as far as its growth is concerned and it's in a position where the Trustees, I think, are able to affect and influence the direction a lot more than say my alma mater, the University of South Carolina, from which I graduated when Senator Giese was football coach. I'm still young at heart, Senator. But I have served my profession in a number of capacities. I've been the Chairman of the Board of Accountancy for South Carolina. I've been President of the South Carolina Association of CPA's. I'm currently in my last year as a member of the Board of Directors for the American Institute of CPA's. We are a very cutting edge group, and I feel that the knowledge that I have gathered as a member and as a person who is on the cutting edge of a learned profession would be very valuable to me and to the College of Charleston where I've chosen to serve. I would be happy to answer any questions.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Committee members. Dr. Gamble. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Montgomery, I have the same questions of you. I'm curious to know your thoughts on us limiting the number of credit hours that the State subsidizes at some point and also what your thoughts are on new construction requests when there are tremendous deferred maintenance needs out there and also your thoughts on the Palmetto Fellows program and whether or not the money should follow the student as opposed to being arbitrarily allocated to public versus private college. 

MR. MONTGOMERY: Thank you, Dr. Gamble. I would say first that regarding the 140 hour issue, I was glad when you said something about wiggle room because I do think that there are students who make false starts and there should be some meaningful way to allow them to make a change if they do discover that they've made the decision. I have a daughter who made the wrong decision and took five years to finish school. She didn't complete school in a private school ... in a public school. She started at the University of South Carolina but ultimately graduated from a private school and was not ... I was fortunately able to afford to send her to a private school. But I would like to think that someone in her position who is not able to attend private school would be able to have the flexibility to make a change in her path of her career ... in her career path. She's a very wonderful person and is doing very well in her career. I would hate to think that she would not have been able to finish school. Regarding the maintenance versus new construction, I would almost think that this should be done on a per case ... on a per incidence basis. I think that it's very difficult ... it's going to be very difficult to make a blanket rule regarding that because I think there are going to be extenuating circumstances in most instances which would have to be addressed on an individual basis. And regarding the scholarship money, I'm not completely comfortable with giving an opinion on that but I'm going to do it anyway. I do ... if I can sidetrack a little bit, I've had a great deal of experience through auditing colleges, both private and State colleges, to observe the tuition grants and I believe that the tuition grants is a very valuable thing to the State. I do feel ... I have some reservation however in the Palmetto money that I do feel that since it is public money possibly public institutions should have some priority. I don't know whether that number is 82 percent or 75 percent or what. But it appears to me that there should be some priority given to public schools or to the State supported schools.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, wouldn't allowing the student to chose the school? I mean, it gives them, you know, when you say priority to the school, we're talking about an award that's given to a student based on that student's achievement. We're not talking about an award given to a college based on something the college has done. But rather an award given to a student based on, you know, the student meeting certain criteria. And so, you know, it would be my feeling that the priority should be given to the student.

MR. MONTGOMERY: Well, that's a very good point and I ... I'm not sure that, as I said earlier, I'm not sure that I'm completely confident to answer that question without studying it a little bit. But I do still have this innate thought that public money should be given in some priority to public institutions and should be done ... should be used to benefit the public institutions. Now, maybe based on Senator Giese's comments earlier maybe if I studied the situation I might come to the conclusion that the public institutions would be benefited more by allowing the student to choose. But at this point I'm not ... 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right. And I think ultimately too we have to do what is in the best interest of the State as a whole and not just what's in the best interest of one type of institution. So, I mean, I think that's another thing that we have to look at in making that decision. I mean, you know, we do want to keep these students in South Carolina. 

MR. MONTGOMERY: I would agree with that. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: If they leave South Carolina to go to college, I think there's a fairly good chance that they might stay out of South Carolina when they finish college.

MR. MONTGOMERY: I would agree with that.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other committee members? Thank you, sir.

MR. MONTGOMERY: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: What is the pleasure of the committee on screening, please?

SENATOR WILSON: Favorable on all.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: All in favor, complete and qualified, please say I.    (ALL IN FAVOR)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: What is the pleasure of the committee for taking a short break for lunch? 

SENATOR WILSON: And certainly release those from the College of Charleston.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: This committee is recessed. We're going to take a short break here, about five minutes. We'll be right back.

  (A SHORT BREAK WAS TAKEN AT THIS TIME) 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Call the meeting back to order. Let's see if we can find some of these candidates now. Francis Marion University is next. And the first district seat two, Melissa J. Emery from Myrtle Beach. She has called in and she is sick and will not be here today. She is deferred to the 28th. The second district seat four, Gail Ness Richardson from Barnwell. Is Ms. Richardson, is she here? 

MS. RICHARDSON: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Okay.

GAIL NESS RICHARDSON, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Ms. Richardson, do you have any health related problems that this committee should be made known of?

MS. RICHARDSON: None whatsoever.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and other activities, do they present any kind of problem that you couldn't serve on ...

MS. RICHARDSON: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: ... a regular basis? Good. Do you have any professional or personal interest that would constitute a conflict of interest? 

MS. RICHARDSON: None. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any public position elected or appointed position that would cause you to be a dual office holder? 

MS. RICHARDSON: I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may go ahead with your public statement.

MS. RICHARDSON: I thank you for the opportunity to tell you how much I care about Francis Marion University. I offer for reelection because I do love this University. I feel that I bring something unique to its Board. I have been on the Board at Francis Marion for more than ten years and I find myself very fortunate to be at an institution like this.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you. Let me ... joining us is Representative Curtis Inabinett from North Charleston ... I mean, from Mt. Pleasant ... Ravenel. Good, from the Great State of Charleston somewhere.

MS. RICHARDSON: Representative Gamble, I ... 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Does anybody have any questions? 

MS. RICHARDSON: ... I feel that Francis Marion students are quite unique. Not that they are special but that they come from the Pee Dee primarily. They come from homes that many times they are first generation college students. They come with at least one job and maybe two. They're commuting, living at home. They are students that, I think, realize how fortunate they are to be able to come to college. But many times are ones that work schedule takes something away from their school work and maybe their success. Maybe their backgrounds as well from their schools have not been such to have them adequately prepared. I feel financially for the State of South Carolina we must put limitations on how long we will allow them at our expense to continue to take college courses. But I hope that as a State we will be liberal in allowing this type of student time to be able to financially pay for the education that they're getting and also to fulfill the other obligations that they have, whether it's caring for their own children or their parents at the same time. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And I think none of us has a problem with the time so much as with the credit hours. I mean, I understand that student and used to work quite frankly in continuing education so I'm ... I've worked with a lot of students who are those returning adult learners and I know their needs and I know they are unique and that ... and I have a strong ... strong sense of commitment to those students because quite frankly when I worked with those students, it was on the Union Campus of USC and they have their own needs much like the Pee Dee does in that they are dealing with a population of people who depended on the various textile mills up there for many years and now those textile mills are not there offering the jobs that they did offer. And so those students are first generation college students by necessity. So, I understand that completely. So, the time span concerns me only when you've got a student who is taking 12 to 15 hours and just seems to stay right on in there year after year after year much like I described my husband's child who, I think, graduated after eight years and that was eight years of full‑time study, I might add. So, I understand where you've coming from. But do you understand what I'm talking about? 

MS. RICHARDSON: I do.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I'm talking about the number of credit hours and not ... the time factor is a factor but really only with the traditional student who is in school full‑time.

MS. RICHARDSON: I have a question for you on that point too. Our students are not students that are coming into college with 30 hours of AP credit as many of our larger research universities are. So, are these number of hours allowed going to be hours that you're bringing in as well or do you start at zero no matter ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, you bring up ... 

MS. RICHARDSON: ... whether you have these ... 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: You bring up an excellent point. You know, when I talk about this, this is something that's just been tossed around. 

MS. RICHARDSON: Sure.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I don't know of any specific piece of legislation that's sitting out there today that does this. But, I mean, I just think that this is ... this is one of those issues when we look at the big picture of higher education and the limited resources and how the resources are becoming more and more scarce to dedicate to any need in our State but in particular to education because I do think that should always be our priority whether we're talking about K through 12 or post‑ secondary education. But I think that's something that would have to be addressed as well. I mean, you know, USC is sitting over there with a high number of students who are coming in with AP credits ...

MS. RICHARDSON: Grade credits.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... then I think you have to take that into consideration as well. So, you know, 140 hours at one place might not be the same as 140 hours another place. So, that is one of those things that I'm sure that ... because I do think eventually this is going to be addressed. I mean, I just really think it is and that's why I brought it up today. Not that this is something I plan to leave this meeting and address but I just think that it's something that is going to be out there. 

MS. RICHARDSON: And it's great you have a forum in which we can talk about it. I hope that we will not limit the number of hours to the point that exploration, which I think, is a huge part of college, especially for a student like the ones that we serve, to have an opportunity to have courses that they have never had exposure to. We continue to demand more and more hours of basic education in our college programs. And yet, you know, maybe with a ... I would hate to see a student come in and look and say well, I can major in history and I'll only have to take six courses or eight courses and then I can use those extra courses that if I majored in elementary education and do something, you know, enjoyable. I can find out something about music appreciation or I can take a sculpture class. So, I just think it's ... you have a very difficult job because money is a big part of making those decisions for the legislature. And I think the more that we are able to fund our college students' educations like Georgia does and other states, I think the more we may have the right to somewhat control how long they're there. For deferred maintenance, for Francis Marion, I think up until the last few years we have been very much on top of deferred maintenance. We're very lucky in one regard that we're a new institution, therefore our buildings are relatively new. Nothing but for one building that is older than 1971 vintage. So, we've been fortunate. But it's a terrible battle on a day to day basis of balancing out how that money is spent because our budget is ... our University is small. Our budget therefore is small relative to some of the larger research institutions and we don't have any money to play around with. So, we continue to try to balance it and new buildings versus deferred is certainly something at the very top of our concern.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: How about Palmetto Fellows? 

MS. RICHARDSON: For Palmetto Fellows I have had two of my three children that were Palmetto Fellows and I have to say neither of them accepted the scholarship for State institutions. Although, I think from a personal level our business is about public education or about public institutions, yours and ours. And I believe, as many have already stated, that private education ... private schools have many many other resources with which to attract students and I think that we set up criteria for certain scholarships for certain things. Some scholarships are merit. Some are need. Some are for public institutions and some for private. And I think we're making a tremendous change whether it's decided monetarily needed or not. I think that's a big change in what the whole scholarship was established for and I personally would ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Now, the whole scholarship was established to keep the best and the brightest in the State. There was just tremendous lobbying effort ...

MS. RICHARDSON: But all of life is making choices and ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But now you say your children, they were ... they were named Palmetto Fellows ...

MS. RICHARDSON: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... but they qualified only for State money or they qualified ... 

MS. RICHARDSON: That's correct.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Okay. And did they end up in State institutions or private?

MS. RICHARDSON: They did not.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Private institutions in South Carolina or out?

MS. RICHARDSON: No, out.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Do you think that if they had qualified for the private money in South Carolina they would have stayed?  

MS. RICHARDSON: No.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: They knew all along they were going outside?

MS. RICHARDSON: No, they didn't know all along but I think at the end because we fostered independence first in our children we gave them that opportunity to make whatever decision was. At the end, that was their decision. I don't think that the money, had it been available for Furman, would have kept them here.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: You heard what Senator Giese's explanation was in terms of ... 

MS. RICHARDSON: I did.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I mean, this is ... 

MS. RICHARDSON: Yeah, it's tough.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, and it's tough too because as the ...

MS. RICHARDSON: Money.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... colleges grab for the money and their 82 percent share ...

MS. RICHARDSON: Uh‑huh (affirmative response).

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... they're not just getting their 82 percent share. They're getting that $7,500.00 on top ...

MS. RICHARDSON: What he was talking about, I understand.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Which is $7,500.00 out of that pot that everybody has to share. 

MS. RICHARDSON: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And so, you know, I just only want to make that point.

MS. RICHARDSON: Thank you, very much.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But thank you for your comments.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE: Two quick questions.

MS. RICHARDSON: Yes, sir.

SENATOR GIESE: You had kind of a dust up there in your faculty and with your president. What role did the Board of Trustees you served on play in that problem?

MS. RICHARDSON: In the resolution or in the problem itself?

SENATOR GIESE: The resolution of the problem. 

MS. RICHARDSON: Well, I think as a Board what we wanted and continue to want for Francis Marion University is what's best for our students. So, all along whatever that was, I don't think there were sides taken as far as personalities with specific people. I think it was just what we each with what we came with thought was best. And we discussed it and we worked through it and we came up with a great solution and he's sitting right here.

SENATOR GIESE: The second question would be if I recall correctly, your school is almost totally devoid of research ... outside funding. You've got the National Youth Sports program, which I think gives you 50 or $60,000.00 of outside funding. I might add that of 200 schools yours is one of two that didn't show up this weekend from Wednesday to Friday required to continue that particular grant.

MS. RICHARDSON: I'm sad to hear that.

SENATOR GIESE: I am too. But tell me, is there some ... not some emphasis being put on your University? You have thousands of students. Is there no emphasis being placed from the Board of Trustees to the administration to get outside funding for research?

MS. RICHARDSON: I'm sorry. I really can't address that. I do not know. As far as I know, the Board is putting no pressure, no, to seek research money. But I may be wrong. I really can't tell you.

SENATOR GIESE: Thank you.

MS. RICHARDSON: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other committee members? Thank you, Ms. Richardson.

MS. RICHARDSON: Thank you, very much.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Third district seat six, Patricia Edmonds from Greenwood.

PATRICIA C. EDMONDS, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that this committee should know about? 

MS. EDMONDS: I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your interest and present occupation and activities, are there any reasons you shouldn't serve on a regular basis?

MS. EDMONDS: No, not at all.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or personally that would constitute a conflict of interest?

MS. EDMONDS: No, sir. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other public office or appointment that would cause conflict of interest here?

MS. EDMONDS: No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may go ahead.

MS. EDMONDS: Thank you, sir, and I'll be brief. I had the privilege of serving in an unexpired term from the third congressional district since July of 1999. It has been a great pleasure being a part of the Francis Marion University. I was appointed this past seven months to serve in several committees. One of which has given me great pleasure and that is to be Chairman of the Academic Affairs and Faculty Relations Committee. In that committee we looked at several major undertakings in the University and recommended upon the advice and consultation of the administration and faculty members and other colleagues on the Board two major changes for the University. One being the restructuring of the School of Liberal Arts and Sciences into a College of Arts and Sciences. And that has allowed our University to return back to its core, to the spirit of the type of University that was formed in the Pee Dee region some twenty some years ago. And also we restored an academic freedom and tenure policy. These two subjects alone gave me great satisfaction to be part of the team that recommended that to the full Board and as a Board member, I think that it has just whetted my appetite. There is a lot more that I feel I can contribute both as a person and as a Board member but also in my position as a member of a council of government's team with constant interaction with State, Federal and Local governments, and I think I can bring some expertise in that area to the Board and I am very much interested in continuing to serve in that capacity.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you. Any committee members have any questions?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, I'd just like for her to briefly address those three issues. 

MS. EDMONDS: You'd think after being number 15, I would have a great answer. I've had all this time to think about it but I really don't. As far as the number of hours it takes to finish an academic education, I was fortunate enough I came to Clemson University in my undergraduate program with 30 academic hours in advanced placement. So I finished Clemson in three years in a 130 hour program. But I didn't do that ... I would have done that anyway in four years simply because I had two other sisters at public institutions in South Carolina at the same time. It was a hardship on my parents to send three students ... I had a great time at Clemson. I enjoyed the social life that everybody is talking about but I also had a lot of financial pressure to finish. My parents did not ask me to work during my education so I wanted to get out as soon as possible just so that I could begin earning money. I've had the experience over the last ten years to work with the Budget and Control Board as serving as a liaison for its sister state relationships with two German States. And many of you know that in Germany education is free. To get a college or a university education, many students take ten years or more. It's a problem in Germany right now. It is an incredible problem. I think it's directly related to finance in our State on how we can solve that problem. They are even talking in Germany about limiting the number of hours also and the number of years it takes to finish an education. I think that if you work with an institution whereby a student understands that he has a certain tuition level for the first 130 hours, after that time his tuition increases, that may be a solution. It may in consultation with an advisor. I know when I was at Clemson, I spent a lot of time with my faculty advisor and that faculty advisor then advised the appropriate administration officials as to whether or not that student is worthy or has extenuating circumstances which causes him to stay longer or to take more hours in his or her chosen field. So, I agree with a lot of what has been said prior to my opportunity and that is it does depend on the individual student but then I absolutely firmly believe that if you keep tuition low and that student has not made up his mind, he'll stay there as long as possible to make ... to get to that point. So, I would be in favor of limiting the number of hours personally. But I really would think that it would be in consultation with the university's administration.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And Ms. Richardson brought out a good point too. I mean, you know, that's one of the reasons I've continued to ask the question because I mean, she brought up those students who do come with 30 hours of AP credit. And so there are a lot of factors that have to be looked at. So, I appreciate your comments. How about Palmetto Fellows, what are your thoughts on that?

MS. EDMONDS: Well, my point ... my point would be if the money that provides the resource for that scholarship is State money, taxpayers dollars and you have a student, I as a tax payer, I don't have any children but if I had a child that was interested in attending an institute of higher education in South Carolina and my tax dollars as a citizen went to fund that scholarship, then I would want it to be made available to any school in South Carolina that that student picked. I really firmly believe that.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE: Mr. Chairman. You mentioned the position of leadership that you had assumed in the short seven month time. I'd like to ask you do think there's a responsibility for State institutions to seek some outside funding for research and things that might add to the ... not only the prestige but the interaction that takes place in programs like that?

MS. EDMONDS: Absolutely. And I've had the good fortune in my interest of understanding Francis Marion and working with members of the faculty, I've had the good fortune of spending some time with faculty members in one on one discussions. So, I spent a little extra time there and I've had numerous conversations with faculty members both in the College of Business Administration and in other areas as well that have a lot of ideas and some good information on how we can bring this about. It has been in my committees and I don't share the same committees as Ms. Richardson, but in my committees it has been a topic of discussion. I think there is an opportunity for that. I'd like to definitely see that because I work with a lot of organizations both public and private and I see a lot of research dollars out there and I would like to work with them and I don't think it's a matter of them not interested in it, them not willing to. I think it's a young institution, a fairly young institution, and their ... their direction has not been in that ... in that area over the last 20 years and I think you'll see under the new leadership more movement in that direction coming.

SENATOR GIESE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions?

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: I have one question. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Inabinett.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: Yes. Ms. Edmonds, with reference to scholarships, how involved has the present Board been with the administration in attracting funds so that scholarships can be granted to students?

MS. EDMONDS: Representative, that is a question that I'm really not capable of answering because I've only served for seven months. I've been to three Board meetings up to this point in time. I do know that there are certain committees that deal specifically with scholarship issues and they're very active. But those ... I don't happen to be serving on those committees but I do know that there is interaction there.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: And there are Board members on those committees?

MS. EDMONDS: Yes, sir.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, very much.

MS. EDMONDS: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Fourth district seat eight, Alex Kiriakides, III from Greenville.

ALEX KIRIAKIDES, III, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that this committee should know about? 

MR. KIRIAKIDES: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present position and occupation, does it prevent you from serving on a full‑time basis?

MR. KIRIAKIDES: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests either professionally or personally that would constitute a conflict of interest?

MR. KIRIAKIDES: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other public office that would constitute dual office holding should you be elected?

MR. KIRIAKIDES: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may go ahead with your statement, sir.

MR. KIRIAKIDES: Okay. Thank you. In deference to time and if the committee would allow me, I will try to use my opening statement to tie in some of the questions that we've already heard. And in doing that, one of the things that has been talked about extensively this morning is the Palmetto Scholarship and I tend to agree with the concept of allowing all students the opportunity to go to any State or if it's private or public school in the State. I tend to think that if there's an opportunity within the State, then they should be allowed to stay here and perhaps as a way to deal with that after they leave college, maybe there's a way to have them stay here for a period of time afterwards and work for a business that's within South Carolina, if that is perhaps just something to offer. As far as the deferred maintenance, I tend to think that the schools should fix buildings before they offer for additional funds for new buildings. As stated previously, our university is a fairly young one but it will grow old as everything does. So, perhaps there are ways to have the schools show a cost benefit analysis as to whether it's feasible to build a new one before they, you know, if it's too expensive, I guess, to build a new one before they try to fix an existing building. As far as the subsidizing tuition, I tend to think that anytime there is a third party that's involved in paying for anything, that a subsidy can get out of hand over time. And I'm sure that as you all have heard it seems that most of the trustees that have spoken so far tend to support keeping the money within the public arena. But if ... if 140 hours is not enough time for someone to finish over four or five or six years, then after that point they should probably come up with the money. I think those were the three main questions and I'll be glad to answer any other questions if you ... my background very quickly is a business man that's involved in business in the Carolinas and Georgia and I tend to put my emphasis on the students, the parents and the taxpayers. I'm not an alumni of Francis Marion. I actually went to Wofford. I finished in three and a half years. I ... of course that was in Spartanburg and it's not one of those kinds of places that you're going to stay for any length of time. Of course, I'm from Greenville so I would say that. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions from any committee members?

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: Yes, sir. I have a question.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Representative Inabinett. 

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: Thank you, sir. Have you or other members of the present Board been involved with the administration in addressing the teacher shortage that we have? Has there been any dialog, any committee work, any emphasis at all put on addressing the teacher shortage that we have in South Carolina? 

MR. KIRIAKIDES: Yes, sir. My knowledge of that would be that, I know that Francis Marion over the last few years has done a lot of things. I know they're tied in with the Medical University, you know, doing a program between the two for nurses. They also do a lot of things in the community for educating. Working with the high schools, you know, bringing ... bringing the educators in the high schools in and our faculty going out and actually, you know, spending a lot of time in the high schools for just preparing both sides. We have a very active education department and I would ... I'm not sure but I think it may be our second largest department after the ... perhaps after the business school. So, my knowledge of it which is somewhat limited directed to that question would be that I think we are doing as much as we can to educate and to developing teachers.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But I want to just offer one note. I think you all did apply for the Teacher Fellows program. I think you did and that's one that's got me a little bit confused right now because some colleges did not get named Teacher Fellow site. I'm not so sure before it's all over with we're not going to have to look at that much like I'm talking about looking at the Palmetto Fellows because five private institutions were chosen as Palmetto Fellow sites and four of the public colleges with the split, with 200 seats being something like 84 going to the private colleges and 116 to the public colleges. There again, we're sort of tracking students down one path and if the goal of the program is to have more teachers, more people to go through more teacher education programs in the State, I'm not so sure we want to put that type of restriction on them that you have to choose one of these specific schools. So, that's another whole can of worms one day. But next year will be the first year of the Teacher Fellows program but that's a $6,000.00 a year scholarship. That's a better scholarship than the Palmetto Fellows scholarships and yet we're going to sort of be tracking those students as well and I'm not so sure that's a good idea either. Because if we really want the best and brightest students in South Carolina to be teachers, why don't we go identify the 200 best and brightest and let them choose the teacher education program that they want to attend. And I say that with USC being chosen as one of the sites. I still say that because I think that there again, I'm not so sure that what's been done there was the best ... the best solution to that situation.

MR. KIRIAKIDES: I'll have to agree that anytime there is competition, you know, and we can allow, you know, them to stay here and I don't ... I'm not someone that believes in protectionism for our school or for any school. I think that we should focus as you've stated three or four times on the students and what's, you know, that's our main interest and if we can keep ... or the teachers, if it's related to that. So, I would have the same philosophy. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right. And see what concerns me with this, I mean, I don't know how often the plan is to revisit who is a Teacher Fellow site. But, you know, if these are permanent sites, I mean, then that's going to cause a problem before long because Clemson did not get chosen. Winthrop did not get chosen. Francis Marion did not get chosen. And so, I think, I mean, I think we're going to have ... I mean, I think, we need to address that at some point in time.

MR. KIRIAKIDES: Were any schools in the State chosen?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Oh, there were four public colleges and five private colleges.

MR. KIRIAKIDES: Private colleges that were chosen. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: We had Anderson chosen, Newberry chosen.

SENATOR WILSON: Not P.C.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... Furman was chosen. USC Columbia was chosen but not USC Aiken or USC Spartanburg. So, here again, the purpose of that program, I mean, when you're providing somebody $6,000.00 a year in scholarship money, we want to go after the best and the brightest who are willing to work in the profession and stay in the profession and I'm not so sure that trying to track them down the path is a good thing either.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, sir.

MR. KIRIAKIDES: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Let me make this announcement. I said earlier that I didn't think since the day was a holiday that the City of Columbia would ticket cars. Senator Wilson informed me they're working like bees around the cars outside. So, if you would like to check your car now and you have a ticket if you'll bring it back, we'll see what Senator Wilson and I will pay for them.

SENATOR WILSON: We can't fix them. We can pay them.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: If anybody wants to do run out there and if you're in line, we'll certainly wait until you come back. We won't ... if you want to check your cars or somebody ... I'm sorry. I ... in my hometown they don't work on holidays.    (OFF THE RECORD)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: The fifth district seat ten, Lorraine H. Knight from Hartsville.

LORRAINE H. KNIGHT, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health problems that would prevent you from serving in a full capacity on this Board?

MS. KNIGHT: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend the meetings on a regular basis? 

MS. KNIGHT: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interest professionally or personally that constitutes a conflict of interest?

MS. KNIGHT: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any public office or appointed to anything that would constitute a dual office holding?

MS. KNIGHT: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may proceed with your statement.

MS. KNIGHT: In the interest of time, I'd just like to thank you for this opportunity to speak with you and answer any questions today and just to say that I'm a graduate of Francis Marion. And probably would not have been where I am today if it had not been a location that I had to drive an hour from Cheraw to Francis Marion each day to attend classes. And had it not been there I may have not been able to finish. I feel like a lot of children in the Pee Dee are in that same situation. So, I appreciate the ability to serve this institution and would like to continue.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions from any of the Board members? 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: If you will briefly just share your thoughts.

MS. KNIGHT: Okay. Just briefly I think I can support the credit hour concept for the students. I happened to graduate in three years but mainly because I needed the money and I feel like that's a part of ... there are a lot of factors that go into that graduation rates today. I'm a former high school principal and I have dealt with a lot of parents who I probably don't agree with in terms of what their expectations are for their children. And I think sometimes it overflows into college as well. I also am currently superintendent of education in the school district. So, I think, strengthening that K‑12 education so that the children are better prepared when they go to college or two or a four year college is extremely important. And I would also like to see, if we did that, universities looking at first year freshman support groups to provide those guidelines and support groups for kids that first year so that they will be able to continue on. In terms of deferred maintenance, that's really not a big issue at Francis Marion. We're fortunate that our buildings are all post 1970. But I think they have done an excellent job, our administration has, in setting aside money for deferred maintenance. But I do think again, as a superintendent of education, I had that same dilemma with trying to keep buildings up. And I do think that when you're looking at your publics, if you're not keeping up existing buildings, then you feel hard pressed to say ... then you're going to build new ones until you've done your homework. And then Palmetto Fellows again as a high school principal I had parents at my door all the time. Of course, I was not in a position to really solve their problem except to counsel with them. And I think there's a lot of merit in maybe looking at the money following the children, particularly if our interest is keeping the brightest in South Carolina. Francis Marion is fortunate that about ninety plus percent of the graduates reside and contribute in South Carolina ... make contributions to the economy. And I think that's a wonderful investment that the State has in Francis Marion. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, Ms. Knight.

MS. KNIGHT: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: From the sixth district seat 11, James A. Brown, Jr. from Florence.

AMES A. BROWN, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that this committee should be known ...

MR. BROWN: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: ... be made known about? Considering your present occupation and other activities, are there any reasons you can't attend the Board on a regular basis?

MR. BROWN: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or personally that would constitute a conflict of interest by serving? 

MR. BROWN: No, sir. I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other elected public office that would constitute dual office holding?

MR. BROWN: No, sir. I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, sir. Go ahead. 

MR. BROWN: In the interest of brevity, I'll have a very short statement. I'm James A. Brown, Jr. I reside in Florence, South Carolina. I was appointed to the Francis Marion Board in August of 1999. It's been challenging, exciting. I've had a lot of fun especially under Dr. Fred Carter's leadership and the members of the Board. Just so the legislature understands, we're a very united Board. We have a very united administration and faculty now. And I think we've got Francis Marion poised to accomplish some really positive things for our region of the State and for the State as a whole. At this time I would be happy to answer any questions. Thank you, very much. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions?

SENATOR WILSON: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON: I know that you are filling the seat of Peter D. Hyman.

MR. BROWN: Yes, sir, I am.

SENATOR WILSON: And what a wonderful person he was. What a great citizen of South Carolina and you indeed have big shoes to fill and so I wish you well. He's a person that is missed by all the people of South Carolina.

MR. BROWN: Yes, sir. And as you are aware, he's one of the major reasons Francis Marion was founded when he was in the legislature. And you're right. And I think of that often, it is quite an honor for me to fill the seat that he occupied.

SENATOR WILSON: I served with him in the Army Reserves and he's just a ... was a wonderful person.

MR. BROWN: Yes, sir. He was. He really was. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other committee members? 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Brown, if you would just briefly touch on two of those issues, the credit hours and the Palmetto Fellows. You can skip deferred maintenance since you all are so fortunate.

MR. BROWN: I was going to take that one first. That's the easiest one. Again, deferred maintenance is not a problem. However, I do feel that deferred maintenance should be managed out of our dollars not through bonds. You shouldn't repay maintenance out of indebtedness. On Palmetto scholarships, I think that's really a decision, you know, for the legislature. If the legislative intent of it is to follow the student, then I think that speaks for itself and it's up to you folks to direct that.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And that has been the intent but we have been lobbied fiercely by some of our colleges and Francis Marion has not been one of them. I'll say that, you know, since I am bringing that issue up today. And so that's why we're really trying to get a feel from the people who are members of the governing boards as to what your positions are on it.

MR. BROWN: Unfortunately right now only in rare occasions do we compete with Furman and Wofford for students. However, we plan to change that with the assistance of people in this room. On the issue, I think there is a lot of merit to limiting the credit hours. What I would suggest to the legislature though to consider is I don't think parents or students understand that the legislature or the taxpayers pick up part of their education. I think they think the legislature funds the schools but I don't think they understand it's directly tied to that student. So, some form of education to the parents and the students, hey not only do you have a responsibility to yourself and your parents here, you also have a responsibility to the State to try to maximize this opportunity that you've been provided. I had planned to take about a five or a six year course myself and about three years through my father explained to me that it was the last year he was going to pay for. So, I had to really hustle my last year at Francis Marion. I was a 1977 graduate. Did make it in four years but I had to have some encouragement from my dad about responsibility. Unfortunately, I think a lot of children don't or young adults don't get that as often as they need it.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: You know you bring one point up that maybe we need to do with tuition bills much like we do with property tax notices. When the State gave the residential rebate a few years ago, we listed the total tax bill and then we list how much the State is paying in property tax relief. Maybe that's what the tuition bills need to show from now on, the total amount that it costs to educate the child and what the State is kicking in towards that education each year. And, you know, and any scholarship money that might be offsetting it that would be State funds and then, you know, the bottom line, this is what you owe. That might be something that we at some point in time want to look at because I agree with you. I mean, I think a lot of parents think they're paying it. That what they contribute is the tuition and there's no other money or they don't have any concept really of what that money is really like.

MR. BROWN: And I agree with you and I think it will make our job at the institutions ... we deal with a more informed group as the legislators, I think it would be a help in understanding that a commitment you're making to higher education.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other committee members. 

MR. BROWN: Thank you and thank you for what you do for Francis Marion. Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Sixth district seat 12, William W. Coleman, Jr. from Florence.

WILLIAM W. COLEMAN, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that this committee should be made ... 

MR. COLEMAN: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: ... made known about?

MR. COLEMAN: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend all the Board meetings like you have in the past?

MR. COLEMAN: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you personally or professionally have anything that would constitute a conflict of interest at Francis Marion?

MR. COLEMAN: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you hold any other public office that would make you a dual office holder?

MR. COLEMAN: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, sir. Go ahead. 

MR. COLEMAN: I'm W.W. Coleman. I'm from Florence. I was a first graduating class graduate of Francis Marion in 1971. My family is from the Pee Dee. I love the institution and what's it's done to give a lot of people that wouldn't have had an opportunity to go to school, we still at graduations periodically we ask how many are first generation students and graduates and it's a high number. I'm very proud of that. One of the goals I want to do, I've been on the Board since '88, is one day I'd like to see every student that comes to Francis Marion get some kind of assistance towards the tuition and costs. And I will address some of Representative Gamble's things. You know, I'm probably more leaning toward the State on the Palmetto Scholars on public institutions but at the same percentages as it now, I really don't see it as a problem. As Mr. Brown said, we don't have a lot of those students who are narrowing it down to us and Wofford or Furman. So, it really hasn't been a big problem at Francis Marion. We're going to change that. That is a fact. And I'd like to think that there would be more and more money available for that. On the hours required, I was like Jimmy too. I'm a 160 hour person, I think, and it's because I changed majors in a junior year and had a little play time in there too. I don't have any problems with the 140 hour requirement. We do have a lot of, you know the number of years, I think, would be a problem or pose a problem at Francis Marion. I don't think the number of hours would. I'll entertain any questions. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions from any member? Thank you, sir. Thank you, Mr. Coleman.

MR. COLEMAN: All right.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Okay. At large seat 14, Robert W. Williams, Jr. from Effingham.

ROBERT W. WILLIAMS, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related reasons that we need to be known about? 

MR. WILLIAMS: Not at all that I know of at the present time, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and activities, do you or are you able now to continue to serve on a regular basis?

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any personal conflict of interest or professional? 

MR. WILLIAMS: None.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you hold any other public office that would constitute dual office holding?

MR. WILLIAMS: No, sir. I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, sir. Go ahead. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, it's a great privilege and honor for me to stand before you today as a newly kid on the block appointed by the Governor to fill out an unexpired term and also nominated me to be considered to be a member of the Board of Trustees for Francis Marion University. Thank God for Francis Marion University. Ladies and gentlemen, that is one of the greatest assets that we have in the Pee Dee region of South Carolina. It has provided an education to children had it not been for Francis Marion they would not have been able to have an education. We've got to continue this. We've got to have support from the legislature to support this institution. We're going to have to develop because of the ... we're going to have to develop a program whereby we can have a better high tech suffering for qualified, highly educated technical students and I hope that Francis Marion will move in this area in the future. I have had the privilege of working with Francis Marion for about ... well, since Doug was there and he started that institution many many years ago. But actively for about the past eight years serving on the Foundation Board of the University. Served as treasurer of that Foundation and we have been able in the last four years to raise contributions and funds from about a $3,000,000.00 level to $10,000,000.00 for educational assistance and help with scholarships. Many moons ago, I made a commitment to myself that we were going to do everything that we could to help Francis Marion University become one of the great institutions of this State. To help do that and to help the children, the needy children in the Pee Dee region, we established a scholarship program and today we've brought roughly $200,000.00 to the University in scholarships. I've developed a plan to bring roughly four to $600,000.00 over the next four years to the institution for needy scholarships. And we were one of the first to make a contribution to start the teacher certification program. Made a contribution of $30,000.00 to assist and help have these teachers go on and get their certification and we were proud to be the pioneer in developing this at Francis Marion University. We were also, when Dr. Vickers was president, worked with Dr. Vickers who assisted, helped start a intern program. We did not have an intern program at Francis Marion through the businesses. We started the first intern program at Francis Marion with ten students and that has grown. And in regards to answering Representative, Dr. Gamble's question on deferred maintenance, I'm in the utility business and you cannot milk a cow but you've got to have reliable electric service, so therefore you're going to have to take care of your deferred maintenance. You're going to have to take care of your maintenance on a current basis and you're going to have to have new capital to provide infrastructure to meet the growing needs of the institution. The same as we do in the electric utility business. And I hope that the legislature will look at the needs of this institution in the future and help and assist us in growing, continuing to increase our enrollment and to continue to educate the children that needs this education so bad. Thank you. I'll be glad to answer any questions.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Tell me again how long have you been on the Board.

MR. WILLIAMS: I've been on the Board since August of last year. Governor Hodges appointed me to serve the unexpired term of a trustee. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: All right, now ...

MR. WILLIAMS: I have served as treasurer of the University Foundation for about, I think, eight years.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Money and dollar figures catch my attention. You said something a minute ago about you raised at a level of 3,000,000 and you had taken it to 10,000,000. What time frame are we talking about? 

MR. WILLIAMS: Four years.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, you're saying that the Foundation was at the level of raising about 3,000,000 a year and now you're raising about 10,000,000 a year?

MR. WILLIAMS: No, no. We raised six additional million in four years ... seven ... seven additional million.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: That's a cumulative ... 

MR. WILLIAMS: Seven additional million in four years.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, that's a cumulative total then?

MR. WILLIAMS: In four years, yes, ma'am.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: That money is used primarily for scholarships?

MR. WILLIAMS: Scholarships mostly, other activities that are legitimate for the University budget that's outside of the State supported funds. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Explain a little bit further you started telling something about teacher certification and that sort of threw me. Has something new happened with teacher certification at Francis Marion because you all have had a teacher ed department for years? 

MR. WILLIAMS: What's the name of ...

MS. EDMONDS: It's just a partnership between school districts and Francis Marion where ... 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Professional development. 

MS. EDMONDS: ... whereby ...

MR. WILLIAMS: That's right.

MS. EDMONDS: It is, but it's more than that. If we are ... we are making scholarship donations to school districts to Francis Marion and then in turn those children come back and teach in our school district. So, it's kind of a win win. There are 19 school districts that have formed a Pee Dee Education Center Consortium that work with Francis Marion on a variety of issues. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Okay.

MR. WILLIAMS: It's whereby we loan the teacher $2,000.00. The State would loan 2,000. 

MS. EDMONDS: Right, then that's another program you're talking about is National Board Certification.

MR. WILLIAMS: National Board Certification. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Oh, okay.

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes, National Board Certification, yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, Francis Marion is using some of its Foundation funds to pay that what was 2,000, now I think it's going up to 2,300. 

MR. WILLIAMS: No, no, no. I gave them $30,000.00 to start the program.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Okay. And so from that $30,000.00 you all were making awards to pay the certification application fee?

MS. EDMONDS: Right.

MR. WILLIAMS: Right. And it's on a revolving basis.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Representative Inabinett. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Which is good for the teacher. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Oh, yes. Oh, yes, that is very good.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: It sounds as if you have been involved in raising quite a bit of funds. Is the fundraising that you're alluding to a collaborative effort between the administration and the Board, which is the leadership? 

MR. WILLIAMS: It's everybody is involved. Private industry is involved. We are working with private industry in the Pee Dee region to obtain their support and assistance to help us to educate our children in the Pee Dee because we come from a poor area. Marion County, Dillon County, Williamsburg County are pretty low on the totem pole and therefore, we're trying to get industry involved to assist and help in scholarships. And the scholarship money that I'm talking about comes directly from private industry.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: And this is initiated by Board members basically or again in a collaborative effort?

MR. WILLIAMS: It's a collaborative effort by all, yes, sir.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, your Foundation has Board representation but then also community representation?

MR. WILLIAMS: Oh, very much so. Yes, we have the community involved in Francis Marion activities which is great.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? I'd like to say thank you to Robert because I've known him for a long time. Robert's been generous to serve in various boards across South Carolina and serves the South Carolina Aeronautics Commission as our Vice Chairman and I just appreciate knowing you and what you did for Florence County Airport and that area. As a member of the Aeronautics Commission, I know you will work with this Board also. 

MR. WILLIAMS: I guarantee I'll work my heart out for it. Already done it and will pledge to you I will continue to do it. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: If we're going to get into personal tributes, we certainly have to acknowledge that we have Jean Harris' daughter on this Board and we miss your mama but we love Anthony just as much. And we know you're doing a good job over there because we know your stock.

MR. WILLIAMS: She is and everybody loves her too. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: What's the pleasure of the committee on Francis Marion?

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: Move favorable.

SENATOR GIESE: Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: All in favor?    (ALL IN FAVOR)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Inabinett, we will now rush over to Lander. And the first district, seat two. We've got seven congressional and one at‑large. The first district seat two is Robin R. Agnew from Myrtle Beach.

ROBIN R. AGNEW, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems we need to be made aware of? 

MS. AGNEW: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and activities, are you able to attend the Board meetings on a regular basis? 

MS. AGNEW: Yes, I am.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any personal or professional interests that would cause a conflict?

MS. AGNEW: No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other public office ...

MS. AGNEW: No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: ... by election or appointment? 

MS. AGNEW: No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: All right, thank you very much. You may proceed with your public statement. 

MS. AGNEW: Thank you. Good morning ... good afternoon, I should say. I am proud to be here. I am Robin Agnew and I am from Georgetown County. I live at Pawley's Island. And I'm also very proud to be what my customers affectionately call a Lander Lilly. I'm a 1988 graduate of Lander University and I feel like I'd like to give something back to the University because they gave me so much. I'm an incumbent. I am serving in an unexpired term as of July 1999 which expires this year. And I've been ... I've served on two Board meetings since that time and I'm very excited about where the school is going. We're also in a very exciting mode right now in that we are screening for a new president and that process is ongoing as we speak and we should know more or should begin the actual interviewing process after our next Board meeting. As far as addressing the issues that Representative Gamble has been popping up to us, as far as the hours or the number of hours that are credit hours that the school has or should limit their hours to, I believe that the hours ... I'm trying to think, it took me 120 hours to graduate. And in that time, I graduated staying on my course of study although I wanted to come back after I finished my graduation and attend more hours and I'm not sure if that comes in and causes another issue where I've already done 120 hours, will the State allow me to come back in under the existing resources to do more, because I wanted to do that. I do feel that the children and as far as my child goes too, I do feel that he should stay on course and try to limit his number of hours for a course of study and attempt to terminate that degree or come to a terminal degree with that. As far as the Palmetto Fellows, I really don't know enough about that to form an issue or to formulate an answer to that issue. I understand about the 18 percent private and the 82 percent public. I feel like as a taxpayer maybe it's a double edged sword ... I feel like as a tax payer that it should go to public schools but as a parent I feel like if my child would want to go to a private school that I would like that scholarship to go there. So, it's a double edged and I would have to think that more so than this forum to decide how I would go with that issue. As far as deferred maintenance at our school, I do believe that we should take care of our deferred maintenance before we proceed with our improvements. If there is any other questions, I'll be glad to address those.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I would like to make one comment. When you talk about coming back in to take additional courses, that's currently allowed over at USC. You can come in and audit classes. So, you get the same experience as going through the course but the State does not provide any subsidy for that. You pay the tuition though because you pay that to sort of offset you being in the classroom and taking the spot. And that's on a space available basis. But the State does not subsidize or that's my understanding the State is not subsidizing colleges right now with audit ... with audits.

MS. AGNEW: I see what you're saying. A lot of times the auditing portion of that it was on a first come first served basis. So, if you signed up for a class you would definitely get into it if you were paying full tuition fee. And that's in my schedule, because I was a self paying student, I was also working full‑time. It had to be my ... it had to work into my schedule and not the school working around my schedule. I had to work into that schedule. So, I felt like I had to pay the fee instead of auditing.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right, right. Well, I mean, you can understand too that the priority has got to be to those students who are currently in a degree program. That one who already has a degree ... we've got some that are, you know, currently perusing a degree and we have only so many spaces. I mean, we would have to give priority to those students who are there. I mean, continuing ed is handled differently at ... at different schools, I mean, you know, there's ... as a matter of fact, for public school teachers, you basically can take the equivalent of an education course at USC and take it for what is called recertification credit. So, continuing ed is handled differently within different colleges and schools within a university setting.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions. Thank you, very much, Ms. Agnew. Next will be Anthony Noury from Mt. Pleasant.

ANTHONY NOURY, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any related health problems that we need to be made known about at this time, that would prevent you from serving? 

MR. NOURY: No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and activities, are there any reasons you wouldn't be able to attend all of the Board meetings on a regular basis? 

MR. NOURY: No, there wouldn't be. No, there would not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or personally that constitutes a conflict of interest?

MR. NOURY: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other public, elected or appointed office that would constitute a dual office holding?

MR. NOURY: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may proceed.

MR. NOURY: Thank you very much for having me here this morning ... afternoon to present my testimony for the reasons or my desires to be on the Lander Board of Trustees. But as a first matter of order, Chairman, I'd like to go ahead and let you know I brought these two tickets downstairs.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: You have two.

MR. NOURY: I'm glad to see that the meter maids in Columbia work just as hard in Columbia as they do in Charleston. From moving from there I would like to make a point that Lander has been in my special interest since graduating there in 1988 when I received a B.S. degree from their business school. Currently I'm serving on Lander's Board of Visitors. The University has remained in my special interest over the last 12 years since graduating and this was one of the areas that I felt like I could contribute other than writing a check to the University. I feel that I can responsibly and unselfishly provide some of the leadership it's going to take the University as they forge into the next ... into this millennium and beyond. You know, in my first 33 years, I can certainly see why institutions that we have around the State, whether it's Francis Marion and importantly Lander University, that it is such an important institution to our State and to our citizens of South Carolina. Since leaving Greenwood in 1988, I've had the fortunate career to work for about three different Fortune 500 companies in which I'm working for one now, which is Johnson and Johnson Incorporated. I feel like the bachelors degree along with this work experience allows me to certain specific skill sets that it will take to be able to lead and provide a responsible leadership on a board such as the Board of Trustees at Lander University. I volunteer my time and effort to Lander University because I want my alma mater more recognized in the Low Country as it is recognized as one of the great institutions in the upper regions of our State. That's my primary reason for being here today. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions from any committee members?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I'd like for you to talk on these three issues that I've been talking about, the number of credit hours that the State subsidizes, the Palmetto Fellows program and also the deferred maintenance versus new construction requests.

MR. NOURY: After hearing some of the information from earlier candidates and some of incumbents, considering these are relatively new subjects for me, since I'm not an incumbent for this particular position, I can only lend what I feel like from a personal standpoint and I'll start with the Palmetto Fellows scholarship. Importantly, I feel like it would be more important ... it would be nice to have more information before leading to a final decision on it. However, I do feel like the word choice is important to be able to where you can ... where those students can go within the State. To me it is important and I don't know if it sounds like we're trying to keep students within the State of South Carolina or are we trying to keep citizens in the State of South Carolina. I feel like the long term is it's important to keep citizens, good citizens, productive citizens and leaders in the State of South Carolina and do that through the vehicle means of being able to provide them choice of the institutions that they can go to throughout the State. You also, I believe, Representative Gamble mentioned that the percentages are very small on that, as it relates to overall costs. That's why I feel like choice may be important if those percentages are small. As it relates to the deferred maintenance, I can only tell you as when it comes to deferred maintenance as it relates to a 21 year old house that I currently own, outside of that, my analogy is somewhat simple. Is that if you have a pencil and you have a disposable pen, if the pencil breaks you sharpen it. If the disposable pen breaks you usually throw it away and get another one. So, if we have means or if we have institutions and buildings if they're a good pencil, sharpen it. If it's a bad pen, it might be time to throw it away and start again. That's my analogy on that. I wish I could speak more to that level but considering I'm not ... I don't have as much information as I would like to make that statement. In terms of 140 hours, I believe my curriculum allowed 118 hours and I finished just at 121 hours ... I finished that. I was under the strong encouragement from fortunately my father put me through school but I had to do that in four years. And I did not start out with a stellar program the first part of that college program, but I quickly realized the importance of getting out otherwise it was going to come out of my own pocket to be able to do that and also move on with the goals and objectives that I have set forth. But I do feel like one of the biggest problems in the credit hours is not necessarily students changing their curriculum or changing their major, I feel like it's students dropping courses to be able to maintain a certain GPA level within the institutions and therefore, they'll drop that course and then will add to the length of time that they go to school. And so if you think that is an overall problem, some of the pre‑ entry level programs will be very important so they can have ... that first and second semester in college is so important to get a high GPA or to maintain a good level, it makes the rest of the years that much easier to maintain that level and keep good clear focus on what you want to do. But I do think something prior to stepping into the school would be a very very good program to explore and take a look at. In terms of allowing students to explore their opportunities, many many young kids getting out of high school don't really have any idea of what they want to do. I'm in business and I have been for the last 12 years. My father was a physician. My mother was a registered nurse. They really didn't have strong backgrounds as it related to business per se. It was something that I had to stumble and learn upon and do that on my own. But honestly, some of that took place at the collegiate level in talking to advisors and teachers and other community members in and around Greenwood that gave us good direction as students. Also, I can kind of close on that one thought, we're in changing times. I call on cardiologists as a primary customer right now. Some of the other physicians around maybe can attest to this, years ago, it used to be four years of undergrade, four years of medical school, maybe another four or five years worth of residency. Now to maintain that level of ... a high level of cardiology, you need to go to one extra year of a fellowship to do interventional cardiology, another to do electrophysiology. We're in changing times and it seems to add on to what our educational requirements are. I can't give you a definitive answer but there are things worth exploring as it relates to that area. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right, and I think we're all aware of that so when we talk about doing this, we're talking about doing something that is appropriate to what those various curricula are out there today because they do vary. I mean, you know, you've got a pharmacy program that's a five year and now it's moving towards a six year program. And so I mean, I think that we do have different types of programs with different course requirements ... course credit hour requirements. So, I think we have to be considerate of all those ... all of those things as well. I notice that you and Ms. Agnew were from the same class, did you all know each other at Lander?

MR. AGNEW: I don't think so.

MR. NOURY: I don't think so. That's usually crazy because Lander is a small enough institution where you usually do know.

MS. AGNEW: Well, see I was a working student so I went like early in the morning, whenever I could catch an hour, late at night.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Are you implying that he was a fraternity student?

MS. AGNEW: Evidently. Because I didn't run into many of the on campus students. Did you stay on campus?

MR. NOURY: Yes, I did stay on campus. That's an important part of that too is that it seems like a lot of boarding students kind of stayed together and the community students came down and they kind of joined the program. But sometimes there was a little bit of difference between the two in terms of when there were some friendships formed in the early stages but that is interesting though.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other committee members that have got any questions? Thank you, very much. 

MR. NOURY: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Second district seat four, George R. Starnes from Columbia. Mr. Starnes. 

GEORGE R. STARNES, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that this committee needs to know about?

MR. STARNES: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and activities, would you be able to attend on a regular basis?

MR. STARNES: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interest personally or professionally that constitutes a conflict of interest?

MR. STARNES: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Are you now holding any other elected or appointed position that would constitute dual office holding?

MR. STARNES: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, sir. Go ahead. 

MR. STARNES: Okay. I am a graduate of Lander University and also a current member of the Board of Trustees since 1992. At present I am Chairman of the Finance and Facilities Committees. So, I'm sure I'm going to get questioned on deferred maintenance. I'm also on the Lander Foundation and has been mentioned we are in the middle of a presidential search and I am also on that committee as well. So, I am very involved at Lander. It seems like right now it's on a weekly basis, not a monthly or quarterly basis. And I would like to say that I think Lander University is one of the best kept secrets in the State. We are the smallest State supported school and because of that we've got some unique challenges that we are facing in the coming years and I feel like that with my past experience that I am well positioned to be of benefit to the school. For the sake of time, I'll close there and then cover any questions.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions from any committee members?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Just those same that I've been asking.

MR. STARNES: Okay. On the ... I'll take the facilities question first and fortunately Lander has a ... has been blessed with a lot of new buildings. And, but some of our buildings are aging now and we are having to deal with that and we are having to rob Peter to pay Paul right now. Another concern that I have being the chairman of that committee is not only with maintenance but it's when we bring new buildings on line there is an incredible cost to maintain those buildings and it has had a tremendous impact on our budget when we have brought buildings on line in the past having to deal with how we heat and cool those buildings. So, not only is the concern for maintenance of older buildings but if we do get new buildings in the future and I know we have requested time and time again for a student facility which we are in dire need of, but my concern is if we do receive the funds to build that building how are we doing to maintain that building. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: That's very true because, you know, when we're talking about maintenance here today we're really talking about heavy duty maintenance in terms of heating and air and keeping the roof on and, you know, the insulation where it's supposed to be and those kinds of things. But then when it's a new building you're actually adding to your campus, it's just the day to day custodial, somebody to change the light bulbs, to clean the toilets, to mop the floors, you know, so you add another expenditure that you, you know, assume responsibility for.

MR. STARNES: Well, for example with the last two years we've had a new math and science building to come on line and if the numbers serve me correct, it's about a quarter of a million dollars a year just to open the doors to that building and to keep it going. And for a small school that's a lot of money and we have a lot of budget concerns. And we're very concerned with it and that's one of the things with this presidential search committee that we're dealing with right now is that we've got to bring a president in who is going to make some tough and maybe some very unpopular decisions and I think he's going to have to have a very strong Board stand behind him so that we can get our house in order.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: How many students do you all have right now?

MR. STARNES: We have about 2,800 full time students. So, we are, you know, the smallest. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: That's still a very good sized school.

MR. STARNES: It's a good sized school.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I mean, you know, it's ... 

MR. STARNES: Lander is very much a community school. We serve really a seven county area up around the Greenwood area and I think we do a real good job in serving that. In regards to the question dealing with the 140 hours, I have a brother who is four years older than me and my father sat both of us down and said guys I think about eight years back to back is all I can take. So, I had a very strong incentive to get out of school in four years. And I did. I think we've got the ... I like the idea as far as the hours not the years because at Lander and I checked on this last week, the average age of the student is not the traditional student. We are serving an older student body and I think the average age is between 26 and 28 years of age. And those people ... the reason they're there is because they're working. So, I think if you look at the number of hours versus the number of years you're on the right track there. In regards to the Palmetto Fellowship and I've not given this a lot of thought, but as a parent, I feel like if my children want to go to private school that's probably my responsibility to provide it not the State of South Carolina's. As a Board member, I've got to see what kind of impact that has on Lander University and I don't know those numbers. I would suspect that we aren't losing a lot of those students to Wofford and Furman just based on who we serve in our community.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I think it's primarily, USC, Clemson and the College of Charleston. 

MR. STARNES: I think you're probably correct there. But I'm just not ... so I can't really comment on that as a Board member.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, Mr. Starnes.

MR. STARNES: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Next is Mr. Peter Buttress of Lexington.

PETER BUTTRESS, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: I'll ask you the question; do you have any health related problems that we need to be known about?

MR. BUTTRESS: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and activities, would you be able to attend the Board meetings on a regular basis? 

MR. BUTTRESS: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or personally that would constitute a conflict of interest?

MR. BUTTRESS: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other public, elected or appointed office that would constitute dual office holding?

MR. BUTTRESS: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may proceed.

MR. BUTTRESS: Thank you, sir. Mr. Chairman, Ladies and Gentlemen, you will quickly discover that I don't have the wonderful Southern accent that all of you have and that's because I'm relatively new to the State of South Carolina. I moved here three years ago and I presently live in Lexington. Before taking an early retirement in 1987, I had had a long and distinguished career with IBM where I became a director of personnel for a business unit of some 5,000 employees. After I retired I did some business consulting and was hired by one of my clients as a vice president of personnel. In 1990 I left the business world and began working as a freelance writer. My articles have appeared in newspapers and magazines in Connecticut, Massachusetts, South Carolina and North Carolina and, as a matter of fact, yesterday I had a travel article about Hilton Head Island that appeared in the Miami Herald. More important than my business background, though, is my experience as a Trustee of Alfred University, my alma mater. Alfred is a small private university in upstate New York with an undergraduate enrollment of about 2,000 students. I've served on the Board since I was first appointed in 1979 and I'm currently a Trustee Emeritus. As a 1962 graduate with a bachelor of arts degree in English, I have a great appreciation for the benefits of a college education. I was given financial assistance by the University when I was an undergraduate which enabled me to earn my degree and begin a successful career. So, consequently, I have dedicated myself to serving on the Board and repaying the school in the small way through my time, talents and resources. During my tenure I've helped set policy, reviewed management practices and assisted in fundraising and each May I have watched with pride as students walked across the stage to receive their diplomas knowing that I helped Alfred University maintain balanced budgets, strengthened its curriculum, growed student enrollment, constructed new buildings and improved campus appearance. Now, the reason I chose to apply for Trusteeship at Lander University is because it is a school that is comparable in size and it has similar academic programs and coincidentally the president of Alfred University is retiring in June of this year as is the president of Lander University. And we too had a search ... a presidential search ongoing. Now, I'd like to address the three questions that you've raised in the past. First of all on maintenance. Building maintenance is vitally important at Alfred University. We as a small private school, we are in competition for students. And so it makes absolutely no sense for a prospective student and parent to walk on campus see a beautiful student union building and then walk into a dormitory and find cracked toilets, ceilings peeling, roof leaking or carpets stained. And so we have an ongoing program to make sure that our buildings are attractive and that they will attract prospective students. So, what do we do about new buildings? Well, frankly we go out and raise the money from donations and pledges and we will not build a new building until we've got the money in hand and then we go ahead and put them up. On the subject of Palmetto Fellowships, as you can imagine coming from a small private institution, I'm pro‑choice. I think that if a student has earned a Palmetto Fellowship, that student ought to be able to go to any institution in South Carolina. This is a competitive market and if Wofford or some of the other private schools can attract these students God bless them. They need the money just as much as the State institutions. And finally on your question about the limit on hours. Sixty‑seven percent of Alfred students graduated four years. Why is that? Because most of them got financial aid and we're not prepared to continue financial aid at infinitum. And so knowing that their financial aid will come to an end after four years, they work very hard to get their program complete. We do one other thing though because, you know, perhaps the question in your mind is well, what about the other ... the third that don't graduate in four years. They really fall into three categories. A small number are expelled from school for cause. Another number leave for a variety of reasons ‑‑ the girlfriend has moved, I don't like the climate here, I don't like the ... there's not enough activity on campus, whatever the reason. And for those students we conduct an exit interview for every student who is leaving the university voluntarily and it gives us a very good feel for what are the causes and are there any trends. Now, if they're leaving because of weather, we can't fix that. But if they're leaving for some other reason that we can fix, we fix it because think about this, every student who leaves the university before graduation means that we're losing revenue. So, there is a great deal of emphasis on campus about retention. The third group fall into the category of academic difficulties. And as soon as we spot a student who is getting into academic difficulties, we focus on that student and provide them with assistance. We have a mentoring program on campus so that that student can be assisted along the way and get back on track. It's not a perfect system but, as I say, two thirds of our students graduate in four years. Are there any other questions? 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: No, but I will make one comment. My niece ... one of my nieces is at North Hampton College over there right now, right out of London. So, she's experiencing the higher education system over there. 

MR. BUTTRESS: Great.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: It's been a great experience.

SENATOR WILSON: I too want to note that you're a naturalized citizen from Cambridge, England. I had the privilege of visiting the American Military Cemetery this summer and we certainly appreciate what a wonderful and beautiful place that is to remember the contribution of American Service members.

MR. BUTTRESS: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other committee members? Thank you, Mr. Buttress.

MR. BUTTRESS: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Third district seat five, Mamie W. Nicholson from Greenwood.

MAMIE W. NICHOLSON, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MS. NICHOLSON: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and activities, would it prevent you from attending all the Board meetings? 

MS. NICHOLSON: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or personally that would cause a conflict of interest?

MS. NICHOLSON: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you hold any other public or elected office other than this that you're seeking now?

MS. NICHOLSON: No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, ma'am. You may go ahead.

MS. NICHOLSON: My involvement with Lander has been a long one. I began serving on the Board of Visitors for Lander. Have served on the Lander Foundation Board and then was appointed in 1996 to the Board of Trustees. That term ended in 1999 and I have recently been appointed to an unexpired term, to complete an unexpired term. I serve as Chair of the Student Affairs Intercollegiate Athletics Committee and am also on the search committee for Lander's new president at this time. And at this, I would just like to say that I realize the value of Lander to the Greenwood community, to the surrounding community both, I mean, economically, educationally, culturally, everything. Lander is a vital part of the Greenwood community. We love having Lander there and I intend to work and do everything I can possible to keep Lander a vital part of that community. And I'll respond to questions if you have them.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Questions?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, I'd just like those same three questions addressed briefly. 

MS. NICHOLSON: As far as facilities and maintenance, deferred maintenance, as you called it, I serve as chair of Student Affairs Intercollegiate Athletics Committee. That's a hard word to say. And as the chair of the Student Affairs Committee I hear from students a lot. One of the things that the students really need on the Lander campus is a new student center. And I know that they need that facility. I know that it is a vital part of what ... of the students getting together and knowing each other and a place for them to just be on campus. I also know that if we have buildings there that they need to ... that we need to keep them up and we need to have the funds to do that. So, I am for a balance, I guess, in that that we need to really need to pay attention to what we already have. But we also need to go out and seek funds to provide new facilities as they are needed.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I'm looking at you all's request before CHE right now. You all don't have a student center down as a request. Is that ... am I reading something that's inaccurate or do you have a student center request pending?

MS. NICHOLSON: We have had the student center. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Do you think possibly that was in the bond money that was passed last year?

MS. NICHOLSON: Possibly.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I mean, this is the request for this coming fiscal year.

MS. NICHOLSON: It was there last year.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And it reads that you all have heating and air conditioning ... 

MS. NICHOLSON: It should be there this year. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... upgrades and that you have needs for a math science complex to repair some ... it says repair the brick veneer and then the Genesis Hall renovation.

MS. NICHOLSON: We have the math and science facility already.

MALE VOICE: That's to fix the brick though. 

MS. NICHOLSON: To fix the brick. Oh, okay. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But I don't see ... 

MS. NICHOLSON: The student center should be there or it was there.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right. Well, these are the only three requests that I've gotten from CHE. 

MS. NICHOLSON: I don't know what happened with that.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Did you all get bond money out of last year's bond that was passed? 

MS. NICHOLSON: No, we did not.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: On the State's subsidy being capped on the number of credit hours? 

MS. NICHOLSON: The number of credit hours, I can agree with that. I would ... I do think that we need to look at that a little bit in that I am not your traditional student. I came from a two year technical college and then went on to a four year school. And sometimes you lose credits there. You end up needing more hours. I don't know how that would fit into this plan. But that's a different perspective that I think we need to address when we're looking at that, as to if a student transfers from a two year institution to a four year and how the credits would go that way.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: When did you finish the two year program?

MS. NICHOLSON: Two year program in 1975, I think. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: We do have a college parallel program now in our technical colleges that was not there then. And so, I think students can come out of a technical college with better information as to the courses they've taken and which of those courses and quite frankly if they're in that college parallel program, all of those courses should transfer into a four year program. But I think where you're most probably talking about is, you know, for instance if you were going into a baccalaureate nursing program at USC, there would most probably be some nursing courses that should have, you know, been taken in the freshman year even. So, you would come in if you came in from a technical college you could just ... liberal arts two year degree, you know, you might be somewhat behind there. But that's ... that's why I'm saying that once we deal with this issue and I say once because I do think eventually we are going to deal with this, there has got to be some wiggle room and some consideration for those kinds of things that you're talking about. You know, but those students that are going into two year colleges aren't costing us nearly as much money as those students who are going into four year colleges. So, I'm ...

MS. NICHOLSON: I can agree with a cap on the hours. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Yes, but you ...

MS. NICHOLSON: Today I can.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... do ... you do bring a point and I'm glad and this is why I've run through this with everybody that was there because just like earlier when Ms. Richardson was talking about people that come in with 30 hours of AP course work. I mean, those are the kinds of things that would need to be addressed, I mean, you know, as you're trying to look at the whole thing and trying to come up with something that could be ...

MS. NICHOLSON: And I don't know either how that parallel works. If you go in, for instance, if you take that two year nursing degree and then you decide to get a bachelors, I don't know if you do the nursing things. That's just an example ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, I think there's a separate track and I think there is a way you can do that but ...

MS. NICHOLSON: Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... I think it is a little bit different track.

MS. NICHOLSON: But that's where you end up losing the hours when you do it reverse, I think, is what happens.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And about the Palmetto Fellows program, what are your thoughts on that?

MS. NICHOLSON: The Palmetto Fellows program, I am for keeping that with public institutions. I feel that if I want a private education for my child, then I should be willing to pay for it. That's my personal opinion.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, very much.

MS. NICHOLSON: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: The third district seat six, Finis Horne.

MR. HORNE: That's Finis. I'm the last of 13 children. So, they named me Finis.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Sort of like the final child?

MR. HORNE: It's Finis. I'm the final child. 

FINIS HORNE, being duly sworn, testifies as follows: 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that this committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving? 

MR. HORNE: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any other activities that would prevent you from attending all the Board meetings ...

MR. HORNE: No, sir. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: ... on a regular basis? Do you have any interests professionally or personally that would cause a conflict of interest? 

MR. HORNE: I have none.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you hold any other public offices ...

MR. HORNE: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: ... that would constitute dual office holding?

MR. HORNE: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may proceed.

MR. HORNE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Please be brief, if you will. 

MR. HORNE: Okay. I will. I spent 29 years at Lander University as Athletics Director and Basketball Coach and that's a very rewarding experience. I think the greatest thing that any of us can do is be part of the educational system in some way. I know that the best rewards that I've ever had is seeing the young individuals grow and mature and get educated and improve their life. So, it's been an honor for me for those years to help be part of that and I would like to continue serving on the Board of Trustees at Lander University. And as far as the three things that we've been debating or discussing, maintenance I think is always a problem. The thing that I've seen with maintenance over the years is say like our roof needs to be done this year and maybe the money is not there and then it has to be done a year or two years later and then it costs more than if it had been done at the present time. So, I think funding is a problem with maintenance. And as far as the Palmetto Fellowship, my heart has always been in public education. I started out teaching and coaching in a junior high school and I just think the heart of our country is in public education. And as a taxpayer I have never had interest in helping fund private schools. And as far as hours with ... in terms of attendance or hours, I would have no problems with, you know, a certain cap on hours because it has to be paid for someway. One of my bigger concerns is the debt that students have when they complete their degree. I know of some now that's up over $40,000.00. So, that's a big problem. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: No, but I want to make one comment about the student debt. You know, I'm so ... I'm pleased that we have so many resources available for students but I'm not so such sometimes they get the counseling they need before they take on some of this debt and I'm not sure that some of them don't take on every penny that's available when maybe they could get by with fewer pennies because I'm hearing more and more of them graduating from undergraduate school with 35 and 40 and $45,000.00 in debt. Yet, I mean, I've had students who have worked in my office over at the University, who I knew what they were getting out of the office. I knew what they were paying for tuition. But then they got to drive the new car. They got to have a microwave. They've got to have a VCR. You know, they've got to have all these other things and I'm not sure so sure that sometimes that money isn't being put out there and being ... I mean, it's there and so they're taking advantage of it when maybe that's not ... they didn't really need every cent of that money to go to school. I mean, I don't think it's the same as it was when I was coming along and people talked about they needed money to go to school. They were basically looking for tuition and they were happy to eat peanut butter sandwiches. But that's my thoughts on that.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions? Thank you, Mr. Horne.

MR. HORNE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: The Fourth district seat eight, C. Tyrone Gilmore of Spartanburg. Mr Gilmore was unable to attend.

SENATOR WILSON: He's not here.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: No, and he's deferred to the 28th. The fifth district, seat ten, S. Anne Walker from Columbia.

MS. WALKER: Just a correction, your agenda says Columbia and I actually live in Sumter, South Carolina. I work out of Columbia. So, I do live in the district that I represent. 

SENATOR WILSON: We're happy to claim as such, as member of the Midlands community.

ANNE WALKER, being duly sworn, testifies as follows: 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that we should be made aware of at 224 this time?

MS. WALKER: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and activities, would it be a hinderance for you to attend the Board meetings on a regular basis?

MS. WALKER: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or personally that would constitute a conflict of interest?

MS. WALKER: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other public office elected or appointed that would constitute a dual office holding?

MS. WALKER: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may proceed.

MS. WALKER: Thank you. I too am a Lander graduate. In fact, I come from a family of seven Lander graduates. I am currently a member of the Board of Trustees. Have been a member since 1988 and I currently serve as Vice Chair and I have previously served on Academic Affairs committee and chairing student affairs, et cetera. So, I have been involved in the University at the Board of Trustee level for the past 12 years and obviously it's been part of my heart for many many years. You have all the information in front of you so far as the testimony, so I won't go into all of that. I have a real interest in continuing to be able to serve Lander. And so far as the questions from Dr. Gamble related to taking care of the buildings that we have on campus versus building new ones, I'm not going to say anything new, but balance is important. We've got to take care of what we have but we have to move forward and if we're going to be competitive we have to have the facilities that we need in order to meet the needs of the students. So far as the Palmetto Scholars I probably have, like a lot of other people, several opinions on that. So far as being a Trustee of Lander University, if the intent of the legislation was in fact to provide funding for students to go to public institutions, then obviously, I think it should stay as it is. If the intent was for it to provide funding for students period, regardless of where they want to go, then obviously something different needs to happen. So, I hate to sound like I'm on both side of the fence on that one but I'm no sure that I know the original intent of that legislation and that seems ... and whether it's this legislation or other legislation that seems to change during the ... through the years depending on who's doing the interpretation. But not having that information, I would lean towards it staying as it is. The last question relates to putting some kind of cap on the number of hours that the State would pay for. I went to Lander and was very active at the campus and graduated three and in a half years. And not because I'm a scholar but because I needed to get in there and get my education and get out. When our daughter, who went to Lander, called me her sophomore year and said mama, I think, it's probably going to take me five years to graduate, my response was that's fine, not a problem, but your graduation date based on four years is May of '95 so, in May of '95 we're going to quit paying and you'll need to go ahead and think now about what kind of job you want to get to pay for that last year of college. Needless to say she graduated May of '95. So, that does not mean ... let me be clear here about this, for the programs obviously that require five years, et cetera, then we should give them the time. I know my daughter's roommate got a degree and she's now a speech therapist, of course, she went on and got the masters plus 30. But just to get that undergraduate degree with the student teaching et cetera, there's no way I don't believe she could have done that in four years based on the requirements. So, obviously if you have a cap on hours, I don't see a problem with that. Other questions?

SENATOR WILSON: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Joe Wilson, Senator. 

SENATOR WILSON: There's no question in your private background being the Executive Director of the Alston Wilkes Society and we're really proud that you have been the President of the Columbia Rotary Club that you're very perceptive and in fact you were very perceptive to raise the point of what was the intent of the Palmetto Fellows program. And I believe that many of us in the General Assembly and I believe the majority who actually voted for it fully intended it for the students and it's really very unfortunate that it's become an artificial argument about public and private. That was not what we were fussing about in the General Assembly. We were trying to encourage the best and the brightest students to stay in South Carolina and give them an avenue to do so. But unfortunately, there were other forces at work beyond my knowledge and, in fact, the reason it became such a crisis is because nobody really understood what was happening until after the guidance counselors had given advice and many fine students and families were hurt but particularly students. And so I still hope that this can be addressed. Also I want to commend you about your attitude about the four year graduation rate. That certainly is really what is so important and that is that families expect that their children should graduate in four years. It's best for the child and of course, it's hard to call a college student a child, but it's best for the young person to know that there's a four year experience, put everything that you have into it and then you possibly will go on to graduate school or work for, as for Mr. Starnes, for a very fine insurance company. But truly this extended college experience I don't think is necessarily good for the students, certainly not for the families and not for the taxpayer. So, I appreciate your attitude.

MS. WALKER: Okay. Thank you. Just a comment so far as about funding for education and you all have heard it before but, I think until we get to the point in this State where we're willing to make the commitment to fund higher education appropriately you're going to have these situations where legislation gets passed. People are looking for funds to grab them wherever they can grab them because it's just ... we're in crisis mode so far as being able ... for example we really don't have an adequate ... we don't have the adequate student union. I know that Dr. Campbell ... that's not on the list and we'll be checking into that because we've had conversations that it was supposed to be on the list so we'll be asking about that, I'm sure. But nonetheless, it's tough and we all know it's tough. There's only so much money to go around. But when we get to the point in this Sate where we're willing to fund higher education the way we're willing to fund K through 12, we might not have this kind of interpretation taking place with those kinds of laws.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And I think once we can get to the point where we can limit credit hours, we will free up funds to be able to put additional funds in higher education. I mean, I think that problem ... I think it's mainly a credit hour problem more so than it is a time span problem. Yes, they're staying around six or seven years but I don't think they're staying around six or seven years and graduating with 125 hours. I think they're graduating with 175 or 180 or 190 and they've majored in three or four different things. And I just think more thought has to go into that up front. I mean, it's just, you know, like I said earlier in the day, that is a major expenditure. It's a major expenditure for the student and their family and it's a major expenditure for the State and, you know, I don't make major expenditures without giving it a lot of thought and consideration and if I'm not sure yet what I want to buy, I wait to buy it. You know, and I think the same thing has got to be true of a college education. 

MS. WALKER: Well, I appreciate what you had to say and in the essence of time I'll stop. I appreciate what you had to say in reference to students tapping into financial aid because if it's for room and board that's one thing. If it's for getting other things that they would like to have that's another. And so there is a problem, I believe, with that and that goes right along with 18‑year‑olds being able to get credit when parents are paying ... credit cards and parents are paying for their tuition. So, that's another whole subject. I thank you and if there are other questions. Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: No other questions. Thank you, Ms. Walker.

MS. WALKER: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: We have the sixth district seat 12, Walter D. Smith from Florence.

WALTER D. SMITH, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Mr. Smith, do you have any health related problems that prevent you from serving in a full capacity?

MR. SMITH: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and activities, would you be able to attend the Board on a regular basis?

MR. SMITH: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: And do you have any interests professionally or personally that would cause a conflict of interest?

MR. SMITH: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Are you elected or appointed to any position that would constitute the holding of a dual office?

MR. SMITH: No, sir.

MR. SMITH: I'm seeking election ... reelection for the ... my forth term, Mr. Chairman. During my three terms I have attempted to work hard for Lander and I have had some 32 years of experience in higher education and I would hope to bring that experience to bare on Lander's operations. And I'll be happy to answer your questions.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any questions?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: If you would just briefly, very briefly, respond to the questions I've been posing.

MR. SMITH: Well, in regard to your question about the student that it takes ... stays in school so long, I wonder is there some evidence that there are lots and lots of students who are taking ... staying in very very ... a long long time?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Oh, there is a tremendous amount of evidence. I've gotten the statistics here on the graduation rate and the graduation rate for Lander is 16.42 percent of them are graduating in four years. Forty‑eight ... no, I'm on the wrong line, excuse me. That 16.42 is correct. 36.07 in five and then 41.54 in six years but like I said earlier, I'm not so interested in the time period as I am the credit hours because of the fact that I understand that a lot of students are adults and may only be able to attend school on a part‑time basis. But many students are staying in and earning 160, 170, 180 hours because they go in and they major for something for awhile and then they decide well, I don't know if I like that and then they change it. Keep changing majors. Or they aren't successful in some of the classes or make too many D's. They don't quite flunk out but then they don't make courses that will count towards a degree program and so that's what my concern is that students are not ...

MR. SMITH: Well, I wondered if there was evidence that there were many students who had taken many many hours and I could see no reason not to have some upper limit on that. Although, the times are changing and I'd like to see enough flexibility for somebody to come back after receiving say a bachelors degree in music and go into nursing. I've seen this happen and I presume that anything we might do would leave that open. As for the State scholarships going to the private schools, I tend to favor public monies going to public institutions. I served on the Presbyterian Board for nine years. At PC we had the presbyterian church and many many donors willing to support Presbyterian. They have a different ... they have access to different funds and I guess I would be inclined to restrict private monies to ... I mean, public monies to public institutions. Now, as for the question about maintenance, I would think that every institution would be very careful about its maintenance programs and would ... it is a big problem. Sometimes you have to have a little balance. One institution has to delay its maintenance to build a new building and I think it might be necessary for those decisions to be made principally on the campus, again, on an individual basis, for those decisions. Although, I can see a philosophy that dominates the program that would say let's take care of our maintenance as it's needed.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, as we just heard a little earlier when we bring a new building on‑ line, it's very expensive to bring that ... 

MR. SMITH: It's very expensive.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... new building on‑line. So, it's not like we're bringing the new building on‑line and that paying the cost of building is all of your cost. And so bringing the new building on‑line you're bringing all the expenses of putting the new building on line and you still have your deferred maintenance needs out there. And so that's what has me really concerned.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions?

SENATOR WILSON: I would like to point out that the Palmetto Fellows funding is actually a fee on nuclear waste disposal in South Carolina. So, it's not a general fund expenditure. So, it's not general tax money. It's actually a fee and it was sold to many of us that this was a fee on nuclear waste disposal to be used to encourage the best and brightest students to stay in South Carolina, period. And that's what we thought it was. Not a tax subsidy to get into a fuss between public and private institutions.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, here again, we could stay on this subject all day long but here again, too, it's awarded based on the student's achievement. It's not awarded based on anything that the colleges do or don't do. And so, you know, our taxpayers, I mean, we have one set of taxpayers and within that one set, you know, we have people who want their children in private colleges and people with children who choose public colleges. But they 237 all contribute taxes to the State too. It's not like these tax funds are generated just from people who use the public facilities. So ...

MR. SMITH: Well, I'm sensitive to of question. I sent two kids to private schools so I'm aware of that.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions of Mr. Smith? None. Thank you. All right. At‑large seat number 14, Ann B. Bowen from Greenwood. 

ANN B. BOWEN, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Ms. Bowen, are there any health problems you may have that need be made aware of this committee?

MS. BOWEN: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and activities, would anything hinder you from attending on a regular basis? 

MS. BOWEN: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests professionally or personally that would cause a conflict of interest?

MS. BOWEN: No. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other elected or appointed offices that would constitute a dual office holding?

MS. BOWEN: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Go ahead.

MS. BOWEN: In 1993, to my great very surprise and my very great delight, I was appointed to a seat on the Lander College, Board of Trustees. I've listened all day long and I am the only person so far who is an alumnus, a 31 year retiree and a Board member. I had had an interest in Lander since 1950 and I really really hate to say that because this is my golden anniversary year. That's a long time. I'm interested in Lander's history and the fact that it gave its first baccalaureate degree in 1873, 100 years exactly before it received State support. I'm also one of the people who worked to gain that support and if you haven't heard the thank you from me, you can hear it right now. Thank you very much. It's been, I hope, on the part of the legislature money well spent. It's not necessary to add, I'm sure, that I would like to continue to serve. I'm a member of the committee on academics and I'm very happy to be serving there. I enjoy it very much. And suppose to get onto the questions. I personally have learned a great deal today from listening to this debate. I'm sure it was not supposed to be that at the beginning of the day but I've learned a lot. And I would like to answer those questions. As for the maintenance issue, I used to do budget. I know a lot about this issue. And frankly we used to blame the State because the bond money was in one pot over here and the E and G money was in another pot over here and if the legislature or the committees or whoever are finding that they need to get those two things together a little bit, I can only applaud. Just recently I had occasion to go to an office and ask if we were having maintenance problems to the point that we couldn't get the walk track where I walk at 6:30 every morning swept every now and then. It is a difficult issue. It is a very difficult issue and I have known it for a number of years. As for the hour cap for students, I have listened all day and the biggest thing I have learned is that we are now to consider the legislature, the General Assembly, as a subsidizer of students. I frankly have to get my mind around that a little bit. It took me awhile to get used to being a State agency. And then when I began to get comfortable with that then I had to switch to a University. I consider Lander a very very very vital regional resource in this State and we made the case when you go to State support that we had earned it in the work we did in nursing and in education. I have not seen a reason to retreat from that position. If you ... if you really wish to micro‑manage to the point that someone has to keep you informed as to how many hours the State has been involved for which student, then more power to you, if that's what you want to do. We have to change, I think, the way we do business at a small regional university when we realize that the kid is going to come with the money in his hand. And I don't think we have adjusted to that reality yet even insofar as it is now a reality. As for the third question on the Palmetto Fellows, if we are recognizing achievement of students, I absolutely believe it should stay with the student. My ... I have three children. My two older children are both State schools, Lander and the College of Charleston and I am thrilled with the education that the both of them got. My third child went to college in Colorado and I'm wondering if I had applied for that subsidy that did not get spent on him, maybe you could reimburse me for the cost of that school.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: We do that. If they go out of state and they're majoring in something that we don't offer in South Carolina.

MS. BOWEN: Unfortunately, you don't do that when they go to Colorado.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: We have agreements where if they ...

MS. BOWEN: I tried.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... take something that's not offered. What do you mean you tried? 

MS. BOWEN: I tried.

SENATOR WILSON: Such as veterinarian.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Right, and then there is some of the fine arts too.

MS. BOWEN: He took geological engineering. Anyway those are my answers. If you have any questions I would be happy to hear them. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Are there any questions? 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I mean, I think you addressed ...

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Covered it pretty well. 

SENATOR WILSON: I want to thank ...

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Representative Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON: ... Representative Gamble again. In regards to the 140 hours, a key point on this is again encouraging a four year graduation rate. That's ... and one way to do it is ...

MS. BOWEN: We worry about that all the time and we do retention studies and we do all sorts of schemes to try to get the student to stay. But we also have Piedmont Tech in Greenwood and we are used to ... it is nothing to us to see students drop in and drop out of State schools. It is very frustrating.

SENATOR WILSON: And ...

MS. BOWEN: And it's also a fact of life.

SENATOR WILSON: And with your dedication and background at Lander, thank you, very much. Because what I see is that we need the people who are in the academic environment to encourage students to graduate in four years courses that they fill up so quickly that the person can't take them and there are all kind of administrative and procedural process problems that could be addressed if all of us are working together to try to come up with a four year experience for those who can.

MS. BOWEN: I certainly agree with that.

SENATOR WILSON: And then apparently Lander and I know this has a student population which is older than the general population but it ... so there can be variances. And then I also appreciate you have an open enrollment program. There are a number of fine students from our community who are there now who wouldn't have the opportunity if it hadn't been for such a fine institution. And they are doing very well.

MS. BOWEN: Yes.

SENATOR WILSON: Thank you.

MS. BOWEN: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, Ms. Bowen. 

MS. BOWEN: You're welcome.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: What's the pleasure of the committee on ...

SENATOR WILSON: All favorable.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: ... Lander University?

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: All in favor signify by saying I.    (ALL IN FAVOR)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: All of those that have been screened here today have been qualified. Thank you. Winthrop University, at‑large two seats. Five people here for two seats and we'll hear from Mr. Hugh Hadsock, Jr. from West Columbia. 

HUGH HADSOCK, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that the committee needs to be known? 

MR. HADSOCK: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: No. Considering your present occupation, would anything prevent you from serving on a regular basis?

MR. HADSOCK: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interest professionally or personally that would constitute a conflict of interest?

MR. HADSOCK: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Are you now appointed or elected to any position that would cause dual office holding?

MR. HADSOCK: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may proceed.

MR. HADSOCK: Thank you. My name is Hugh Hadsock. I'm a recent graduate of Winthrop College in 1987. I graduated with two degrees but I did it in four years, political science and communications. It was one of those types of situations where you can combine the two for a few more hours of study that I was able to get both majors done. While I was at Winthrop, I was very active. Upon arriving at Winthrop, I was student freshman class president. I was also one of the senators for three out of the four years I was there. I was very involved in the Bible United Nations program we had there and won an award of excellence through that. Also was one of the two students selected when we were going through the screening process of trying to acquire a new University president, at the time we were looking for and I was on the committee that selected Martha Kime Piper. Since then I've been ... I've moved around through the State. I had to live in Myrtle Beach for numerous years. Traveled around outside the State and came back. Recently saw when the article came out in the paper the opportunity to serve Winthrop as I once served it before. Just looking for the opportunity to do the things like it gave me the opportunity while I was at school and I'd like to carry on the tradition of ... that started while I was there and continue to do now. Just recently saw where Winthrop College was just recognized one of the top ten small universities in the regional area and I would just like to be a part of the program to try to make that better and move up higher in the rankings. To address the questions that have been presented from all the other candidates here today; on the first one as far as limiting the hours, I do agree what that in the concept as long as we get the stipulations and lay out the programs in each major, which degrees that need to be set aside to require more time. But there does need to be a time line set on this for hours but I think the schools have to do a better job of presenting this information to the students. As far as the counselors, I know they're all pushed for time but if they're aware that the money stops after such and such a time when they come in as a freshman, maybe that little bell will go off instead of party the whole time their freshman year instead of taking five years. As far as the Palmetto Fellows scholarship program, I do agree that the students should be able to use this to go anywhere that they intend to go strictly for the fact that it's awarded to the students. And I think if we can keep the top quality of people in the State as we're getting new economic growth in the State they will be able to fill those positions of need. As far as the maintenance, the building and new construction, I feel like there's like a three list program on that. There's a need, a need to maintain what you've got. There's a need to keep abreast of all the other universities and colleges as far as staying competitive and then there is a wish list, you know. The first two need to be addressed. Everybody has a wish. Everybody likes things new. If there was a surplus in money that would be great. Get something extra. But the first needs you have to maintain. I think it's a delicate balance between new and old to maintain your competitive edge.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions.

SENATOR WILSON: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON: I'd like to note that in the legislative ... in the personnel data questionnaire that you provided that you indicate that you are a member of the Cayce West Columbia Jaycees. It really needs to show that he's been a long time president. He truly is an institution in our community, working harder for a better community and we appreciate it very much.

MR. HADSOCK: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, Mr. Hadsock. Next is Sandra Nelson of Lancaster.

SANDRA NELSON, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that this committee needs to know about?

MS. NELSON: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation, is there anything that would prevent you from serving on the Board on a regular basis?

MS. NELSON: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any conflict personally or professionally that would cause a conflict of interest in serving on the Winthrop Board?

MS. NELSON: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other elected office that would cause you to be a dual office holder?

MS. NELSON: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may proceed with your statement.

MS. NELSON: My testimony statement, of course, is before you and to summarize that. I feel very very honored that I ... a personal friend of mine has requested that I put in my name for serving on the Board of Trustees for Winthrop. I have not had that past experience. But I would look at it as a definite honor and would certainly try to support it in as many ways as humanly possible based on my past education and experience. I do see Winthrop University in its regional as well as its State's excellence in a number of areas. One of those would be teacher education. Secondly, in research of various sorts. And thirdly, in its service mode to the community. I see that when those things are coupled we do indeed provide something I refer to as learning for that student who will become the citizen of the area and indeed in larger circles. It is in that light that I thank you for inviting me to this. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any ...

MS. NELSON: Excuse me.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Go ahead.

MS. NELSON: Okay. I'm assuming that I also will be addressing the three questions and I … 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: I feel like Ms. Gamble may ask you.

MS. NELSON: I suspect those who follow will also have the same questions. I find those of interest and not directly ... I, of course, have children ... have three children who have done the private as well as public education. And both of those have their merits in their own ways. In the Palmetto Fellowship, the notion of the choice for the student indeed may have precedence but it should follow previous statute however that is delineated. If in fact, one wishes to readdress it or revisit it in some way, I think that that is absolutely fine. And it should be revisited and absolutely clarified as to its intent and then its implementation and its evaluation then will follow that it will become more of what is wanted or needed. As far as maintenance of buildings and capital expenditure, well, I like the analogy of the pencil and the pen. That, I felt was probably it. One would have to know if indeed the expenditures are reflective of the current need or the current value or the length of time that something may actually be in use. If it will ... if you spend ... it's like having a boat where I'm sure that you already know that's like throwing money into a hole, it probably does not make sense to just keep spending money on a building which one can never resuscitate. So, for that reason many people move to just putting up a new building. Which in fact may be the most cost effective in the long run. So, cost analysis I would simply think would be in line on that. And the question referenced to the hours ... the number of hours that a student should do within a certain length of time I suspect and I feel that the funding should match the hours and then possibly use some sort of a graduated scaling back until it zeros out and that gives the student who has the various reasons why they cannot "do the program" in four years, that allows them to have the flexibility which they might need in order to succeed also. So, it can be addressed with paramiterizing in a slightly larger broader base of support. Those would be my generalized feelings towards those questions. I would like to, of course, entertain any others that anyone would like me to address.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? I'd like to ask one.

MS. NELSON: Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: I should have of Mr. Hadsock also. But how do you feel about the present Board at Winthrop giving additional tuition discounts to attract north and south ... North Carolina and out of state students proposed by the president of Winthrop?

MS. NELSON: I personally would support it based on one thing, that we are seen in a regional light as opposed to a site specific spot. Winthrop, as you know, is in extreme close proximity to the Charlotte, North Carolina area. In fact, we see ourselves as part of the Charlotte, North Carolina community. So, indeed I would support that. I think that the notion ... Winthrop, one of its strongest points is indeed diversity and service to the community. It has over 100 student service oriented groups and those are pluses. Eventually those override the minutia of the everyday life of the campus and the university.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, very much.

MS. NELSON: You're very welcome, Mr. Chairman and Senators as well as Representatives.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Okay. Next we have Glenda P. Owens, from Charleston.

GLENDA P. OWENS, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any health related problems that the committee needs to know about that will prevent you from serving in the full capacity?

MS. OWENS: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Considering your present occupation and other activities, would it prevent you from serving on a regular basis? 

MS. OWENS: No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any interests either professionally or personally that would constitute a conflict of interest?

MS. OWENS: I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you now hold any other elected office or appointed that would constitute dual office holding?

MS. OWENS: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may proceed with your statement.

MS. OWENS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. I'm a graduate of Winthrop University class of '59. Have maintained contact and involvement with the University since then. Have served the past eight years on the executive board of the Winthrop Alumni Association. The last two years as the president. Also served four years on the Winthrop Foundation Board and was a member of the Steering Committee of the Capital Campaign. I would consider it an honor to be able to serve Winthrop in a continuing basis. I feel that my years on the Board have given me some good background preparation because I have been aware of the issues that the campus has faced for the past few years which have been some of the same issues that all the higher education has faced. I would consider it a big responsibility to help Winthrop maintain its quality and its reputation and I would consider it a challenge, and I think the challenge in this day and time would be to engage the commitment of everyone who has a stake in higher education, the legislature, the business community, the parents, students and the faculty engaged all of their commitment to maintaining a quality program of higher education in this State without sacrificing anything. We need to maintain our quality of education that is characterized by quality and broad accessibility. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Are there any questions from the committee members?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I've just got the same. 

MS. OWENS: The same three. Okay. I'll address deferred maintenance first. Most of Winthrop's dollars that they're requesting, I think, are going to deferred maintenance. Winthrop is proud of its architecture on its campus and has chosen to attempt to preserve its older buildings rather than to tear them down and build new ones. In fact the Life Sciences building which has just opened this fall, is the first new ... totally new academic structure that was erected on the campus since 1962. So, those deferred maintenance dollars are what are really needed at Winthrop. As for the Palmetto Scholars. I hadn't given this much thought until this morning and at this point it's hard to say something that hasn't already been said. But the first ... my first thought was that this is State money that should go to State supported schools. But I think this will require a lot of time and energy as we have already spent on it this morning to determine what would be the appropriate and best method to handle this. I think that I see the advantage of the giving it to good students to keeping them in the State. But this is something which I would have to devote some more time and energy into to come up with an answer. As far as limiting the hours for a course of study, it would definitely have to be hours and not years. I think the traditional four year degree as we've known it is almost a thing of the past. When I went to school you entered with a class. I entered with the class of '59 and I expected to graduate with the class of '59. You bonded with these people and you really wanted to stay with them, if you were left out, you didn't graduate with your class. Now, there's no bonding of the freshman class when they go in. They're not put in all freshmen dorms any more. They're scattered all around so you don't ... you don't identify with a class any more it seems in the colleges and universities. You identify with a fraternity or a sorority or some of the organizations. So, nobody feels the need to finish this up in four years. As far as the hours go, I think that again the new society that we're living in, the new technology is going to change the face of higher ed. I think the system of higher education in this century is going to be something different from the system that evolved after World War II. Things are more specialized. More requirements are there for graduates. We expect them to graduate with not only a broad liberal arts degree to prepare them for life but we also expect them to be computer literate and knowledgeable about all the new technology. So, I think that there are more requirements and I think that society and the marketplace might somewhat dictate to the universities and colleges what course of study they might expect their graduates to emerge with.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? None? 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: No, but I would make one comment; you all are requesting one new building which is a new library for $20,000,000.00 but all the others are renovations and even with that you obviously are going to replace a lot. In other words, you're taking one library out of your system. It appears that way because you got a high rating on it. That's what I'm ...

MS. OWENS: I'm not sure. I was under the impression that it was a renovation.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: The library is down for a new building. Everything else is down for renovations.

MS. OWENS: Okay.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Peabody Health and P.E. is doing some waterproofing and roof repair on the Rutledge Building. Fourteen campus buildings have got to have windows replaced and then the Sims Science Buildings have got to have renovations done. So, you all ... I mean, all of your projects did get very high ratings, which means they are addressing both building needs as well as renovation or maintenance needs. You mentioned about being on the Foundation, the Winthrop Foundation.

MS. OWENS: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Was you all's primary purpose raising money for ...

MS. OWENS: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... scholarships?

MS. OWENS: That's ... maintaining the financial side of Winthrop, raising money and Winthrop has just launched a capital campaign. The first capital campaign ever to bring in some dollars for scholarships and faculty enrichment, technology improvements. So, that is underway for the first time. So, that was my involvement with the Foundation Board. I was on that Board by virtue of being President of the Alumni Association and incoming president.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: When were you President of the Alumni Association?

MS. OWENS: My term ended in June, this past June. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, Ms. Owens.

MS. OWENS: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: The next is Kay Wright Rush of Lexington.

SENATOR WILSON: I don't think she is here. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I think she thought she was down for next time, next Monday. At least I was told that.

SENATOR WILSON: I was too.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Well, what we'll do is notify her. 

SENATOR WILSON: Do whatever it would take to defer her to the next time.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Yes, because I was told that she was coming on the 28th.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: As to contacting her. All in favor say I.    (ALL IN FAVOR)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Now, we'll get her in the next. Next is Mr. Harold P. Tuttle, Jr. of Rock Hill. 

MR. TUTTLE: Yes, sir. Last and hopefully not least.

HAROLD P. TUTTLE, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Are there any health related reasons that this committee needs to be made aware of?

MR. TUTTLE: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you personally present any occupation or activity that would prevent you from serving on a regular basis?

MR. TUTTLE: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you have any professional or personal interest that would cause a conflict of interest?

MR. TUTTLE: No, sir. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Do you hold any other public or elected office at this time that would constitute dual office holing?

MR. TUTTLE: I do have an appointment to the Airport Commission, which is a public office. But it's appointed by the City of Rock Hill and the County Council in York County. But we are an advisory body and are not sworn in nor are we elected by the public at large.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, it does not require an oath?

MR. TUTTLE: No, ma'am.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: That's my understanding is that's the test. That if it does not require an oath then you're not holding two offices. 

MR. TUTTLE: Well, I've been on the Winthrop Board for six years and each year I report that in my ethics statement and so far no conflict has surfaced, so I'm assuming that's not a problem. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Go ahead, sir.

MR. TUTTLE: As I just mentioned, I have had the privilege of serving on the Winthrop Board of Trustees for six years now. I guess the terms are different from institution to institution. Ours is six years. And I would very much like to be allowed to continue in that roll. Currently I serve as the Vice Chairman of that Board and also the Chairman of the Finance Committee. I came to the Board initially because I have a very sincere interest in seeing Winthrop thrive in the upper part of the State and in the State at large for that matter. I'm very aware of the central role that it plays in the State's higher education system. I served as the Vice President of Finance at Winthrop for five years back in the earlier eighties. So, I'm familiar with its operation from that standpoint. I was also a faculty member there in the business school for a year prior to moving into the private sector. We just finished a retreat, the Board of Trustees did, yesterday. This will be my fourth day on Board business, I guess you might say; Friday and Saturday, Sunday and now Monday. And I will share with you and I will go ahead and address a couple of the questions that have been raised thus far. A good bit of that time over the weekend we spent dealing with physical facility issues, in fact, this happened to be the focus of the majority of our conversation at this particular retreat. Each year we choose different subject areas. But that one ... this one has to do with some physical facilities. And with regard to the library, we have struggled with the facility that we have now because of some structural problems that it has, trying ... and a good bit of our discussion had to do with whether we renovate that facility, which is going to cost $22,000,000.00 or we replace it which is going to cost $27,000,000.00. Obviously, there are many issues left to be dealt with as it relates to the design and ultimate cost of those alternatives. But quite honestly we see that as a probably seven to ten year program of work as it relates to where do we go from here with our immediate needs. Our more immediate needs do address renovation needs and in that respect we are the oldest campus in the State system. Over 60 percent of our facilities were built before 1940. And when I say the oldest campus, I mean we have a larger percentage of our facilities that are older facilities than even USC or Clemson for that matter. So, in that regard we have a challenge every year to try and deal with deferred maintenance issues that we have to deal with and I think we've done that responsibly in that in the last ten years 75 percent of the monies appropriated by the State have been dedicated to renovating facilities as opposed to building new facilities. And I think that speaks to a balance which is appropriate in light of the importance of maintaining what is already there, not to mention the new needs which might require new facilities. With regard to the question about credit hours, I have no problem with limiting funding based on what a program's requirements might be. I would hope that we wouldn't necessarily choose a specific number but rather maybe we could just define it as whatever the program requirements are. We have music majors who need one hundred and forty some odd hours to finish their degrees and we have liberal arts majors who may only require 120 hours. So, the balance there should be based on what the program requirements are that a particular might need to complete. The third issue had to do with the Palmetto Fellows programs and in thinking about it as I've heard the discussion today, I think I have to come down on the side of supporting the State education process, the public education process, with the idea that I am familiar through some of my fellow board members who also serve on foundations and some of the private schools that they have substantial resources in the way of endowments which we simply don't have. And as Glenda pointed out a moment ago, we are working on that. We are in the midst of our first capital campaign. We're about halfway through that. And out of the $26,000,000.00 goal that we have we're about $19,000.000.00 there and we're very pleased with how well that's going. And that is primarily to raise money for scholarships. We know we have to be more competitive because right now we do compete with the students with other schools like Furman and Wofford for the students that are choosing to go to some of those private schools and to give them the same benefit, I think, that the Palmetto Fellows program does not allow us to compete as effectively as we might if we were to have that advantage. So, as a Trustee I'm suggesting, of a State Institution, I still think it's probably in the institution's best interest to seek that benefit that we might have. I also am the father of one child who's already graduated but another entering freshman in a State supported school this coming fall and we struggled with this private public issue at my house and he weighed the various places he was going to consider, chose the public institution partly because of the scholarship opportunity but primarily because that was where he could get the education he wanted for the kind of course program that he wanted to pursue. So, I won't say that the scholarship issue entered into that decision but it very well might have if it had been available on both sides. 

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions?

MR. TUTTLE: I'll be happy to answer any other questions.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: No, but and we've talked about this so much and everybody is getting restless. But as I've said earlier, I guess my feelings are just so strong that that money should follow the student. Because here again Winthrop is fixing to get short changed on the Teacher Fellows program, because you all did not get chosen as a site for Teacher Fellows. 

MR. TUTTLE: That ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: If we had that money following the student, you all would be getting some of those Teacher Fellows. There's no doubt in my mind you'd be having some of the best and brightest. But when you think about it now the 200 top students coming out of high school who are the best and brightest going into the teacher education profession are because of money going to be tracked into other schools. So, you see. Now, Winthrop is on sort of on the receiving end of what some of the private colleges have been on ... 

MR. TUTTLE: I understand.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: ... the receiving end. That's why I just think it's the whole purpose of it is to reward these students who are our best and brightest, we shouldn't be tracking them into a certain college. We shouldn't say, well, you know, you're the best and brightest but we're only willing to recognize you as the best and brightest if you go to this one school and when you think about it as to who you're education students are going to be you know you're not going to have one of the 200 best and brightest in South Carolina.

MR. TUTTLE: You're right. I have no idea why we're not on that list. I learned that yesterday as a matter of fact.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: I mean, you're starting off knowing that the best students that you're going to have in education with your freshman class next year is number 201. The best you can possibly have and so that's another reason like I said that, I think that money really needs to follow the student because you all have a great education program at Winthrop. But you're not going to have any of these students coming to Winthrop.

SENATOR WILSON: And you create these different pools of students. You've got a pool of students that are going to public school. A pool to private school and 82 percent of them go to the public institutions and 18 to public but yet it may be an equal number. And you can be caught in a crack that you're a very qualified student and because you checked the wrong block you don't get selected. So, that's again a point that I'm so happy that Representative Gamble has made about that these programs would hopefully would be for the students and for the betterment of South Carolina by way of keeping good qualified students in South Carolina rather than institutions fighting over the students and then the students get lost in the crack and off to Duke they are and we lose them. They don't come back.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And my worst fear with this whole Teacher Fellows program is ... Anderson is on the list, Newberry is on the list. I'm trying to think who the other private schools are that are on the list and this is in no way a reflection that I think they don't have a good teacher education program because as far as I'm concerned, every college in this State does a good job. But because those are private institutions and they are very expensive, $6,000.00 will only partially pay for their year of tuition. $6,000.00 will pay for your tuition at Winthrop and most probably books as well.

MR. TUTTLE: You're correct. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: But with these students because the slots are allocated at those colleges ... well, you know, if the public slots get chosen first and they don't have the money to supplement, to make up to the 15,000 or whatever it costs to go to one of private schools, we may in fact lose them and they might not go into the teaching profession anywhere.

MR. TUTTLE: I understand.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: And that's why I just think this could be so much simpler if we just, you know, awarded the student and then told the student ...

MR. TUTTLE: Just like a voucher that you take where you want to go is what you're suggesting. 

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Well, it's a scholarship. I don't want to call it a voucher. It's a scholarship that rewards them for their hard work and they have to have certain criteria met in order to be able to qualify for these programs. And they win the scholarship and they go to one of our teacher ... they have to go to a college with a teacher education program obviously. And they have to teach in our state for so many years following that. So, it's an investment that the State has made because we want the best and brightest people teaching school in South Carolina. But as we think about tracking keep in mind that, I mean, Winthrop is losing on one of our tracking programs.

MR. TUTTLE: I understand that.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: So, tracking is not ... not good unless you're the one that's winning all the time.

MR. TUTTLE: I realize that. That's a very good point.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Any other questions? Thank you, Mr. Tuttle.

MR. TUTTLE: Yes, sir. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: What is the pleasure of the committee?

SENATOR WILSON: We are favorable of those who are here with the deferral for Ms. Rush.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: All in favor signify by saying Aye.    (ALL IN FAVOR)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Okay. Thank you. I appreciate all of you committee members staying. 

  (There being no further questions, the screening concluded at 2:50 p.m.)
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Senator Olin Phillips, Chairman

Senator Warren K. Giese

Senator Addison "Joe" G. Wilson

Representative Curtis Inabinett

Representative Lanny Littlejohn

Representative Margaret Gamble

ALSO PRESENT:

Sophia Floyd - Assistant to the Committee

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Call to order the screening committee. Screening of college board candidates.  First order of business, I want to welcome everyone here.  Introduce the committee, to my far left Representative Margaret Gamble from Lexington; Representative Lanny Littlejohn from Spartanburg; Representative Curtis Inabinett from Charleston, Ravenel, South Carolina; and Senator Warren Giese from ...

SENATOR GIESE:  Richland.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  And I'm Olin Phillips from Cherokee the Chairman.  Sophia Floyd, is our assistant here this morning.  And I gather you're from the Creel Agency?

COURT REPORTER:  Sonya.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  What?

MS. FLOYD:  Sonya.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Sonya, from the Creel Agency for doing the court reporting.  First of all, I'd like to take just a minute here in silent prayer for one of the South Carolina State Trustees who was supposed to be screening here this morning, Mr. Salters from South Carolina State University Board of Trustees, who passed away Thursday morning.  And also Donna Tinsley whose husband Allan Tinsley, so you remember Donna, she's helped the committee when it first started when Representative Stoddard was chairman.  And Donna is the Research and Administrative Director for the Education and Public Works Committee.  Her husband Allan Tinsley was found dead in his bed at Myrtle Beach Friday morning prior to a meeting that he was to address and didn't show up.  So if we could take just a moment of silent prayer in memory of both of those, I would appreciate it.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you very much.  Again, I welcome all of you here.  Let me tell you about the parking.  They are ticketing today around the State House so most of you probably got a two hour parking meter if you could and you probably put all you can in it, but if you need to go down and put some more money in the meters at a certain time, if we call your name we'll wait until you get back.  We won't rule you out because you're not here for that, because I know you don't want to get a parking ticket.  Last week it was a holiday and we thought they wouldn't ticket cars but they were ticketing them as fast as they could last week, they were like bees going in a honey hive.  But, I just want to remind you of that.  If you need to go just kind of give us a little shake and we'll know you've gone out.  We had, if you don't mind, I'd like to take you out of order.  We had the Lander University, if he's here now, who couldn't make it last week but we extended him the courtesy of being here today.  And the 4th District, Seat 8, Tyrone Gilmore from Spartanburg.  Is Tyrone here?  If you could come forward and let us go ahead and screen you.  I think there's one more and we can get that out of the way.

MR. GILMORE:  Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, sir.  Would you please raise your right hand.

C. TYRONE GILMORE, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. GILMORE:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. GILMORE:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. GILMORE:  No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. GILMORE:  No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, sir, you may present your statement, sir.

MR. GILMORE:  I've been a member of the Lander University Board of Trustees for two terms, to constitute eight years, and over those eight years serving with the Board members that we have there and are fortunate enough to have thanks to your committee and others, we've been very successful at helping our school grow.  The facilities are moving up to par in a modern era.  Academic needs are being met through students.  It's a small college.  There is a need in my opinion for small, medium size and large university institutions in higher education.  Each serve their individual purposes.  As we are aware, there are students who function much better in a smaller environment.  We have that in South Carolina, I am pleased.  There are those who function better in a larger environment.  Lander University offers a small environment for the child who can be most successful in that supportive environment.  And I think we've been extremely successful.  We've been able to add new programs there to meet the new needs of students as it relates to the service of South Carolina.  And now one of our goals is to try to keep as many of our best and brightest students within the State of South Carolina.  I think we're beginning to make end roads in that area, not where we want to be but at least we're working on it.  So I wish to continue to serve in that particular environment and I ask you to please give me that opportunity.  And if you have any questions of me, I'll be more than happy to answer them.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, Tyrone.  Any questions from any member of the committee?  None?  Thank you, sir.

MR. GILMORE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  And let me make this statement.  Since we've screened you out here today, that doesn't mean you can go out and solicit votes.  We are going to issue a report in the Journal as quick as possible in the next couple of weeks after we get all the transcription of the tapes and everything done.  After that date, and that will be in the House and Senate Journals, you will, on 11:00 the day after the screening report is released, you may solicit votes at that time.  I urge you not to try to do that until it is finalized in the Journal.  And every committee member and every House member and Senator will know your credentials.  And at 11:00 the day after that is reported now that's when you'll be able to solicit votes.  We've set the election for April the 12th.  You might mark that on your calendar.  12:00 April the 12th is the Joint Assembly date for the election unless something happens and that we've already introduced a resolution to tomorrow setting that date.  And I urge you again, don't try to solicit and don't go out and ask for commitments until everybody has an opportunity to do the same thing at the same day at the same hour.  We appreciate that.  Also, what is the favor of the committee on Tyrone Gilmore?

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Move to approve.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All in favor, aye?


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Gilmore.

MR. GILMORE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You're welcome, sir.

MR. GILMORE:  And I hope that we're free to go?  I want to ask if--

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You're welcome to go.

MR. GILMORE:  Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  The next that we issued a delay on Francis Marion 1st district, Seat 2, Melissa Johnson Emery, Myrtle Beach?

MS. EMERY:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may go up.  Please raise your right hand.

MELISSA JOHNSON EMERY, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MS. EMERY:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MS. EMERY:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MS. EMERY:  No, sir, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MS. EMERY:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may go ahead with your statement.

MS. EMERY:  Well, at this time I am petitioning to run to be re-elected to the office that I am currently holding.  I filled, in 1998, I filled a position that was left vacant by the Representative from my district.  I have certainly enjoyed serving and through the time that I have been there we have certainly seen a lot of change at Francis Marion.  A lot of changes that I am quite proud of.  I'm a graduate of Francis Marion being from Dillon County and know what service this school does for the area.  I am very proud of what's going on out there and I am very happy to be a part of it.  And I wish only to be allowed to continue my service to Francis Marion and give back to Francis Marion what it gave to me which was valuable to me in my life.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Are there any questions from any of the committee members? No? What's the pleasure of the committee?

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN: Move to approve.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT: Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All in favor signify by saying aye?

(All in favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: Thank you, Ms. Emery.

MS. EMERY: Thank you. May I be excused at this time, sir?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: You may well do that.

SENATOR GIESE:  Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes.

SENATOR GIESE:  She wins the title of being in this room less than anybody in history.

MS. EMERY:  And I apologize, coming from Horry County there's more road construction than I thought.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  College of Charleston, 4th District, Seat 8, Emil Spieth.

MR. SPIETH:  Emil Spieth.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, okay.  Spartanburg.

MR. SPIETH:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Raise your right hand.

EMIL E. SPIETH, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. SPIETH:  No, sir, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. SPIETH:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. SPIETH:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. SPIETH:  No, sir, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may go ahead with your statement, sir.

MR. SPIETH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee.  And let me thank you again for allowing me to come a week late.  Unfortunately, I had to be out of the state this past Monday.  I'm the new applicant for a board membership and I think I need to explain why I think I deserve to be on the Board of the College of Charleston.  I believe I have experience and also the wisdom gained over the years which would be useful to the educational process of the college.  I've been associated myself in and around education all of my life.  I was the plant manager for a Hertz Company plant in Spartanburg.  During that time, I was involved in a number of business and educational initiative.  For eight years, from 1981 to 1989, I served on Spartanburg School District Number Seven Board of Trustees.  And during that period of time for the first time Spartanburg High School was recognized as a blue ribbon school which in the meantime they've repeated on almost every year when that award was given.  Also during that time we had a quite significant building program, not quite as ambitious as the one which is underway right now but I thought I played some part in making Spartanburg County School District Number Seven what I would like to think as a premier school district in this state.  And of course my predecessor on this podium, two persons, Tyrone Gilmore is now the superintendent there.  In addition, I'm married to a Spartanburg High School calculus teacher, so again continue to be involved with the educational process from that direction.  And I have four children, two of whom attend the schools in this state, others decided to go out of the state.  Why the College of Charleston, I've been in and around the City of Charleston since 1958.  And lived for a period of time in close proximity of the college.  Had a number of friends and people that I've worked with that attended the college.  One of my sons attended the College of Charleston for two years and two of my other children attended Governors School at the College of Charleston.  So I have a long and fond relationship from in the school, had somewhere around 300 students to today when it's I think close to 10,000 students.  So I hope you will consider me as a candidate for the Seat number eight of the Board of the College of Charleston.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Any question of any of the committee members?  You did a good job.  What's the pleasure of the committee on Mr. Spieth?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Move to approve.

SENATOR GIESE:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS: All in favor signify by saying aye?

(All in favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.

MR. SPIETH:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Well, if we keep going like this we'll be out of here for the two hour parking.  But I believe we'll get bogged down in a minute.  We're going to the Citadel.  We have two seats, both of them At-Large.  Oh, yes, I'm sorry.  Winthrop College.  We had one At-Large seat with Winthrop.  Ms. Kay Wright Rush.  Is she here?  Okay, Ms. Rush, thank you.  Please raise your right hand.

KAY WRIGHT RUSH, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Now, let's ask you a few questions here.  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MS. RUSH:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MS. RUSH:  Yes, sir.  I had to get permission from my -- according to our district policy, to even get to this point and it was approved.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MS. RUSH:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MS. RUSH:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may present your statement.

MS. RUSH:  Okay, just a little bit about my background and I know we submitted information at the beginning.  I'm one of those people that said if I ever get out of high school I will never set foot back in school again.  I want to do something so I don't want to have to get up early and go out everyday so that was many years ago and I'm still in education.  And I had no intention of going into higher education.  My senior year I had an uncle who passed away, left enough money for me to go to Winthrop University.  At that time it was Winthrop College.  So if I forget and call it Winthrop College, please forgive me.  I was the youngest of 13 children, grew up in Lancaster County.  And I did go to Winthrop.  And I guess you might say I got turned-on to education.  This is my 33rd year in education after graduating from Winthrop in 1967.  I'm currently the Director of Special Services in Lexington School District One.  In my professional organization the Council for Exceptional Children, I have participated at local, state and currently the international level.  I'm the Chairman of the Finance and Operations Committee for that organization.  I feel that that has given me also some skills to be able to work in the capacity of working with people and moving an organization forward.  I looked at the mission statement for Winthrop University and it was interesting that that's the mission statement is also what I perceive and feel like I need to try to do in helping Winthrop move forward.  In the field of education we have a -- we're getting into a dire straits with teacher shortage and I know that was Winthrop's beginning was teacher education college.  They have gone out so much in doing so much for this state and the nation but we need to bring some diversity as far as students who are going into the teaching field.  We need to encourage teachers, quality students, to come into Winthrop to get out into the field of education.  And also for Winthrop to continue on the track of technology because we've got to have it in every field not just education.  So that's one of the things, my personal loyalty to Winthrop, I go back every time my class goes back for our reunions.  It's fun to meet with the old folks, and I am one of them now.  So that is one of the reasons that I'm getting ready to retire.  I feel like I have a lot that I can offer Winthrop and they certainly offered me a lot.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, ma'am.  Are there any committee members got any questions?  Representative Littlejohn.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

How do you feel about the North Carolina student coming in and displacing a South Carolina student?

MS. RUSH:  I don't like it.  Because I feel like we're -- that's just my opinion because we've got -- we need to look after our own first of all, and if we've got a teacher from South Carolina or a student teacher or any position that wants to stay in state to get their education, I think we need to do everything we can to encourage that.  And getting breaks just because they're in North Carolina, I'm not -- I think we need to give breaks to our own, if we have breaks to give.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Mr. Inabinett.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Thank you.  One question.  You mentioned diversity and the need for teachers, what are or what is the college presently doing to recruit individuals hopefully that will go into the teaching profession?

MS. RUSH:  I don't know specifically as far as the things they're doing.  But in reading the materials that I get from Winthrop as an alumni, they're trying to encourage those students.  And I think the way they state it is, the under represented student on campus and they're trying to encourage those students to come in.  I know, you know, they, like most of institutions, have scholarships.  And I know Winthrop is doing a big job in this state as far as once we get students in or teachers in in trying to keep teachers in the field because of mentoring programs with our -- they call it the lift program that a lot of the districts do.  Winthrop's been very supportive of that through their educational department.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  What's the pleasure of the committee on Ms. Rush?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Move to approve.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  And we have heard the motion and the second.  All in favor please signify by saying aye?


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, ma'am.  Now, we'll go to the Citadel.  There's two seats at-Large and we have six candidates.  And our first candidate will be Arthur H. Baiden, III from Greenville.  Mr. Baiden.

MR. BAIDEN:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Please raise your right hand.

ARTHUR H. BAIDEN, III, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Baiden, do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. BAIDEN:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. BAIDEN:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. BAIDEN:  No, sir, not at all.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. BAIDEN:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  You may go ahead with your statement.

MR. BAIDEN:  Mr. Chairman, and ladies and gentlemen, thank you for the opportunity to present myself as a candidate of one of the At-Large seats at the Citadel.  The Citadel, like other colleges and universities in South Carolina, is primarily an academic institution with the mission of educating our young men and women.  However, in order to do so, particularly in today's time with limited dollars available for education, these colleges and universities must be run like a business:  budgets must be established; operating expenses monitored; sources of income identified and maximized and sound financial practices followed to ensure that that institution provides the best possible conditions for academic achievement at the most efficient cost.  But unlike the other universities and colleges in the state the Citadel is unique in that it is primarily a military institution at the undergraduate level.  That creates unique management challenges and leadership challenges that the trustees at the other colleges and universities in the state are not faced with.  I am a native South Carolinian.  Born in Laurens.  Graduated from Myrtle Beach High School and moved to Greenville in 1973 and have been a resident there ever since.  After I left the Citadel, I entered active duty in the military and was in the Army for 11 years.  Left active duty and moved to Greenville and joined Potter Shackleford Construction Company as a Project Manager, and I have been with that company ever since.  I am currently serving as the president of the company.  And I'm one of the principle stockholders.  At the same time, however, when I left active duty I accepted a commission in the Army Reserves and continued my military service, recently retiring with 35 years commission service, retiring as a major general in the Army Reserve.  I was commander of the reserves in North and South Carolina during Desert Storm, Desert Shield, and my last assignment I was the deputy commanding general of the Army reserve command in Atlanta, and also the readiness command out here at Fort Jackson.  With that dual background and 35 years of experience in the military and over 26 years of experience in business in South Carolina, I believe that I have the qualifications necessary to make a contribution to the Citadel and give back to that school in some small measure all that its done for me.  My father is a graduate.  I am a graduate.  My son is a graduate.  And that college has given so much to us that I hope I will have the opportunity to give a little bit back in return.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Any committee members have any questions?  Representative Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Baiden, I have one question just out of pure and tee interest.  I'm curious to know, were those underground rooms were around when you were at the Citadel?

MR. BAIDEN:  Can I take the fifth?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  No, that wasn't ...

MR. BAIDEN:  Yes, they were.  That was the biggest surprise that I, when I first saw it in the paper, that they discovered the room.  Emery Mace was there just a year after I was and I would imagine that Emery was quite aware of the rooms also, so it wasn't that much of a surprise to find that they had, quote "discovered the rooms under the barracks".

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  So I guess the biggest story is what was going on in the rooms?

MR. BAIDEN:  Yes, ma'am.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Move to approve.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  No other questions, the committee has made a motion to approve.  If you will, we'll hold that to the end if you don't mind, unless you find one out of order somewhere.  Okay?

MR. BAIDEN:  Okay.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you and we'll let you know on that.

MR. BAIDEN:  Thank you, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  By the way, I might add that one of the criteria for being a member on the Board of Trustees at the Citadel you have to be an alumni of the Citadel.  And we had some people who wanted to qualify to run on the Citadel board but they were not Citadel graduates so the legislation specifically says you must be a Citadel grad before you become a candidate.  And certainly we had to turn those people down.  But I want to tell other people in the committee all of you are Citadel graduates.  Okay, next is Mr. William C. Coffey, Jr. from Manning.

WILLIAM C. COFFEY, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. COFFEY:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. COFFEY:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. COFFEY:  No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. COFFEY:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may go ahead with your statement, sir.

MR. COFFEY:  All right, sir.  I'm a citizen of Manning.  A resident of Manning and a 1963 graduate of the Citadel.  During my career at the Citadel I was on the Deans list for my last four semesters.  I served as Chairman of the Honor committee and I was on the Brigadier staff.  Upon finishing that I attended the University of South Carolina School of Law.  And I'm a graduate of that.  And upon completion of that I was a member of the United States Army for two years assigned to Europe in the Army Security Agency.  Since that time I've practiced law in the town of Manning for 32 years.  I feel a great loyalty and obligation to the Citadel and have been actively involved in it since my graduation.  My brother finished in '69, my eldest son finished in '89, my youngest son finished in '92, and my nephew finished in '96.  And we have an awful lot of Citadel uniforms on hand.  I'm very proud of the record of the Citadel.  I feel that it provides a whole man attitude.  A whole person now that we have ladies there, at education for these young people.  It gives them a military discipline and the academics that will see them through life.  For that reason, I feel a great obligation to the Citadel and a desire to serving on its board.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  And does any committee have any questions of Mr. Coffey?  Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  Chairman, I'd like to ask, I notice that you are a hospital attorney.  What is a hospital attorney?

MR. COFFEY:  I represent a hospital.

SENATOR GIESE:  I mean, that's ...

MR. COFFEY:  That's right.

SENATOR GIESE:  ... your sole practice?

MR. COFFEY:  Oh, no, no, no.  That's -- in Manning you have to represent a lot more than one client.  No, sir.  I represent the Clarendon Memorial Hospital which just happens to be one of my clients.  It's a public entity.

SENATOR GIESE:  That's just a part of your practice?

MR. COFFEY:  That is correct, yes, sir.  I also represent the City of Manning which is part of my practice.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  None?  What is the pleasure of the committee on Mr. Coffey?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Do you want to wait?  You said you wanted to wait until the last one, do you want --

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Oh, yes, I'm sorry.  You all got me.  Thank you, sir.

MR. COFFEY:  All right.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  The next candidate is Mr. W. Henry Johnson, Jr. of Lake City.  Mr. Johnson, please raise your right hand.

W. HENRY JOHNSON, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. JOHNSON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. JOHNSON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. JOHNSON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may present your statement.

MR. JOHNSON:  I love the Citadel.  I have loved the Citadel since I was a little boy.  When I became a teenager I never applied to go to another college.  A lot of people say the Citadel is a great place to be from.  I even loved it when I was there.  I've continued to love it.  And I love the Citadel.  It's a part of me.  I've been involved in Citadel activities.  I've been a member of the Citadel Alumni Association since the day I graduated.  I've been a member of the Citadel Brigadier Club since the day I graduated.  I currently serve and have for many years on the Citadel Brigadier Club Board.  This is a foundation in which raises money for scholarships for the Citadel and I'm very proud of the work that we have done there.  We've raised more money than any other school in the Southern Conference although we're one of the smallest schools.  I've contributed scholarships to the Citadel.  I've been the president of the Pee Dee Air Citadel Club and numerous other things.  The reason that I do all this and the reason I want to be on this board is because I believe in the Citadel.  I believe in the product that we turn out which is our graduates.  I believe in the things like the honor code, duty, honor, discipline, patriotism, all these things that we instill in the young men and women that attend the Citadel in addition to a great education.  I think these things are in short supply in our society today.  And I would like to be a part of ensuring that the Citadel continues to provide leaders to help lead our state and nation.  I believe that my business experience is qualifying me to serve on this board.  Things that I can do and that I have learned through a career in business like the ability to make a decision, the knowledge of finances, understanding budgets and bonds, how to meet a payroll, how to hire and fire people, how to deal with the public.  I believe that this plus my love of the Citadel would make me a good board member.  I also would like to tell the committee that we have made some significant management changes at our company and I can assure you that I have the time, although I'm still running our company, I have the time to commit to this job to do a good job.  It would be an honor for me to serve on the board of the Citadel and I would appreciate the opportunity to do so.  I would love to serve my alma mater and my state in this capacity.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions from any of the committee members of Mr. Johnson?  Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  Mr. Chairman.  It's very interesting to hear your statement and try to match it up with what you submitted.  The most important thing that I think that I look for when I'm looking for someone who has the driving interest that you have on being on the Citadel board is your service to that institution prior to seeking to be represented on that very high level.  And I find nothing in what you've submitted that indicates those wonderful you've just mentioned, unless I've missed it in here someplace, all the services that you have already contributed to the Citadel?

MR. JOHNSON:  It should be on the resume that I attached to that packet.

SENATOR GIESE:  Well, I've looked at it once and looked at it twice and got the Lake City Rotary Club, Food Distributors International, IGA and USA.  But did I miss a page?

MS. FLOYD:  It may have gotten left out of yours.

SENATOR GIESE:  It did get left out?

MS. FLOYD:  I don't know.  It may have.

SENATOR GIESE:  But anyhow, I'm really impressed with the fact that your feelings are so strong that you have already spent time on boards and other things that indicate your interest in the Citadel.  I think one of my half backs is in business with you?

MR. JOHNSON:  That's correct.  He's my partner.

SENATOR GIESE:  Wayward Heyward?

MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, sir.  He's also ...

SENATOR GIESE:  He was Wayward Heyward in our day.

MR. JOHNSON:  He's also very supportive of me doing this.

SENATOR GIESE:  That's great.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  None?  Thank you, sir.  The next is Major Richard D. Leonard from Columbia.  Major Leonard.  Please raise your right hand.

RICHARD D. LEONARD, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Major, do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. LEONARD:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. LEONARD:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. LEONARD:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. JOHNSON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may present your statement, sir.

MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you for the opportunity to come before this board.  Like all the other applicants of the Citadel, I too am a graduate, Corp of Cadets in 1978.  And I also got my masters degree in 1983 from the Citadel.  My Citadel experience in addition to serving the Corp of Cadets, after graduation I also was on the staff at the Citadel for four years as a recruiter and a missions counselor and also public relations.  I continued recruiting with the Citadel with their cadet program with the alumni I help run.  Since that time, I've also had experience as five years in the classroom both at the high school and junior college level.  And of course now I'm full time with the National Guard as an operations and training officer at the Camp McCrady training site on the Eastern side of Fort Jackson.  I want to serve on this board because I have now 20 plus years of experience both as a staff member and as a teacher, but also as an alumnus who I think now I can look back at the school and not just for the old war stories you'll hear from our bio's we can only say, but it also gives a fresh perspective of where the Citadel is going.  I think it's important that we keep the traditions that we have at the Citadel, at the same time I think we need to look at other ways in keeping up with the trend today we have the positions learning policies and computerization that many school systems.  I think the diversity of the Citadel is one of its pluses, while I still support, probably some of the best students from South Carolina to the Citadel and I still think we need to be open to other areas even from the outside of the United States.  And it has been proven with so many recent Citadel cadets.  And in addition ...

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?  Oh, I'm sorry.  Go ahead.

MR. LEONARD:  In addition to the Citadel Cadet program which I think is the core of the Citadel, I think we need to also emphasize the other programs which I have participated in in the undergraduate studies programs.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Any questions?  Thank you, sir.

MR. LEONARD:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Next, William F. Sachs from Columbia.

MR. SACHS:  Good morning.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, sir.  Would you please raise your right hand.

WILLIAM F. SACHS, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. SACHS:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. SACHS:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. SACHS:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. SACHS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, sir, go ahead with your statement.

MR. SACHS:  I've completed 44 years of service to the Citadel after graduation.  I've shared my finances with the Citadel.  I've shared my time with them.  I'm a graduate and served as a combat officer in Korea.  After coming back to this country I've served on many boards at the Citadel.  I've been a director and president of the Association of Citadel Men.  I've been a director and president of the Brigadier Foundation.  I served on the Citadel Development Foundation.  I'm on the Chapel Committee and the Hall of Fame Committee.  I've given a lot of my time to the Citadel and I've enjoyed it.  I want to continue to serve so we can preserve the schools like the Citadel in this country.  We're unique and we need people who believe in the unique education.  That's really all I have to say, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Any committee members have any questions of Mr. Sachs?  Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  Mr. Sachs, in your statement of how you served the Citadel in the past, and it's certainly admirable, you mentioned in here that you were available at times when called upon by the Chairman of the Citadel Board of Visitors, what type of activity might that have been?

MR. SACHS:  I served one year on the Citadel Board of Visitors and ex officio member when I president of the Alumni Association.  And then another year I served on the Citadel Board by invitation when I was president of the Brigadier Foundation.

SENATOR GIESE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Thank you, Mr. Sachs.

MR. SACHS:  My room was incidentally located over the hole in the ground.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Next we have Allison Dean Wright.  Ms. Wright from Columbia.  Ms. Wright, would you please raise your right hand.

ALLISON DEAN WRIGHT, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MS. WRIGHT:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MS. WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MS. WRIGHT:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MS. WRIGHT:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  I think this is a first.  This is the first lady we've ever had.  I don't remember any coming before the committee.  This is a first and I think Ms. Wright is a graduate of the graduate school, is that right?

MS. WRIGHT:  Yes, sir, I am.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Okay.  You may proceed with your statement.  I just wanted to clarify your candidacy.

MS. WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee.  I am proud to be a graduate of the College of Graduate and Professional Studies.  I obtained a masters degree in business administration in 1993.  And I was also honored to have been selected as an advisory member to the board of visitors in June of 1997.  I was selected by the board to serve on the board in a non-voting capacity.  I have served on the External Affairs Committee, the Education Committee, the Strategic Planning Committee, Honorary Degrees Committee, the Finance and Budget Committee and the Customs Regulations and Cadet Liaison Committee.  I'm a lifetime member of the Citadel Alumni Association.  A member of the Brigadier Foundation and the Citadel MBA Association.  And I'm very proud to be associated with a College that has an honor code and a fourth class system that develops the whole person in the leaders in our community.  The Citadel is proud to have one of the best graduation rates in the State of South Carolina.  And the Citadel is ranked by US News and World Reports as having one of the best values in public colleges in the Southeastern United States.  Female assimilation is working well.  We have 63 female cadets currently and the females applying for the fall of this year is up 20 to 30 percent over last year.  My personal goals and focuses are on fundraising, and that would include from the people like me who are graduates of the College of Graduate and Professional Studies as well as other alumni.  Student recruitment for both the college of graduate and professional studies and undergraduates.  And external affairs with the media, public and alumni.  As the Executive Director of the South Carolina Insurance News Service I serve as the spokesperson for the insurance industry with property and casualty insurance industry for the State of South Carolina.  And with many years in working with local, regional and national media and in public relations, one of my greatest strengths and interests lies in aiding the Citadel with its public image.  The College of Graduate and Professional Studies has been graduating and producing graduates since the early 1970's but has never had a representative on the Board of Visitors.  If I'm elected I will continue to strive to protect and preserve the traditions and the unique distinctions that make our college one of the greatest.  And I also offer a different perspective and insight into the decision-making process.  As a member of the team I would use my experience with the media in business and non-profit organizational management and public affairs to help lead the college and lead it toward continuing to develop the future business leaders, government officials, ministers, attorneys, engineers and others which are helping our country and our state.  I am enthusiastic in my sincere love for the Citadel.  Its traditions, its environment, and its discipline.  It is my desire to continue to serve and contribute to the college which has given me so much in my life.  Just as all of you represent the districts from which you are from, I would like to represent the College of Graduate and Professional Studies of the Citadel on the Board of Visitors.  I hope you and the rest of the members of the South Carolina General Assembly will have the same confidence in me that the Board of Visitors did in June of 1997 when they appointed me.  Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, Ms. Wright.  Any questions?  Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  One quick question.  You list you're a graduate of Middle Tennessee State University with a BBA.  I assume that's a Bachelor of Business Administration?

MS. WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR GIESE:  And you don't list -- you list only staying there two years, were you a two graduate or a four year graduate?

MS. WRIGHT:  Oh, no, I am -- I did receive a Bachelors of Business Administration degree.  However, I attended a junior college for two years before going to Middle Tennessee State University.

SENATOR GIESE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?

SENATOR WILSON:  Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON:  One question.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  By the way, let me welcome Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON:  I just got out of an orthodontist appointment.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Go ahead, Senator.

SENATOR WILSON:  Ms. Wright, I want to thank you for your referencing the four year graduation rate.  The Citadel has always done an excellent job on students attending four years, and I think this is most advantageous to the students and to their parents and to the people of South Carolina so I appreciate all efforts reasonably made for a four year graduation rate.

MS. WRIGHT:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  And thank you very much.

MS. WRIGHT:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All right now, what's the pleasure of the committee on the candidates of the board of Citadel?

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Motion to a second?

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  We have approved all of you.  And as I say again, do not try to solicit votes until after the -- until the screening report is issued in the Journal.  Thank you for coming.  Next we go to Coastal Carolina University, At-Large, Seat 15.  We have three candidates vying for that seat and our first candidate is Timothy R. Meacham from Florence.  Mr. Meacham, would you please raise your right hand.

TIMOTHY R. MEACHAM, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Meacham, do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. MEACHAM:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. MEACHAM:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. MEACHAM:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. MEACHAM:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may present your statement, sir.

MR. MEACHAM:  Well, first of all, I want to thank the committee and Mr. Chairman for appearing before you today.  I'm applying for the Board of Trustees at Coastal Carolina University for two reasons.  I'm a 1979 graduate of the University of Coastal Carolina University.  I have two interests in Coastal.  I think one of the things that I can bring to the Board of Trustees is that I have a unique prospective on Coastal.  The other thing is that I can bring passion to the Board of Trustees.  I'm a 1979 graduate of Coastal Carolina University.  In 19- -- my senior year I served as president of the student body.  My junior year I served as editor of the student newspaper.  From 1993 until 1998 I served on the Alumni Board serving as president of the Alumni Board from 1997 until 1998.  One of the unique things that Coastal Carolina has is we have two different constituencies as far as alumni is concerned and that concerns me a little bit.  Prior to 1993 we had a divided loyalty so to speak because we were a branch of the University of South Carolina.  Since 1993 we became independent and we have alumni that are our regular participants in alumni functions and in alumni fun.  I would like to bridge that gap.  I think that's an important gap to bridge for the University because of the perspective that I come from in 1979 is an entirely different perspective than what the most recent graduates have.  The second thing I bring to Coastal Carolina University is a passion for this school.  Coastal Carolina University has been part of my life for 21 and 42 years.  My years.  And I really love this school.  When I went there in 1979 I went to Coastal Carolina sight unseen and I went to Coastal Carolina at the time because I wanted to surf.  But I came out of Coastal Carolina University with an education.  I came out of Coastal Carolina University and went to the University of South Carolina Law School and it gave me an outstanding education.  The teachers there are -- the faculty there cares about the students and that's something above and beyond the brochure.  And I'd like to be a part of that institution.  I'd like to be a part of serving the institution and that's why I'm applying to be on the Board of Trustees.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?  None.  Thank you, sir.

MR. MEACHAM:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Daniel W.R. Moore, Sr.  Myrtle Beach.  Would you raise your right hand, sir.

DANIEL W.R. MOORE, SR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. MOORE:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. MOORE:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. MOORE:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. MOORE:  Sir, I currently hold the position of member of a zoning board of appeals at North Myrtle Beach which I plan to vacate if elected to this position.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Is that a position where you are sworn in?

MR. MOORE:  I guess that's correct.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Did you take an oath for that office for the Zoning and Appeals Board?  I really don't think that's a conflict of interest but that's up to you, sir.  If it would prevent you from serving on a full-time regular basis it certainly would but that'd be left up to you.  You may go ahead with your statement, sir.

MR. MOORE:  I was very fortunate to be appointed to the Horry County Higher Education Commission and served a term from 1994 until 1998.  And came to have a great respect for the University and learned a great deal about it.  Our coast and Coastal Carolina University is very unique insofar as the fact that we provide so many resources throughout the tourism community.  And now that Coastal Carolina has developed a tourist and management program I would like to bring my background in the real estate development industry to bear on the University and help in the capacity of trying to forge partnerships with the business community and help to grow the tourism management program.  Also, I'd like to stress my 25 years in the real estate industry and a lifelong resident of Horry County to help bring about many business and public education partnerships.  And to that end I feel like I can serve Coastal and serve it well.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions from any of the committee members?  None?  Thank you, sir.

MR. MOORE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  We go to Mr. Ronald R. Norton, Murrells Inlet.

RONALD R. NORTON, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  I'll ask you, do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. NORTON:  No, sir, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. NORTON:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. NORTON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. NORTON:  No, sir, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Go ahead with your statement, sir.

MR. NORTON:  Thank you, sir, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, I appreciate the opportunity to speak with you this morning.  Just a little background which you probably already have.  I am married but I am married to a teacher.  I have family in education and I've been around education all my life.  I have two children in college.  I've lived in the Horry County community for 15 years now.  And one of the things that I'm most proud of there is for the last six years as an attorney I have taught law related education classes in one of the local high schools.  And I think that has given me an unique opportunity to see what high school students are looking for and especially high school seniors when they are getting ready to graduate and getting ready to attend the college or a university.  One of the things that saddens me in having done that is I see some of the best and brightest in our local communities going to colleges and universities out of the state.  And I would like to help change that and I would like to help change that for Coastal Carolina.  Coastal Carolina at the present time is in a fairly aggressive growth process.  They are building new buildings and I think it's important to, as a part of that, to attract some of the brightest professors possible to keep some of those high school students not only in this state but applying to Coastal.  And it's for that reason that I would like to serve on this board to assist not only Coastal but the community as well.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions from any committee members?  Thank you, sir.

MR. NORTON:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  What is the pleasure of the committee?

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorably.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  And a motion and a second.  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  I now declare you eligible to run.  We're moving onto the Medical University of South Carolina.  Six congressional districts.  Three each from the medical and three from the non-medical professions.  And our first candidate is first district, non-medical, is Melvyn Berlinsky from Charleston.  Raise your right hand, sir.

MELVYN BERLINSKY, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. BERLINSKY:  No, I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. BERLINSKY:  I will.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. BERLINSKY:  I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. BERLINSKY:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may proceed, sir.

MR. BERLINSKY:  Thank you, sir.  Mr. Chairman, it's been my privilege and honor to serve the people of South Carolina as a member of the Medical University of South Carolina Board of Trustees.  And I feel that the knowledge and leadership gained during this service could be particularly valuable during the interim period of the first new university president in 18 years.  The fields of health care and health care education are facing major challenges as the new century starts and experienced leadership is essential.  And of course South Carolina is fortunate to have a legislature that is supportive and fosters such a wonderful institution to provide quality education, research and health care for our people.  And I commit and pledge to use every resource at my disposal to help lead MUSC to even greater levels of excellence and achievement.  And that is my statement, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Do any of you have questions of Mr. Berlinsky?  Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  Mr. Chairman.  I've know Mr. Berlinsky for so many years and have associated him with the Medical University in a very, very positive way.  You've made magnificent strides.  We're certainly one of the finest medical schools in the country.  Your leadership as a board has been tremendous.  It puzzles me a little bit to see such a highly successful institution have three or four seats contested, some by as many as three people.  If things have been going so well, what brings on the -- is there some problem?

MR. BERLINSKY:  Well, maybe we're just such a wonderful institution that everyone seems to be wanting to get on this board.

SENATOR GIESE:  Well, you know, I notice that many of these other universities, and I don't believe there's a person opposed there, but it just seems -- I would agree with you.  You've made wonderful strides with a great institution but it comes as a little bit of a surprise to see half of the board or whatever number this is here opposed.  I just would make an observation if you'd care to make a comment on that?

MR. BERLINSKY:  I really can't -- don't care to make a comment about that position.

SENATOR GIESE:  Thank you.

SENATOR WILSON:  Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON:  I, too, have known Mr. Berlinsky for a number of years.  In fact, I've known him all my life.  And being an ex-patriot from Charleston myself.  And I just want to thank you for your service.  And I do note that you are unopposed and so I'm going to miss not seeing you up here every day shaking hands.  But again, we appreciate your service very much.  Thank you.

MR. BERLINSKY:  Thank you, Senator Wilson.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  I think that's the reason he's unopposed, comments made by members of the committee.  Do you all have a question?  Yes, Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Berlinksy, how many out of state students do you all have at MUSC both in your medical school as well as you have some undergraduate programs there as well, don't you?

MR. BERLINSKY:  We have in our college of health professions we have some undergraduate students.  I would say in medical school probably seven to ten percent maybe out of state, if that many.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Do you all give any priority to in-state students?  I mean ...

MR. BERLINSKY:  Oh, absolutely.  Yes, the admissions committee does, of course.  And we have so many really good qualified in-state students that an out-of-state student just has to be extraordinarily out of, you know, off the charts to get accepted.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Do you know what percentage of those medical school graduates are staying in South Carolina once they complete?

MR. BERLINSKY:  Well, of course you've got to remember that once they finish medical school that they then go off and serve a residency in other parts of the country.  But I think we probably retain about 50 percent or maybe a little more than that that actually come back.  But in the meantime, we have residents that come from other parts of the country that do their programs here, and they remain, so, overall, I don't think we're losing that many numbers.  But ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  How many undergraduates do you think you have, how many out-of-state students do you have in your undergraduate programs at MUSC?  I mean, I know you have nursing and, don't you have physical therapy?

MR. BERLINSKY:  Well, that's in a -- we have, in the College of Nursing, it's just nursing.  But in the health professions we have physical therapy and occupational therapy and, you know, and all of the other parts of the health care field.  But my guess is that a very, very small percent out-of-state students.  Numbers, I just can't give you but, as I said, we have just so many good qualified in-state students that it's pretty difficult for an out-of-state student, even on the undergraduate level to get admitted.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Since Mr. Berlinsky is unopposed, I would ask the committee at this time whether, so that he may want to go back to Charleston.

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You heard the motion to second Mr. Berlinsky, all in favor signify by saying aye?


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  You are qualified and thank you.

MR. BERLINSKY:  Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may sit around and hear other candidates or whatever you'd like to do.  Thank you, sir.  The 2nd district congressional district, non -- excuse me, 2nd district, non-medical, Donald F. McElveen from Columbia.  Raise your right hand.

DONALD F. MCELVEEN, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. MCELVEEN:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. MCELVEEN:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. MCELVEEN:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. MCELVEEN:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Your statement.

MR. MCELVEEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee.  My name is Don McElveen. I'm a resident of Columbia and a graduate of the public schools in Columbia and a graduate of Clemson in 1957 in mechanical engineering.  And for the last 33 years I've been a partner in the firm of GMK.  I am one of the founding partners in that firm.  And I am Chairman Emeritus at this time but I did serve as chairman of the board and CEO for ten years.  I've been engaged in a number of civic projects over the years.  I've also been a member of the South Carolina State Ports Authority for a six year term.  And I've served on a Methodist Home in Orangeburg, Carolina Children's Home, Clemson Advancement Foundation for design and construction, the South Carolina Library Foundation, and the Correctional Development Foundation.  I'm currently a member of the Board of Trustees at the Medical University of South Carolina and served an unexpired term and then a full term.  I'm chairman of the committee on Research, and that's an area I am particularly interested in.  Last year we obtained over a $100,000,000.00 in sponsored research programs.  These programs are not funded by the state.  In fact, the research that we do with the state sponsored project is small.  Most of it is federal money and from industry.  This year we expect to do $107,000,000.00 in sponsored research.  Now, our outlook for the next three to four years is that we will need another 300,000 square feet of research facilities which will provide 2000 jobs in the Charleston area.  If we could get the funds we could obtain enough sponsored research for another 2000 jobs and 300,000 square feet.  At our last board meeting the Committee on Research sponsored or brought forth a six point initiative of the things that we wanted to this year.  And one of them that I think that you would particularly be interested in is cooperation of programs between Clemson, USC, and MUSC.  There are certain fits that each college that make them attractive.  I was at the Medical University on Friday and saw a project between Clemson bioengineering faculty and students working with the faculty at the Medical University of South Carolina.  And as I look around this room I can bring you some good news this morning.  They are working on a process that we expect to have perfected in two years.  If you need a colonoscopy which a lot of people in this room will need or have needed and don't look forward to and I'm certain will have that procedure, is a non-invasive procedure.  And I think this is something, this is just to give you an idea of the breadth and scope and level of research that's being conducted at the Medical University of South Carolina.  We have a wonderful university.  We have wonderful graduates.  And I think we're doing a good job at the State of South Carolina.  We always need more money but I've enjoyed my service.  I'm retired.  I have the time to continue that service.  And I'd be happy to answer any questions that you have.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?  Mr. Inabinett.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Yes, I have one question, I guess a bit out of curiosity with reference to your military service.

MR. MCELVEEN:  Yes, sir.  I was in the ...

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  It starts ...

MR. MCELVEEN:  I was in the Naval Air Corp.  When I graduated from Clemson I went into a program called the Aviation Officers Candidate School.  I went to flight school in Pensacola, Florida.  I had a problem with a rheumatoid arthritis like disease which never developed.  But I was discharged because of that because I couldn't continue in the flight program.  And that was one of the points of the program.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Thank you, sir.

MR. MCELVEEN:  I'd always wanted to fly so I flew privately after that.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  One quick question.  You have a dental school, do you not?

MR. MCELVEEN:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR GIESE:  And you're making a request for a new building?

MR. MCELVEEN:  Yes.  That's -- and this is a good time to say this but that ...

MR. FISHBURNE:  Don, excuse me.  Since I'm the dentist on the Board, Senator, may I speak to that?  You're about to steal my thunder.  Thank you very much.

MR. MCELVEEN:  Well, let me say this and I'll let Cotey address all the particulars to it.  But I think it's one of the best kept secrets in South Carolina, our dental school.  Our graduates from our dental school placed number five nationally on passing the national exam.  Now, our facilities are dilapidated.  They're out-of-date.  It was never designed for a medical school, but using it for a medical school and we're turning out exceptionally good students.

SENATOR GIESE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?

MR. MCELVEEN:  Dr. Fishburne can address the rest of that question.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Representative Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Do you know what percentage of your medical school students are getting assistance from the federal government basically this program to pay for their medical school education but in return they have to agree to serve so many years of ...

MR. MCELVEEN:  I do not know.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  ... rural community ...

MR. MCELVEEN:  I do not know that.  I'm sorry.  I don't know that.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Because we're getting told there's a high default rate, that people are not going through with that commitment that they've made.  And it's a national problem; it's not unique to South Carolina.  So you're not ...

MR. MCELVEEN:  I ... that's something that's not been brought to my attention and I just can't -- I'm sorry, Ms. Gamble, I just can't answer that question.  I'm sorry.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?

MR. MCELVEEN:  But you can be proud of your medical university.  And when I say medical university, I mean health professionals and the nursing school and the dental school.  MUSC.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Thank you, Don.  Next we have William F. Hoffman from Blythewood.

WILLIAM F. HOFFMAN, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. HOFFMAN:  No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. HOFFMAN:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. HOFFMAN:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. HOFFMAN:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Go ahead with your statement.

MR. HOFFMAN:  Chairman and members of the committee, thank you very much for this opportunity to apply for this position because I bring you extremely high level of energy and enthusiasm for it.  I have worked for the Dupont Company for over 26 years in a number of manufacturing and technical opportunities.  During that time developed a very good rapporteur of skills around consensus building, strategic analysis and looking for organizational change through life-long learning.  I've had a number of different opportunities working as an operations manager, assistant to production directors throughout and a number of opportunities there.  I have educational training as a chemical engineer with an MBA behind that.  I have a high degree for value for organizational development and for continuing life-long learning.  I am currently working on a cutting edge technology within Dupont for eliminating defects.  And I finished at the top of my class and recently have been appointed as a trainer of people who will be utilizing that technology.  I believe I can bring a broad base of business understanding in a non-medicine way to this position.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions for Mr. Hoffman?  None.  Thank you, sir.  The next candidate is Donald V. Richardson from Columbia the III.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Mr. Chairman and members of the committee.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Richardson, let me swear you first.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Excuse me.

DONALD V. RICHARDSON, III, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. RICHARDSON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. RICHARDSON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. RICHARDSON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Go ahead with your statement, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee.  I have been a lawyer since 1960 at which time I started a practice.  I started practicing here in Columbia, South Carolina.  I grew up in Georgetown and went to public schools there.  I graduated from the University of South Carolina with a BS degree in business.  I then joined -- went to law school, finished law school here also at Carolina.  While at the University of South Carolina in academic schools I was vice president of the student body, elected to "Who's Who" and a number of other honors following there in serving and getting my education.  My father was a member of the House of Representatives in Georgetown County for approximately ten years where he served on the Ways and Means Committee here.  From about age ten to age 20 I heard all my life that it was incumbent upon people who had the ability to serve the public should do so.  That if the public did not have good qualified candidates you would not get good service.  I was taught that from a very early age and I just retired last year from the active practice of law with my firm after 40 years.  This is the first opportunity that I've had to serve.  During the last 25 years of my practice I represented medical care professionals.  I defended doctors in essence in medical malpractice cases.  I've defended hospitals.  My firm had been representing the Richland Memorial Hospital from 1973 on and still do so today.  I was there through the starting of the medical school.  My practice while out of Columbia it was a lot broader than that.  I tried cases in everything from Beaufort to Horry County to Georgetown to Charleston to Greenville, Columbia, a lot in Florence and the outlying areas.  I am a trial lawyer.  That is what I did.  I understand more law that deals with health care professionals than probably most people in the state.  I was fortunately very good at it.  I was also listed -- and I always have to go look it up because I was surprised to get it -- I was a ... have been recognized in the Book the "Best Lawyers in America" in my field.  So I have a lot of knowledge.  I speak the language of doctors.  I understand them.  I've served on the Board of Visitors at the Medical University.  I have probably used most witnesses or a lot of witnesses who are department chairmen from MUSC.  My opponents spoke of research grants.  A lot of these people in administration, a lot of them that are in the health care who are delivering this research programs, I know.  They've testified for me.  I've been in the courtroom with them.  And I understand them.  You ask about the service, I was probably the only person --I hear all of these Citadel graduates and their commissions -- I was swabbing a deck on a destroyer escort when I was -- got out of law school.  I had two degrees.  But I had volunteered for the Naval Reserve when I was 17 years old, on my 17th birthday.  And I served an eight year commission -- commitment with the Naval Reserve.  It just happened to be two doors from my home in Georgetown.  Couldn't wait to sign up, so at 17 I did.  When I finished law school, I was still in the reserve.  And that's how I came about to be swabbing a deck off Charleston with two degrees at that time.  I have watched surgeries.  I've been in the operating room when other people were operated upon to learn my skills.  To speak to people who had lots of specialties and, as I've said, I've had this interest.  I know the interest of the medical community.  I know a lot of people in the medical community and I believe I have a lot to offer.  For example, MUSC, I understand, is having a mediation now or an operation -- difficulty in schools.  I am a certified trained, certified mediator, having earned my certificate of responsibility at Harvard.  So I think I am well qualified and well worked and this is an interest that I very much would like to serve.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Richardson, you do come well recommended -- or highly recommended, I guess I should say -- because I've got correspondence from physicians that I personally know and they've spoken very highly of you.  And you do have a tremendous amount of experience as a defense attorney in the medical malpractice arena.  What can our medical schools of South Carolina do, or can they do anything to reduce the number of medical malpractice suits that we have everyday?

MR. RICHARDSON:  I wish I knew the answer to that question.  There are certain rules that the court has adopted that really hammer a defense lawyer.  I've always said that I try cases with one hand tied behind my back -- but I don't want to get into a long discussion with it, but under the medicare provisions in this state, if you receive a hospital for $150,000.00 and medicare pays only 20,000 the patient goes into the courtroom presents the bill for 120,000.  The patient does not owe the bill, will not pay the bill and the hospital by law cannot collect that bill.  But as a defense lawyer in defending the health care professional, we're looking at $150,000.00 expense and I am forbidden to tell the jury that they do not owe it, they will not pay it,and the hospital cannot collect it.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  But now, you're talking about them taking this into court when they feel like something has gone wrong?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes, ma'am.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Not just because the bill wasn't paid?

MR. RICHARDSON:  But that is one thing of a bonus that has a tremendous impact.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  That's a state regulation or a federal regulation?

MR. RICHARDSON:  That's State Court.  Supreme Court ruling.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  The State Supreme Court ruling now.

MR. RICHARDSON:  The State Supreme's.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  So they based their ruling if it was a State Supreme Court then on state regulations?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes, ma'am.  We, as far as defending a case and the law in which we take that case under, it's determined by the law as announced by the South Carolina Supreme Court.  But I don't know how, you know, other states have tried arbitration.  There are paid professionals who do nothing but furnish affidavits that you got a good case who will never testify in court just to get by the procedure.  And they won't even show up in our arbitrations.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Do you think we're doing everything that we need to do communications and skills wise?  I mean, do you think when we send someone out into the profession as a doctor that we are sending them out equipped with the communication skills that they need to do that?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes, ma'am, I think that doctors, Dr. Gamble, are more qualified today than they were 12 months ago.  For example, you asked a question, I think it came from you, about the program of doctors who have to pay back service.  I've seen both sides of that coin.  I had the privilege of defending two physicians from Dillon, South Carolina in a trial which I said to myself at the conclusion of that trial, those people were very lucky.  Those were well qualified board certified.  One was an internist, one was a family practitioner.   And Dillon had never seen anything like that because those two boys had finished the Medical University and as a result had to go to an area to serve the community in this state.  And they did and they went to Dillon and Dillon was very fortunate.  And one has since left and has gone to Florence.  But one is still there.  These were fine well qualified people.  And that's one great program.  Now, I have seen others in specialties that have gone on and have left the medical school, gone through a residency program and then after residency done a fellowship.  And there is so much incentive after the fellowship that they just pay the federal government back and it's a whopping penalty.  I mean it is a penalty that would bring most people to your knees.  If they get paid $50,000.00 you might have to pay back 200,000.  So it's the federal government and they'll sue you if you don't do it.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  They've approached -- I mean approached me about wanting to yank licenses.  I mean they're wanting the state to intervene to that extent that we would deny a license to physicians who have outstanding debts.  And that seems to be ...

MR. RICHARDSON:  I'm a little bit ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  ... very extreme.

MR. RICHARDSON:  I'm a little bit surprised at that, Dr. Gamble, because the last time I had one of them in Federal Court brought suit through the district attorney's office and they are unyielding and he paid.  I mean, I guess the Federal Court was looking for an easy way to enforce it.  That would be my answer to that.  It's not they can't because you get in that big court up there it's, you know, they don't play with you in the federal system.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Dr. Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  One quick question.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes, sir, Senator.

SENATOR GIESE:  Mr. Richardson, you served on the Board of Visitors in 1988 and 1989, was that an interim or was it a regular appointment?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Two year appointment.

SENATOR GIESE:  Pardon me?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Two year appointment.

SENATOR GIESE:  Two year appointment, and what does the Board of Visitors Medical University do?

MR. RICHARDSON:  I just like them to think that we were just simply educated at what the Medical University did.  We of course had no -- just like all Board of Visitors --you don't make any decisions.  You just meet people and know what the University does.  I have been very fortunate, I'm one of the few guys who knows where to park and get to the right floor and go through that maze to find the right doctors so I've been down there that much.  And know so many of those department heads that -- and I'll be quite honest with you, I'm one of the few lawyers they're glad to see.

SENATOR GIESE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Representative Inabinett.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Thank you.  One more question, please.  It's my understanding that on occasions because of the time track between patients and insurance companies ...

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes, sir.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  ... that instead of the insurance company sending, for instance, to the Medical University, fees for service, they will send those fees to the patient and in turn the University and in some case doctors, are not able to collect because the patient's cashed those checks, are you aware of that, sir?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes, sir.  And I think the problem, Representative Inabinett, in which you address and it is a problem and it's one that can easily be rectified probably by the legislature.  For example, the patient is hurt in lets say an automobile accident but happened to be confined to the hospital for 20 days.  That would be quite a hospital bill for 20 days.  And lets say for the sake of discussion it's $20,000.00.  The lawyer then collects all the hospital bills, the medical reports.  Packages them up and sends them to the insurance company.  And we settle for $150,000.00.  The patient says, I don't want my -- I don't want the hospital paid.  Now, it gets complicated if the hospital has an assignment in which I always took the position it was required that if signed, to pay that money back or to pay the bill that's due.  Some did, some didn't.  If the lawyer then really doesn't have any obligate -- anything to do but must pay the money to the patient, unless it's a valid signing.  I was chairman of the Grievance Committee for disbarment of attorneys for two years.  That was one service that I did that when asked by the Supreme Court to serve on that I felt like it was my obligation no matter what my business interest might have been that I did.  This was somewhat of a problem.  And a doctor would not be paid.  He would render the report, had it signed.  The lawyer ignored it and paid it to the client.  I think if the laws were strengthened that there is a valid assignment signed by the patient and the lawyer has no choice, then I think that would solve some ethical dilemma for the attorneys.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?  No.  Thank you, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  That concludes the 2nd District, non-medical.  The three candidates for that position, what is the pleasure of the committee?

SENATOR GIESE:  Move approval.

SENATOR WILSON:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  I have a motion and a second approval.  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  You're welcome to stay or you may go if you like.  And I move onto the 3rd congressional district, non-medical, Fred Moore.  We got a fax and we also got by air express mail and we got a letter from Mr. Moore is asking for a delay in his -- "I am completing my fourth year of service at the Medical University of South Carolina as a member of the Board of Trustees.  I am seeking re-election to this board.  After having undergone lung surgery for asbestosis at MUSC, I am in the daily rehabilitation program at this time.  Because of my participation in this program, I will not be able to attend the candidate screening process on Monday, February 28th, of 2000.  I am asking to be excused from this candidate screening today and I am requesting that I be screened by a conference call.  My number is" so and so and so.  Since we have the opening and re-open at the -- and I'll make a statement now and I want have to do it when we get to it, since we have to re-open Seat 12 for the South Carolina State Board of Trustees by virtue of the incumbent not being able to participate, for any reason withdrawal before screening or before his election screening time we had to re-open the law because of the fact to protect the seat of some candidate who may be an incumbent would get right up to the filing deadline and just say I don't want to run and I have a friend who would be there to step right in we would be trapped in that seat so the law says any time an incumbent cannot meet or fulfill the duties or be screened for the position it is then that we must re-open screening and we plan to re-open screening filing for Seat 12, South Carolina State immediately and the information will go back out to the newspapers and everyone will be involved.  We would like to run that is Seat 12 At-Large.  We do have a candidate for that position, Mr. Walter L. Salters is the one who died Thursday and should have been the incumbent and could not be by virtue of his death.  George C. Bradley of Summerville is the other candidate and we notified Mr. Bradley on Thursday afternoon by mail and by phone that he would not be required to appear here today by virtue of having to re-open this seat.  So we plan to do that.  Now, that gets us back to Mr. Moore who is not able to be here today.  And I don't think conference calls can be addressed because the first question that we have, do you have any health-related problems that keeps you from serving this board in a full capacity and also regular board meetings.  So what I would like the committee to determine is, that we extend Mr. Moore the courtesy for one more meeting for one that where we were screening for Seat 12, South Carolina State, and the filing period for that ten days.  Mr. Bradley will not have to fill out a defamation.  All he will be required to do is send his letter of intent then we will keep it on file and his information which we have in our packet today.  So we will be screening one more time and what is the pleasure of the committee to extend Mr. Moore?  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Chairman, I think my only concern would be that Mr. Moore's availability to complete the term or to serve the term and be active, would it be appropriate for us to ask that he present a statement from his doctor as to when he might be able to resume service on the board?  It's my understanding he's been in the hospital since before Christmas and may have been recently released like in the last week but that's a very long hospitalization and I'm just concerned, you know, if he's going to be able to get back into the swing of things in the next month or so I don't have a problem with that, but if the doctors can't assure us that he can resume an active role on the board at some point and time then I think we need to know that.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Inabinett.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Mr. Chairman, since a part of your questioning addresses health, maybe when that question is asked based on his present health status and hopefully information will be given him by his doctors before he appears before us.  That question might be answered by him.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Let's just take the one about the telephone.  I don't think we can do that at all so let's rule that out of order as far as screening on the telephone.  Now Mr. Moore is the incumbent and you know the incumbent serves until his replacement so that puts us in another catch 25.  But I think you made a valid point that maybe a statement from his physician of his condition would be in order but I would like to extend this date to our next screening date and if at that time that he's not able to be here then I think that the committee will maybe make a determination at that time.  Do you understand what I'm saying?  We're going to have to screen him anyway.  I don't want to shut him out because he will serve until his successor, so at that time we really need to take a hard look and write him back Sophia and ask him if he would submit a statement from his doctor of his real conditions and if he will be able to serve in a full capacity and attend the Board meetings upon his prognosis of his operation.  Mr. Inabinett.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Yes, Mr. President, I just hope we're not setting a precedent.  I thoroughly understand the rationale for requesting a statement but I hope that that won't at some point require us to ask candidates that we may have some questions with reference to their health to get doctor's statements.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  What was Mr. Moore's attendance?  I think we had attendance records on all candidates.  What was his attendance prior to him getting ill in December?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do we have ...

MS. FLOYD:  I have that in my office.  I can go get it.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  I mean I think if he has been able to attend up until December, then I think we have to give him some consideration that he's just --- he's ill for the present.  I mean if he's not been able to attend meetings for the last year or so then I think that does present a different situation.  But I think if he's only gotten sick in December that we -- and I'm not so sure if we refer back to the research that we had done, if that's not something we should be taking...

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Well, we ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  ...into consideration under the Americans with Disabilities that we have to give him some consideration.  And especially based on his prior attendance records and his participation.

SENATOR GIESE:  Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  I move we carry this over until we find out what his attendance record is and then I would certainly agree with you if we're going to be requesting medical assurance from physicians that this guy is going to live -- certainly going to live through the four years, if we're out of line.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  We will.  If you will, we'll hold this until the end and we'll send Sophia to get his attendance.  But if you'll go get that we'll continue on screening until we get that and bring it.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Third.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, we do have a third district non-medical candidate.  Charles W. Schulze, Mr. Schulze from Greenwood.  Sir, will you please raise your right hand.

CHARLES W. SCHULZE, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. SCHULZE:  No, sir.  I just had an annual physical.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. SCHULZE:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. SCHULZE:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. SCHULZE:  Not at this time.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Go ahead with your statement, sir.

MR. SCHULZE:  Thank you, sir.  My name is Charles Schulze and I'm offering for the 3rd District, non-medical seat on the Board of Trustees at the Medical University.  I'm a lifelong resident of South Carolina and a native of Greenwood.  I'm a senior partner in the regional accounting and consulting firm of Elliott, Davis & Company.  I'm with the Greenwood office.  I have over 25 years of experience in accounting, auditing and consulting.  I hold a BBA degree, a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree from the University of Georgia in accounting and a masters degree in accounting from the University of South Carolina.  I am a licensed certified public accountant and I'm also a certified fraud examiner.  I have a long standing interest in higher education.  I've been an advisor for Lander University's business department.  I've been an adjunct professor of accounting at the University of South Carolina.  An distinguished lecturer in accounting at the University of Georgia.  It's been my honor to be an advisor to the dean at the Tierney College of Business at the University of Georgia.  And I also too have been a member of the Board of Visitors at the Medical University of South Carolina.  I have previous experience with state agencies, having just completed a term with the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulations Board of Accountancy.  I finished a six year term, or two three year terms, and I rotated off as chairman of that board.  I'm very active in my community.  It's also my honor to serve as an advisor to the V. Kann Rasmussen Foundation which is a private foundation here in South Carolina.  We have the honor of just having made a significant multi-million dollar grant to the three research universities here in South Carolina.  I think maybe for the first time we're seeing them work together in a significant project and we're very proud of that.  It was my privilege to serve honorably in the United States Air Force from 1968 until 1972.  I too was a non-commissioned officer.  I was a grunt and finished up as a sergeant.  I spent three years of my four years of service on assignments in Japan, Korea, Taiwan, Thailand and Vietnam.  In my opinion, it was the best higher education I ever received.  My wife is a social studies teacher at Emerald High School.  I have two daughters.  Meg, a junior at Wofford College.  And Caroline, a freshman at the College of Charleston so I know a little bit about higher education costs right now.  It's my belief that I will make a good candidate for the Board of Trustees of the Medical University.  This belief is based on my record of service for my country, my state, my community, and to my profession.  I think I will bring a high level of professionalism, experience, and commitment to the board.  And you can also check my attendance at the Board of Accountancy.  I think -- I don't think I've missed any meetings, maybe one or two in six years.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions of Mr. Schulze?  None.  Thank you, sir.  You may have a seat there.  Let's continue on until Sophia gets back.  The 4th Congressional District, medical, Dr. Charles B. Thomas, Jr. from Greenville.  Mr. Thomas, would you raise your right hand.

CHARLES B. THOMAS, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. THOMAS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. THOMAS:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. THOMAS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. THOMAS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Then go ahead, sir.

MR. THOMAS:  My name is Charlie Thomas.  I have three degrees from the Medical University.  A BS in pharmacy and got an MD degree.  And also completed orthopaedic surgery training there, so I've spent a significant portion of my formative years at the Medical University.  I was elected to the board in 1996.  Elected vice chairman in 1998.  A position that I currently hold.  I have a perfect attendance record.  It's a platitude but we really are in the midst of a lot of changes down there, what with Dr. Edwards retiring, having a new president.  The conversion of the hospital to a public authority, and thirdly the ramifications of the balanced budget bill in 1997 which began to observe a significant effect on the bottom line.  And I would like to continue to try to provide some leadership down there for the next four years.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions of Dr. Thomas?  None.  Thank you, sir.

MR. THOMAS:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  The next candidate is Harold E. Fleming of Spartanburg.

HAROLD E. FLEMING, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. FLEMING:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. FLEMING:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. FLEMING:  I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. FLEMING:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may present your statement.

MR. FLEMING:  My name as you know is Harold Fleming.  And I want to take this opportunity to thank you Mr. Chairman and the Committee Members for the time to be considered for the medical department and for the Board of Medical University of South Carolina.  I am a physician.  A graduate of the Medical University of South Carolina in 1965.  All of my education has been in South Carolina where I was born.  My post educational training has all been in Indiana, Arizona.  I ran a hospital for two years in the state of Nevada as part of my military service.  I, in addition, have an MBA from the Fuqua School of Business which was acquired two years ago.  And I've been intricately involved in multiple medical and non-medical business endeavors, none of which have failed with and particularly related to the economics of health care, the merging of HMO's, and into our health care environment.  We currently have one of the best Medical Universities in the country in Charleston and I would like to offer my unique skills to hope to maintain this in the future.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?  Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  Dr. Fleming, what type of residency did you pursue upon graduation?

MR. FLEMING:  I did an internal medicine residency and then I did a cardiology fellowship at ... in Arizona.  I did my internal medicine in Indiana and my cardiology fellowship in Arizona.

SENATOR GIESE:  And what possessed you to do an MBA?

MR. FLEMING:  I've always been involved in the business part of our office management.  We've grown from a two man group to a nine man group.  We have dealt with multiple hospitals, most of the insurance agencies.  It was something I wanted to do and it's probably the best thing I've ever done for me since my children graduated from college.

SENATOR GIESE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Dr. Fleming, could you elaborate a little bit, I'm looking for at your statement of economic interest.  The office space that you rent to the county.  The value is 200,000 and you've got your cut, 22 percent ownership.  Is the 22 percent ownership that 200,000 or is that 200,000 the total of that amount of the lease?

MR. FLEMING:  That's the total amount.  It's not exactly to the county, it is ... I have a 22 percent ownership in the building that is leased by the hospital health care system which is a division of the county.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  And can you elaborate a little bit on your relationship?  I mean is that where your practice is located?  I mean do they own your practice?

MR. FLEMING:  No.  They own -- we are contracted with the hospital.  They provide -- we are not owned by a hospital.  We are contracted with the hospital system.   They provide the employees.  We get paid only if we work.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  All right, clarify this.  You own the building.  You're leasing it to the hospital and then you occupy it?

MR. FLEMING:  Correct.  And this was as a result of their taking over the management part of the practice three years ago.  But they do not own us.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  None.  Thank you, sir.  That 4th Congressional District that's the two candidates.  What is the committee on those two?

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  A motion to second.  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  That means you're qualified.  You may do whatever you need to do.  We want to go back to Fred Moore.  And we've got the attendance for the last -- let me ask somebody from the College at MUSC, do you have monthly board meetings or call board meetings?

AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Bi-monthly.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Bi-monthly, okay.  And Mr. Moore had, out of the five in 1999, he attended three, was absent two.  I still would like to, if it pleases the committee, is to extend him another opportunity to be screened when we re-screen for the Seat 12, At-Large for South Carolina State.  This is a courtesy of extending him by virtue of being a House Member of about 25 years and willing to serve in other capacities of his time.  I feel like we ought to do that.  And virtue of having a time to do that it's not really putting anybody out of the way.

SENATOR WILSON:  If it requests a motion, I'd like to so move.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Well, I'd like you all to put it out for discussion and if anyone wants to talk about it and then I'll entertain a motion.

SENATOR WILSON:  So moved.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Now, as far as Mr. Schulze, what is the pleasure of the committee?

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Being screened here today all that he would need to do is give us a letter of his intent and would not have to be screened again at that ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  I disagree.  I think all we're doing is postponing Mr. Moore.  We're not opening back up the process with the other candidates.  We're opening up the application period.  We're not opening up the application period we're only extending ...

SENATOR WILSON:  And that was the intent of my motion ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Right.

SENATOR WILSON:  ... to just clarify that he would ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE  We're only extending him the opportunity to come and be screened at a later date ...

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Okay, well, I ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  ... just like we delayed those from last week.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  What I was getting around to and maybe I'm getting ahead of myself and maybe he's disqualified but ... I understand, so I forget that.  What is the pleasure of the committee for the screening?

SENATOR WILSON:  So moved as to Mr. Schulze.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Thank you very much.  We'll move on.  And we'll handle that from the chair, all right.  Thank you.  The next one is 5th Congressional District, Mr. Cotesworth Fishburne, Rock Hill, Jr.  Mr. Cotey Fishburne, Rock Hill.

MR. FISHBURNE:  Thank you very much.

COTESWORTH P. FISHBURNE, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. FISHBURNE:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. FISHBURNE:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. FISHBURNE:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. FISHBURNE:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Go ahead, sir.

MR. FISHBURNE:  Well, thank you Mr. Chairman and screening committee.  I'm going to try to be as brief as possible.  As you are well aware we have six congressional districts and each district as you know has a professional and a sort of group called a lay or a non-medical person, and I'm privileged to be the only dentist out of the six so-called medical representatives on the Board of Trustees, and I've been privileged to represent the roughly 1500 dentists in the state of South Carolina.  I've been active in the organized dentistry in our state.  And I've been on the Board for 12 years.  I think I've seen our budget go from about 450,000,000 to about 950,000,000 today.  And our dependence on the state dropped from about 42 percent to around 18 percent during those 12 years.  And I'm not saying that I should deserve any credit for it but I don't -- because I don't.  But it has been real gratifying to see.  The big project as Senator Giese stopped Mr. McElveen from, in a great natured sort of way, I hope, from trying to steal my thunder is the creation of a new dental facility down at the Medical University.  As Mr. McElveen said we placed fifth out of 55 dental schools throughout America in our national boards.  And that 55 includes giants like Harvard and Columbia University, and the University of Texas, the University of Michigan, UCLA, and on and on.  And it's been accomplished with the dedication of the faculty and a rather deplorable dental facility.  And you know dentistry, as you all know from going in to visit your dentist, if you walked in and you saw deplorable out-of-date looking dental equipment in an office, you would probably change your mind about the entire impression of that visit to the dentist.  Dr. Edwards has been our president, as has been mentioned, for 17 years.  And as you know, he is a dentist.  He's a former member of the legislature.  He's a former governor.  And we want to build a new dental building down there and name it the James B. Edwards School of Dental building.  It's going to cost, the estimate we have is $29,000,000.00.  We want 19 of it -- this sounds a lot like a commercial in the middle of the screening committee and I'm sorry -- but we want 19 of it to come from the legislature with an agreement that we in dentistry and Dr. Edwards, his many corporate friends and many friends throughout the state, and the south, and the nation will come up with the other 10,000,000 to bring the total to 29,000,000.  As most of you know the Ways and Means Committee this past Wednesday -- I think it was this past Wednesday -- approved 6.3 million and I think they had in mind and we have in mind 6.3 million over a three year period.  And I appreciate the fact of -- I appreciate being here and I appreciate being able to bring this up in front of the screening committee even though it might not be directly screening material.  And if you have any questions, I'll be glad to entertain them on any subject related to the Medical University, or dentistry, or whatever.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?  Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON:  I in particular would like to commend you for your -- for the whole Board's efforts to promote the dental school.  And I am a great admirer of Governor Edwards and his 17 years of service.  I have always had a high regard for the Medical University and certainly with all of your alls hard work you've made it into a world class institution so we very much appreciate the work of Jim Edwards and Anne Edwards and the Board.

MR. FISHBURNE:  Thank you very much.  And I'll try to pass that on.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any others?  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Dr. Fishburne, I just want to tell you that your wife grew up across the street from me.  She used to pick me up every morning to walk to the bus.  As a matter of fact, our neighbor who lived between us is down at the dental school, Charles Hook, is a professor down at the dental school at MUSC, and Charles actually lived between the two of us.  But I spent many a night over at the Herlong's house.

MR. FISHBURNE:  Well, if I might, I'll certainly tell her and she'll be thrilled to hear it.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Well ...

MR. FISHBURNE:  If I might be able to say it.  We at the dental school had a homecoming the night before last and we saw Charles Hook and we joked about Manning.  And he's a real -- one of the real leaders in our faculty down there, as you probably know.  And he's the person who is going to be the chief faculty representative in the new dental building.  Thank you very much.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  He's a fine person and the Herlongs are just as fine as they come, too.  And give them my best.

MR. FISHBURNE:  Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Move favorable.

SENATOR WILSON:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  A motion and a second for approval.  All in favor say aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, Dr. Fishburne.

MR. FISHBURNE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  6th District, medical, Dr. E. Conyers O'Bryan, Jr. from Florence.  Will you raise your right hand.

E. CONYERS, O'BRYAN, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. O'BRYAN:  No, I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. O'BRYAN:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. O'BRYAN:  No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. O'BRYAN:  No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may proceed, sir.

MR. O'BRYAN:  I'm a native of Kingstree.  I graduated from the Medical University of South Carolina.  Interned in University in St. Louis.  And did internal medicine residency and cardiologic fellowship at the Medical University.  Been on the Board since 1976.  I'm the immediate past chairman.  I'm also a Clinical Professor of Cardiology and have taught the past three or four years.  I would like to, for your comfort and our public relations protection to correct one of Mr. McElveen's statements.  I note he offered you colonoscopy.  I can assure you it's still an invasive procedure, even though we do it better than anybody else.  I don't want you on the table thinking that we misled you into something like that.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions from Dr. O'Bryan?  None?

SENATOR GIESE:  Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes.

SENATOR GIESE:  Dr. O'Bryan, what would you think the leading area of research is at the Medical University?  The one that perhaps you've received the most acclaim for?

MR. O'BRYAN:  Probably cancer right now.  Second would be gastroenterology.  The department is undoubtedly world famous.  The Collins Cancer Institute is rapidly becoming that same entity.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions.  What is the pleasure of the committee on Dr. O'Bryan?

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  The motion and a second.  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, Dr. O'Bryan.  Moving on to South Carolina State, At-Large, Seat 11, Mr. John Williams, Jr. from Orangeburg.  Please raise your hand.

JOHN WILLIAMS, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. WILLIAMS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. WILLIAMS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. WILLIAMS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Go ahead, sir.

MR. WILLIAMS:  To the Chair and members of the committee I certainly appreciate your time for the screening process concerning.  I'm John Williams, Jr.  I'm a product of the public schools of South Carolina.  I was educated at Sterling High School, South Carolina State University, Clemson University.  All of my public life work has been in education.  I've worked from the mountains to the sea.  I started in Spartanburg County.  I went down to Greenwood County and worked Greenville County, Beaufort County.  And I spent 20 years at South Carolina State University on the faculty at that particular institution.  I have a tremendous debt of gratitude that I feel that I must pay, or repay, or at least try to repay, to the people who have helped me in my life.  I have loved working with children.  My wife and I continue to work with children in the community.  I love South Carolina State University.  It has been a labor of love the work that we have had an opportunity to do.  We will continue to serve regardless of what circumstances we may find ourselves in.  I am completing my first term on the Board.  During this period of time I have had an opportunity to serve on various committees.  At the present time I chair the marketing and public relations committee.  Of course we are doing certain things to make sure that we enhance our image and serving to do some things in the area of fundraising.  We have a tremendous job ahead of us.  We have a number of things that we must continue to work on as far as the university is concerned.  And I thank you chairman for his acknowledgment of the death of my colleague, Dr. Salters.  And if there are any other questions that you have I certainly will answer.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  If you as a member of the Board of Trustees can give us some insight of who set the policy an so on at South Carolina State, there appears to be such a tremendous amount of deferred maintenance that I think you probably are one of the leaders in the state at a major institutions when it comes to deferred maintenance.  I've been on your campus a number of times at the request of constituents and I must say I was appalled to see some of the facilities that were being used, which would indicate either poor planning in construction or questionable planning in construction or deferred maintenance being ignored.  As a Board, how do you people approach that problem?

MR. WILLIAMS:  It's a very difficult situation at this particular time because we certainly have to continue with our academic programs.  And of course the deferred maintenance and of course the amount of money that's appropriated and what we're able to raise as an institution I think is somewhat short.  We will have to continue to, you know, work in that effort.  We seem like we got into a situation with deferred maintenance certainly over a period of time but it's at a point now where it's very embarrassing.  I think there are things that we're going to have to certainly do in terms of addressing those kinds of concerns.  We've had a number of administrative changes, and we cannot let that serve as an excuse, we just have to roll up our sleeves and get this job done and make sure that we take care of those kind of things.

SENATOR GIESE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Representative Inabinett.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  With reference to deferred maintenance, that has been a problem for a number of years, would you or in your belief, funding for State University based on my experience has not been as great as for some of the other institutions, is this a problem or a part of the problem?

MR. WILLIAMS:  I think this is a part of the problem.  Often times we certainly have to take care of what we have.  But it has been a part of the problem because we just haven't had enough to do the job with.  And we don't want to sit around and make excuses like that because we have to work with what we have, but any time you have a short fall and of course we had a problem a year or so ago of where we were having to certainly borrow money to make sure we didn't have a tremendous short fall.  It gave us a trouble thing with our appropriation and our image as far as the University is concerned.  We worked past that situation but we're still in dire straits as far as resources.  And any time we suffer any types of cuts it really strains the situation that is already in dire straits.  And we just need the support and continued help from legislature.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  None.  Move favorable on Mr. Williams?

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  At-Large, Seat 12, Walter L. Salters, the incumbent.  And you know of Mr. Salters death.  What is the pleasure of the committee in re-opening the filing on 3/8, excuse me, 3/9 will be the deadline to file.  The intent to run for Seat 12 and screening will be held at 9:30 on a Thursday morning 3/23 of March.  3/9 will be the deadline to receive applicants and 3/23 on Thursday morning at -- let's put 9:15, that will give us plenty of time.  Is that time all right?  On a Thursday, 3/23 of March.  Do I hear a motion to declare the seat vacant?

SENATOR WILSON:  So moved.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Now, we have declared the seat At-Large, Number 12, the Walter L. Salters' seat vacated and we will be re-opening the screening for that position.  Let's move on to the University of South Carolina.  I know they've been waiting a long time.  And we want to get through just as fast as possible because some of our committee members have other commitments and need to leave here pretty quick, so let's move onto the Eight Judicial Seats.  2nd Circuit, Miles Loadholt of Barnwell.  Mr. Loadholt, please raise your right hand.

MILES LOADHOLT, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. LOADHOLT:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. LOADHOLT:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. LOADHOLT:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. LOADHOLT:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may proceed, sir.

MR. LOADHOLT:  I graduated from the University of South Carolina School of Business in 1965 and the University of South Carolina Law School in 1968.  And since that time, I have been a resident of Barnwell, South Carolina.  I am a practicing attorney from there.  Prior ... I have always supported the University of South Carolina.  I have served on the alumni council.  I have served on the Executive Committee of the Gamecock Club, Board of Directors of the Gamecock Club, and for approximately 25 years I served on the Western Carolina Higher Education Commission.  And approximately 20 of those years I was vice chairman.  I've always supported the University financially.  I've been a member of the Gamecock Club ever since graduation.  I've established scholarships at USC Soccahatchie and Allendale and Walterboro, also USC Aiken.  And also have funded an endowment for the University of South Carolina Law School.  I was fortunate enough to be elected to the Board of Trustees some four years ago.  And since that time I have served on various committees.  The ad hoc committee on advancement which is primarily a fund raising committee.  The Academic Affairs Committee.  Served as chairman of the Student Trustee Liaison Committee.  Served on the Collegiate Committee, and presently serve as chairman of the Building and Grounds Committee.  I would certainly consider it an honor to be able to serve, to be re-elected and serve an additional four years.  And I have certainly had good attendance at all of the Board and committee meetings and assure you that if I am re-elected I will serve with the same dedication that I have for the last four years.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions of Mr. Loadholt?  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Loadholt, you chair Buildings -- is it called Buildings and Grounds, Buildings and ...

MR. LOADHOLT:  Yes, I've only been chairman for several months.  Three or four months.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  And so all facilities projects, facility projects come through that committee?

MR. LOADHOLT:  Yes, ma'am.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Last week we spent an awful lot of time in here talking about deferred maintenance.  We've talked about it just briefly today.  That's something that's a real concern of mine as I see more and more, not just colleges but state agencies in general, coming in and they need more money for new construction, yet they have tremendous outstanding deferred maintenance needs.  I've been told that USC now for new buildings that they're bringing on line that they are putting aside funds to be able to meet those deferred maintenance needs as they arise with new buildings.  But as you know, there are tremendous outstanding deferred maintenance needs over there.  One thing that really concerns me with that is I see space over there being allocated to programs that I'm not real sure I can tie to the University.  For instance, the english program for internationals is occupying at least a couple floors in the Burns building which also houses the graduate school, and those students are not even students at USC.  It's my understanding they're also staying in dormitory space at USC.  These are foreigners that come into our country to learn english so they then can enroll in a college.  And some of them do subsequently come to USC but many of them go to colleges in other parts of the country.  With such outstanding deferred maintenance needs, how can we allocate such prime space for something that's really not related to USC providing an education?

MR. LOADHOLT:  I am not very familiar with that program, and I did not understand that it was not related to USC at all.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Well, they're not USC students.  They're not USC students.  They're actually in the country learning the english language so they can subsequently at some point and time become US -- well, not just USC students but subsequently enroll in a college anywhere in the country.  But they don't have the english skills and so they're coming in and they're going through this program.  They're getting free room, so-to-speak, in terms of their getting office space and we have such outstanding deferred maintenance needs over there.  I mean you just say you're not aware of it?  That was ...

MR. LOADHOLT:  I'm not aware that they are not -- that they are staying in dormitory space for free or anything of that nature.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Not for free but they're staying in dormitory space and they're not our students.

MR. LOADHOLT:  I am not that familiar with that program and I can't give you a definite answer on it but I'd be most happy to look into it for you.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Okay.  I mean I just see such outstanding deferred maintenance needs over there and so it puzzles me that we can take in off the street.  You know, and I don't doubt that the program has some benefit but I'm not so sure it's beneficial for the taxpayers of South Carolina.

MR. LOADHOLT:  It may not.  I will just have to look into that.  And how the space is allocated, I don't know.  But I will assure you that all new buildings the deferred maintenance is being set aside on those for anything being constructed now.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Senator Giese.

SENATOR GIESE:  Mr. Chairman, this would really be addressed to the whole group here.  Of course you all are going to be re-elected.  You're all very fine people.  And you're all incumbents.  I understand -- and I'd like to be corrected if I'm wrong -- that you already charge in your tuition a certain amount of money that is put aside for deferred maintenance as part of the tuition of the students.  The last I heard was $125.00 a semester per student.  That could be incorrect information.  I haven't pursued that because -- just as mentioned by Dr. Gamble, deferred maintenance could take $100,000,000.00 out of the budget very easily.  So I'd like to know if students are already being charged the deferred maintenance, and if all that money is being charged, is it being spent for deferred maintenance or does it perhaps go for something else?  The second thing, I retired from the University in '84 but I've maintained a very active interest.  I'm probably on campus four or five times a week, run a $1,000,000.00 program during the summer feeding youngsters in 16 counties out at the University, so I keep in contact with the faculty quite closely.  And one of the things that comes up very frequently in the discussions in the locker room or other places is the lack of the ability to get leadership in some of the departments in some of the colleges.  For instance, one of the things that every one of us here is tremendously interested in is education, in turning on our teachers, because of the shortage and so on.  You'd be surprised to know that over a five year period the whole state has turned five or six physics teachers.  The whole state has turned it out.  Yet the University of South Carolina, I think is three years, has been without leadership in that particular department as a full time Dean or a Dean has been not been hired.  There's been several searches and the Deans just -- they just don't seem to come up with a permanent Dean.  Well, the college of education needs a Dean.  Engineering, you've had.  But tell me, does the Board in any way ever interact or is that beyond the providence of their responsibility to insist that the leadership at key colleges like education is built?

MR. LOADHOLT:  Well, to answer your question, I'll assure you that the Board does.  We had quite a session on it on Saturday morning.  Just last Saturday morning as far as the vacancy in the College of Business Administration.  Now, we have to trust this to the administration to find the appropriate Dean.  But I'll assure you, a lot of us on the Board -- the entire Board is very concerned that we have not had a Dean in the College of Education for several years, in the business school and the engineering school.  But I will assure you that the search committees and their searches is being conducted and everybody on the Board, just not me, everyone on the board is very concerned about that problem.

SENATOR WILSON:  Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON:  I think it's remarkable that one of the highest honors in South Carolina and also one of the hardest jobs in South Carolina is to be a member of the USC Board of Trustees.  And it's very impressive today to note that none of the eight candidates are opposed and it's eight incumbents running.  I think that is a tribute to your service and I'm particularly familiar with your hard work and your wife Anne's hard work to serve our state.  And I appreciate it very much.  And I just want to thank you for what you do to make this a better South Carolina.

MR. LOADHOLT:  Thank you, Senator.  I appreciate that.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Chairman, I'll elaborate now a little about what Senator Giese brought up.  It's my understanding that the money that comes out of tuition is set aside for debt service and not really for deferred maintenance.  And I think there is some fine distinction there.  But if there is a certain amount that is actually going into retired debt services opposed to being used to do deferred maintenance and I don't know whether that's accurate but I think I've been told that.  But along the same lines as Senator Giese, I mean I can't emphasize how important I think it is that all of these colleges have a permanent Dean and I'm looking at what I pulled off the web just last night from the provost home page.  The best I can determine there are 12 colleges over there that grant undergraduate degrees and six of them right now don't have a permanent Dean.  Applied Profession, the School, the Business, the School of Education, Engineering, Journalism, and the School of Music.  Six of the 12 that actually grant baccalaureate degrees.  I think we have a fine, fine, institution over there.  I mean we have a business program that has international recognition.  The MIBS program.  And so I think it's very puzzling both for faculty within the University as well as the community to understand why we can't keep Deans.  Why we can't select a Dean and have some continuity.  I mean we just seem to -- and this is not -- I don't think this is unique to this time.  I think that it's been a continuing process that just happens to be these specific six colleges right now.  But I think that -- I mean I think -- and I don't what the solution is.  I mean I just am concerned and want to know that the Board is concerned as well that there be some continuity in these colleges.  And that we have top leadership over there at the helm at each one of these.  And teacher education is something that I think I heard Senator Setzler make reference to that will actually end up in performance-based funding for higher education institutions because it's going to become a responsibility of an entire institution not just a College of Education because we are at such a critical stage in that whole process.

MR. LOADHOLT:  Well, I, we're certainly -- the Board, I will assure you, is aware of this situation.  And we're doing everything we can to see that it is -- that we get a solution and get permanent Deans in here for all of these colleges.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Mr. Loadholt, expanding on what Dr. Gamble said about the School of International -- I hope you better luck than I have.  I've asked for the last two years to just tell me who's running the program, where the money is going.  I can't get any information and I've asked your assistants on the floor of the house to look and give me that.  We don't get even get a return call.  We get a phone --  we meet them in the hall, "I'm still searching."  I don't know who and what and who is the head of this program, where the money is going.  We got a name.  We've called him but we were never given a return call from who is supposed to be handling it.  It's my understanding this was handled at Columbia College or at one of those institutions and moved over there because you all had some extra space.  Would you give me the courtesy of when you find out -- I hate to overload you but this is a problem -- and if you would, would you give me that information when you find it?

MR. LOADHOLT:  Yes, sir.  And just to be specific, you want to know on the International programs?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, sir.  Where the money is coming from or who gets the money and how much you all charge them to stay.

MR. LOADHOLT:  Yes, sir, I will see that that information gets to you shortly.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  What is the pleasure of the committee on Mr. Loadholt?

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Second and a motion.  And all in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  And you are qualified Mr. Loadholt.  You may stay or go, whatever.  4th Circuit, DuPre Miller from Bennettsville.  Mr. Miller.

MR. MILLER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You're already up and ready to go.  Thank you, sir.  Raise your right hand, sir.

J. DUPRE MILLER, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. MILLER:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. MILLER:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. MILLER:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. MILLER:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Go ahead.

MR. MILLER:  Thank you, sir.  Mr. Foreman, ladies and gentlemen.  You have my statement.  My name is DuPre Miller.  I am married.  My wife was a Winthrop graduate.  She was in education for 30 years until she retired last year.  I have three children, all of which are girls, two of which are in education at the present time.  I am an attorney.  I was in the service of the Armed Forces from 1954 to 1956, having served one year in Korea.  As I say, I'm attorney, I'm trying to retire but the leaving is rather difficult to do after having practiced law for 40 some odd years.  I've been on the Board, this is my eighth year.  The Executive Committee appoints every member to three outstanding committees.  I have served on five of these committees.  Am presently serving on three.  I have chaired two of them.  I am presently chairman of the committee at the Medical School.  And also am serving on the ad hoc committee for advancement.  I'll try to answer any questions that you may have for me.

SENATOR WILSON:  Does any member of the committee have a question?  Hearing none, is there a motion?

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  So moved.

SENATOR WILSON:  Is there a second?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE: Second.

SENATOR WILSON:  Any discussion?  Hearing none.  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

SENATOR WILSON:  Opposed no?  Thank you very much for coming.

MR. MILLER:  Thank you.  Thank you, sir.  Thank you.

SENATOR WILSON:  The 6th Circuit, James Bradley.  And Mr. Bradley I am sitting in as the Chairman has departed just for a moment.  Please raise your right hand.

JAMES BRADLEY, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

SENATOR WILSON:  Thank you.  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. BRADLEY:  No, sir.

SENATOR WILSON:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. BRADLEY:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR WILSON:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. BRADLEY:  No, sir.

SENATOR WILSON:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. BRADLEY:  No, sir.

SENATOR WILSON:  Any questions from any member?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  I have a question.

SENATOR WILSON:  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Bradley, if my memory serves me correctly, I think you've been on the Board quite a while.  There was much, much controversy many years ago regarding foundation records and which records should be made public, and ultimately I think the Court's ruled that the foundation records over there should be made public.  Are all foundation records at the University public today?

MR. BRADLEY:  So far as I know they are, Dr. Gamble, yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  So they are available and accessible by the public?

MR. BRADLEY:  Yes.  Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Can you tell me how many people at the University might be getting supplements from foundations?

MR. BRADLEY:  I can tell you with respect to the Business Partnership Foundation that I've had connection with.  There are a number of faculty members there that have been awarded teaching supplements.  For some years now, in an effort to hold them there.  They're top ranking faculty people and it became necessary really to find salary supplements to hold them.  And I believe that number now is somewhere in the range of 12 to 15 faculty members in the business school.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  So they're all in the business school?

MR. BRADLEY:  Well, the ones that I'm familiar with are.  I'm not familiar with the other foundations so far as their supplements may be.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Thank you.

SENATOR WILSON:  Any further questions?  One of the wonderful facts about South Carolina is that you don't have to live very far to find out that you know family members, you know dear friends.  I was so pleased to obviously know who you are and we appreciate your service at Springs Industries and also to the University.  And I also want to commend you on raising a wonderful family, in that your grandson, Ward, is one of the attorneys in our law firm and you've done a terrific job on getting him properly educated.  And so it's grand to see you here today.  At this time, is there a motion of favorable?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  So moved.

SENATOR WILSON:  Dr. Gamble, second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Second.

SENATOR WILSON:  Any discussion?  Hearing none.  All in favor please signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

MR. BRADLEY:  Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Herbert Adams, 8th Congressional.

MR. ADAMS:  8th.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  It's a Judicial Circuit?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes.  Judicial.  Mr. Adams, please raise your right hand.

HERBERT C. ADAMS, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. ADAMS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. ADAMS:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. ADAMS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. ADAMS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Go ahead, sir.

MR. ADAMS:  Mr. Chairman, I have been a member of the Board of Trustees since 1984.  I have served as members of the fiscal policy, the Academic Affairs, the Building and Grounds.  I have also served and I am serving on all of those at this time.  I've served in the past on the Student Trustee Liaison Executive Committee of the Inner Collegiate Activities Committee, The Presidential Search Committee when we brought Dr. Palms here and also the Chancellor of Search Committee for Dr. Stockwell at USC Spartanburg.  I've appreciated the opportunity to serve the University.  I graduated in 1964.  I've had three daughters to graduate from the University.  All of them have, thank goodness, have picked up on our love and spread it on to my grandchildren.  So I count on not only being, having been a part of the University but continuing being a part in the future and I appreciate the opportunity to serve on the Board of Trustees.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Adams, the big subject of conversation over at the Legislature from time to time and really quite regularly is carry forth funds that an institution has.  As you know, the law allows institutions to carry forth -- as well as other state agencies, not just higher ed institutions -- I think it's five percent of their budget.  And then we have departmental funds which are totally different from that appropriated money.  Do you have any idea how much the University has in hand in departmental funds?

MR. ADAMS:  In departmental funds?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  In departmental funds.  E funds.  In other words, not appropriated money but money that they have in departmental funds and not appropriated?

MR. ADAMS:  I know that as far as appropriated funds we have about 38 percent of our budget as appropriated funds.  Now the balance of our funds to fund the University's budget comes from about five or six areas.  Some of those are generated of course by federal grants.  Others are appropriated by tuition and fees.  And then we have funds that are generated by auxiliary enterprises.  Now, it's been my understanding that certainly we have the auxiliary enterprises that develop funds that have been carried forward.  Earlier, if you remember, when you were screening the trustee candidate for South Carolina State just last year we had funds available in our auxiliary enterprises which were committed for future projects.  But at that point were available, we basically, I guess you would say, laoned to the Budget and Control Board and then loaned to South Carolina State.  Those funds run into the millions.  We do have I would almost say commitments for all of those funds as we have built into future budgets.  But as to ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  But all that is an A accounts, I'm really concerned about E accounts.

MR. ADAMS:  E accounts.  These were E account funds.  The ones we're talking about.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  The auxiliary funds are E account funds?

MR. ADAMS:  Yes, ma'am.  The E account funds.  That which we have available were E account funds.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  And are they at department level or are we talking about college ...

MR. ADAMS:  They are held in different levels.  Some of them are departmental levels but primarily yes they are dispersed throughout the University.  And to give you a total figure, I could not begin to give you that total figure.  But we do review every year.  As a matter of fact, we review on a quarterly basis -- and Mr. McLellan is now chairman of the fiscal policy and he could speak more to this -- but we review each of these accounts on a annual basis.  And many times more often than that.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  One other subject that I hear a lot about over here is the number of students who are actually out of state students but they are moved into in-state status because they've been awarded a scholarship.  And in conversations with the commission on higher education and I think based on conversations they've even had with the Attorney General's office because the statute that allows a college to do that really never specified a threshold that those scholarships must be before they could move them into that in-state status.  And so it's my understanding that they have used a figure of $250.00.  That seems to be awful low, you know, they said that the scholarships should mean something.  At least that was what came in the tuition information that I got from the commission.  But when you look at what they actually would have been paying as an out-of-state student, that really is not a meaningful amount.  Are you comfortable with that?  I mean giving someone from out of state a $250.00 scholarship.  I mean it would just seem to me that if they were such great students they would be worthy of more than a $250.00 scholarship.  $250.00 is a small amount of scholarship to give someone the status of being an in-state resident and have the state pick up that subsidy that we send over on the in-state students.

MR. ADAMS:  Okay, I believe that's $500.00.  I'm ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Well, I just got a fax from the commission just Friday.

MR. ADAMS:  ... thinking that it may be 250 a semester ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Right, 250 a term, right.

MR. ADAMS:  ... on the basis of $500.00.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Yes.

MR. ADAMS:  However, the only scholarship that I'm aware of.  I'm aware of.  Okay?  That would be that small, is our legacy scholarship which is offered to those students who have 1100 SAT's.  Whose mother or father graduated from the University of South Carolina and have since moved out of state and have still remained -- I believe remained members of the Alumni Association.  I think that's the second item.  They do have to contribute and remain ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  So is that pretty much a given, that if you qualify you are granted the scholarship, or are there a limited number of them?

MR. ADAMS:  There are limits.  Well, lets say this.  Those scholarships are provided through the Alumni Association.  Through the contributions from the Alumni Association.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Is it contributions from out of state alumni or are the instate alumni ...

MR. ADAMS:  The contributions from the general Alumni Association.  All of us who belong to the Alumni Association and make our annual contributions develop funds to offer scholarships.  And those funds are offered in two ways.  One is the legacy scholarship which you're talking about and then we offer the alumni scholarship which is much larger than that.  It probably runs somewhere in the neighborhood of around $4,000.00, approximately.  But what it takes I believe to be eligible for what we call reduced out of state tuition is $500.00 a year.  And I believe that that's a figure that's determined across the state.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Oh, it is.

MR. ADAMS:  Through the Commission on Higher Education.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  It's in the commission.  I mean the commission gave me that figure of 250 a term.

MR. ADAMS:  I don't think we determine that at the University.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  No, you didn't.  Those alumni scholarships, are they available for people from out of state or just South Carolina residents?

MR. ADAMS:  The alumni scholarships are primarily in-state except there are some out of state alumni chapters that we do take some.  But one -- now, wait, let me back up.  The alumni scholarship of the $4000.00 level are primarily in-state.  The legacy scholarship goes to those students whose mother or father graduated from the University of South Carolina and who qualified for that by way of their SAT score, their grades to get in.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  But you're comfortable in saying you think all those students who have those scholarships at least have an 1100 SAT and have the grades?

MR. ADAMS:  Yes, they do.  And if they don't maintain the grades they lose the scholarship.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  And they're pretty much given that minimum amount that moves them up?

MR. ADAMS:  On the legacy end, that's how much is given.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Graduate tuition, for years graduate tuition there was no differential between out of state and in-state students.  And recently that changed such that out of state students now had the tuition rate but I haven't met an out of state graduate student yet.  They seem to be able to get in-state status very easily.  Do you have any idea if there are any in-state -- I mean any out of state graduate students over there?  I mean because I think you can get ...

MR. ADAMS:  I think there are those ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  ... an assistantship and move into that.

MR. ADAMS:  I do think that the status for an in-state or out of state student is determined at the Commission on Higher Education level and it's very strictly enforced.  I can give you a great example.  I have a young lady that just finished from Laurens High School four years ago, went to the tech school and worked part time for three years.  She's never been out of state.  Her mother died.  Her dad, after her mother's death, moved out of state for two years and moved to Florida.  She's never left the state.  She's going to pay out of state tuition the first year because her dad claimed her on the taxes.  So I know from personal experience that the University adheres very strictly to the law as far as their rate of classification of in-state and out of state students.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Do you think it's good public policy?  I mean do you think that policy is a good policy to have it so easy for students to be able to move from out of state to in-state status?  And I ask that because, with such limited state resources, you know, every time we subsidize one of those out of state students, that's money that could have been available to give you for deferred maintenance or to give you for some other project.

MR. ADAMS:  Well, you asked me an opinion about a decision that I have nothing to do with.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  But you're in a position -- I mean you're on a governing Board of one of the colleges and so I ask that because if we get ready to change policy up here a lot of times we hear from the colleges, they don't want it changed or they do want it changed.  And so that's why I asked you that because I'm just trying to get a feel ...

MR. ADAMS:  Well, I ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  ... for what ...

MR. ADAMS:  I do know that we do have some out of state graduate students.  I know at the law school.  And you're right.  I think it's a case of being here for a year, establishing your voting criteria, your driver's license, and filing your income tax.  I believe that's pretty much ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Or getting an assistantship and doing none of those things.

MR. ADAMS:  Well, you have to have worked for a full year at a full time job is the experience that I've had in the past with some students.  I have found, Representative Gamble, that there are many times that I have been approached by students in my district who have been classified as out of state.  That they've had to jump through so many hoops.  And then when you looked at their history you'd scratch your head and say "Why?"  A student who goes to undergraduate school at Florida State University pays out of state tuition the entire time she's there, but happens to register for a presidential election because she was encouraged to register while there and that caused her to come back and she was -- came back for graduate school, she spent an entire year paying out of state tuition until had proven that she had been here and had worked 40 or 30 something hours a week as a full time taxpayer.  Yet she had never basically received, you know, in-state tuition.  So I guess I hear from it from the other end.  I hear from it from those that are having to pay out of state tuition when it looks like, in a good common sense way, they shouldn't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Representative Inabinett.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Yes, my question may not be related to your responsibilities as a Board member but I convened a meeting and pulled together individuals with Willie Nelson's stamp out of Boston and individuals here and at the University a few years ago and I'm on the record as being or having been the official fundraiser for the Farm Aid concert that was held here.  There is some dialogue taking place now with reference to another concert.  Do you in your opinion feel that the Board might welcome such sometime in the near future?

MR. ADAMS:  Yes, sir.  We changed the policy of the use of the stadium some -- I'm trying to think how many years ago, but it's been five, six, seven, maybe longer than that, years ago, to where the stadium could be used for such events as this.  And we would welcome that, I feel sure.  We've done it in the past and I see no reason not to do it in the future.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Thank you, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions of Mr. Adams?  What is the pleasure of the committee on Mr. Adams?

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  We have a motion and a second.  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

MR. ADAMS:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, Mr. Adams.  From the 10th Circuit, Robert N. McLellan from Seneca.  Oh, I've been waiting on this one.

ROBERT N. MCLELLAN, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. MCLELLAN:  I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. MCLELLAN:  I am.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. MCLELLAN:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. MCLELLAN:  I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Go ahead.

MR. MCLELLAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee.  I am finishing my fourth year as a member of the Board of Trustees at the University of South Carolina.  And I'm looking forward to continued service.  I believe my prior experience on the General Assembly which was 14 years and as an agency head for two years, has served me well on the USC Board.  I bring an understanding of the political process of working for the General Assembly.  I presently served as chairman of the Fiscal Policy Committee and I'm a member of the Academic Affairs Committee.  The university continues to grow both in numbers of students and in the quality of the academic programs.  As we strive to become a member of the prestigious American Association of Universities we will be celebrating our bicentennial in 2001, and I look forward to being part of that historical event.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions of Mr. McLellan?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Chairman?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. McLellan, you're now chairman of the Fiscal Policy, is that right?

MR. MCLELLAN:  Yes, ma'am.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  I have a question out of interest because I've had a lot of people ask me this question and I'm very curious to know.  There seems to be a practice right now where certain faculty members are being offered retirement agreements, some of them very, very lucrative to retire.  And it doesn't seem to be related to anything that I can put my finger on in terms, I've seen some very productive people being offered these agreements and I've seen some people who aren't very productive being offered these agreements.  Nothing seems to circulate in writing on how you get one of these agreements.  And the terms seem to vary from person to person.  You would just be sitting in a faculty meeting and they will announce well, so and so is going to be retiring next year and they have an agreement.  And they might be going to work three more years and get 20 or 30 percent a year for the next three years and they may be going to get 50 percent lump sum at the end of the retirement.  Can you shed any light on how one gets a retirement agreement and how that's determined and are there policies on that?  I mean I know there's a statute that allows that to happen but are there policies or is there any consistency on how those are done or is it just left up to whoever is dealing with it?

MR. MCLELLAN:  I don't think there is any consistency, to be honest with you, because I've had some concern about that just recently on a particular one.  And my inquiries have said that it varies from department to department.  But as they qualify for retirement and they request it, then in some cases it's granted.  But I don't think it's consistent from one department to another.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  But do you not think it would be good policy to have this in writing so that ...

MR. MCLELLAN:  I do.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  ... there'll be some understanding as to who qualifies and who doesn't qualify and that there's -- like I said, I've seen some people get them and I think it was an act of favoritism and I've seen other people get them and I think it was an act of wanting them out of the door.  It just ...

MR. MCLELLAN:  I do think it would be a good policy to have a policy.  And it's ironic that you bring it up because I've made inquiries about it in the last two weeks.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Well, it seemed, I mean, like I said, other than the College of Education there are -- I won't say a number of people -- but there are more than a few people who have retirement agreements.  But like I said, you can't get any information other than to know they got one and it was a good one.

MR. MCLELLAN:  Yes, ma'am.  I hear what you're saying.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Can you see the Board addressing that at any point and time?

MR. MCLELLAN:  I do.  Particularly our committee.  And we have addressed it on I mean a specific case, which in doing that uncovered the situation that you refer to, the inconsistency from one department to the other.  And our committee plans to discuss this with the full Board at a certain time.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other committee members ...

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  And the motion has been made.  It there a second.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

MR. MCLELLAN:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Mr. McLellan, you are now qualified.  Thank you, sir.  14th Circuit and that seat is held by the incumbent Helen C. Harvey of Beaufort.  H. Tim Purist of Beaufort had filed but withdrew when he found out Ms. Harvey was a candidate, and so now we have Ms. Helen C. Harvey as an incumbent without opposition.  Ms. Harvey, would you raise your right hand for me?

HELEN C. HARVEY, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MS. HARVEY:  I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MS. HARVEY:  I am.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MS. HARVEY:  I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MS. HARVEY:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may proceed.

MS. HARVEY:  Thank you.  It's been my privilege to serve on the Board of Trustees for about eight years now.  And I want to thank the legislature for the confidence that they have given me in electing me to this position and from the 14th Judicial Circuit.  It is a privilege and also it is a tremendous responsibility.  The university, as you know, is many faceted and touches every single person in this state in some way, shape or form.  And it is a really important, I feel, a tremendous responsibility for being sure that all the people in the state, all of our young people, have access to quality higher education.  I think that is my main passion.  During my tenure the Board has worked with many people to enhance the reputation of the university and to improve the quality of life in our state.  It is our goal to become a member of the AAU which is the Association of Universities and we do not have any -- we are the only state in the southeast that does not have an AAU university.  And our University is the only institution in this state that has the ability to become that in any length of time.  And as you know that's been talked about a great deal.  And we feel that just having the goal has made us a very much better institution.  Whether or not we get it in the next year or two but we will continue to strive until we are invited to that.  And it does take a great deal of effort on everyone's part, the Legislature's part, the commission's part ... the trustees had ever seen the University in having the money to spend and how our programs are brought to fruition in that the students in the University.  I have been associated with the University in many different ways.  I've graduated from here.  I have -- my husband did.  My - I've been director and president of the Alumni Association.  I've been a chairman of the Higher Education Commission in Beaufort County.  I have served on both of the educational and development foundation boards at various times.  And I just love the University.  I think that we are probably on the brink of being one of the best Universities.  The best that the University has give in a long time.  We have strived -- particularly striving to get academic excellence.  And I feel like I have been a part of a great team.  This school works beautifully together.  They have -- I've never seen, although I've heard other people say they've never seen a group of people that work any harder.  We do come to Columbia a lot.  We sit through many, many meetings.  And I don't think there's a facet of the University that we do not discuss at some time.  I feel like my background in teaching and in real estate has given me -- and particularly as a political wife -- has given me a lot of insight and ability to help make decisions at the trustee level.  We have five children and now have 22 grandchildren so I'm really interested in education at all levels, and have been for a long time.  And I would appreciate being allowed to serve again on this fine Board that we serve on.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, Ms. Harvey.

MS. HARVEY:  Thank you.

SENATOR WILSON:  Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON:  I note in the statement that you provide to us that you identify yourself as a political wife and I consider that one of the highest honors you can have.  But I also really think that you and Brantley are a political team of public service to our state.  So we are very much appreciate what both of you have done for South Carolina together.  Also, I'm excited about the expansion of USCB.  The new campus.  We're already very appreciative of the quality of life in Beaufort County.  All of it -- above the broad and below the broad.  And so I'm just delighted to see that campus coming on line and it's going to mean so much to South Carolina.

MS. HARVEY:  Well, we certainly appreciate all the support we've gotten for that campus.  We have a mission to fill in that area to bring programs back to the most under served area in the state which I'm sure you've heard often throughout the legislative process.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Ms. Harvey, as chair of Fiscal, not -- excuse me, you're a chair of Academic Affairs.  You mentioned the University's goal of AAU status which I think would be wonderful.  I'm not real sure with our high number of vacancies in our Dean positions that we are positioning ourselves to be seriously considered but there seems to be a lot of scuttlebutt on campus that the reason we have all of these Dean vacancies is that we will only accept a Dean candidate who is coming from an AAU institution.  Do you know if there is any truth to that?  I mean that would be wonderful to have one, but I would think the reality is that you're not going to leave an AAU institution to go to an institution that it does not have AAU status?

MS. HARVEY:  Well, I know that the search committee has talked to the provost and the president who are really in charge of the Dean searches.  They're the ones who, you know, have the final decision.  And they've brought -- they have attempted to bring many candidates who were part of an AAU institution.  I don't think that that -- it has not been limited to that at all.  They have had -- they are very frustrated about particularly education.  Well, all of the Dean searches that they're looking at, but particularly the School of Education as you mentioned earlier which is so important at this point.  I will say this, that they have appointed extremely fine Interim Deans.  And some of those Deans are not -- do not want to be a permanent Dean even though they could be.  There are just various reasons, as we talk about it at the Board of Trustees, that we are given various reasons for them being turned down or someone saying they were going to come and then decided not to.  And some of it is finances, you know, and you were asking I believe one of the other candidates about the supplements.  We use the supplements from foundation supplements to do that.  To draw the Deans and to put together a package that would bring them here.  And I do know that they are working very hard.  And I think because we've said so much about AAU they may -- the perception may be that we're only looking at AAU.  We would be very thankful if we could get some people from AAU but it's not limited to that I'm sure.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  We have a situation over at the College of Engineering as you well know with an acting Dean.  How long will we stay in that status as opposed to moving to the status of actually seeking a Dean.  I mean, I understand what's going on with former Dean Rogers but ...

MS. HARVEY:  Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  ... is the University holding that position for him, I mean to resume one day as Dean, or why was there an acting Dean named there as opposed to an interim with a search put in place?

MS. HARVEY:  I'm sorry but I don't really -- I don't know the situation there.  I'm sure we discussed it at some time but I'm not aware of it enough right now to answer your question.  I do know that that is the only search that's on hold I believe.  And I can certainly find out why.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Second?

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, Ms. Harvey.

MS. HARVEY:  Thank you.  And we thank you for your support.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Well, let's see.  15th Circuit.  Mr. M. Wayne Staton from Conway.  And he's up.

M. WAYNE STATON, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. STATON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. STATON:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. STATON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. STATON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Go ahead.

MR. STATON:  I'm a graduate of the University of South Carolina.  I'm a member of the Alumni Association and a member of the Gamecock Club.  And I'm seeking to serve my second term as a member of the Board of Trustees at the University of South Carolina.  I've been in the banking career since 1970.  My wife is finishing her 31st year in public education.  I have lived in Horry County since 1978 and I've lived in Conway since 1985.  I'm a member of the Kingston Presbyterian Church and past elder.  I served as a trustee for the Conway Hospital Foundation.  I'm an active member of the Board of Directors of United Way and have been a supporter of the United Way since the early '70's.  My interaction with the board the past four years have been very heavy on a local basis with the parents and the students in the local areas trying to be of assistance in any way I could to try to ensure that those students that wanted to attend the University or whatever the various programs were that I could assist in any way I could.  I'd be glad to ask any questions.  Answer any questions.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Thank you.  Mr. Staton, I ask you this question since you are from the coast.  We spent a lot of time last week when we were screening candidates, as I said earlier, on deferred maintenance.  But we also spent a lot of time talking about graduation rates at colleges.  And also the Palmetto Fellows Program and the fact that the current statute requires that 18 percent of the Palmetto Fellows money be allocated to private institutions and 82 percent of it be designated for public institutions, and that percentage was based on the percentage of students who typically are enrolled in public versus private institutions in the state.  We now have a new scholarship program that is even more lucrative than the Palmetto Fellows.  And it is the Teacher Fellows program.  And the Teacher Fellows Program will award students $6,000.00 a year as opposed to 5,000 that Palmetto Fellows get.  In addition to that, the students are eligible for the $2,000.00 Life Scholarship so they can get $8,000.00 a year in scholarship funds.  The catch in this is why I address this to somebody from the coast.  Institutions were designated to be Teacher Fellow sites.  Coastal, which I know you are from that area but you certainly are on the USC Board, Coastal was not chosen as a Teacher Fellow site in spite of them having an encade (ph) of accredited programs down there.  Neither was Winthrop, neither was Clemson.  USC was chosen.  But the slots are delegated here as opposed to the percentage of funding.  USC got 35 of the 200 scholarships.  But 84 of those scholarships are going to private colleges.  That concerns me a lot.  The whole tracking mechanism of scholarship money really puzzles me because the whole purpose of both of those programs is to keep our best and brightest students in South Carolina, in particular teachers.  I mean there's such a shortage of teachers and these teachers have to repay their loan through teaching service.  The University always fights the Legislature in trying to move that tracking mechanism.  Now, in my mind, the University is going to be penalized on this one for Teacher Fellows.  Do you support tracking that money and allocating it, forcing the allocation of it to the 82 - 18 percent?  And I ask that because I am very concerned.  USC does have 35 of those 200 slots.  But in my opinion, USC would get more than 35 of those students if the University weren't limited to just having 35 of those scholarship recipients.  I'm concerned that next year we can get the -- and we most probably will get the top 35.  I mean I think that the top 35 will choose USC because they have to choose one of those nine locations, and there are four public colleges and five private colleges on the list.  But I'm concerned that we get the first 35 and then the best we can get after that is number 201.  And I think we would get more than number 2- ... we'd get better than number 201.  What is your whole take on that because we spent a lot of time last week talking about that forced allocation as far as the distribution is concerned?  I mean do you think that's good public policy or do you think that the scholarship money should follow the student?

MR. STATON:  Dr. Gamble, I must apologize.  I'm not as up the information that you have brought before me as you are.  It seems to me that it would be very important track if that's -- is that the word you were using, "track"?

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Well, I'm saying tracking because we basically make the money.  We force the allocation to public colleges and private colleges.

MR. STATON:  Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  And the same thing is true now with the Teacher Fellows Program, it actually is done on a specific scholarship as opposed to a percentage.

MR. STATON:  Yes, ma'am.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  And 84 of those scholarships are going to go to private colleges and 116 are going to go to public colleges.  You know, we're not in as bad a situation as Clemson and Winthrop are.

MR. STATON:  Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Clemson and Winthrop know that the best education student they're going to get next year is number 201.

MR. STATON:  Well, from a very biased prejudiced standpoint, I would not see anything wrong with the University of South Carolina getting all 200 scholarships.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Well, we don't get to choose that.  But there again, if we let it go with the student, we may get all 200 of them.

MR. STATON:  Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  But the current situation -- and this what is so troubling for me, and every year it seems like the problem is and why it becomes such an issue -- we force the distribution such that 82 percent goes to the public colleges, 18 percent of the Palmetto Fellows is going to the private colleges, and it never fails, we get constituents call us "My child has always wanted to go to Furman."

MR. STATON:  Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  "My child has always wanted to go to Wofford."  But my child -- there's not enough private school money and in reality, I don't think -- I mean it may take a few students from USC, or a few students from Clemson, or a few students from the College of Charleston.  And quite frankly, those are the only institutions that are being impacted because that's where these students typically want to go.  I mean, those seem to be the institutions of choice more so than the other colleges.  And I look at the life scholarship distribution which follows the student as opposed to being tracked, and the Life Scholarship, only 22 percent of that is going to a private college.  So when we turn it loose and we let the student choose, we're not losing that many.  But I think it's going to be a hard argument to fight.  And quite frankly, I'm going to try to fight it during the budget to take the cap off the Teacher Fellows because I don't like the fact that we're arbitrarily going to send 84 percent of these people into private colleges as opposed -- and in some instances to unaccredited programs.  Some of those colleges don't even have accredited programs yet you've got Winthrop and you've got Coastal Carolina.  And you've got Clemson that all have accredited programs but their proposals weren't as good ...

MR. STATON:  Right.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  ... as the rest of the proposals.  That they didn't judge the programs, they judged the proposals.

MR. STATON:  And again, I'm not as familiar with what you're talking about but if that was the criteria that we could have only judged the proposals and those proposals were the best, then I would -- I can't argue with the outcome.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Well, there was a lot wrong with -- if you ask me the proposal guidelines were sitting on people's desks when they came back after Christmas holidays and they were due in five days.

MR. STATON:  I see.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  And a lot of faculty were not on campus and so in defense of those who did not win Teacher Fellow sites, you know, they most probably didn't have the faculty resources to put the proposals together.

MR. STATON:  Could be.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other committee members?  Thank you, sir.  You may stay.  What is the pleasure of the committee?

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

MR. STATON:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  And all in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  16th Circuit, Sam R. Foster, II from Rock Hill.

SAM R. FOSTER, II, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. FOSTER:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. FOSTER:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. FOSTER:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. FOSTER:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may proceed.

MR. FOSTER:  Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee it has been my privilege to serve on the Board of Trustees for this is now my fourth term.  I am from Rock Hill, South Carolina.  Born in Chester.  Grew up in York County.  I am married for 15 years.  Two boys, 11 and 7.  And graduated from the public school system in Rock Hill, South Carolina.  I'm a graduate of the University in 1980.  And have enjoyed my tenure on the Board.  The Legislature at the time I was elected took tremendous confidence to elect me as the youngest person ever elected to this board and I have had a tremendous experience sharing with as a chair of the Student Trustee Liaison Committee in the early part of my tenure what it means to have been a student and then to serve on the Board of Trustees.  I currently serve on the Executive Committee, Medical Affairs Committee, and the Student Trustee Liaison Committee.  I've also served on the Fiscal Policy Committee.  And I'd be glad to take any questions at this time.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?  Well, Sam had to run and go.  He was one of my pages.

MR. FOSTER:  That's correct.

SENATOR WILSON:  He's been well trained.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, that's right.

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes.  All in favor signify by saying aye.


(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Sam, thank you, sir.  We'll go to Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School.  This is the last one.  At-Large Four Seats and eight people.  So number one, the first person will be Bryan England of Murrells Inlet.

SENATOR WILSON:  Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes.

SENATOR WILSON:  As Mr. England is coming forward I'd like to acknowledge that Pat Smith the Executive Director of Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School is here, and we appreciate him being here.  He wears multiple hats also in the community that I live in of Springdale, he is our mayor, and so he somehow is able to do everything mainly because he married so well.  His wife Rosalee is just a wonderful person.  His mom is a great person.  And so Mayor, we appreciate you being here today.

MAYOR PAT SMITH:  Thank you, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  He has had a job.  Mr. England, go ahead, sir.

BRYAN ENGLAND, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. ENGLAND:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. ENGLAND:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. ENGLAND:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. ENGLAND:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Go ahead.

MR. ENGLAND:  I'm a lifelong resident of the State of South Carolina.  For the past 28 years I've worked with the State Technical Education system.  And that really is one of the reasons I'm interested in this position.  I understand the unique role that Wil Lou Gray plays as giving the youth in this state a second chance to restructure their lives.  And I think that's a wonderful thing that we can do that.  Working in the State Tech system for 28 years as I stated, I realize fully that this state has a real challenge in getting a trained work force to meet its needs, whether it's in industry or business, and I meet and I hear about that everyday.  And that is one thing that I hope that I can bring to Wil Lou Gray would be my experience in working with it and/or with training and hopefully emphasize that with the young people that they bring to the campus.  I have two children.  One who is an honor student at the College of Charleston, and a daughter who is a junior in high school.  My father was a probation officer.  I've worked at a Children's Home, so I know a little bit about campus life.  I would welcome to answer any questions you may have at this time.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any questions of Bryan?  None.  Thank you, sir.  Yes, did you have one?

SENATOR WILSON:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Okay, Samuel Goodwater, Jr. from Beaufort.  Samuel Goodwater, Jr. from Beaufort.  Does anybody know Mr. Goodwater?  Has he been here?  Has he gone to put any money in the meter?  Have you seen him?  Does anybody know him?  We'll call again at the end.  He may have stepped out and I'm not familiar with Mr. Goodwater.  We'll now go to Charles E. Jackson of Lexington.  Please raise your right hand.

CHARLES E. JACKSON, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. JACKSON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. JACKSON:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. JACKSON:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. JACKSON:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Go ahead with your statement.

MR. JACKSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and also the Committee Members for the opportunity to be here today.  My wife and I over the past several years have sought to look at opportunities to be involved in the community, and for 12 years we've worked with foster children.  Over those years we adopted three of those foster children that we have cared for.  My relationship with the school is very personal.  I am a high school drop out.  I sought opportunities in my young life to make a difference in my own life.  I got my GED through the military.  I graduated with a masters degree from the University of South Carolina in 1980 so I know what it is to have to face some of the problems when you're not a high school graduate to try to get yourself back into the work force.  Since 1964 I have worked in South Carolina industry.  I have served in numerous capacities.  I've been employed in numerous capacities over the years starting as an hourly employee and now I'm in a position as department manager.  I feel like I can bring to the school itself several things.  One is I have a sincere belief in the purpose and the mission of the school, that is to reach out to the undereducated.  I also believe that through my professional activities and through my experience as a manager that I can bring an industrial perspective to the school in which we can look at opportunities to go beyond just the service area and get into the industrial sector of the state.  I am very familiar with accountability, fiscal accountability and responsibility, industry throughout all the United States.  Worked hard at maximizing its profits by watching the dollars that is spent, making sure that we know where the dollars are being spent.  And I feel like that that is an important thing that a Board member must have and must bring to the table when they're in this type of position because the money doesn't belong to the Board members, it belongs to the people of the state and they have to be held accountable for that.  So I feel like that due to my background, due to what I feel like I can bring to the table that I can serve well as a representative of the Board.  And I thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions from committee members?

SENATOR WILSON:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to comment that ...

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Senator Wilson?

SENATOR WILSON:  ... Mr. Jackson is a constituent and I know his reputation in the community.  And I also appreciate your referencing the industrial background.  Your work with International Paper at the Eastover Plant, I know what a good and high position he has.  So we appreciate your offering for this position.

MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Excuse me.

MR. JACKSON:  Oh, I'm sorry.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Representative ...

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Jackson, I would only want to comment and say that I very much appreciate you adopting the children that you had as foster children.  I mean I think that's such a great thing.  And I mean I can't say enough about that.  I think so often those children are over looked and I think that to adopt a child like that -- I know it's been difficult because you've adopted what somebody else started with.  And so I just -- my hat's off to you and I commend you so much for that because I -- so often those children are left without someone and so I can -- it makes me really feel good about people when I see them doing -- I think that's one of the best things a person or one of the best ways a person can contribute to society.  I mean I really do.

MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.  We've enjoyed it.  We've got six grandchildren now.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Wilhelmina McBride from Columbia.

WILHELMINA MCBRIDE, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. MCBRIDE:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MS. MCBRIDE:  I am.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MS. MCBRIDE:  No, I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MS. MCBRIDE:  No, I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may go ahead.

MS. MCBRIDE:  I'm a retired educator with 30 years plus teaching experience.  And I find it extra rewarding to have served on the Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School Board for four terms.  We have a wonderful program and we are making a difference in the lives of the young people we serve.  If it were not for our program many of these young people would not have an opportunity to have a second chance at success in life.  When we see these young people succeed, then we're all winners.  I believe -- I know I care about the young people and I'm concerned and I work hard to see that they will reach their highest potential.  I have a good working relationship with the other Board members.  We have a wonderful superintendent.  We have a wonderful staff, wonderful faculty, and we support them.  We are supportive and we want the cadets to have the kind of exposure they need so that they can become valiant and contributing members of society.  I'd like to continue my service on the Board and I look forward to seeing more cadets accomplish their educational goals.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?  None.  No questions.  Thank you, ma'am.  Next is Mary F. Newman from Cayce.

MARY F. NEWMAN, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MS. NEWMAN:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MS. NEWMAN:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MS. NEWMAN:  I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MS. NEWMAN:  I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Go ahead.

MS. NEWMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee.  My life has been spent in education and I've had -- I've enjoyed all of it.  And I was a graduate and am a graduate of Columbia College.  And I have my masters degree from the University of South Carolina in education.  I spent 43 years in service in Lexington School District Two which is right across the river.  And I was a elementary, a middle and a high school teacher.  I was a guidance counselor and I was a building administrator.  And I was an assistant to the superintendent since 1976 until I retired.  The last six years of that I was here in the office for Lexington School District Two.  And that afforded me the opportunity to come and have many experiences with young people who needed a second time around and were not successful in the traditional school setting.  So I became aware of their problems.  My mother was a school teacher.  I was born and raised in Heath Springs up in Lancaster County on a farm.  She had a great influence on my life and I hope that my husband and I -- my husband's deceased but he was an educator too -- that we've had some influence with our children.  We have three sons all of whom are in educational positions here in this state, and their wives are also.  How I became interested particularly in Dr. Wil Lou Gray is that she was kind of my mentor.  When I was at Columbia College, she came there often to speak to us and I became attracted to her and her philosophy of education.  And then later on when I started teaching at Brookland Cayce High School I went out there for a lot of her training sessions.  And I completed a number of her sessions in addition to working in Lexington District Two.  And I studied under her and Dr. Marguerite Talbot who was her counterpart.  Her concept was indisputable in wanting to provide a statewide program where everyone, despite his or her circumstances, could get an education.  So under her program at nighttime I would go to the woman's division of the state penitentiary and also in the summertime the girl's industrial school, which I don't think they really have those anymore, more similar to DJJ.  And had an opportunity to work with these people under the auspices of Dr. Gray.  I was very -- she really was my mentor in education because of her concept.  And I was very appreciative of receiving the first Wil Lou Gray Outstanding Educator Award from my alma mater of Columbia College.  Each time I hear the list of our students who graduated and passed the GED and witness these people, I know that these students in our society are much better off for this school that we have.  For these reasons, I would like to continue being a part of this school and ask for re-election.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Any board member?  Dr. Gamble.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Mr. Chairman, I just want to acknowledge all that Ms. Newman has done for our community.  She has been a mainstay over in the Cayce West Columbia School District and is to this day still well respected as far as an educator over there.  And I just appreciate everything that you've done for our community and your continued service on the Wil Lou Gray Board.

MS. NEWMAN:  Thank you, ma'am.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Senator Wilson.

SENATOR WILSON:  Thank you, Representative Gamble.  I just want to second that the Newman family, Frankie and her late husband Tom, and then the three sons are certainly, really the first family of education in Lexington County and the eastern part of the county, and we appreciate it and you mean so much to our community.

MS. NEWMAN:  Thank you, Senator.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any others?  Thank you, ma'am.  Next is Carlisle Roddey from Chester.  Good evening, sir.

CARLISLE RODDEY, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. RODDEY:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. RODDEY:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. RODDEY:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. RODDEY:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may go ahead, Carlisle.

MR. RODDEY:  Thank you, sir.  Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee.  I thank you for the opportunity to come here today.  I spent the biggest part of just about all of my adult life in public service.  I retired after last year, when I noticed the advertisement in the paper or the write up that was in the paper that they needed people to fill out an application for different committees and boards and all and I said well, heck, I haven't got anything else to do except clean up the house, and wash the car, and cut grass and all this stuff so that's why I applied for it.  I, over my lifetime I've worked at night.  About 36 years ago we started a rescue squad, 14 guys and myself, we started a rescue squad, it was 13 and myself.  And I'm the only one left there now.  I served as a captain of that rescue squad for 30 years and now I'm the Chairman of the Board.  Then I became the civil defense director.  They call it civil preparedness now.  But I became the civil defense director for chester county.  Back in those days the funeral homes ran the ambulance service so then they decided well, they were going to get out of the ambulance service and so they got me to set up the first EMS for Chester County.  So then I ran -- I managed a radio station.  I ran for public office.  I ran for the county supervisor's job.  That's a four year job.  And it's the same thing as the county manager.  And I was elected six times.  Over those years I've served many, many things.  And I was on the Board of Directors of the Catawba Regional Planning Commission.  I'm still on the Midlands EMS Board that's worked -- that's out of Columbia.  I was the president of the Chamber of Commerce.  In my job as county supervisor I got to see a lot of things.  I was basically over departments.  All kind of departments.  We had something that they called back in the long time ago they used to call it the chain gang but we called it the prison extension.  I got to see a lot of kids and young men who come through there that really shouldn't have ever been there.  They should have -- somebody should have kind of guided them along because they probably needed a second chance somewhere in their lifetime to give them a little shove.  Over the years I've broadcast high school sports on the radio.  I'm a play by play guy. I've been there 30 years doing that.  So I've seen a lot of young men that I see out there with the stripes on and I said, "What in the world are you doing here?"  Well, they kind of hang their head and go on and you know, but I felt like that, you know, somebody could have maybe given them a little shot and a little chance.  My wife is the -- I'm married and my wife is the Probate Judge at Chester County.  She hadn't worked there very long, this coming July she'll be there 43 years.  We have two sons.  And two and 3/4 grandsons.  One will be born, hopefully, with the good Lord willing, June 8th, and we're already know it's going to be a little boy.  And one of those grandchildren is adopted but we don't know the difference between them.  He'll have his fifth birthday on the 23rd day of March.  And we love him as much as we do the other one and the one that's going to be born.  We don't even know the difference between them.  And that's the thing about it.  Kids need another chance.  And that's why I would like to serve on the Wil Lou Gray Board because I've checked about it.  I had a history teacher one time that she told me that she taught at the Wil Lou Gray school.  And she kept talking about it, and talking about it, and talking about it.  That's how I knew about the Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School.  So I appreciate the opportunity to speak with you and I'll answer any questions that you might have for me.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Anybody got any questions of Mr. Roddey?  None?  I hope you wasn't as nervous as I was the first time I met Carlisle.  It was in 1980.

SENATOR WILSON:  In Probate Court?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  I was real fortunate.  I had only been elected one term and I was real fortunate to run against an incumbent and he was my friend and still is my friend.  And I appreciate you telling me the do's and don't's in Chester County at that time.  Thank you, Carlisle.

MR. RODDEY:  Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Next is Diana Taylor from Columbia.  Ms. Taylor.  Please raise your right hand.

DIANA TAYLOR, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MS. TAYLOR:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MS. TAYLOR:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MS. TAYLOR:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MS. TAYLOR:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Go ahead, ma'am.

MS. TAYLOR:  Thank you for being ... Thank you and members.  I am a first time person on running for this so I'm a little nervous.  I used to go to Wil Lou Gray long years ago so I know about the school.  And it has changed a whole lot since I've been there because I see it when I go over there and everything.  And the things I was -- want to be on the board because I want to see children get a second chance in doing things.  I'm in the school district right now and I see a lot of kids that they do not care about education.  And I would love to see Wil Lou Gray and help those kids understand what the world is about.  And I feel if I can get on there I can contribute to these things that children need to help them grow into the community.  And I'm on the -- I have -- I'm not married, I'm single.  I have two children.  I have four grandchildren.  My daughter graduated from college, unfortunately she went out of state.  I dad no control over that.  And I work pretty hard, so I understand what it is to maneuver with money in getting what you need to do things with.  And I would love to participate and be a part of Wil Lou Gray and to do good.  I would like the opportunity to answer questions now if you'd like.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Is there any questions of any committee members?  None.  Thank you ma'am.  Suzanne Turner from Gaffney.  Please raise your right hand.

SUZANNE TURNER, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Suzanne, do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MS. TURNER:  No, I do not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MS. TURNER:  Yes, I can.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MS. TURNER:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MS. TURNER:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may go ahead with your statement.

MS. TURNER:  I am running for re-election to the Wil Lou Gray Board of Trustees because I feel like I've been very helpful in facilitating many of the changes that have occurred at Wil Lou Gray in the past four years.  We did have some areas of the school that have problems and we've worked very hard to change these problems.  We've had the help of several legislators and the Board and we're happy to say that we've changed a lot of things that needed to be changed.  We also have a compact with the South Carolina National Guard.  We house the Youth Challenge Academy at the Wil Lou Gray School.  And as some of you know the National Guard has a very special place in my heart because my daddy was with the Guard for 40 something years.  He retired as a State Command Sergeant Major and they dedicated the new armory in Gaffney to him.  So the Guard is very special to me.  I've enjoyed being a part of the Wil Lou Gray Board of Trustees and having a part in the Youth Challenge Program.  We have many more things that we need to accomplish and I'd like to be a part in helping these things come to fruition.  We have a wonderful school which is a last resort for a lot of students in this state.  It's very gratifying to see these students when they walk across the stage at graduation because we know that without this chance some of them would be out on the streets, they would be out of school and a lot of them would be incarcerated.  For these reasons and many more I would like to continue my service on the Wil Lou Gray Board of Trustees.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Questions?

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Mr. Chairman, I would just like to make a comment that Goucher Elementary School is in my district and Ms. Suzanne is the media specialist there and she runs a tight ship.  I have battle scars.

MS. TURNER:  And he comes anytime I call him.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  I'd also would like to commend Suzanne.  See, even though she lives 200 miles away, and I believe Pat could back this up, I don't believe you've missed anything as far as activities there and as far as graduations ...

MS. TURNER:  No, he has to put up with me all the time.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Well, that's commending somebody that ...

SENATOR WILSON:  Also, the auctions.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes.

SENATOR WILSON:  Ms. Turner has been very helpful.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any more questions of Suzanne?  They'll find something.  Let's find something wrong with her.

MR. TURNER:  You saved the best for last, I mean.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Okay, thank you, Suzanne.  What is the pleasure of the committee for the candidates we've heard this morning?

SENATOR WILSON:  Elementary inquiry, we have one person who did not attend.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Oh, yes.

SENATOR WILSON:  Mr. Goodwater.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Oh, okay.

SENATOR WILSON:  Would it be possible to invite him to our next session or is there ...

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  If the committee wants to make that recommendation we certainly will.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  So moved.

SENATOR WILSON:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  The committee has extended the date of 3/23 and I'll ask the staff to notify Mr. Goodwater that we certainly missed him here today.  He has another opportunity on 3/23.  If that's a date that he would like to come and participate.

SENATOR WILSON:  Move favorable as to all others.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes.  All favorable.

REPRESENTATIVE GAMBLE:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Second.  All right.  That means everybody is eligible to seek and, please, do not go out seeking votes until after it is reported in the Journal of the Senate and the House.  And then on the day after at 11:00, after it is published in the Journals you may seek pledges.  Thank you for coming.  Thanks to the Committee for participation.  And at this time we stand adjourned.

(There being no further questions, the screening was concluded at 1:12 p.m.)

TRUSTEE CANDIDATE SCREENING

Thursday, March 9, 2000

9:35 a.m. - 9:45 a.m.

The candidate screening process for State of South Carolina College and University Board of Trustee Seats, chaired by Senator Olin Phillips, held at 433 Blatt Building, Columbia, South Carolina, on the 9th day of March, 2000 before Sonya S. Keesee, Court Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of South Carolina.

APPEARANCES:

COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Senator Olin Phillips, Chairman

Representative Curtis Inabinett

Representative Lanny Littlejohn

ALSO PRESENT:

Sophia Floyd - Assistant to the Committee

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  We're here today to screen for Wil Lou Gray, Mr. Samuel Goodwater, Jr. for a Wil Lou Gray Seat Opportunity School at-Large.  Introduction of the Committee Members is Representative Lanny Littlejohn from Spartanburg and Representative Curtis Inabinett from Charleston and myself, Representative Olin Phillips and I am from Cherokee, Gaffney.  We have the Creel agency here doing dictation and Sophia Floyd, our Executive Secretary.  At this time we would like to go ahead and screen Mr. Samuel Goodwater.  Mr. Goodwater?

MR. GOODWATER:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  If you will, will you please stand?

MR. GOODWATER:  Oh, okay.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  And I'm going to swear you in.  Will you please raise your right hand.

MR. GOODWATER, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Goodwater, I need to ask you a few questions.  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity?

MR. GOODWATER:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. GOODWATER:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. GOODWATER:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. GOODWATER:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All right, sir, if you would make a short statement we would appreciate it.

MR. GOODWATER:  My name is Samuel Goodwater, Jr.  And, first of all, I'm proud to be a South Carolinian.  I'm from Beaufort County and I'm a retired school teacher.  I coached and taught for 31 years in the public school system of the State of South Carolina.  I'm now retired and I'm working as an alcohol and drug counselor with kids in Allendale, Hampton, and Jasper Counties.  I have found out through my years of teaching and coaching that I'm very interested in kids, and I feel that my experience it leads to positive relationships in working with the Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School.  I'm married and I have one son who's 25 years of age.  He's just getting out of the College of Charleston.  I graduated from South Carolina State College, South Carolina State University.  I'm attribulated (ph) also in the graduate level at the University of South Carolina and the College of Charleston.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, sir.  Thank you, sir.  Committee Members, any questions?  Mr. Littlejohn?

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Mr. Goodwater, could you -- I'm just interested in your work.  I think that really relates to Wil Lou Gray.  Could you tell us a little bit more about your work and what you do with these kids?

MR. GOODWATER:  Well, for the last three years, I've been working with the New Life Center, which is based in Hampton, South Carolina.  And I worked in the school system with kids who ran into trouble with alcohol or drugs and I counsel them.  I counsel kids in Allendale and Hampton and Jasper County.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  What kind of numbers are we talking about?

MR. GOODWATER:  Numbers?  I would say on the level of probably 35 to 40 kids per quarter, which is three months.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Ages?

MR. GOODWATER:  Ages -- the age ran from 13 through 18.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  I think that really ties in to Wil Lou Gray.

MR. GOODWATER:  Yes, sir.  I have worked with kids and I was able to make end rules with them in changing their lives around.  And I've always been interested in the education of kids.  But even after 31 years of teaching, this job presented more of a challenge and I was able, and I'm still able, to reach these kids.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Is this a State job or a local ...

MR. GOODWATER:  Yes, it's a State job.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Inabinett?

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Yes.  Do you ever go into the schools?

MR. GOODWATER:  Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  You do?

MR. GOODWATER:  We have a contract set up where we can go in the schools to do an assessment which is no more than an hour.  And I usually try to do the assessment after school but in certain situations I have done assessments in schools.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  I'm just a little curious.  I worked over against Barnwell at one time up under Reverend Brooks, H.J. Brooks.

MR. GOODWATER:  Yes, he used to be a Pastor of my father's church.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  He was my principal, I taught there for a while.

MR. GOODWATER:  Right.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  And I lived about nine miles from there over in Arlington, you live right in there?  I'm just curious.

MR. GOODWATER:  No, I'm from Beaufort.  I used to drive an average of 94 miles a day.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Okay.  I commend the work you do.

MR. GOODWATER:  Right.  Thank you, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Goodwater, are you familiar with the arrangements with Wil Lou Gray and the South Carolina National Guard?

MR. GOODWATER:  No, I'm not, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Okay.  They have a program where they have at-risk students also.  The Guard tries to recruit from every area of the State kids who are at risk, that has no prior record, and they're out there with about 135 students -- I'm not sure about the numbers -- but it's been a tremendous asset to have the National Guard in coalition with Wil Lou Gray by trying to save at-risk students.

MR. GOODWATER:  Right.  Right.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Are you familiar with any other activities at Wil Lou Gray?

MR. GOODWATER:  No, sir, I'm not.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Okay.  And how did you get interested in serving on the Wil Lou Gray Board?  Did you read it in the paper, or?

MR. GOODWATER:  Well, I read it in The State Newspaper and I said to myself "This is something that I would be interested in."

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  I ask you that question to find out how are we reaching the people.  It is our efforts to reach everyone as possible, because these are positions of honor and trust for our state residents and we appreciate you sending your resume back and asking to be -- to try to be a candidate for Wil Lou Gray and of course the screening committee will take a vote in a minute on your qualifications of being that, but I wanted to urge you and tell you right now, if you are selected by the committee to continue on as a candidate, that you cannot solicit votes until after the screening committee report, which we're doing now, is released to the General Assembly through the Senate and the House Calendar, I mean Journal.

MR. GOODWATER:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  At that time, the next day, 24 hours later at 11:00, you can solicit votes from all of the House and Senate Members at your will and time.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Do we have a date on that yet, Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  We do have a date on that.

MS. FLOYD:  Next week.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  The election is April the 12th.

MS. FLOYD:  Oh, for the election.  I'm sorry.  I thought you meant for the release.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  No, for the report.

MS. FLOYD:  Early next week is what I'm told.  And I will send all of the candidates a letter letting them know in plenty of time when they can start.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  We will notify you by mail.  Do we do the telephone or just the mail?

MS. FLOYD:  Just the mail.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  We do notify you by mail that you now can solicit votes.  But I'm telling you, it's probably going to be after the budget before we release anything even if it's ready.  Because we've got 80 people running for various positions and -- 79 -- and so we would not want to be flooded by, during our budget hearings, which begin Monday morning with us, and so we're delaying the screening reports until we get it completed, which it's not, and we also have some other candidates that we may be able to squeeze in from MUSC.  So I would tell you it would be some time the later part of the month before we release it.  If you're really interested, you can call your House Member and he can you it's been released if you don't get the mail on time, but we will be mailing you and telling you.  So at that time, the next day at 11:00 after this is released -- to make the long story short -- you may solicit votes and I would -- this is your first time to run for any one of these?

MR. GOODWATER:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  I would suggest if you have some time to come up and meet the various House Members and Senators, one-on-one.

MR. GOODWATER:  Yes.  Thank you, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  What is the pleasure of the Committee.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  I move approval.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  I second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All in favor please signify by saying "Aye."

(All in favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir, for qualifying and we wish you the best of luck.

MR. GOODWATER:  Thank you all very much.

MR. CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  This meeting is adjourned.

(There being no further questions, the screening concluded at 9:45 a.m.)

TRUSTEE CANDIDATE SCREENING

Thursday, March 23, 2000

9:15 a.m. - 9:47 a.m.

The candidate screening process for State of South Carolina College and University Board of Trustee Seats, chaired by Senator Olin Phillips, held at 433 Blatt Building, Columbia, South Carolina, on the 23rd day of March, 2000 before Sonya S. Keesee, Court Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of South Carolina.

APPEARANCES:

COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Senator Olin Phillips, Chairman

Representative Curtis Inabinett

Representative Lanny Littlejohn

Senator James E. Bryan, Jr.

Senator Maggie W. Glover

ALSO PRESENT:

Sophia Floyd - Assistant to the Committee

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  I'm going to call the meeting to order, we're just a few minutes early but we need to get -- no, it's 9:15 -- started with the House.  Let me welcome you here, all of you, and especially Fred, I've known him for a long time.  I want to introduce the committee members, Representative Lanny Littlejohn from Spartanburg, Curtis Inabinett from Charleston and Jim Bryan from Laurens.  Senator Jim Bryan from Laurens.  I'm Representative Olin Phillips.  And our first candidate will be for the Medical University, 3rd District, non-medical, Mr. Fred Moore from Honea Path.  And Mr. Moore, I'm going to ask you to raise your right hand.

MR. FRED MOORE, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity if you're elected or re-elected, sir?

MR. MOORE:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. MOORE:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. MOORE:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. MOORE:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may make a short statement or you can stand by your statement, whatever you would like to do.

MR. MOORE:  I'd like to make one short statement and it will take about a minute.  In 1940-something-another, I got asbestos in my system and it grew until years and years.  Go in the hospital with pneumonia.  Finally September 1st this year I was operated on at Charleston, cleaned off all my lungs in the back, I like to have died many times.  I'm going to start a research foundation for asbestos.  We've already got a little one, but a lot of people have got it and don't know it.  You may have it and you don't know it, until it closes in and it will kill you.  It's miserable.  I'll tell you one thing -- It'll knock you down in a minute.  That's all I have to say.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Okay.  You all all read Mr. Moore's statement.  Any question from any member of the committee that you'd like to ask Mr. Moore.  None?

SENATOR BRYAN:  Well, I will ask one question.  I guess you can vouch for the quality of care at the medical university, can't you?

MR. MOORE:  Well, I stayed at the hospital 89 days, I got out here a day or two ago just to come down here.

SENATOR BRYAN:  Was your surgery at the medical university?

MR. MOORE:  No.  Yeah, yeah, yeah.  A lady, Caroline Reed, she's supposed to be the best in the world that does that.  And it's wonderful.  I mean, the care you get.

(Senator Maggie W. Glover Enters)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Joining us now, our committee member, is Maggie Glover.  Senator Maggie Glover from Florence.  Ms. Glover, we just sworn in Mr. Fred Moore for the Medical University, non-medical, 3rd Congressional District.  And if you can take just a second.  Do you have any questions you'd like to ask Mr. Moore?

SENATOR GLOVER:  Not at this time.  Good to have you here, Mr. Moore.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Okay.  If no other committee members have any questions, what is the pleasure of this committee?

SENATOR BRYAN:  Move favorable.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Same.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All in favor of Mr. Moore's candidacy please signify by saying "aye."

(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Moore, thank you for coming.  I know it was hard for you to get here.  We hope that your friends here will do whatever they can for you, and in the event you get a chance to come back in the next three or four days, come back, sir.

MR. MOORE:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you so much for coming.  And you may well go if you like or you can stay, whatever.

MR. MOORE:  Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Mr. Moore, let me make a broad statement here for everybody that's here.  We're going to release this testimony Tuesday morning in the Journal and Tuesday in the Senate in both journals.  At 11:00 Wednesday the 29th, you may go ahead and seek pledges, you'll have two weeks to seek pledges.  The election is on April the 12th.  So you will have time to do that and we appreciate you coming.

MR. MOORE:  I appreciate that.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Tuesday we're going to release the reports and Wednesday at 11:00 you can start seeking pledges.

MR. MOORE:  All right.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  The next order of business is the screening for South Carolina State, at-large, Seat 12.  And this is to fill a seat that was vacated by the untimely death of Dr. Salters.  And at this time I would like to take just a minute in a moment of prayer in honor of Dr. Salters and his service to the state and his county where he lived.  And especially to South Carolina State University which I know he served well.  And at this time we can go to a moment of silent prayer.

(Pause)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Now, first up is Dr. George C. Bradley of Summerville.  Mr. Bradley.  Mr. Bradley, would you please raise your right hand.

DR. GEORGE C. BRADLEY, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity if you're elected or re-elected, sir?

DR. BRADLEY:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

DR. BRADLEY:  Yes, I would.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

DR. BRADLEY:  No, I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

DR. BRADLEY:  No, I don't.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  You may go ahead with your statement.

DR. BRADLEY:  Okay.  I am, and always will be, a loyal member of the South Carolina State University family.  I earned a Bachelor's Degree in early Childhood Education and minor in mathematics from South Carolina State College in 1983.  I also earned a master's in Mathematics Education from South Carolina State College in 1985.  Through nurturing, training, and quality learning experiences, the faculty and the staff at South Carolina State College gave me the confidence to pursue further education, engage in meaningful experiences, and contribute to the academic community.  From 1995 to 1998 I was also employed as a faculty member and an administrator in the Department of Educational Administration at South Carolina State.  The membership on the Board of Trustees at South Carolina State University will offer me an opportunity to utilize extensive experience, my extensive experience in higher education, my knowledge of the business community in this state, and the resources from a variety of areas to address issues in higher education in general, and at South Carolina State, primarily.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions of any committee members?

SENATOR BRYAN:  Where are you employed through?

DR. BRADLEY:  I'm employed at Webster University.  I'm the Regional Academic Director for the State of South Carolina at Webster University.

SENATOR BRYAN:  Webster?

DR. BRADLEY:  Webster University.

SENATOR BRYAN:  Where is that located?

DR. BRADLEY:  The home campus is in St. Louis.  The regional site is in Charleston.

SENATOR BRYAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Thank you, sir.  Excuse me, I'm sorry.

SENATOR GLOVER:  Question.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Senator Glover.

SENATOR GLOVER:  A question I have for all candidates.  Why South Carolina State, what visions, you know, why a Board?

DR. BRADLEY:  Well, I think I stated my passion and what it has given to me.  My vision for South Carolina State University is to make sure that it's financially stable and we have the quality of educators to take us in the new millennium.  One current issue that is really a stickler for me, is our endowment.  South Carolina, the State of South Carolina is one of a few other states to where state schools in the State of South Carolina are state assisted.  And the revenue needs to be powerful in that aspect to take our youth to the next millennium.

SENATOR GAMBLE:  Okay.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  You may have a seat, sir.

DR. BRADLEY:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Our next candidate is Dr. Grace H. Salters from Orangeburg.  Dr. Salters, please raise your right hand, please.

DR. SALTERS:  Good morning.

DR. GRACE H. SALTERS, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity if you're elected or re-elected, sir?

DR. SALTERS:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

DR. SALTERS:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Good.  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

DR. SALTERS:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

DR. SALTERS:  No.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  You may go ahead with your short statement.

DR. SALTERS:  Well I'm not an alumni of South Carolina State University but I've worked there for 26 years, so I have the institution's welfare at heart.  It has been my desire to help mold, train, and produce young adults who would become worthwhile citizens and productive citizens in their respective communities.  It is my hope to continue the aspirations of my husband, my late husband, in that he would want South Carolina State to remain an institution of academic excellence, where it would become financially stable, and where it would hold -- continue to hold a place of esteem in the community and in the nation.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions of the committee members?  Senator Glover.

SENATOR GLOVER:  Yes, Dr. Salter, same question.  Why do you want to serve on this Board and what vision do you have as a Board member?

DR. SALTERS:  South Carolina State to me is an institution that has held high esteem for me, and it is a center for producing young adults that I have been in contact with.  I feel that it is an institution that is needed in our community and it can provide the type of training and stability that we need while young adults.  I, too, share the vision that we need to make it more financially sound.  I do feel that it is an institution of academic excellence.  And I want to continue that vein so that academic excellence is the norm and where intellectual and aesthetic stimulations are there for the youth that it serves.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any other questions?  Senator Bryan.

SENATOR BRYAN:  For my education, Developmental Botany?  I see you got your Ph.D in Developmental Botany?

DR. SALTERS:  Yes, I did.

SENATOR BRYAN:  What is that?  I'm just curious.

DR. SALTERS:  Well it takes -- a botanist is the study of plants, but my training started with the cell up to the plant.  So you'll go from the cell to the tissue to the organ to the system to the whole organism.  And my training started at the cellular level of development in plants.

SENATOR BRYAN:  I knew it was way over my head.  Thank you.

DR. SALTERS:  You're welcome.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  The next candidate is Mr. Brantley E. Evans, Jr. from Columbia.  Mr. Evans.  You may stand there, if you'd like.  Please raise your right hand.

MR. BRANTLEY E. EVANS, JR., being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity if you're elected or re-elected, sir?

MR. EVANS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. EVANS:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. EVANS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. EVANS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You may go ahead with your statement.

MR. EVANS:  First of all, I'd like to thank you all for having me here.  And I'm not going to re-read what I've wrote, I just want to make a short testimony or statement as to what South Carolina State has done for me and what I intend to do for the university.  First of all, I would like to say that I'm here to serve the university and not to be served.  I'm here to devote all the different perspectives that I'm blessed to have in the line of work that I do, and I'm looking forward to working with the university.  I'm looking forward to bringing a new perspective for the university.  I'm looking forward to assisting the other Board members and the academic staff in creating a diverse degree program.  I'm a resent graduate of South Carolina State University in 1992 and, to be honest with you, there was a little culture shock when I got in the real world.  And I know with technology advancing, and I know with what our youth are having to face today, there's a lot of options out there for our youth and we have to make sure that we prepare them for success and offer various options for them.  I'm a resident of Columbia but I grew up in Orangeburg all my life.  South Carolina State has done a lot for my family.  My parents -- well, my father worked there, my mother was educated there, and now it is time for me to repay a debt that I feel like I owe for the university.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Committee Members, any questions?

SENATOR GLOVER:  He answered it.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Senator Glover.

SENATOR GLOVER:  Oh, he answered it.  I'm sorry.  Senator Bryan.

SENATOR BRYAN:  I notice that you're involved in the Boy Scouts.  My sons have been very active in that.  Are you a Scout Master or?

MR. EVANS:  No, sir.  Actually, the Boy Scouts approached me about three or four years ago about fund raising.  They have a troop that can't provide clothing for themselves and trips and all the equipment that it takes to be a Boy Scout, so about four years ago we started a fund raiser that we do once a year, it's called a Scout Reach Program, in where we provide funding for these troops.  And this year we raffled two Super Bowl tickets and we raised about ten -- about $8,000.00 for that troop.  So we do it every year, and it's just -- the Boy Scouts is -- I played sports and the Boy Scouts reminds me a lot of sports, it teaches character and discipline and integrity, and those are the things that our youth need to be successful.

SENATOR BRYAN:  Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Mr. Evans, this business relationship you have with Joseph Lamp, you see no future problem with that?

MR. EVANS:  No, sir.  He has a contract that is a five year contract that's renewable every year.  The contract has already been in place prior to me being, hopefully, on the Board, and I will remove myself from any type of vote if I'm ever confronted with that.  But I don't have an economic interest in it, we don't share any revenues from it.  He's my business partner in Synergy Sports International, which is a sports management firm, and also Bigger Sports Marketing Promotions, which is a sports marketing firm that we did a joint venture with, but we have no type of economic interest at all.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Are you any kin to this gentleman?

MR. EVANS:  That's my uncle.  I didn't know he was going to be here today.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  Let's have that other Evans.  Alphonso J. Evans, Sr. from Charleston.  Sir, would you please raise your right hand.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Uncle Al.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Uncle Al.  Okay.  That's good.  I believe this is the first time this has happened.  Alphonso from Charleston.  Sir, would you please raise your right hand.

ALPHONSO J. EVANS, SR, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any health-related problems that the screening committee should be made aware of that would prevent you from serving on the Board in a full capacity if you're elected or re-elected, sir?

MR. EVANS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Considering your present occupation and other activities, would you be able to attend Board meetings on a regular basis?

MR. EVANS:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you have any interests, professionally or personally, that represent a conflict of interest because of your service on the Board?

MR. EVANS:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Do you now hold any public position of honor or trust that, if elected to the Board, would cause you to violate the dual office holding clause of the constitution?

MR. EVANS:  Not a dual office holding.  I hold a vice-chair on the Budget and Control Board Pre-Retirement Advisory Board.  I don't see that as a problem.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, sir.  Go ahead with your statement.

MR. EVANS:  First of all, good morning.  And I'm meeting some strange faces this morning with my relatives here.  I would like to begin my testimony in the summary of what I've written, what I wrote earlier, and as background information.  I'm a native from Orangeburg, South Carolina.  I attended the public schools there.  I attended South Carolina State University.  I obtained a B.S. Degree and an M.Ed, Master's of Education Degree.  And leaving there I went to the University of South Carolina where I obtained a Doctor of Education Degree in Education Administration.  I am retired after 33 years of service in public education in the State of South Carolina.  I worked in the State Department of Education, Office of Research Planning and Public Accountability where we dealt with utilizing research to improve educational practice, administrator evaluation and public accountability.  I also, after retiring, I retained my interest in education by working with the Westat, Incorporated as a research firm out of Rockville, Maryland.  It deals with the National Assessment of Educational Progress that's improving testing students throughout.  And dealing with the Nation's report card from the standpoint of meeting educational goals.  My community and other services have been primarily with the South Carolina Aquarium Task Force, a community-based environmental protection project.  The South Carolina State University Recruitment Program, Charleston Alumni Chapter in Charleston, South Carolina.  I serve as vice chair of our Board of Deacons at Morris Street Baptist Church.  And I didn't get into all the details in this statement, but from the standpoint of my community services with Boy Scouts, I was a chair for that and the changing of one district to another with the consolidation of the Boy Scouts in Charleston County.  My candidacy for the Board of Trustees of SC State University is offered because I feel that as a South Carolinian and graduate, I'm familiar with the changes that have occurred over time, and I feel that I can provide assistance in reaching agreed upon institutional goals and objectives.  I also feel that an institution's success is paramount to support, commitment and dedication of alumni and friends of the institution.  I further feel that the basic principles of education, framed by the founders are relevant today and are reflected in the university's mission statement of embracing diversity among students, faculty and staff, and providing lifelong learning opportunities for citizens of the state and qualified students of varied backgrounds and talents in a caring and nurturing environment.  I'm committed to quality education and training of all students.  As a member of the Board of Trustees, I will work with the administration to ensure implementation of quality programs and services for all who seek to advance educationally.  I say this because I believe that.  And I believe that South Carolina State University has been the foundation for educating minority students in the State of South Carolina.  It has been there when we had the only state supported school, a sister school, in this state.  And all the students coming in came through South Carolina State as a state-assisted school.  And to nurture those students and mold them to be successful citizens in the state and throughout the nation.  We must continue to mold the students.  We must continue to provide students.  We must continue to move forward to get the financial assistance we need, not only through the state revenue sources but through our own sources from the standpoint of contributing to make South Carolina University the school it is and the potential to be the greatest school in the State of South Carolina.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Any questions?

SENATOR GLOVER:  He answered it, too.

REPRESENTATIVE BRYAN:  No questions of Mr. Evans.  I'd like to go back to Mr. Bradley and ask him a question, if I could?

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Yes, sir.  Mr. Bradley.

REPRESENTATIVE BRYAN:  I'm not familiar with Webster University.  There's no conflict between working for Webster and South Carolina State is there?

MR. BRADLEY:  Webster University is a graduate program.  We have a graduate program here in MBA Business Management, Human Resource Management.  The only degree program that we have that's probably the equivalent is a counseling program, but ours is clinical and theirs deals with the school system.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Let me ask one question.

MR. BRADLEY:  Yes, sir.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  Are the courses basically correspondents?

MR. BRADLEY:  No, sir.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  They're not?

MR. BRADLEY:  No, sir.  We have five campuses, like regular campuses.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  In South Carolina?

MR. BRADLEY:  In South Carolina.  Charleston, Myrtle Beach, Beaufort, Greenville and Columbia.

SENATOR BRYAN:  There's not an MBA program at SC State?

MR. BRADLEY:  They have a business, agri-business ... an agri-business ...

SENATOR BRYAN:  Masters?

MR. BRADLEY:  Masters, yes.

REPRESENTATIVE INABINETT:  I don't have a question, but I go back a long ways with Mr. Evans.  We were at South Carolina State at the same time, and I've never said this to you before, but I've always had extremely high regards for you.

MR. EVANS:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  No other questions?  None.  Any kind of statements?  Anymore statements?

SENATOR BRYAN:  I just wonder who Mr. Evans's brother is going to support.

SENATOR GLOVER:  Did you know?

MR. EVANS:  You're talking about quite a few brothers.

SENATOR GLOVER:  You didn't know until this morning?

MR. EVANS:  I didn't know until this morning.  When I came up here this morning.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  And you said, "Junior, what you doing here?"

MR. EVANS:  Yes.

SENATOR BRYAN:  I'm in favor of all four candidates.  They're all four clearly qualified.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  You heard the motion to qualify all four candidates.

REPRESENTATIVE LITTLEJOHN:  Second.

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  All in favor signify by saying aye.

(All in Favor)

CHAIRMAN PHILLIPS:  Thank you, gentlemen.

(There being no further questions, the screening concluded at 9:47 a.m.)
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The Committee to Screen Candidates for Boards of Trustees of State Colleges and Universities finds the following candidates for Boards of Trustees qualified.  Background reports from the State Law Enforcement Division show no felony charges against any of the candidates.

The Citadel


At-large



two seats







Arthur H. Baiden III (Greenville)














William C. Coffey, Jr. (Manning)














W. Henry Johnson, Jr. (Lake City)














MAJ Richard D. Leonard (Columbia)














William F. Sachs (Columbia)














Allison Dean Wright (Columbia)

Clemson University


At-large



three seats






Walter Mack Burriss (Columbia)














Louis B. Lynn (Columbia)*














Charles E. Moore (Woodruff)














William C. Smith, Jr. (Columbia)*














Allen P. Wood (Florence)*

College of Charleston


Six congressional districts, one at-large




1st District, Seat 2


L. Cherry Daniel (Charleston)*




2nd District, Seat 4


Joel H. Smith (Columbia)*




3rd District, Seat 6


J. Philip Bell (Greenwood)*




4th District, Seat 8


Merl F. Code (Greenville)*














Emil E. Spieth (Spartanburg)




5th District, Seat 10


J. Vincent Price, Jr. (Gaffney)*




6th District, Seat 12


Marie M. Land (Manning)*




At-Large, Seat 14


Timothy N. Dangerfield (Aiken)*














Zeno Montgomery (Columbia)

Coastal Carolina University


At-large, Seat 15





Timothy R. Meacham (Florence)














Daniel W. R. Moore, Sr.














 (N. Myrtle Beach)














Ronald R. Norton (Murrells Inlet)

Francis Marion University


Seven congressional districts, one at-large



1st District, Seat 2



Melissa Johnson Emery














 (Myrtle Beach)*



2nd District, Seat 4



Gail Ness Richardson (Barnwell)*



3rd District, Seat 6



Patricia C. Edmonds (Greenwood)*



4th District, Seat 8



Alex Kiriakides III (Greenville)*



5th District, Seat 10



Lorraine H. Knight (Hartsville)*



6th District, Seat 11



James A. Brown, Jr. (Florence)**



6th District, Seat 12



William W. Coleman, Jr. (Florence)*



At-large, Seat 14




Robert W. Williams, Jr. (Effingham)**

Lander University


Seven congressional districts, one at-large



1st District, Seat 2



Robin R. Agnew (Myrtle Beach)*














Anthony Noury (Mt. Pleasant)



2nd District, Seat 4



George R. Starnes (Columbia)*














Peter Buttress (Lexington)



3rd District, Seat 5



Mamie W. Nicholson (Greenwood)**



3rd District, Seat 6



Finis Horne (Greenwood)



4th District, Seat 8



C. Tyrone Gilmore (Spartanburg)*



5th District, Seat 10



S. Anne Walker (Columbia)*



6th District, Seat 12



Walter D. Smith (Florence)*



At-large, Seat 14




Ann B. Bowen (Greenwood)*

Medical University of South Carolina


Six congressional districts  (three each from medical and non-medical professions)



1st District, non-medical

Melvyn Berlinsky (Charleston)*



2nd District, non-medical
Donald McElveen (Columbia)*














William F. Hoffman (Blythewood)














Donald V. Richardson III (Columbia)



3rd District, non-medical

Fred T. Moore (Honea Path)*














Charles W. Schulz (Greenwood)



4th District, medical


Dr. Charles B. Thomas, Jr.














 (Greenville)*














Harold E. Fleming (Spartanburg)



5th District, medical


Dr. Cotesworth P. Fishburne, Jr.














 (Rock Hill)*



6th District, medical


Dr. E. Conyers O’Bryan, Jr.














 (Florence)*


South Carolina State



At-large



Two Seats



At-large, Seat 11




John Williams, Jr. (Orangeburg)*



At-large, Seat 12




George C. Bradley (Summerville)














Grace H. Salters  (Orangeburg)














Alfonso J. Evans, Sr. (Charleston)














Brantley E. Evans, Jr.  (Columbia)

University of South Carolina



Eight Judicial circuits



 2nd Circuit






Miles Loadholt (Barnwell)*



 4th Circuit






J. DuPre Miller (Bennettsville)*



 6th Circuit






James Bradley (Lancaster)*



 8th Circuit






Herbert C. Adams (Laurens)*



10thCircuit






Robert N.McLellan (Seneca)*



14thCircuit






Helen C. Harvey (Beaufort)*



15thCircuit






M. Wayne Staton (Conway)*



16thCircuit






Sam R. Foster II (Rock Hill)*

Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School



At-large



Four seats










Bryan England (Murrells Inlet)














Samuel Goodwater, Jr. (Beaufort)














Charles E. Jackson (Lexington)














Wilhelmina McBride (Columbia)*














Mary F. Newman (Cayce)*














Carlisle Roddey (Chester)














Diana Taylor (Columbia)














Suzanne Turner (Gaffney)*

Winthrop University



At-large



Two Seats






Hugh Hadsock, Jr. (W. Columbia)














Sandra Nelson (Lancaster)














Glenda P. Owens (Charleston)














Kay Wright Rush (Lexington)














Harold P. Tuttle, Jr. (Rock Hill)*

On motion of Rep. PHILLIPS, the report was ordered printed in the Journal.

HOUSE RESOLUTION

On motion of Rep. GAMBLE, with unanimous consent, the following was taken up for immediate consideration:  

H. 4779 -- Reps. Gamble and Moody-Lawrence: A HOUSE RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE PALMETTO GIRLS STATE TO USE THE CHAMBERS OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES ON THURSDAY, JUNE 15, 2000, AND FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2000.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives:

That Palmetto Girls State is authorized to use the chamber of the South Carolina House of Representatives on Thursday, June 15, 2000, from 9:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. and on Friday, June 16, 2000, from 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. for its annual legislative activity.  If the House of Representatives is in statewide session, the chamber may not be used.

Be it further resolved that the State House security forces shall provide assistance and access as necessary for this meeting in accordance with previous procedures.

Be it further resolved that Palmetto Girls State shall be granted access to and use of the chamber in accordance with the guidelines and requirements as the Clerk of the House of Representatives shall direct.

Be it further resolved that no charges may be made for the use of the chamber of the House of Representatives by Palmetto Girls State on these dates.

The Resolution was adopted.

HOUSE RESOLUTION

The following was introduced:

H. 4820 -- Rep. Lourie: A HOUSE RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE PROFOUND SORROW OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA GENERAL ASSEMBLY UPON THE DEATH OF MR. BEN STERN OF RICHLAND COUNTY AND EXTENDING DEEPEST SYMPATHY TO HIS FAMILY AND MANY FRIENDS.

The Resolution was adopted.

CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

The following was taken up for immediate consideration: 

S. 1231 -- Senators Alexander and Drummond: A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SOUTH CAROLINA STUDENT LEGISLATURE THE USE OF THE HOUSE AND SENATE CHAMBERS ON THURSDAY, OCTOBER 26 AND FRIDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2000, AND THE USE OF AVAILABLE MEETING SPACE IN THE BLATT OFFICE BUILDING ON WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 25, 2000, FOR THE ORGANIZATION'S ANNUAL MEETING, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE BUILDING POLICY AS ADMINISTERED BY THE CLERKS OF THE RESPECTIVE BODIES.

Whereas, the South Carolina Student Legislature encourages the youth of our State to develop enthusiasm and appreciation for governmental and community issues; and

Whereas, the South Carolina Student Legislature has produced many of the great leaders throughout our State and nation. Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate, the House of Representatives concurring:

That the South Carolina Student Legislature is allowed the use of the House and Senate chambers on October 26 through 27 and the Blatt Office Building October 25, 2000, during normal business hours (8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.).  If the General Assembly is in statewide session on any of these days, the Blatt Building may not be used.

Be it further resolved that the South Carolina Student Legislature shall be granted access to and use of the respective chambers in accordance with such guidelines and requirements as the clerks of the House and Senate shall direct.

Be it further resolved that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the South Carolina Student Legislature.

The Concurrent Resolution was agreed to and ordered returned to the Senate with concurrence.

CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

The following was taken up for immediate consideration: 

S. 1247 -- Senator Saleeby: A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION TO FIX 12:00 NOON ON WEDNESDAY, MAY 24, 2000, AS THE TIME FOR ELECTING SUCCESSORS TO THE SOUTH CAROLINA CONSUMER AFFAIRS COMMISSION FOR SEATS 2 AND 4, WHOSE CURRENT TERMS EXPIRE AUGUST 31, 2000.

Be it resolved by the Senate, the House of Representatives concurring:

That the Senate and House of Representatives shall meet in joint assembly in the Hall of the House of Representatives on Wednesday, May 24, 2000, at 12:00 noon to elect successors to the South Carolina Consumer Affairs Commission for Seats 2 and 4, whose current terms expire August 31, 2000.

The Concurrent Resolution was agreed to and ordered returned to the Senate with concurrence.

CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

The Senate sent to the House the following:

S. 1268 -- Senator Moore: A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION TO ENDORSE THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION (CDC) AND AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS (AAP) FOR HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS REGARDING THE BEST PRACTICES FOR THE JUDICIOUS USE OF ANTIBIOTICS.

The Concurrent Resolution was ordered referred to the Committee on Medical, Military, Public and Municipal Affairs.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS  

The following Bills were introduced, read the first time, and referred to appropriate committees:

H. 4821 -- Reps. Seithel, Breeland, Dantzler, Inabinett, Mack, Whatley and Whipper: A BILL TO AMEND ACT 340 OF 1967, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO THE CHARLESTON SCHOOL DISTRICT SO AS TO PROVIDE THAT THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE DISTRICT SHALL HAVE UNLIMITED FISCAL AUTONOMY IN REGARD TO SETTING THE SCHOOL MILLAGE TO BE LEVIED EACH YEAR.

Rep. SEITHEL asked unanimous consent to have the Bill placed on the Calendar without reference.

Rep. ALTMAN objected. 

Referred to Charleston Delegation

H. 4822 -- Reps. Howard, J. Brown, Clyburn, Cobb-Hunter, Gourdine, Lloyd, Pinckney and Rutherford: A BILL TO AMEND SECTION 16-25-60, AS AMENDED, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO THE IMPOSITION OF THE SENTENCE FOR CRIMINAL DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND CONDITIONS FOR ITS SUSPENSION, AND SECTION 20-4-60, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO THE ORDER OF PROTECTION FROM DOMESTIC ABUSE, BOTH SO AS TO PROVIDE THE COURT MAY ORDER, WHEN APPROPRIATE, THE PARTIES AND MINOR CHILDREN TO COMPLETE PSYCHIATRIC OR THERAPEUTIC COUNSELING FOR THE FAMILY UNIT.

Referred to Committee on Judiciary

H. 4823 -- Reps. Howard, Clyburn, Cobb-Hunter, Gourdine, Lloyd, Parks, Pinckney and Rutherford: A BILL TO AMEND SECTIONS 59-117-10, AS AMENDED, 59-117-20, AS AMENDED, AND 59-117-30, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION, TERMS, AND VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE BOARD BY THE GOVERNOR, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A STUDENT APPOINTED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE STUDENT BODY, THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR OF THE STATE, THAT THE TERM OF OFFICE IS ONE YEAR, AND TO PROVIDE A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING A VACANCY IN THIS OFFICE; TO AMEND SECTION 59-119-40, RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION, TERMS, AND VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF CLEMSON UNIVERSITY, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE BOARD BY THE GOVERNOR, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A STUDENT APPOINTED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE STUDENT BODY, THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR OF THE STATE, THAT THE TERM OF OFFICE IS ONE YEAR, AND TO PROVIDE A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING A VACANCY IN THIS OFFICE; TO AMEND SECTIONS 59-121-10, 59-121-20, AND 59-121-30, ALL AS AMENDED, RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION, TERMS, AND VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF VISITORS OF THE CITADEL, THE MILITARY COLLEGE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE BOARD BY THE GOVERNOR, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A CADET APPOINTED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE REGIMENTAL COMMANDER OF THE CADET CORPS, THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR OF THE STATE, THAT THE TERM OF OFFICE IS ONE YEAR, AND TO PROVIDE A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING A VACANCY IN THIS OFFICE; TO AMEND SECTIONS 59-123-40 AND 59-123-50, BOTH AS AMENDED, RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION, TERMS, AND VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE BOARD BY THE GOVERNOR, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A STUDENT APPOINTED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE STUDENT BODY, THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR OF THE STATE, THAT THE TERM OF OFFICE IS ONE YEAR, AND TO PROVIDE A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING A VACANCY IN THIS OFFICE; TO AMEND SECTIONS 59-125-20 AND 59-125-30, BOTH AS AMENDED, RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION, TERMS, AND VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF WINTHROP UNIVERSITY, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE BOARD BY THE GOVERNOR, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A STUDENT APPOINTED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE STUDENT BODY, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR OF THE STATE, THAT THE TERM OF OFFICE IS ONE YEAR, AND TO PROVIDE A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING A VACANCY IN THIS OFFICE; TO AMEND SECTION 59-127-20, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION, TERMS, AND VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SOUTH CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE BOARD BY THE GOVERNOR, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A STUDENT APPOINTED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE STUDENT BODY, THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR OF THE STATE, THAT THE TERM OF OFFICE IS ONE YEAR, AND TO PROVIDE A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING A VACANCY IN THIS OFFICE; TO AMEND SECTION 59-130-10, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION, TERMS, AND VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE COLLEGE OF CHARLESTON, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE BOARD BY THE GOVERNOR, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A STUDENT APPOINTED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE STUDENT BODY, THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR OF THE STATE, THAT THE TERM OF OFFICE IS ONE YEAR, AND TO PROVIDE A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING A VACANCY IN THIS OFFICE; TO AMEND SECTION 59-133-10, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION, TERMS, AND VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF FRANCIS MARION UNIVERSITY, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE BOARD BY THE GOVERNOR, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A STUDENT APPOINTED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE STUDENT BODY, THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR OF THE STATE, THAT THE TERM OF OFFICE IS ONE YEAR, AND TO PROVIDE A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING A VACANCY IN THIS OFFICE; TO AMEND SECTION 59-135-10, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION, TERMS, AND VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF LANDER UNIVERSITY, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE BOARD BY THE GOVERNOR, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A STUDENT APPOINTED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE STUDENT BODY, THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR OF THE STATE, THAT THE TERM OF OFFICE IS ONE YEAR, AND TO PROVIDE A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING A VACANCY IN THIS OFFICE; TO AMEND SECTION 59-136-110, RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION, TERMS, AND VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF COASTAL CAROLINA UNIVERSITY, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE BOARD BY THE GOVERNOR, TO PROVIDE THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A STUDENT APPOINTED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE STUDENT BODY, THAT THE MEMBER MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR OF THE STATE, THAT THE TERM OF OFFICE IS ONE YEAR, AND TO PROVIDE A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING A VACANCY IN THIS OFFICE; AND TO PROVIDE THAT THE TERM OF EACH NEW TRUSTEE BEGINS ON THE FIRST DAY OF JULY OF THE YEAR IN WHICH THE TRUSTEE IS APPOINTED.

Referred to Committee on Education and Public Works

H. 4824 -- Reps. M. McLeod, J. H. Neal and Rutherford: A BILL TO AMEND SECTION 20-7-6605, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO DEFINITIONS OF TERMS USED IN THE JUVENILE JUSTICE CODE, SO AS TO REVISE THE DEFINITION OF CHILD TO INCLUDE PERSONS UNDER EIGHTEEN YEARS OF AGE IN THE CASE OF STATUS OFFENSES; TO AMEND SECTION 20-7-7205 RELATING TO PROCEDURES FOR TAKING JUVENILES INTO CUSTODY, SO AS TO APPLY THESE PROCEDURES TO JUVENILES BEING TAKEN INTO CUSTODY FOR STATUS OFFENSES;  TO AMEND SECTION 20-7-7807 RELATING TO SUSPENSION AND REVOCATION OF A DRIVER'S LICENSE AS PART OF THE FAMILY COURT'S DISPOSITIONAL AUTHORITY IN ADJUDICATING JUVENILES, SO AS TO, IN THE CASE OF STATUS OFFENSES,   APPLY THIS AUTHORITY TO JUVENILES UP TO AGE EIGHTEEN RATHER THAN AGE SEVENTEEN; TO AMEND SECTIONS 59-65-10 AND 59-65-30, BOTH AS AMENDED, AND RELATING TO COMPULSORY SCHOOL ATTENDANCE AND AN EXEMPTION FROM COMPULSORY ATTENDANCE, RESPECTIVELY, SO AS TO REQUIRE CHILDREN TO ATTEND SCHOOL UNTIL REACHING THE AGE OF EIGHTEEN RATHER THAN AGE SEVENTEEN.

Referred to Committee on Judiciary

H. 4825 -- Reps. M. McLeod, Bailey, J. Brown, Emory, Keegan and J. M. Neal: A BILL TO AMEND THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, BY ADDING SECTION 56-1-45 SO AS TO PROHIBIT THE ISSUANCE OF A DRIVER'S LICENSE TO A PERSON SEVENTEEN YEARS OF AGE OR UNDER WHO IS NOT A HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATE OR DOES NOT HAVE A GENERAL EDUCATION DEVELOPMENT CERTIFICATE OR WHO DOES NOT PROVIDE DOCUMENTATION THAT HE IS PROPERLY ENROLLED IN SCHOOL AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS, TO PROVIDE THAT A PERSON OVER SEVENTEEN YEARS OF AGE BUT NOT OVER EIGHTEEN YEARS OF AGE APPLYING FOR A DRIVER'S LICENSE SHALL PROVIDE THE DEPARTMENT EVIDENCE OF EITHER GRADUATION FROM HIGH SCHOOL, OR HIS G.E.D. CERTIFICATE OR EVIDENCE THAT HE IS ENROLLED IN A PUBLIC OR PRIVATE SCHOOL, TO REQUIRE A SCHOOL'S ATTENDANCE SUPERVISOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO PROVIDE ENROLLMENT STATUS DOCUMENTATION TO PERSONS AT LEAST FIFTEEN YEARS OF AGE ON A FORM PRESCRIBED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION IN CONSULTATION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, TO REQUIRE A SCHOOL'S ATTENDANCE SUPERVISOR TO NOTIFY THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION OF A PERSON WHO WITHDRAWS FROM SCHOOL AND REQUIRE THE DEPARTMENT TO SUSPEND THE LICENSE OF THE PERSON UPON TEN DAYS' WRITTEN NOTICE, TO PROVIDE THE METHOD FOR A PERSON WHOSE LICENSE IS SUSPENDED TO HAVE THE LICENSE REINSTATED, TO DEFINE WITHDRAWAL FROM SCHOOL, TO PROVIDE FOR A PERSONAL OR FAMILY HARDSHIP WAIVER, AND TO PROVIDE THAT A SR-22 DOES NOT HAVE TO BE FILED FOLLOWING REINSTATEMENT OF A DRIVER'S LICENSE SUSPENDED PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION.

Referred to Committee on Education and Public Works

H. 4826 -- Rep. Vaughn: A BILL TO AMEND SECTION 1-11-720, AS AMENDED, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO ENTITIES WHOSE EMPLOYEES AND RETIREES ARE ELIGIBLE FOR STATE HEALTH AND DENTAL INSURANCE PLANS SO AS TO INCLUDE EMPLOYEES AND RETIREES OF THE GREENVILLE-SPARTANBURG AIRPORT DISTRICT.

Referred to Committee on Ways and Means

H. 4827 -- Reps. Whatley and Knotts: A BILL TO AMEND THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, BY ADDING SECTION 5-3-105 SO AS TO AUTHORIZE THE GOVERNING BODY OF A MUNICIPALITY TO ANNEX AN AREA BY ORDINANCE IF THE AREA IS COMPLETELY SURROUNDED BY THE MUNICIPALITY.

Referred to Committee on Judiciary

S. 1208 -- Senators O'Dell, J. V. Smith, Land, Bryan, Patterson, Matthews, Waldrep, Anderson, Mescher, McConnell, Leventis, Peeler, Thomas, Drummond, Reese, Giese, Short, Branton, Hutto, Wilson, McGill, Elliott, Passailaigue, Ravenel, Martin, Richardson, Saleeby, Washington, Alexander, Moore, Setzler, Glover, Hayes, Bauer, Ryberg, Courson, Leatherman and Grooms: A BILL TO AMEND TITLE 44, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO HEALTH BY ADDING CHAPTER 130, ENACTING THE SOUTH CAROLINA SENIORS' PRESCRIPTION DRUG PROGRAM ACT, SO AS TO ESTABLISH A PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY THE OFFICE OF INSURANCE SERVICES OF THE STATE BUDGET AND CONTROL BOARD TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN PURCHASING PRESCRIPTION DRUGS TO RESIDENTS OF THIS STATE WHO HAVE ATTAINED AGE SIXTY-FIVE YEARS WHO ARE INELIGIBLE FOR MEDICAID OR ANY OTHER PRESCRIPTION DRUG BENEFITS AND WHOSE ANNUAL INCOME DOES NOT EXCEED TWO HUNDRED PERCENT OF THE FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL, TO DEFINE "PRESCRIPTION DRUG" FOR PURPOSES OF THE PROGRAM, AND TO REQUIRE SEMIANNUAL REPORTS TO THE GOVERNOR AND THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY FOR THE EVALUATION OF THE PROGRAM.

Referred to Committee on Ways and Means

HOUSE RESOLUTION

On motion of Rep. FLEMING, with unanimous consent, the following was taken up for immediate consideration:  

H. 4828 -- Reps. Fleming, Hayes and Wilder: A HOUSE RESOLUTION GRANTING THE PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES TO THE UNION HIGH SCHOOL YELLOW JACKETS FOOTBALL TEAM AND COACHES, ON A DATE TO BE DETERMINED BY THE SPEAKER, FOR THE PURPOSE OF BEING RECOGNIZED AND CONGRATULATED FOR WINNING THE 1999 CLASS AAA STATE FOOTBALL CHAMPIONSHIP.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives:

That the privilege of the floor of the House of Representatives is granted to the Union High School Yellow Jackets football team and coaches, on a date and at a time as determined by the Speaker, for the purpose of being recognized and congratulated for winning the 1999 Class AAA state football championship.

Be it further resolved that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Union High School Yellow Jackets football team and Head Coach Mike Anthony.

The Resolution was adopted.

CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

The following was introduced:

H. 4829 -- Reps. Fleming, Hayes and Wilder: A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION CONGRATULATING UNION HIGH SCHOOL ON WINNING THE 1999 CLASS AAA STATE FOOTBALL CHAMPIONSHIP.

The Concurrent Resolution was agreed to and ordered sent to the Senate.

HOUSE RESOLUTION

On motion of Rep. HARVIN, with unanimous consent, the following was taken up for immediate consideration:  

H. 4830 -- Rep. Harvin: A HOUSE RESOLUTION GRANTING THE PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES TO THE EAGLES OF SCOTT'S BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL OF CLARENDON COUNTY AND THE TEAM'S COACHES, ON A DATE AS DETERMINED BY THE SPEAKER, FOR THE PURPOSE OF BEING RECOGNIZED FOR WINNING THE 1999-2000 CLASS A BOYS BASKETBALL STATE CHAMPIONSHIP.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives:

That the privilege of the floor of the House of Representatives be and hereby is granted to the Eagles of Scott’s Branch High School of Clarendon County and the team’s coaches, on a date and at a time to be determined by the Speaker, for the purpose of being recognized for winning the 1999‑2000 Class A boys basketball state championship.

Be it further resolved that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Eagles basketball team and coaches.

The Resolution was adopted.

HOUSE RESOLUTION

On motion of Rep. HARVIN, with unanimous consent, the following was taken up for immediate consideration:  

H. 4831 -- Rep. Harvin: A HOUSE RESOLUTION GRANTING THE PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES TO THE LADY MONARCHS OF MANNING HIGH SCHOOL OF CLARENDON COUNTY AND THE TEAM'S COACHES, ON A DATE AS DETERMINED BY THE SPEAKER, FOR THE PURPOSE OF BEING RECOGNIZED FOR WINNING THE 1999-2000 CLASS AAA GIRLS BASKETBALL STATE CHAMPIONSHIP.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives:

That the privilege of the floor of the House of Representatives be and hereby is granted to the Lady Monarchs of Manning High School of Clarendon County and the team’s coaches, on a date and at a time to be determined by the Speaker, for the purpose of being recognized for winning the 1999‑2000 Class AAA girls basketball state championship.

Be it further resolved that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Lady Monarchs basketball team and coaches.

The Resolution was adopted.

CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

The following was introduced:

H. 4832 -- Reps. Knotts, Koon, Frye, Huggins, Gamble, Stuart and Riser: A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE LIFE AND DEATH OF JOSEPH DREW SMITH, AND HIS LASTING CONTRIBUTION TO BOATING SAFETY IN THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, BY NAMING THE NEW LAKE MURRAY MARINE PATROL STATION ON BUNDRICK ISLAND IN LEXINGTON COUNTY IN HIS HONOR.

The Concurrent Resolution was agreed to and ordered sent to the Senate.

ROLL CALL

The roll call of the House of Representatives was taken resulting as follows:

	Allen
	Allison
	Altman

	Askins
	Bailey
	Bales

	Barfield
	Barrett
	Battle

	Bowers
	Breeland
	Brown, G.

	Brown, H.
	Brown, J.
	Canty

	Carnell
	Cato
	Chellis

	Clyburn
	Cobb-Hunter
	Cooper

	Cotty
	Dantzler
	Davenport

	Delleney
	Easterday
	Edge

	Emory
	Fleming
	Frye

	Gamble
	Gilham
	Gourdine

	Hamilton
	Harrell
	Harrison

	Harvin
	Haskins
	Hawkins

	Hayes
	Hines, J.
	Hines, M.

	Hinson
	Hosey
	Howard

	Huggins
	Inabinett
	Jennings

	Keegan
	Kelley
	Kennedy

	Kirsh
	Klauber
	Knotts

	Koon
	Lanford
	Law

	Lee
	Limehouse
	Littlejohn

	Lloyd
	Loftis
	Lourie

	Lucas
	Mack
	Maddox

	Martin
	McCraw
	McGee

	McKay
	McLeod, M.
	McLeod, W.

	McMahand
	Meacham-Richardson
	Miller

	Moody-Lawrence
	Neal, J.H.
	Neal, J.M.

	Neilson
	Ott
	Parks

	Perry
	Phillips
	Pinckney

	Quinn
	Rhoad
	Rice

	Riser
	Robinson
	Rodgers

	Rutherford
	Sandifer
	Scott

	Seithel
	Sharpe
	Sheheen

	Simrill
	Smith, D.
	Smith, F.

	Smith, J.
	Smith, R.
	Stille

	Stuart
	Taylor
	Townsend

	Tripp
	Trotter
	Vaughn

	Walker
	Webb
	Whatley

	Wilder
	Wilkes
	Wilkins

	Witherspoon
	Woodrum
	Young-Brickell


STATEMENT OF ATTENDANCE

I came in after the roll call and was present for the Session on Tuesday, March 28.






Robert Leach







Ted Brown






Jerry Govan







Anthony Harris

Total Present--121

SPECIAL PRESENTATION

Rep. MEACHAM-RICHARDSON presented to the House the Rock Hill High School Band congratulating them on their fiftieth anniversary. 

DOCTOR OF THE DAY

Announcement was made that Dr. R. Layton McCurdy of Charleston is the Doctor of the Day for the General Assembly.

CO-SPONSORS ADDED

In accordance with House Rule 5.2 below:

"5.2
Every bill before presentation shall have its title endorsed; every report, its title at length; every petition, memorial, or other paper, its prayer or substance; and, in every instance, the name of the member presenting any paper shall be endorsed and the papers shall be presented by the member to the Speaker at the desk.  After a bill or resolution has been presented and given first reading, no further names of co‑sponsors may be added.  A member may add his name to a bill or resolution or a co‑sponsor of a bill or resolution may remove his name at any time prior to the bill or resolution receiving passage on second reading.  The member or co‑sponsor shall notify the Clerk of the House in writing of his desire to have his name added or removed from the bill or resolution.  The Clerk of the House shall print the member’s or co‑sponsor’s written notification in the House Journal.  The removal or addition of a name does not apply to a bill or resolution sponsored by a committee.”

CO-SPONSOR ADDED

	Bill Number:
	H. 4797

	Date:
	ADD:

	03/28/00
	DAVENPORT


CO-SPONSOR ADDED

	Bill Number:
	H. 4013

	Date:
	ADD:

	03/28/00
	LIMEHOUSE


H. 4816--ORDERED TO THIRD READING

The following Bill was taken up:

H. 4816 -- Reps. Meacham-Richardson, Delleney, McCraw and Simrill: A BILL TO ESTABLISH ELECTION DISTRICTS FROM WHICH CERTAIN MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 OF YORK COUNTY MUST RESIDE, PROVIDE THAT ALL SEVEN MEMBERS OF THE BOARD MUST BE ELECTED AT LARGE FROM THE DISTRICT, PROVIDE A SCHEDULE FOR ELECTION OF TRUSTEES, THE METHOD OF DETERMINING CANDIDATES ELECTED, AND PROVIDE FOR FILING VACANCIES.

The question then recurred to the passage of the Bill on second reading.

Rep. KIRSH demanded the yeas and nays which were taken, resulting as follows:

Yeas 4; Nays 2

Those who voted in the affirmative are:

	Delleney
	McCraw
	Meacham-Richardson

	Simrill
	
	


Total--4

 Those who voted in the negative are:

	Kirsh
	Moody-Lawrence
	


Total--2

So, the Bill was read the second time and ordered to third reading.

ORDERED TO THIRD READING

The following Bills and Joint Resolutions were taken up, read the second time, and ordered to a third reading:

H. 4817 -- Reps. Meacham-Richardson, Delleney, Kirsh, McCraw, Moody-Lawrence and Simrill: A BILL TO ESTABLISH FIVE SINGLE MEMBER ELECTION DISTRICTS FROM WHICH CERTAIN MEMBERS OF YORK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 OF YORK COUNTY MUST RESIDE AND BE ELECTED BY THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF EACH DISTRICT, PROVIDE THAT TWO MEMBERS MUST BE ELECTED AT-LARGE FROM THE SCHOOL DISTRICT, PROVIDE A SCHEDULE FOR THE ELECTION OF TRUSTEES, THE METHOD OF DETERMINING CANDIDATES, AND A PROCEDURE FOR FILLING VACANCIES.

S. 1226 -- Senators Patterson, Giese, Jackson and Courson: A JOINT RESOLUTION TO PROVIDE THAT THE SCHOOL DAY OF JANUARY 20, 2000, MISSED BY THE STUDENTS OF A. C. FLORA HIGH SCHOOL OF RICHLAND COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT ONE FOR SCHOOL YEAR 1999-2000 WHEN THE SCHOOL WAS CLOSED DUE TO A MALFUNCTION IN THE HEATING SYSTEM, IS EXEMPTED FROM THE MAKE-UP REQUIREMENT OF THE DEFINED MINIMUM PLAN THAT FULL SCHOOL DAYS MISSED DUE TO EXTREME WEATHER OR OTHER CIRCUMSTANCES BE MADE UP.

H. 4751 -- Reps. Fleming, Allison, Altman, Cooper, Davenport, Keegan, Kelley, Koon, Lanford, Martin and Riser: A BILL TO AMEND SECTION 7-13-75, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO POLITICAL ACTIVITY OF MEMBERS OF LOCAL ELECTION COMMISSIONS, SO AS TO CLARIFY THAT A PERSON MAY PARTICIPATE ONLY IN THE POLITICAL MANAGEMENT OR IN A POLITICAL CAMPAIGN OVER WHICH THE PERSON HAS NO JURISDICTION.

Rep. FLEMING explained the Bill.

H. 4766 -- Medical, Military, Public and Municipal Affairs Committee: A JOINT RESOLUTION TO APPROVE REGULATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, LICENSING AND REGULATION, BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS, RELATING TO ADOPTION OF PART IV OF THE NATIONAL BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS PRACTICAL EXAMINATION, DESIGNATED AS REGULATION DOCUMENT NUMBER 2463, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE 1, CHAPTER 23, TITLE 1 OF THE 1976 CODE.

Rep. PARKS explained the Joint Resolution.

H. 4453 -- Reps. McGee and McKay: A BILL TO AMEND SECTION 56-3-3310, AS AMENDED, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF PURPLE HEART LICENSE PLATES, SO AS TO REVISE THE NUMBER OF LICENSE PLATES THAT MAY BE ISSUED TO A PURPLE HEART RECIPIENT.

Rep. STUART explained the Bill.

H. 4770 -- Education and Public Works Committee: A JOINT RESOLUTION TO APPROVE REGULATIONS OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION, RELATING TO SUMMER PROGRAMS, DESIGNATED AS REGULATION DOCUMENT NUMBER 2424, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE 1, CHAPTER 23, TITLE 1 OF THE 1976 CODE.

Rep. WALKER explained the Joint Resolution.

RETURNED TO THE SENATE WITH AMENDMENTS

The following Bill was taken up, read the third time, and ordered returned to the Senate with amendments:

S. 1034 -- Senators Leatherman, Glover, Elliott, Land, McGill and Saleeby: A BILL TO AMEND SECTION 7-7-260, AS AMENDED, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO VOTING PRECINCTS IN FLORENCE COUNTY, SO AS TO COMBINE THE BACK SWAMP AND QUINBY PRECINCTS AND REDESIGNATE A MAP NUMBER ON WHICH THE LINES OF THESE PRECINCTS ARE DELINEATED.

H. 4650--AMENDED AND ORDERED TO THIRD READING

The following Bill was taken up:

H. 4650 -- Reps. Hamilton, W. McLeod, Easterday, Leach and F. Smith: A BILL TO AMEND SECTION 59-149-50, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO THE ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR A LIFE SCHOLARSHIP, SO AS TO DELETE THE REQUIREMENT THAT STUDENTS MUST PASS ALL COURSES REQUIRED FOR A STAR DIPLOMA; TO REPEAL SECTIONS 59-39-105 AND 59-39-190 RELATING TO THE REQUIREMENTS AND THE PROMULGATION OF REGULATIONS FOR THE STAR DIPLOMA; AND TO REPEAL SECTION 59-103-175, RELATING TO INCLUDING STAR DIPLOMA INFORMATION IN HIGH SCHOOL AND HIGHER EDUCATION AWARENESS COUNSELING, ALL SO AS TO REPEAL THE STAR DIPLOMA PROGRAM.

The Education and Public Works Committee proposed the following Amendment No. 1 (Doc Name \GJK\AMEND\21091SD00), which was adopted:

Amend the bill, as and if amended, by adding a new SECTION immediately after SECTION 1 to read:

/SECTION
____.
Section 59-149-90 of the 1976 Code, as added by Act 418 of 1998, is amended to read:


“Section 59-149-90.
(A)
Students must not have been adjudicated delinquent or been convicted or pled guilty or nolo contendere to any felonies or any alcohol or drug related offenses under the laws of this or any other state or under the laws of the United States in order to be eligible for a LIFE Scholarship, except that a student who has been adjudicated delinquent or has been convicted or pled guilty or nolo contendere to an alcohol or drug related misdemeanor offense is ineligible only for one calendar year after the adjudication, conviction, or plea occurred.


(B)
Regardless of the number of hours attempted, once the student has earned a bachelor’s degree, he is ineligible for a LIFE Scholarship to seek another degree.


(C)
All students who earn a LIFE Scholarship under this chapter or the Palmetto Fellows Scholarship shall be recognized at graduation from high school with a certificate issued by the Department of Education.” /

Renumber sections to conform.

Amend totals and title to conform.

Rep. STILLE explained the amendment.

The amendment was then adopted.

The Bill, as amended, was read the second time and ordered to third reading.

H. 3300--REQUESTS FOR DEBATE

The following Bill was taken up:

H. 3300 -- Reps. Beck, Mason, R. Smith, Lourie, J. Smith, Jennings, Emory and Howard: A BILL TO AMEND THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, BY ADDING SECTION 56-5-195 SO AS TO PROVIDE THAT PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SCHOOLS MUST TRANSPORT TEN OR MORE STUDENTS IN A SCHOOL BUS OR ACTIVITY BUS, PROVIDE THAT VEHICLES PURCHASED BEFORE A CERTAIN DATE HAVE A GRACE PERIOD DURING WHICH THEY MUST COMPLY WITH THIS PROVISION, AND PROVIDE THAT DURING THE GRACE PERIOD A NON-COMPLYING VEHICLE MUST DISPLAY A DECAL THAT STATES THE VEHICLE DOES NOT MEET THE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS OF A SCHOOL BUS; BY ADDING SECTION 56-5-196 SO AS TO PROVIDE THAT THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION MUST NOTIFY OWNERS OF CERTAIN VEHICLES USED TO TRANSPORT STUDENTS OF THE PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THIS ACT; TO AMEND SECTION 56-5-190, RELATING TO SCHOOL BUSES, SO AS TO PROVIDE THAT THIS PROVISION APPLIES TO SCHOOL BUSES TRANSPORTING STUDENTS TO BOTH PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SCHOOLS; AND TO AMEND SECTION 59-67-30, RELATING TO PAINTING AND MARKINGS ON SCHOOL BUSES, SO AS TO PROVIDE THE MARKINGS THAT MUST APPEAR ON A SCHOOL BUS THAT DOES NOT COMPLY WITH THE STATE'S REQUIREMENTS.

The Education and Public Works Committee proposed the following Amendment No. 1 (Doc Name GGS\AMEND\22547CM00):

Amend the bill, as and if amended, by striking all after the enacting words and inserting:

/ SECTION
1.
The 1976 Code is amended by adding:


“Section 56‑5‑195.
(A)
Effective July 1, 2000, any entity transporting preprimary, primary, or secondary school students to or from school, school-related activities, or child care, and  utilizing a vehicle defined as a ‘school bus’ under 49 U.S.C. Section 30125, or any successor to this section, must transport these students in a vehicle meeting federal school bus safety standards, as contained in 49 U.S.C. Section 30101, et seq., or any successor statutes, and all applicable federal regulations.  Nothing in this section prohibits the transportation of children to or from child care in nonconforming vehicles by a State of South Carolina human service provider or public transportation authority as long as each child is accompanied by a parent or legal guardian whose transportation is in connection with his work, education, or training.


(B)
Notwithstanding subsection (A) of this section, any vehicle that is purchased before July 1, 2000, and is utilized to transport preprimary, primary, or secondary students to or from school, school-related activities, or child care is not subject to the requirements contained in subsection (A) of this section until July 1, 2006.  A vehicle that is purchased on or after July 1, 2000, and is utilized to transport preprimary, primary, or secondary students to or from school, school related activities, or child care is subject to the requirements contained in subsection (A) of this section once the vehicle is utilized for those purposes.


(C)
Before July 1, 2006, nothing in this section may be construed to create a duty or other obligation to cease utilizing nonconforming vehicles purchased before the effective date of this Act.


(D)
To facilitate compliance with the provisions contained in this section, any entity contained in this section may purchase conforming vehicles under the State of South Carolina contracts for purchase of these vehicles.


(E)
Nothing in the section prohibits the transportation of students by common carriers that are not exclusively engaged in the transportation of school students or by the entities subject to this section which own or operate these vehicles.  However, the motor carriage used by the common carrier or entity to transport students must be designed to carry thirty or more passengers.”

SECTION
2.
The 1976 Code is amended by adding:


“Section 56‑5‑196.
The parents or legal guardians of a student who is eligible to receive public school bus transportation must have the option of designating a child daycare center or other before or after school program as the student’s origin or destination for school transportation.”

SECTION
3.
This act takes effect upon approval by the Governor.  /

Renumber sections to conform.

Amend title to conform.

Rep. WALKER explained the amendment.

Reps. LOFTIS, CATO, R. SMITH, ROBINSON, SIMRILL, SHEHEEN, LAW, BALES and HAYES requested debate on the Bill.

H. 3993--AMENDED, REQUEST FOR DEBATE AND ORDERED TO THIRD READING

The following Bill was taken up:

H. 3993 -- Reps. Rodgers, Clyburn, Gilham, Gourdine, Hinson, Kelley, Lloyd and Kennedy: A BILL TO AMEND SECTION 58-25-30, AS AMENDED, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO THE ACTIVATION AND DISSOLUTION OF A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, SO AS TO DEFINE THE NEW SOURCES OF REVENUE THAT REQUIRE THE ACTIVATION OF AN AUTHORITY TO BE APPROVED BY THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS WITHIN A PROPOSED SERVICE AREA; TO AMEND SECTION 58-25-35, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO COMPOSITION OF A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, SO AS TO MAKE A TECHNICAL CORRECTION; TO AMEND SECTION 58-25-40, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY'S BOARD MEMBERS, OFFICERS, AND STAFF SO AS TO DELETE A REFERENCE TO THE TERM "RESIDENT SENATOR", AND TO PROVIDE THAT IF A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY EXPANDS INTO A CONTIGUOUS COUNTY, OR MUNICIPALITY, THE EXPANSION MUST BE APPROVED BY THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS IN THOSE COUNTIES AND MUNICIPALITIES ONLY; TO AMEND SECTION 58-25-50 AS AMENDED, RELATING TO THE POWERS AND DUTIES OF A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, SO AS TO DELETE THE PROVISION RELATING TO THE AUTHORITY'S PREPARATION OF A PLAN TO COORDINATE PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION SERVICES PROVIDED BY EACH ENTITY IN THE AUTHORITY'S SERVICE AREA; AND TO AMEND SECTION 58-25-60, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO SOURCES OF FUNDS TO OPERATE A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, SO AS TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL SOURCES OF FUNDS THAT MAY BE USED TO OPERATE A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY WHICH INCLUDE A SALES TAX ON GASOLINE, A TAX PER GALLON OF GASOLINE SOLD, AND A GENERAL SALES TAX, AND TO DELETE THE REQUIREMENT THAT A MAJORITY OF THE MEMBERS OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY REPRESENTING A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY'S SERVICE AREA MUST APPROVE AN INCREASE IN THE MOTOR VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE.

The Education and Public Works Committee proposed the following Amendment No. 1 (Doc Name BBM\AMEND\9333HTC00), which was adopted:

Amend the bill, as and if amended, by striking all after the enacting words and inserting:

/ SECTION
1.
Section 4‑37‑30(A) of the 1976 Code, as last amended by Act 93 of 1999, is further amended to read:


“(A)
Subject to the requirements of this section, the governing body of a county may impose by ordinance impose a one percent sales and use tax in an amount not to exceed one percent within its jurisdiction for a single project or for multiple projects and for a specific period of time to collect a limited amount of money.



(1)
The governing body of a county may vote to impose the tax authorized by this section, subject to a referendum, by enacting an ordinance.  The ordinance must specify:




(a)
the project or projects and a description of the project or projects for which the proceeds of the tax are to be used, which may include projects located within or without, or both within and without, the boundaries of the county imposing the tax and which may include:





(i)

highways, roads, streets, bridges, mass transit systems, greenbelts, and other transportation‑related projects facilities including, but not limited to, drainage facilities relating to the highways, roads, streets, bridges, and other transportation‑related projects;





(ii)
jointly‑operated projects, of the type specified in sub‑subitem (i), of the county and South Carolina Department of Transportation;  or





(iii)
projects, of the type specified in sub‑subitem (i), operated by the county or jointly‑operated projects of the county and other governmental entities;




(b)
the maximum time, stated in calendar years or calendar quarters, or a combination of them, not to exceed twenty‑five years or the length of payment for each project whichever is shorter in length, for which the tax may be imposed;




(c)
the estimated capital cost of the project or projects to be funded in whole or in part from proceeds of the tax and the principal amount of bonds to be supported by the tax;  and




(d)
the anticipated year the tax will end.



(2)
Upon receipt of the ordinance, the county election commission shall conduct a referendum on the question of imposing the optional special sales and use tax in the jurisdiction.  If the ordinance is received prior to January 1, 1998, a referendum for this purpose may be held on the Tuesday following the first Monday in November;  however, if the ordinance is received on January 1, 1998, or thereafter, A referendum for this purpose must be held at the time of the general election.  The commission shall publish the date and purpose of the referendum once a week for four consecutive weeks immediately preceding the date of the referendum in a newspaper of general circulation in the jurisdiction.  A public hearing must be conducted at least fourteen days before the referendum after publication of a notice setting forth the date, time, and location of the public hearing.  The notice must be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the county at least fourteen days before the date fixed for the public hearing.



(3)
A separate question must be included on the referendum ballot for each purpose which purpose may, as determined by the governing body of a county, be set forth as a single question relating to several of the projects, and the question must read substantially as follows:


‘I approve a special one percent sales and use tax in the amount of         (fractional amount of one percent)          (one percent) to be imposed in (county) for not more than (time) to fund the following project or projects:




Project (1) for __________ $ __________

Yes ___

No ___




Project (2), etc.’


In addition, the referendum, shall as determined by the governing body of a county, may contain a question on the authorization of general obligation bonds under the exemption provided in Section 14(6), Article X of the Constitution of South Carolina, 1895, so that revenues derived from the imposition of the optional sales and use tax may be pledged to the repayment of the bonds.  The additional question must read substantially as follows:


‘I approve the issuance of not exceeding $_____ of general obligation bonds of _____ County, maturing over a period not to exceed ___ years to fund the _____ project or projects.

Yes ___

No ___’


If the referendum on the question relating to the issuance of general obligation bonds is approved, the county may issue bonds in an amount sufficient to fund the expenses of the project or projects.



(4)
All qualified electors desiring to vote in favor of imposing the tax for a particular purpose shall vote ‘yes’ and all qualified electors opposed to levying the tax for a particular purpose shall vote ‘no’. If a majority of the votes cast are in favor of imposing the tax for one or more of the specified purposes, then the tax is imposed as provided in this section;  otherwise, the tax is not imposed. The election commission shall conduct the referendum under pursuant to the election laws of this State, mutatis mutandis, and shall certify the result no later than November thirtieth after the date of the referendum to the appropriate governing body and to the Department of Revenue. Included in the certification must be the maximum cost of the project or projects or facilities to be funded in whole or in part from proceeds of the tax, the maximum time specified for the imposition of the tax, and the principal amount of bonds to be supported by the tax receiving a favorable vote. Expenses of the referendum must be paid by the jurisdiction conducting the referendum.  If the tax is approved in the referendum, the tax is imposed effective the first day of May following the date of the referendum.  If the certification is not timely made timely to the Department of Revenue, the imposition is postponed for twelve months.



(5)
The tax terminates on the earlier of:




(a)
the final day of the maximum time specified for the imposition;  or




(b)
the end of the calendar month during which the Department of Revenue determines that the tax has raised revenues sufficient to provide the greater of either the cost of the project or projects as approved in the referendum or the cost to amortize all debts related to the approved projects.



(6)
When the optional sales and use tax is imposed, the governing body of the jurisdiction authorizing the referendum for the tax shall include by definition include more than one item as defined in (a)(i) and (a)(ii) to describe the single project or multiple projects for which the proceeds of the tax are to be used.



(7)
Amounts collected in excess of the required proceeds must first must be applied, if necessary, to complete each project for which the tax was imposed.  Any additional revenue collected above the specified amount must be applied to the reduction of debt principal of the imposing political subdivision on transportation infrastructure debts only.



(8)
The tax levied pursuant to this section must be administered and collected by the Department of Revenue in the same manner that other sales and use taxes are collected.  The department may prescribe the amounts which may be added to the sales price because of the tax.



(9)
The tax authorized by this section is in addition to all other local sales and use taxes and applies to the gross proceeds of sales in the applicable jurisdiction which are subject to the tax imposed by Chapter 36 of Title 12 and the enforcement provisions of Chapter 54 of Title 12.  The gross proceeds of the sale of items subject to a maximum tax in Chapter 36 of Title 12 are exempt from the tax imposed by this section.  The gross proceeds of the sale of food lawfully purchased with United States Department of Agriculture food stamps are exempt from the tax imposed by this section.  The tax imposed by this section also applies to tangible personal property subject to the use tax in Article 13, Chapter 36 of Title 12.



(10)
Taxpayers required to remit taxes under pursuant to Article 13, Chapter 36 of Title 12 must identify the county in which the tangible personal property purchase at retail is stored, used, or consumed in this State.



(11)
Utilities are required to report sales in the county in which consumption of the tangible personal property occurs.



(12)
A taxpayer subject to the tax imposed by Section 12‑36‑920, who owns or manages rental units in more than one county shall separately report separately in his sales tax return the total gross proceeds from business done in each county.



(13)
The gross proceeds of sales of tangible personal property delivered after the imposition date of the tax levied under pursuant to this section in a county, either under pursuant to the terms of a construction contract executed before the imposition date, or a written bid submitted before the imposition date, culminating in a construction contract entered into before or after the imposition date, are exempt from the special local sales and use tax provided in this section if a verified copy of the contract is filed with the Department of Revenue within six months after the imposition of the special local sales and use tax.



(14)
Notwithstanding the imposition date of the special local sales and use tax authorized pursuant to this section, with respect to services that are billed regularly billed on a monthly basis, the special local sales and use tax is imposed beginning on the first day of the billing period beginning on or after the imposition date.



(15)
The revenues of the tax collected in each county under pursuant to this section must be remitted to the State Treasurer and credited to a fund separate and distinct from the general fund of the State. After deducting the amount of refunds made and costs to the Department of Revenue of administering the tax, not to exceed one percent of the revenues, the State Treasurer shall distribute the revenues and all interest earned on the revenues while on deposit with him quarterly to the county in which the tax is imposed and these revenues and interest earnings must be used only for the purpose stated in the imposition ordinance. The State Treasurer may correct misallocation costs or refunds by adjusting later distributions, but these adjustments must be made in the same fiscal year as the misallocation.  However, allocations made as a result of city or county code errors must be corrected prospectively.



(16)
The Department of Revenue shall furnish data to the State Treasurer and to the counties receiving revenues for the purpose of calculating distributions and estimating revenues.  The information which must be supplied to counties upon request includes, but is not limited to, gross receipts, net taxable sales, and tax liability by taxpayers.  Information about a specific taxpayer is considered confidential and is governed by the provisions of Section 12‑54‑240.  A person violating this section is subject to the penalties provided in Section 12‑54‑240.



(17)
The Department of Revenue may promulgate regulations necessary to implement this section.”

SECTION
2.
Section 4‑37‑40 of the 1976 Code, as added by Act 52 of 1995, is amended to read:


“Section 4‑37‑40.
(A)
In a county in which an ordinance is received by the county election commission pursuant to Section 4‑37‑30(A), if the county has previously imposed a local option sales and use tax pursuant to Chapter 10 of Title 4, the county election commission shall conduct a referendum at the same time as the referendum provided in Section 4‑37‑30(A) on the question of whether the local option sales and use tax imposed under Chapter 10 of Title 4 shall continue to be imposed.  The question must read substantially as follows:


“Must a one percent sales and use tax continue to be levied in __________ County for the purpose of allowing a credit against a taxpayer’s county and municipal ad valorem tax liability and for the purpose of funding county and municipal operations in the __________ County area?

Yes


No



(B)
All qualified electors desiring to vote in favor of continuing the tax shall vote “yes” and all qualified electors opposed to continuing the tax shall vote “no”. If a majority of the votes cast are in favor of continuing the tax, then the tax shall continue to be imposed as provided in Chapter 10 of Title 4;  otherwise, the tax shall not continue to be imposed.  If the vote in the referendum is to terminate the tax, the termination is effective on the first day of the first fiscal year following the referendum.  Notwithstanding the termination date of the local option sales and use tax, with respect to services that are regularly billed on a monthly basis, the local option sales and use tax is terminated beginning on the first day of the billing period beginning on or after the termination date.


(C)
The provisions of this section are independent of the referendum provided for in Chapter 10 of Title 4.


(D)
Two weeks before the referendum, the county council and the municipal councils in the county area shall publish in a newspaper of general circulation within the jurisdiction the credit against property taxes in the most recent fiscal year.  The notice must show the credit on the following classes of property:



(1)
a primary residence;



(2)
personal property including, but not limited to, an automobile;



(3)
a commercial facility;



(4)
an industrial facility.


(E)
Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions applicable to conducting and certifying the referendum provided in Section 4‑37‑30(A) shall also apply to the referendum provided in this section.


At no time may any portion of the county area be subject to more than one percent sales tax levied pursuant to this article, Article 3, chapter 10 of this title, or pursuant to any local legislation enacted by the General Assembly.”

SECTION
3.
Section 58‑25‑35 of the 1976 Code, as last amended by Act 43 of 1997, is further amended to read:


“Section 58‑25‑35.
The members of a regional transportation authority created under authority of this chapter must be the municipalities within the service area as defined by this chapter and the counties within the unincorporated areas or of the service area of the authority.”

SECTION
4.
Section 58‑25‑40 of the 1976 Code, as last amended by Act 43 of 1997, is further amended to read:


“Section 58-25-40.
The authority’s board members, officers, and staff must be as follows:


(1)
The members of the authority must be represented on the governing board of the authority by appointees of the governing bodies of the municipalities and counties within the service area as set forth in Section 58‑25‑35.  The appointees may be elected officials of these local governing bodies and if so would serve in an ex officio capacity.  The governing board of the authority must be made up of not more than two times the number of authority governmental members and up to three additional members appointed by the legislative delegation as provided in this section.


There must be at least five board members.  The membership of the governing board must be apportioned among the member municipalities and counties proportionate to population within the authority’s service area.


As many as three additional members of the governing board of a transportation authority may be appointed by the legislative delegations of the member counties if approved in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 58‑25‑30.  If the authority receives a grant of the state funds from the general fund or the highway fund, the delegation shall appoint three additional members.  Unless the agreement provides otherwise, the members of the governing board appointed by the delegation must be apportioned as determined by a majority of the delegation members, including the resident senator.  No member government, regardless of population, may have less than one member on the board.  County population must be determined after subtracting the member municipality population in that county.  The terms of the representatives serving on the governing board of the authority must be staggered so that the terms of approximately one‑third of the governing board expire each year.  After the initial terms as set forth in the agreement to achieve staggered terms, subsequent terms must be for three years.  Members of the governing board of the authority may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in connection with their service on the authority but they may not receive salaries, per diem, or other compensation.  Members shall adopt and abide by rules governing meeting attendance.


(2)
No county or municipality may be a member in more than one authority except that a metropolitan government may be a member of more than one authority when the services provided by the authorities are different.


(3)
Subsequent to the activation of the authority, contiguous counties or municipalities not participating initially may become members of the authority with the same benefits as the initial members pursuant to the procedure set forth in Section 58‑25‑30 and with the approval by a majority vote of the board of the authority.  If an election is required, it must be held only in the contiguous counties or municipalities that are seeking to become members of the authority.


(4)
The board of the authority shall elect one of its members as chairman, one as vice‑chairman, and other officers as may be necessary, to serve for one year in that capacity or until their successors are elected and qualify.  A majority of the board constitutes a quorum.  A vacancy on the board does not impair the right of the authority to exercise all of its rights and perform all of its duties.  Upon the effective date of his appointment, or as soon after appointment as practicable, each board member shall enter upon his duties.


(5)
A board member of the authority may be removed from office by the governing body which appointed him for misconduct, malfeasance, or neglect of duty in office.  Any vacancy so created must be filled as provided above.


(6)
The authority may employ an executive director, who may serve as secretary or treasurer, to serve at the pleasure of the authority.  The executive director may employ any employees as may be necessary for the proper administration of the duties and functions of the authority and may determine the qualifications of the persons.  The authority shall adopt compensation plans for employees.”

SECTION
5.
This act takes effect upon approval by the Governor. /

Amend title to conform.

Rep. STUART explained the amendment.

The amendment was then adopted.

Rep. KIRSH requested debate on the Bill.

The Bill, as amended, was read the second time and ordered to third reading.

S. 1055--RECALLED FROM COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE, NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS

On motion of Rep. SHARPE, with unanimous consent, the following Bill was ordered recalled from the Committee on Agriculture, Natural Resources and Environmental Affairs:

S. 1055 -- Senator Moore: A BILL TO AMEND ARTICLE 1, CHAPTER 13, TITLE 50 OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO PROTECTION OF FISH, BY ADDING SECTION 50-13-25 SO AS TO ESTABLISH LAWFUL CATCH LIMITS FOR BASS AND OTHER FISH, TO ESTABLISH A MINIMUM SIZE LIMIT FOR BASS, AND TO RESTRICT THE USE OF FISHING DEVICES FOR SLADE'S LAKE IN EDGEFIELD COUNTY.

H. 4017--SENATE AMENDMENTS CONCURRED IN AND BILL ENROLLED

The Senate amendments to the following Bill were taken up for consideration: 

H. 4017 -- Ways and Means Committee: A BILL TO MAKE FINDINGS OF LEGISLATIVE INTENT WITH RESPECT TO THE SPECIAL NEEDS OF THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS AND CLINICS TO MAINTAIN MAXIMUM FLEXIBILITY IN MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS; TO AMEND SECTION 59-123-60, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO ORGANIZATION AND POWERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA, SO AS TO PROVIDE THAT THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA SHALL CONSTITUTE THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY FOR THE MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS AND CLINICS IN ORDER TO PROVIDE A HIGH LEVEL OF MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONAL FLEXIBILITY TO THE AUTHORITY AND REMOVE THE HOSPITALS AND CLINICS FROM CENTRAL STATE PROGRAM REGULATION OF PROCUREMENT, REAL PROPERTY, AND HUMAN RESOURCES, TO SET FORTH THE DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES AS THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY; TO AMEND SECTION 8-11-260, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO EXEMPTIONS FROM STATE PERSONNEL POLICIES AND REQUIREMENTS, SO AS TO EXEMPT EMPLOYEES OF THE HOSPITALS AND CLINICS FROM BUDGET AND CONTROL BOARD PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION; TO AMEND SECTION 8-17-370, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO EXEMPTIONS FROM STATE EMPLOYEE GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES, SO AS TO EXEMPT MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AND CLINIC EMPLOYEES FROM THE STATE EMPLOYEE GRIEVANCE ACT; AND TO AMEND SECTION 11-35-710, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO EXEMPTIONS FROM THE STATE PROCUREMENT CODE, SO AS TO ADD AN EXEMPTION TO THE SOUTH CAROLINA CONSOLIDATED PROCUREMENT CODE FOR THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS AND CLINICS.

The Senate amendments were agreed to, and the Bill having received three readings in both Houses, it was ordered that the title be changed to that of an Act, and that it be enrolled for ratification.

H. 3056--DEBATE ADJOURNED

The Senate amendments to the following Bill were taken up for consideration: 

H. 3056 -- Rep. Kirsh: A BILL TO AMEND SECTION 22-2-130, AS AMENDED, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO THE PENALTY FOR FAILURE TO APPEAR FOR JURY SERVICE IN MAGISTRATE'S COURT AND THE FREQUENCY OF JURY SERVICE SO AS TO PROVIDE THAT A PERSON SHALL NOT SERVE ON A JURY MORE THAN ONCE EVERY THREE YEARS RATHER THAN ONCE EVERY THREE MONTHS.

Rep. HARRISON moved to adjourn debate upon the Senate Amendments until Wednesday, March 29, which was agreed to.

H. 4139--SENATE AMENDMENTS CONCURRED IN AND BILL ENROLLED

The Senate amendments to the following Bill were taken up for consideration: 

H. 4139 -- Reps. Barrett and Townsend: A BILL TO AMEND SECTION 56-1-2100, AS AMENDED, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, RELATING TO A COMMERCIAL DRIVER LICENSE, SO AS TO ESTABLISH AN "S" ENDORSEMENT WHICH AUTHORIZES A PERSON TO DRIVE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION SCHOOL BUSES OR SCHOOL DISTRICT OWNED ACTIVITY BUSES.

Rep. TOWNSEND explained the Senate Amendments.

The Senate amendments were agreed to, and the Bill having received three readings in both Houses, it was ordered that the title be changed to that of an Act, and that it be enrolled for ratification.

S. 1051--ADOPTED AND SENT TO SENATE

The following Concurrent Resolution was taken up:  

S. 1051 -- Senator Bryan: A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION TO REQUEST THAT THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION DESIGNATE HARPER STREET (HIGHWAY 221) SITUATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF LAURENS, SOUTH CAROLINA, AS THE PRESIDENT ANDREW JOHNSON MEMORIAL HIGHWAY AND TO REQUEST THE DEPARTMENT TO ERECT APPROPRIATE SIGNS OR MARKERS REFLECTING THIS DESIGNATION.

Whereas, Andrew Johnson, the seventeenth President of the United States, operated a tailor shop in the City of Laurens in 1824 and 1825; and

Whereas, his connection to the City of Laurens is not currently memorialized; and

Whereas, the City of Laurens wishes to honor the late president, his residency in the City of Laurens, and his service to the people of the United States.  Now, therefore, 

Be it resolved by the Senate, the House of Representatives concurring:

That the members of the General Assembly request the Department of Transportation to designate Harper Street (Highway 221) situated within the city limits of Laurens, South Carolina, as the President Andrew Johnson Memorial Highway and to request the department to erect appropriate signs or markers reflecting this designation.

Be it further resolved that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the City of Laurens and the Department of Transportation.

The Concurrent Resolution was adopted and sent to the Senate.

Rep. WEBB moved that the House do now adjourn, which was agreed to.

RETURNED WITH CONCURRENCE

The Senate returned to the House with concurrence the following:

H. 4768 -- Rep. McGee: A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE PALMETTO BOYS STATE TO USE THE CHAMBERS OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES AND SENATE ON FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2000.

H. 4812 -- Rep. G. Brown: A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE PROFOUND SORROW OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA GENERAL ASSEMBLY UPON THE DEATH OF FANNIE BOYD QUILLIAN REEVES OF BISHOPVILLE, WHO PASSED AWAY MARCH 19, 2000, AT THE AGE OF NINETY-SEVEN, AND EXTENDING DEEPEST SYMPATHY TO HER DAUGHTER AND SON, OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS, AND MANY FRIENDS.

ADJOURNMENT

At 1:15 p.m. the House, in accordance with the motion of Rep. J. BROWN, adjourned in memory of George Chiles, to meet at 10:00 a.m. tomorrow.

***
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